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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
21,052,309 22,608,452 24,877,491 27,205,047 29,069,155
(403,993,810) (433,856,194) (477,399,052) (522,064,852) (557,837,084)
10,719,538 11,940,322 13,360,342 15,170,442 17,175,073
(205,707,934) (229,134,779) (256,384,963) (291,120,782) (329,589,651)
6,147,584 6,514,383 7,095,770 8,134,487 9,168,032
(117,972,137) (125,011,010) (136,167,826) (156,100,806) (175,934,534)
187,502 343,961 421,390 389,475 424,329
(3,598,163)  (6,600,612)  (8,086,474)  (7,474,025)  (8,142,874)
3,999,200 4,664,852 5,391,677 6,198,743 7,117,212
(76,744,648)  (89,518,510) (103,466,282) (118,953,878) (136,579,298)
385,252 389,410 419,913 413,416 426,179
(7,392,986)  (7,472,778)  (8,058,130)  (7,933,453)  (8,178,375)
404,300 479,143 540,578 618,009 720,570
(7,758,517)  (9,194,754) (10,373,692) (11,859,593) (13,827,738)
10,315,238 11,461,179 12,819,764 14,552,433 16,454,503
(197,949,417) (219,940,025) (246,011,271) (279,261,189) (315,761,913)
6,152,743 6,885,075 7,422,930 7,822,659 8,230,043
(118,071,138) (132,124,589) (142,446,027) (150,116,826) (157,934,525)
2,896,619 2,805,107 2,699,895 2,437,275 2,321,406
(55,586,119)  (53,830,003) (51,810,985) (46,771,307) (44,547,781)
635,514 661,741 758,925 981,133 665,444
(12,195,514)  (12,698,810) (14,563,771) (18,827,942)  12,769,870)
540,386 371,001 708,551 816,206 837,637
(10,370,007)  (7,119,509) (13,597,094) (15,662,993) (16,074,254)
19,622,912 20,933,665 22,923,630 24,994,301 26,647,796
(376,563,681) (401,717,031) (439,904,460) (479,640,636) (511,371,205)
16,545,889 17,602,056 18,849,155 20,372,901 21,907,127
(317,515,610) (337,783,455) (361,715,284) (390,955,970) (420,397,767)
6,612,673 6,807,956 7,196,002 7,618,591 8,037,929
(126,897,195) (130,644,676) (138,091,278) (146,200,761) (154,247,858)
9,405,347 10,076,833 10,904,731 11,926,040 12,934,171
(180,488,609) (193,374,425) (209,261,788) (228,860,708) (248,206,741)
527,869 514,244 517,440 562,741 623,353
(10,129,806)  (9,868,342)  (9,929,674) (10,799,000)  (11,962,144)
1,254,791 1,449,863 1,829,272 1,785,176 1,913,471
(24,079,439)  (27,822,871) (35,103,730) (34,257,527) (36,719,508)
319,789 157,101 53,197 109,195 36,033
(6,136,751)  (3,014,768)  (1,020,850)  (2,095,452) (691,473)
475,017 780,673 1,108,212 1,371,845 1,507,657
(9,115,576)  (14,981,115) (21,266,588) (26,325,706) (28,931,938)
1,426,415 1,670,294 1,948,355 2,204,789 2,414,605
(27,372,904)  (32,052,942) (37,388,932) (42,309,901)  (46,336,270)
® 1,731,946 2,073,343 2,498,311 2,817,924 3,057,867
(33,236,044)  (39,787,452) (47,942,588) (54,075,962) (58,680,468)
Tierl(CET1)
® 1,339,953 1,583,927 1,740,584 1,875,372 2,042,480
(25,713,698)  (30,395,559)  (33,401,807) (35,988,389) (39,195,191)
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Tierl ) 79,906 79,906 199,894 319,884 359,881
(1,533,396)  (1,533,396)  (3,835,966)  (6,138,574)  (6,906,116)
Tier2 ® 312,087 409,510 557,833 622,668 655,506
(5,988,950)  (7,858,497) (10,704,815) (11,948,999) (12,579,160)
) 12,605,577 13,712,894 15,485,352 16,989,668 17,849,566
(241,901,023) (263,150,436) (297,163,905) (326,031,729) (342,533,172)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

542,898 602,557 629,350 659,332 721,746
(10,418,213)  (11,563,069) (12,077,227) (12,652,581) (13,850,306)

449,905 488,159 500,870 545,079 577,987
(8,633,677)  (9,367,771)  (9,611,695) (10,460,066) (11,091,571)

64,928 67,742 72,927 74,545 80,329
(1,245,968)  (1,299,969)  (1,399,469)  (1,430,519)  (1,541,514)

205,268 213,963 224,096 229,897 260,275
(3,939,093)  (4,105,950)  (4,300,402)  (4,411,723)  (4,994,677)

N/A 136,647 138,605 164,699 165,886
(N/A)  (2,622,256)  (2,659,830)  (3,160,574)  (3,183,352)

98,166 N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1,883,806) (N/A) (N/A) (N/A) (N/A)

239,478 251,674 266,576 265,050 295,880
(4,595,583)  (4,829,624)  (5,115,593)  (5,086,310)  (5,677,937)

193,133 202,631 212,924 216,400 241,936
(3,706,222)  (3,888,489)  (4,086,012)  (4,152,716)  (4,642,752)

192,962 202,783 212,098 215,925 241,183
(3,702,941)  (3,891,406)  (4,070,161)  (4,143,601)  (4,628,302)

633,417 105,927 358,396 (60,936) 239,615
(12,155,272)  (2,032,739)  (6,877,619) ((1,169,362))  (4,598,212)
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
@ 0.95 0.93 0.90 0.83 0.86
® 14.57 13.66 12.43 11.35 11.57
@ 2.32 2.38 2.23 2.20 2.12
® 2.20 2.25 2.09 2.04 1.96
W ® 1.53 1.48 1.38 1.27 1.36
11.96 11.24 11.59 11.31 11.13
Q) 32.96 31.27 30.49 29.23 30.46
1
1 ® 0.58 0.59 0.59 0.59 0.65
(11.13) (11.32) (11.32) (11.32) (12.47)
1 ® 0.58 0.59 0.59 0.59 0.65
(11.13) (11.32) (11.32) (11.32) (12.47)
1
1.95 0.30 1.02 0.17) 0.68
(37.42) (5.76) (19.57) ((3.26)) (13.05)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 1.81 1.59 1.40 1.57 1.43
® 208.37 256.11 295.45 266.20 299.73
a0 3.77 4.08 4.15 4.17 4.30
Tierl(CET1) @ 10.63 11.55 11.24 11.04 11.44
Tierl €} 11.26 12.13 12.53 12.92 13.46
) 13.74 15.12 16.13 16.59 17.13
& 59.88 60.65 62.25 62.45 61.40
6.79 7.41 7.85 8.13 8.33
1
1 ay 4.15 4.54 5.00 5.39 5.87
(79.64) (87.12) (95.95) (103.43) (112.65)
€Y
@
(3) CSRC 9 -
2010 33 1
O]
®)
(O] CBIRC
(7) CAS CAS
®)
©)
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(10)
(11)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 25 50.95 55.17 57.74 59.15 62.01
25 106.74 101.77 112.07 122.98 138.94
® 10 7.26 5.53 4.68 4.07 2.44
10
® 18.27 15.25 13.83 12.58 11.67
@ 2.13 1.72 1.54 3.19 1.13
18.70 16.93 15.90 30.55 18.04
71.48 61.48 47.10 83.79 84.10
6.94 8.91 8.82 20.46 20.99
(1) CBIRC
@
o) 10
(4) CBIRC
2021 1 2 3 4
194,499 171,755 179,627 175,865
(3.732,436) (3,295,978) (3,447,042) (3,374,849)
65,861 56,417 64,431 54,474
(1,263,873) (1,082,642) (1,236,431) (1,045,356)
382,770 (221,605) (8.609) 87,059
(7.345,356) ((4,252,600)) ((165,207)) (1,670,662)
1951 1979 2
2009 1
2010 7
1
2
3
IT
2021 29,069,155
17,175,073 21,907,127
17.13 2021 241,936
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2021 3 4
37 402 3,348 18,961
50 22,807 13
4 11 5 16
2014 8
2021 500 29
1,000 Tierl 3
A A-1
Al P-1
A Fl+
39

2021 12 31 MOF 40.03 35.29
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2021 12 31
/
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC
4,113,392,450 100.00
9,500,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,002 100.00
1,750,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
o 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
40,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
150,000,000 51.00
@ 2,949,916,475 51.00
20,000,000 100.00
7,556,038,271 100.00
® 20,000,000,000 100.00
12,000,000,000 100.00
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12 31
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51
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
®) 2021 1 25
100
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
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/
53,342,800,000
@ 50.00
@ 1,110,854,000 9.00
@ 6,343,200,000 15.61
@ 3,885,500,000 25.26
@ 6,000,000,000 15.67
® 88,500,000,000 9.04
(1) 2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour I1"Afrique BSCA.
BSCA. 50
BSCA.
@
?) 2021 9.04

20
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2021 455,174 726
8,945
2021 12 31
12,763 2.8
63,390 13.9
50,032 11.0
64,785 14.2
93,521 20.6
42,937 9.4
118,075 25.9
726 0.2
8,945 2.0
455,174 100.0
2021 12 31
568 0.1
34,341 7.6
251,405 55.2
137,757 30.3
31,103 6.8
455,174 100.0
2021 12 31
120,497 26.5
15,853 3.5
18,890 4.2
16,540 3.6
143,014 31.4
414 0.1
9,059 2.0
74,281 16.3
24,831 5.5
31,795 6.9
455,174 100.0
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2021 12 31
30 87,633 19.3
31 40 105,613 23.2
41 50 121,928 26.8
51 140,000 30.7
455,174 100.0

2021 12 31
250,747 55.1
204,427 44.9
455,174 100.0
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2021 14 5
3
10
2021
GDP 8.1 2 5.1
12.5
4.9 13.5
21.2
PPI 8.1
CPI 0.9 M2
9 31.35 3.44
2021
GDP
2022 3
PPI CP1

2022

45/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2022

@

2021

46/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2021

2021

(®)

2021

47/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

48/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

CBIRC
2 5 12
12
5

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
(@) (@)
6,978,616 46.1 7,963,577 46.5
2,292,233 15.1 2,269,076 13.2
1,689,444 11.2 1,910,717 11.2
4,175,828 27.6 4,992,382 29.1
15,136,121 100.0 17,135,752 100.0

34,321 39,321
15,170,442 17,175,073

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
(@) (@)
90 78,228 0.5 74,359 0.5
91 360 60,793 0.4 52,847 0.3
361 3 43,749 0.3 40,886 0.2
3 12,663 0.1 16,829 0.1
195,433 1.3 184,921 1.1
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10 )
A 74,528 0.43
B 43,207 0.26
C 38,043 0.22
D 37,832 0.22
E 36,612 0.21
F 29,622 0.17
G 27,614 0.16
H 24,990 0.15
1 24,312 0.14
J 20,188 0.12
356,948 2.08
2021 12 31 2.44
10 11.67
©
CBIRC
5
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
(@) (@)
14,594,673 96.42 16,636,899 97.09
304,335 2.01 253,071 1.48
237,113 1.57 245,782 1.43
62,873 0.42 48,712 0.28
152,627 1.01 170,611 1.00
21,613 0.14 26,459 0.15
15,136,121 100.00 17,135,752 100.00
34,321 39,321
15,170,442 17,175,073
2021 12 31 8,669 245,782
0.14 1.43
51,264 253,071 1.48
0.53
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2021

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
192,551 81.2 2.37 203,939 83.0 2.22
93,614 39.5 3.79 93,620 38.1 3.58
98,937 41.7 1.75 110,319 44.9 1.68
38,300 16.2 0.62 36,246 147 0.51
17,655 7.5 0.38 18,872 7.7 0.36
8,430 3.6 1.55 6,179 2.5 0.99
3,647 1.5 2.04 2,340 0.9 1.33
3,231 1.4 0.85 3,009 1.2 0.64
5,308 2.2 1.22 5,822 2.4 0.96
29 4.26 24 8.25
6,262 2.6 1.51 5,597 2.3 1.31
237,113 100.0 1.57 245,782 100.0 1.43

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
67,523 35.1 5.08 66,402 32.6 4.43
9,641 5.0 1.04 12,269 6.0 1.21
14,209 7.4 1.81 28,172 13.7 3.39
22,000 11.4 1.18 17,859 8.8 0.85
34,978 18.2 8.55 18,384 9.0 3.72
1,916 1.0 0.31 3,371 1.7 0.47
2,807 1.5 1.31 6,558 3.2 2.25
6,225 3.2 3.25 20,314 10.0 10.50
26,040 13.5 2.07 24,026 11.8 1.61
55 0.02 362 0.2 0.24
IT 679 0.3 1.75 1,024 0.5 1.76
6,478 3.4 2.34 5,198 2.5 1.58
192,551 100.0 2.37 203,939 100.0 2.22
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31
1,369 0.6 0.39 1,297 0.5 0.41
30,533 12.9 0.88 26,265 10.7 0.64
18,451 7.8 0.75 17,463 7.1 0.61
65,405 27.6 2.95 58,562 23.8 2.38
46,009 19.4 2.00 49,632 20.2 1.86
9,294 3.9 1.68 12,258 5.0 2.07
59,790 25.2 1.78 74,708 30.4 1.99
6,262 2.6 1.51 5,597 2.3 1.31
237,113 100.0 1.57 245,782 100.0 1.43
)
2021
1 2 3
12
2021 1 1 410,963 60,702 159,541 631,206
1
1 2 (8,237) 8,237
2 3 (25,265) 25,265
2 1 4,768 (4,768)
3 2 2,420 (2,420)
185,625 185,625
33,273 36,009 61,866 131,148
(110,167) (19,832) (22,041) (152,040)
(59,252) (59,252)
2021 12 31 516,225 57,503 162,959 736,687
@ 3 17
@
@
2021
2021
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VaR
VaR 1 250
99
VaR
( )
2020 2021
59 88 164 52 53 67 99 36
1 28 165 213 28 149 190 289 35
62 75 120 9 44 83 136 21
VaR 87 232 362 87 150 210 307 87
[©) VaR
(Hifr . BRARRT)
2021 FEEIcB 1T 5HEIBEOVaROEFE{L
¥350
g
¥300 — BBYRY
— EE YRS

¥250
A i
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2021 2020
VaR
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2021
FTP FTP
2021 12 31 1
276,394 844,390
1 3 1 1
1 3 12 5 5
2020 12 31 (6,360,968) 818,643 4,421,541 (1,120,784) 194,579 2,914,986 (35,419)
2021 12 31 (6,739,001) 1,022,100 4,872,511 (844,390) (554,215) 3,539,307 2,949
() 44.3
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
100 (37,556) (67,941)  (37,792) (39,264)
100 37,556 67,941 37,792 39,264
12
2021 12 31 100
37,792 39,264
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2021
2021 1,492 2.3 2021
950
9,822
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
35,270 5,405 66,079 10,364
22,625 3,467 (3,454) (542)
) 44.3
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
+5 1,450 224
5 (1,450) (224)
+5 771 1,484
5 (771) (1,484)
5

224

®©)
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2021
62.01 138.94 2021 4
6.8 121.1 2021

20,646.3 16,244.6
127.1

1 3 1

1 3 12 5 5
2020 12 31 26,848 (12,801,017) 579,070 (627,463) 215,455 2,442,985 9,706,251 2,411,233 1,953,362
2021 12 31 22,689 (13,368,709) 899,919 (663,272) (428,608) 2,013,118 11,388,711 2,279,803 2,143,651
D) 44.2
CBIRC 100
2017
2021 4 6.8
121.1 92
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2021 4
1 HQLA | | 5,766,716
2 13,549,543 1,268,231
3 1,734,411 86,718
4 11,815,132 1,181,513
5 8,967,300 3,407,155
6 3,005,249 736,887
7 5,916,799 2,625,016
8 45,252 45,252
9 493
10 3,143,003 1,147,788
1 977,342 977,342
12 101 101
13 2,165,560 170,345
14 152,321 152,321
15 2,107,560 31,975
16 6,007,963
17 451,861 451,861
18 1,219,507 654,344
19 1,049,604 1,049,604
20 2,720,972 2,155,809
21 | HoLA 4,662,201
22 3,852,154
23 121.1
CBIRC 100
2
2021 3 1.2 128.6
20,554.2 15,978.7
2021 4 1.5 127.1
20,646.3 16,244.6
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2021 3 2021 4
2021 3
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 2,287,034 284,924 | 2,571,958
2 2,287,034 254,924 | 2,541,958
3 30,000 30,000
4 6,866,810 | 7,018,522 163 185 | 12,589,423
5 1,845,856 1,753,563
6 5,020,954 | 7,018,522 163 185 | 10,835,860
7 5,769,905 | 4,046,242 728,861 499,578 | 5,143,360
8 3,027,153 1,513,576
9 2,742,752 | 4,046,242 728,861 499,578 | 3,629,784
10
11 100 | 1,601,543 158,253 172,156 249,427
12 [ NSFR 1,856
13
100 | 1,601,543 158,253 170,300 249,427
14 [AsF 20,554,168
RSF
15 |NSFR
HQLA 928,327
16
1,224 176,184 101, 260 139,334
17 5,731 | 3,616,227 | 2,486,986 | 11,492,735 | 12,414,073
1 HQLA
18
1,313 226 85,991 86,301
1 HQLA
19
3,645 | 1,185,044 175,950 47,022 319,762
20
PSE 64 | 2,271,319 | 2,155,660 | 6,241,787 | 7,497,805
21
35 10 95,454 57,626 148,011 167,980
22 105,997 106,703 | 4,831,888 | 4,213,442
23
35 2 3 66 46
” HQLA
2,022 52,554 48,447 286,047 296,763
25
26 157,795 661,868 685,874 943,938 | 2,353,837
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27
28 CCP
1,509 1,283

29 NSFR 24,850 22,994
30 NSFR

€)) 2,978 2,978
31 157,795 661,868 685,874 917,579 2,326,582
32 4,235,686 143,159
33 |RSF 15,978,731
34 128.6
1 NSFR

30 26
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2021 4
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 2,388,703 284,931 | 2,673,634
2 2,388,703 254,931 | 2,643,634
3 30,000 30,000
4 6,889,654 | 7,029,523 148 176 | 12,623,753
5 1,923,694 1,827,509
6 4,965,960 | 7,029,523 148 176 | 10,796,244
7 5,676,000 | 4,054,751 962,770 419,976 | 5,098,432
8 2,890,569 1,445,284
9 2,785,521 | 4,054,751 962,770 419,976 | 3,653,148
10
11 85 | 1,510,147 126,231 198,306 250,487
12 NSFR 10,934
13
85 | 1,510,147 126,231 187,372 250,487
14 |ASF 20,646,306
RSF
15 |NSFR
HOLA 1,081,352
16
392 154,870 56,081 105,671
17 4,575 | 3,652,497 | 2,443,797 | 11,673,203 | 12,548,607
1 HQLA
18
9,729 72,182 73,641
1 HQLA
19
1,338 | 1,169,871 200,633 46,819 322,817
20
PSE 64 | 2,314,250 | 2,085,856 | 6,255,401 | 7,485,892
21
35 10 70,692 41,472 147,178 147,642
22 108,019 109,182 | 5,016,419 | 4,372,546
23
35 2 2 70 51
" HQLA
3,173 50,628 48,126 282,382 293,711
25
26 258,365 625,935 674,855 904,393 | 2,383,150

27
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OOoOooOodd
28 ccp
1,511 1,285

29 NSFR 21,792 10,858
30 NSFR

1

@ 3,778 3,778
31 258,365 625,935 674,855 881,090 | 2,367,229
32 4,064,385 125,796
33 |RSF 16,244,576
34 127.1
1 NSFR

30 26

@™

2021
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OooooOodd
@
@
2021 241,936 25,536 (11.8 )

2020 2021
545,079 577,987 32,908 6.0
74,545 80,329 5,784 7.8
39,708 63,430 23,722 59.7
659,332 721,746 62,414 9.5
229,897 260,275 30,378 13.2
164,699 165,886 1,187 0.7
204 114 (90) -44.1
264,532 295,471 30,939 11.7
518 409 (109) -21.0
265,050 295,880 30,830 11.6
48,650 53,944 5,294 10.9
216,400 241,936 25,536 11.8
215,925 241,183 25,258 11.7
475 753 278 58.5

2021 80.08 2021
577,987 32,908
61,422 28,514
2.12 1.96
8 '6))

@
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2020 2021

14,419,902 631,753 4.38 16,396,903 694,009 4.23
® 6,812,831 238,995 3.51 7,283,225 252,804 3.47
6,428,500 227,963 3.55 6,898,990 242,742 3.52
® 384,241 11,032 2.87 384,235 10,062 2.62
2,234,121 34,271 1.53 2,230,582 34,726 1.56
® 1,363,938 25,913 1.90 1,326,895 26,475 2.00
24,830,792 930,932 3.75 27,237,605 1,008,014 3.70
@ (619,089) (719,063)
® 1,651,501 1,538,232
25,863,204 28,056,774
18,611,986 284,552 1.53 20,482,267 329,593 1.61
® 2,039,180 45,131 2.21 2,045,524 40,727 1.99
® 1,876,373 56,170 2.99 2,148,719 59,707 2.78
22,527,539 385,853 1.71 24,676,510 430,027 1.74
@ 1,152,232 1,223,364
23,679,771 25,899,874
545,079 577,987
2.04 1.96
2.20 2.12
@
©) MOF
(©)
()
®)
(O)
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83,678 (21,422) 62,256
16,328 (2,519) 13,809
(55) 510 455
(739) 1,301 562
99,212 (22,130) 77,082
30,096 14,945 45,041
126 (4,530) (4,404)
7,568 (4,031) 3,537
37,790 6,384 44,174
61,422 (28,514) 32,908
2021 1,008,014 77,082
2,406,813
62,256 9.9 694,009
2020 2021
7,806,885 332,975 4.27 8,919,710 364,488 4.09
2,472,008 95,512 3.86 2,633,532 95,786 3.64
5,334,877 237,463 4.45 6,286,178 268,702 4.27
366,195 9,201 2.51 300,719 7,584 2.52
5,799,734 279,369 4.82 6,709,545 313,225 4.67
447,088 10,208 2.28 466,929 8,712 1.87
14,419,902 631,753 4.38 16,396,903 694,009 4.23
2 2021
13,809 252,804
455 34,726
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562 26,475

44,174 430,027
2,148,971
45,041 329,593
2020 2021
2,414,982 60,775 2.52 2,833,037 68,774 2.43
4,969,048 43,014 0.87 5,280,911 50,222 0.95
7,384,030 103,789 1.41 8,113,948 118,996 1.47
5,642,490 156,281 2.77 6,624,035 189,467 2.86
5,585,466 24,482 0.44 5,744,284 21,130 0.37
11,227,956 180,763 1.61 12,368,319 210,597 1.70
18,611,986 284,552 1.53 20,482,267 329,503 1.61
4,404 40,727
3,537 59,707
2021 5,784 7.8
80,329 16.5

12.5
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2020 2021

11,129 11,094 (35) -0.3

11,174 11,644 470 4.2

21,043 23,677 2,634 12.5

14,702 15,435 733 5.0

26,169 30,476 4,307 16.5

1,875 1,980 105 5.6

4,435 3,832 (603) -13.6

639 583 (56) -8.8
91,166 98,721 7,555 8.3

16,621 18,392 1,771 10.7
74,545 80,329 5,784 7.8
2021 63,430 23,722
22,347
3,529
2020 2021

16,405 14,241

/ (7,312) 15,035
1 11

30,614 34,143

39,708 63,430

2021 30,378 260,275
1.23 30.46
2020 2021

123,345 137,953 14,608 11.8

49,452 61,558 12,106 24.5

27,873 30,988 3,115 11.2

19,551 19,797 246 1.3

5,813 6,606 793 13.6

3,863 3,373 (490) -12.7

229,897 260,275 30,378 13.2
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2021 165,886
30,011 168,999
2021 5,294 10.9 53,944
18.23
2020 2021
260,853 39.6 269,899 37.4
277,603 42.1 318,402 44.1
77,179 11.7 85,942 11.9
43,697 6.6 47,503 6.6
659,332 100.0 721,746 100.0
2020 2021
37,034 5.6 35,518 4.9
128,436 19.5 144,528 20.0
97,061 14.7 107,394 14.9
90,921 13.8 98,191 13.6
98,993 15.0 107,196 14.9
139,762 21.2 154,202 21.3
22,928 3.5 24,413 3.4
44,197 6.7 50,304 7.0
659,332 100.0 721,746 100.0
39
2020 2021
261,794 39.7 294,995 40.9
397,538 60.3 426,751 59.1
659,332 100.0 721,746 100.0
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()
2021 12 31 1,864,108 6.9 29,069,155
1,902,070 13.1
407,384 5.2 115,869 4.8
315,689 32.2
21,431 2.6
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
15,170,442 17,175,073
618,009 720,570
14,552,433 53.5 16,454,503 56.6
7,822,659 28.8 8,230,043 28.3
2,437,275 9.0 2,321,406 8.0
981,133 3.6 665,444 2.3
816,206 3.0 837,637 2.9
595,341 2.1 560,122 1.9
27,205,047 100.0 29,069,155 100.0
2021 12 31 17,175,073 2,004,631
13.2
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
14,722,705 97.3 16,709,573 97.5
8,134,487 53.7 9,168,032 53.5
389,475 2.6 424,329 2.5
6,198,743 41.0 7,117,212 41.5
413,416 2.7 426,179 2.5
15,136,121 100.0 17,135,752 100.0
34,321 - 39,321 -
15,170,442 - 17,175,073 -
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
2,471,235 30.4 2,613,749 28.5
5,663,252 69.6 6,554,283 71.5
8,134,487 100.0 9,168,032 100.0
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31
1,329,190 16.3 1,497,847 16.3
924,078 11.4 1,017,210 11.1
™ 786,673 9.7 830,457 9.1
1,860,488 22.9 2,092,461 22.8
408,879 5.0 493,538 5.4
611,925 7.5 716,090 7.8
213,961 2.6 291,573 3.2
191,659 2.3 193,539 2.1
1,259,179 15.5 1,494,187 16.3
232,833 2.9 153,577 1.7
IT
38,716 0.5 58,283 0.6
@ 276,906 3.4 329,270 3.6
8,134,487 100.0 9,168,032 100.0
@
2021 430,310
51,777
@
2021 12 31 5 (@) @
A “) ®)
5 75.6
0.2
2021 12 31 918,469 14.8
12.4
23.5
15.5
38.6
E
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
4,662,119 75.2 5,242,288 73.6
178,559 2.9 175,770 2.5
379,554 6.1 468,688 6.6
542,563 8.8 626,783 8.8
435,267 7. 603,392 8.5
681 - 291 .
6,198,743 100.0 7,117,212 100.0
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31
350,729 2.3 313,295 1.8
3,480,092 23.0 4,088,464 23.8
2,470,677 16.3 2,839,822 16.6
2,214,679 14.6 2,461,253 14.4
2,300,770 15.2 2,664,937 15.6
551,938 3.7 592,710 3.5
3,353,820 22.2 3,749,092 21.8
413,416 2.7 426,179 2.5
15,136,121 100.0 17,135,752 100.0
34,321 - 39,321 -
15,170,442 - 17,175,073 -
2021 12 31 8,230,043 407,384

5.2 426,401

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
7,074,042 91.9 7,500,443 92.7
384,239 5.0 384,231 T
106,276 1.4 114,544 1.4
132,155 1.7 93,794 1.2
7,696,712 100.0 8,093,012 100.0
125,947 - 137,031 -
7,822,659 - 8,230,043 -

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
4,253,736 60.2 4,760,965 63.4
1,427,871 20.2 1,557,354 20.8
873,119 12.3 710,759 9.5
220,866 3.1 238,604 3.2
298,450 4.2 232,761 3.1
7,074,042 100.0 7,500,443 100.0

72/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

73/508

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
- - 32 -
3 298,062 4.2 255,381 3.4
3 12 937,124 13.2 900,411 12.0
1 3,156,436 44.7 2,952,095 39.4
5 2,682,420 37.9 3,392,524 45.2
7,074,042 100.0 7,500,443 100.0

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
6,756,711 95.5 7,190,104 95.9
264,207 3.7 249,096 3.3
53,124 0.8 61,243 0.8
7,074,042 100.0 7,500,443 100.0

2020 12 31 2021 12 31
583,069 7.6 460,241 5.7
5,574,008 72.4 6,249,598 77.2
1,539,635 20.0 1,383,173 17.1
7,696,712 100.0 8,003,012 100.0
125,947 - 137,031 -
7,822,659 - 8,230,043 -
2021 12 31 2,268,113

1,557,354
710,759
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2021 12 31 10
(©)
2020 50,571 3.74 2030 11 16 -
2020 48,775 3.79 2030 10 26 -
2021 41,632 3.52 2031 5 24 -
2021 37,971 3.22 2026 5 14 -
2021 34,080 3.48 2028 2 4 -
2017 33,133 3.85 2027 1 6 -
2021 32,311 3.38 2031 7 16 -
2020 29,340 3.43 2025 10 23 -
2017 29,210 4.39 2027 9 8 -
2019 27,546 3.28 2024 2 11 -
@
2021 12 31 1,653,495 6.6 26,647,796
1,534,226 7.5
128,295 7.2
73,162 67.0
135,812 9.9
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
20,372,901 81.5 21,907,127 82.2
1,785,176 7.1 1,913,471 7.2
109,195 0.4 36,033 0.1
1,371,845 5.5 1,507,657 5.7
1,355,184 5.5 1,283,508 4.8
24,994,301 100.0 26,647,796 100.0
2021 12 31 1,534,226 7.5
21,907,127 0.6 59.9
2.8 52.4
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31
20,002,156 99.5 21,479,255 99.5
7,618,591 37.9 8,037,929 37.3
2,390,431 11.9 2,667,190 12.4
5,228,160 26.0 5,370,739 24.9
11,926,040 59.3 12,934,171 59.9
6,054,657 30.1 6,993,575 32.4
5,871,383 29.2 5,940,596 27.5
) 457,525 2.3 507,155 2.3
105,216 0.5 116,198 0.5
20,107,372 100.0 21,595,453 100.0
265,529 - 311,674 -
20,372,901 - 21,907,127 -
@
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
146,231 0.7 99,289 0.5
4,802,096 23.9 5,228,107 24.2
2,818,551 14.0 3,023,021 14.0
3,493,789 17.4 3,787,784 17.5
3,394,921 16.9 3,676,925 17.0
1,004,778 5.0 1,094,526 5.1
4,341,790 21.6 4,569,603 21.2
105,216 0.5 116,198 0.5
20,107,372 100.0 21,595,453 100.0
265,529 - 311,674 .
20,372,901 - 21,907,127 -
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
11,908,631 59.2 12,380,970 57.4
3 1,755,619 8.7 1,838,380 8.5
3 12 2,875,558 14.3 3,120,029 14.4
1 5 3,555,435 17.7 4,240,028 19.6
5 12,129 0.1 16,046 0.1
20,107,372 100.0 21,595,453 100.0
265,529 - 311,674
20,372,901 - 21,907,127 -
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2021 12 31 210,613 9.5
2,421,359 1 0.48 5.87
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
349,983 15.8 349,983 14.5
319,875 14.5 359,872 14.9
173,556 7.9 173,556 .2
25,987 1.2 34,927 1.4
196,071 8.8 220,792 .1
311,449 14.1 351,616 14.5
828,240 37.4 925,955 38.2
(372) - (2,096) 0.1)
5,957 0.3 6,754 0.3
2,210,746 100.0 2,421,359 100.0
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
1,617,278 51.0 459,900 22.0
429,841 13.6 414,934 19.9
264,646 8.4 304,238 14.6
162,356 1 165,639 7.9
695,183 21.9 743,594 35.6
3,169,304 100.0 2,088,305 100.0
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IFRS CAS
@
@
Q)
8,037,929
9,592,361
673.8 2021
360.6
338.4
2,467,651

CMM

IFRS

2021
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419,338

81.7

85.7

2021

32.7

272

850

436,238

.4

50
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32.7

1,066.3
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CAS

1,068,399

8.5963

2021

864



8.9983

2021

36

3,000

2021
4.1627
559.8
100

2021

7.9311

2021
M&A
ME&A
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1,058.08 40.7
770.36 29.6
22.11 0.9
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173 9,230.56 149  57,734.55 14 49,053.55 308 18,168.23
43 267.58 16 94.04 51 307.43 8 63.88
216  9,498.14 165 57,828.59 65 49,360.98 316 18,232.11
135 8,566.86 128 55,410.14 43 48,117.44 220  16,052.97
81 931.28 37 2,418.45 22 1,243.54 96 2,179.14
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)
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2010 7 15 22,235,294,000 | 292,235,294,000 | 22,235,294,000 | 292,235,294,000
2010 7 16 25,411,765,000 | 317,647,059,000 | 25,411,765,000 | 317,647,059,000
2010 8 5 3,811,764,000 321,458,823,000 | 3,811,764,000 | 321,458,823,000
2010 8 13 3,335,294,000 324,794,117,000 | 3,335,294,000 | 324,794,117,000
2018 7 2 25,188,916,873 | 349,983,033,873 | 25,188,916,873 | 349,983,033,873
2021 12 31 349,983,033,873 349,983,033,873
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21,435 472,971 494,406 2022 2

28 21,384

454,265 475,649
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MOF 2 123,515,185, 240 35.29
- 30,543,143,003 8.73
SSF 11 23,520,968, 297 6.72
2
- 2,518,891, 687 0.72
- - 005L- - 2,328,675,800 0.67
CTO01 Hu
28 1,842,751,177 0.53
- 1,736,273,824 0.50
- 1,259,445,843 0.36
- 1,255,434,700 0.36
2021 12 31
100
100
141,342,881,051
40.39
3,778,337,530 1.08
MOF CSRC
Cai Zi[2019] 49 MOF SSF
13,723,909,471
Guo Fa[2017] 49 SSF
3
2010 4 21 2010 5 5  MOF
SSF 9,797,058,826 MOF
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® 25,188,916,873 7.20 -5,229,244,330  -5,229,244,330 19,959,672,543 5.70
1. ® 19,959,672,543 5.70 - - 19,959,672,543 5.70
2. ® 5,037,783,373 1.44 -5,037,783,373  -5,037,783,373 - -
3. ® 191,460,957 0.05 -191,460,957 -191,460,957 - -
324,794,117,000 92.80 +5,229,244,330  +5,229,244,330  330,023,361,330  94.30
1.
294,055,293,904 84.02 +5,229,244,330  +5,229,244,330  299,284,538,234  85.51
2.
® 30,738,823,096 8.78 - - 30,738,823,096 8.78
349,983,033,873  100.00 - - 349,983,033,873 100.00
@
@
©) MOF
CSRC
5 - 2022
)
36
2021 8 27
WWW . SSe.com.cn www . hkexnews . hk
®)
2023 7 2 19,959,672,543 349,983,033,873 MOF
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MOF - 35.29 123,515,185,240 9,877,329,974
-14,605,999 8.73  30,543,143,003
SSF - 6.72  23,520,968,297
- 0.72  2,518,891,687
0oL 393,198,700  0.67  2,328,675,800
CTO01 Hu
-9 0.53  1,842,751,177
+322,582,211  0.50  1,736,273,824
- 0.36  1,259,445,843
- 0.36  1,255,434,700
1
2021 12 31
2
3
141,342,881,051 40.39
3,778,337,530
1.08
4 MOF CSRC
Cai Zi[2019] 49 MOF SSF
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5 2010 4 21 2010 5 5 MOF
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2003 12 16 1
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2020 2020 12 31
5.8174097797 539.7317396 5.2776780401
2020 503.2336237 2020
57.5930056
2021 12 31 140,087,446,351
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1 34.68
2 34.71
3 40.03
4 64.02
5 57.11
6 63.16
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9 71.56
10 31.34
11 100.00
12 69.07
13 20.05
14 40.11
15 30.76
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17 14.54
@
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140,087,446,351 43.88 40.03
1,255,434,700 0.39 0.36
133,312,244,066
MOF @ ® Ao 3009
- 23,520,968,297 737 6.72
146,883,000 0.48 0.04
1,603,495,000
s 5.25 0.46
1,808,525,148
s 5.88 0.52
2,752,000 0.01 0.00
1,545,179,000
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2021 2020
1 1,008,014 930,932
1 (430,027) (385,853)
1 577,987 545,079
2 98,721 91,166
2 (18,392) (16,621)
2 80,329 74,545
3 14,241 16,405
/() 4 15,035 (7,312)
1 1
5 34,143 30,614
721,746 659,332
6 (260,275) (229,897)
8 (165,886) (164,699)
(114) (204)
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1,724 (2,591)
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1 19,343,789 17,864,585
1 (8,252,218) (7,404,519)
1 11,091,571 10,460,066
2 1,894,456 1,749,476
2 (352,942) (318,957)
2 1,541,514 1,430,519
3 273,285 314,812
/() 4 288,522 (140,317)
211 19
5 655,204 587,483
13,850,306 12,652,581
6 (4,994,677) (4,411,723)
8 (3.183,352) (3,160,574)
(2,188) (3,915)
5,670,088 5,076,369
20 7,849 9,940
5,677,937 5,086,310
9 (1,035,185) (933,594)
4,642,752 4,152,716
4,628,302 4,143,601
14,450 9,115
4,642,752 4,152,716
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11 12.47 11.32
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4,642,752 4,152,716
163,192 (169,927)
68,547 72,039
(54,979) 27,634
(33,084) (49,721)
143,676 (119,976)
(5/412) (2,188)
2,207 557
(3,205) (1,631)
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12 2,321,406 2,437,275
13 218,500 434,185
96,504 87,357
14 446,944 546,948
15 21,978 61,937
16 837,637 816,206
17 16,454,503 14,552,433

18
460,241 583,069
6,372,522 5,684,220
1,397,280 1,555,370
20 8,297 8,865
21 153,299 151,154
1,381 1,381
22 143,027 133,355
23 135,636 151,292
29,069,155 27,205,047
24 747,213 737,161
25 1,622,366 1,394,516
26 291,105 390,660
27 15,860 27,817
15 19,337 65,282
28 36,033 109,195
29 21,907,127 20,372,901
30 1,507,657 1,371,845
22 655 334
31 500,443 524,590

26,647,796 24,994,301
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33 359,872 319,875
79,899 79,899
279,973 239,976
34 173,556 173,556
35 34,927 25,987
36 220,792 196,071
37 351,616 311,449
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(2,09) (372)
2,414,605 2,204,789
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2,421,359 2,210,746
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12 44,547,781 46,771,307
13 4,193,015 8,332,010
1,851,912 1,676,381
14 8,576,855 10,495,932
15 421,758 1,188,571
16 16,074,254 15,662,993
17 315,761,913 279,261,189

18
8,832,025 11,189,094
122,288,697 109,080,182
26,813,803 29,847,550
20 159,219 170,119
21 2,941,808 2,900,645
26,501 26,501
22 2,744,688 2,559,082
23 2,602,855 2,903,293
557,837,084 522,064,852
24 14,339,017 14,146,120
25 31,133,204 26,760,762
26 5,586,305 7,496,765
27 304,353 533,808
15 371,077 1,252,762
28 691,473 2,095,452
29 420,397,767 390,955,970
30 28,931,938 26,325,706
22 12,569 6,409
31 9,603,501 10,066,882

511,371,205 479,640,636
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32 6,716,174 6,716,174
33 6,905,944 6,138,401
1,533,262 1,533,262
5,372,682 4,605,139
34 3,330,540 3,330,540
35 670,249 498,601
36 4,236,998 3,762,602
37 6,747,511 5,976,706
17,769,076 15,893,926
(40,222) (7,139)
46,336,270 42,309,901
129,609 114,315
46,465,879 42,424,216

557,837,084 522,064,852
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2020 12 31 349,983 319,875 173556 25,987 196,071 311,449 828,240 (372) 2,204,789 5,957 2,210,746
241,183 241,183 753 241,936
8,910 (1,724) 7,216 104 7,320
8,910 241,183 (1,724) 248,399 857 249,256
33 39,997 39,997 37 40,034
36 24,721 (24,721)
37 40,167 (40,167)
10 (64,782) (64,782) (64,782)
(13,798) (13,798) (13,798)
10
Cly) 97
2021 12 31 349,983 359,872 173556 34,927 220,792 351,616 925955 (2,096) 2,414,605 6,754 2,421,359
2019 12 31 349983 199886 173556 29684 174910 277,016 741,101 2219 1948355 5506 1,953,861
215,925 215,925 475 216,400
(3,697) (2,591) (6,289) (49) (6,337)
(3,697) 215925  (2501) 209,637 426 210,063
33 119,989 119,989 25 120,014
36 21,161 (21,161)
37 34433 (34,433)
10 (63,662) (63,662) (63,662)
10 (9,530) (9,530) (9,530)
2020 12 31 349983 319,875 173556 25987 196071 311,449 828240 (372) 2204789 5957 2,210,746
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31 6,716,174 6,138,401 3,330,540 498,691 3,762,602 5,976,706 15,893,926 (7,139) 42,309,901 114,315 42,424,216
- - - - - - 4,628,302 - 4,628,302 14450 4,642,752
- - - 171,559 - - - (33,084 138,475 1,996 140,471
- - - 171,559 - - 4,628,302 (33,084) 4,766,777 16446 4,783,223
33 - 767,542 - - - - - - 767,542 710 768,252
36 - - - - 47439 - (474,396) - - - -
37 - - - - - 770805 (770,805) - - - -
10 ) ] ] ] ) - (1,243,167) - (1,243,167) - (1,243,167)
10 - - - - - - (264,784) - (264,784) - (264,784)
] ) ) ) ) ] ] ; - (1861)  (L861)
2021 12
31 6,716,174 6,905,944 3,330,540 670,249 4,236,998 6,747,511 17,769,076 (40,222) 46,336,270 129,609 46,465,879
2019 12
31 6716174 3835812 3330540 569,636 3356523 5315937 14221728 42583 37,383932 105660 37,494,593
4,143,601 4143601 9115 4152716
(70,945) (49721)  (120,667) (940)  (121,607)
(70,945) 4143601 (49,721) 4,022,934 8175 4,031,109
33 2,302,589 2,302,589 480 2,303,069
36 406,080 (406,080)
37 660,769  (660,769)
(1,221,674) (1,221,674) (1,221,674)
10
10 (182,881) (182,881) (182,881)
2020 12
31 6716174 6138401 3330540 498691 3762602 5976706 15893926  (7,139) 42,309,901 114,315 42,424,216
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2021 2020
295,880 265,050
2,322 2,147
17,475 17,404
165,886 164,699
114 204
(252,804) (238,995)
39,188 35,746
4,019 (2,969)
(1,285) (750)
(409) (518)
(921) (1,003)
16,877 26,972
286,342 267,088
313,337 (330,552)
(4,992) 29,377
48,919 (49,415)
(2.026,482) (1,832,315)
10,483 128,514
(99,232) 65,941
1,712,770 1,375,364
173,587 94,748
(116,370) 253,209
298,362 2,859
(58,747) (63,795)
239,615 (60,936)
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1,619,583 1,987,387
247,470 228,563
2,793

5,790 8,350
(2,178,694) (2,669,040)
(2.146) (1,676)
(26,033) (22,844)
(331,237) (469,260)
40,000 120,000
3 (11)
1,635,127 1,731,396
(1,497,003) (1,468,391)
(40,429) (35,050)
(39 (6)
(5,010) (4,968)

37 25
(78,677) (73,192)
54,003 269,803
(37,619) (260,393)
1,175,153 1,454,581
(12,772) (19,035)
38 1,124,762 1,175,153
717,022 655,726
(342,465) (315,177)
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2020

5,677,937

44,559
335,345
3,183,352
2,188
(4,851,309)
752,018
i) 77,125
(24,659)
(7,849)
(17,674)
323,870

5,086,310

41,201
333,983
3,160,574
3,915
(4,586,314)
685,066
(56,956)
(14,393)
(9,940)
(19,248)
517,593

5,494,903

5,142,690

6,012,937

Y (95,796)
) 938,756
(38,888,190)

201,169

« ) (1,904,262)
32,868,056

3,331,135

(2,233,140)

(6,343,293)
563,745
(948,274)
(35,162,125)
2,466,184
1,265,408
26,393,235
1,818,214
4,859,081

5,725,567
(1,127,355)

54,864
(1,224,226)

I( ) 4,598,212

(1,169,362)
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31,079,798 38,137,957
4,748,949 4,386,124

53,598

111,110 160,237
(41,809,138)  (51,218,878)
(41,182) (32,162)
(499,573) (438,376)
(6,356,438) (9,005,099)
767,600 2,302,800
(58) (211)
31,378,087 33,225,489
(28,727,488)  (28,178,423)
(775,833) (672,610)
(748) (115)
(96,142) (95,336)
710 480
(1,509,812) (1,404,554)
1,036,318 5,177,520
(721,909) (4,996,942)
22,551,186 27,913,409
(245,095) (365,282)
38 21,584,183 22,551,186
13,759,652 12,583,382
(6,571,903) (6,048,247)
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IFRSs
(M IFRS 9 IAS 39 IFRS 7 - 2
IFRS 4 IFRS 16
(@ IFRS 16 COVID-19
( )IFRS 9 IAS 39 |IFRS 7 IFRS 4 IFRS 16
IASB IFRS 9 IAS39 IFRS 7 IFRS 4 IFRS 16
2 IBOR IAS 39
- IFRS 9 B5.45
1
- IBOR IFRS 7
( )IFRS 16 : COVID-19
IASB 2021 3 31 IFRS 16 PE
1 1 2022 6 30
2020 PE 2021 6 30
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IASB
(1) IFRS 3
(2 1AS 37
(3) IAS 16
4 IFRS 1 IFRS 9
IFRS 16
IAS 41
(5) 1AS 1
(6) IFRS 17
(7) 1AS 1 IFRS
2
(8) IAS 8
(9 IAS 12
(10) IFRS 10 IAS
28
( )IFRS 3
IASB IFRS 3
IAS 37
( )IAS 37

IASB IAS 37

2018-2020

IFRS 3
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( )IAS 16 -
IASB IAS 16 -
( JIFRS 1 IFRS 9 IFRS 16 IAS 41 IFRS
IASB IFRS 1 IFRS 9 IFRS 16 IAS 41 IFRS
HKFRS 16
( )IAS 1
IASB
IAS 1
( )IFRS 17
IFRS 17 IFRS 4 2017 5
IFRS 4
IASB 2020 6 25 IFRS 4 IFRS 17
IFRS 17 IFRS 9
IFRS 17
IFRS 17 IASB

2023 1 1

IFRS 17
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2016

2017 2
2018 1 1
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(i)
(i)
(iii)
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(i)
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(iii)

@

(i)
(i)

11.8.7

8.9
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83
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@

(i)
(i)
(iii)
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(i)
(i)

@

(©)

©)

(i)

(ii) (i)

85
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12

12
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(i)
(if)

(iii)

88
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89

() ()

(i)

(i)

8.10

@)

(b)
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811

(i)
(i)
(iii)

812

813

42

42
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5-50
311

5-8

3%
3%
3%

1.94%-19.40%
8.82%-32.33%
12.13%-19.40%

17

81

14
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12 31

2021 2020
694,009 631,753
380,351 351,808
313,658 279,855
208,225 187,067
44,579 51,928
34,726 34,271
5,868 8,824
11,989 9,984
8,618 7,105
1,008,014 930,932
(329,593) (284,552)
(36,930) (37,589)
(39,188) (35,746)
(20,519) (20,424)
(3.479) (6,114)
(318) (1,429)
(430,027) (385,853)

577,987 545,079
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®

I

205/508

12 31
2021 2020
30,476 26,169
23,677 21,043
15,435 14,702
11,644 11,174
11,004 11,129
3,832 4,435
1,980 1,875
583 639
98,721 91,166
(11,942) (10,760)
(3,509) (3,182)
(1,598) (1,483)
(1,343) (1,196)
(18,392) (16,621)
80,329 74,545
12 31
2021 2020
3,847 4,178
@) 3,650 4,784
6,672 3,211
440 (3,103)
(368) 7,335
14,241 16,405
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4 I

I

5

( )
)

6

( )

206/508

12 31

2021 2020
(237 (92)
20,907 4,120
(i) (7,445) (11,271)
1,235 750
1,068 (748)
(493) (71)
15,035 (7,312)

12 31

2021 2020
29,188 26,151
1,065 950
1,032 1,172
948 784
224 (95)
1,686 1,652
34,143 30,614

12 31

2021 2020
) 137,953 123,345
) 61,558 49,452
30,988 27,873
19,797 19,551
®3) 6,606 5813
3,373 3,863
260,275 229,897




1)

( )

(2) 2021 106
105
137

©)

207/508

2020
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12 31
2021 2020
89,580 80,854
9,347 8,933
5,859 4,713
5,480 4,398
222 205
157 110
4,001 3,613
10,963 10,595
119,750 108,708
18,188 14,632
15 5
137,953 123,345
146
1% 5% 7%
3% 2%

oOoOooodn
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) 2021 12 31
XX

@) 619 120 81 820

619 120 81 820

557 113 81 751

(ii) 465 95 66 626

381 381

380 380

380 380

360 360

(iii) 34 34
(iv)
)
(vi)

619 120 81 820

50 50

50 50
(vii)

300 300

(viii) 46 46

i (ix) 39 39

557 113 81 751

557 117 84 758

) 186 38 27 251

984 211 80 1,275

981 183 81 1,245

(xi) 354 120 81 555

208/508
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0]
(i)
(iii)
(V)
™
(i)
(vii)
(viii)
(3

Xi

Xii

Xiii
(xiv)
(xv)
(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)
(xix)

()

(xii)
(xiii
(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)

(xix)

2021 1 28
2021 3 31
2021 11 19
2021 3 5
2022 1 20
2022 1 20
2021 7 26
2021 11 11
€7 2021 11 11
2021 11 4
2021 1 7
2021 7 27
2021 11 19
2021 9 28
2021 12 31
2021 8 20
2021 11 11
2021 11 11
2021 6 11

2021 12

370

50
242
268

232 49 34

370

50
242
268

315

2,950

6,730 1,399 858

11,937

2021 2 9
2021 6 15

31
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2020 12 31
Xiii

@) 1,475 79 75 1,629
(ii) 1,112 79 75 1,266
(iii) 967 75 75 1,117
410 - - - 410
370 - - - 370

(iv)
1,340 79 75 1,494
50 50
50 50
50 50
280 280
310 310
300 300

)
1,132 75 104 1,311
1,099 75 75 1,249
(vi) 556 51 a4 651
1,946 137 75 2,158
(vii) 162 11 7 180
(viii) 1,247 68 68 1,383

(ix)
)

210/508
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(xi)

(xii) 486 32 18 536
2,940 11,522 761 691 15,914
[0} 2021 1 7
(i) 2020 1 14
(iii) 2020 10 12
(iv) 2020 6 29
V) 2020 11 27
(vi) 2020 10 12
(vii) 2020 11 3
(viii) 2020 11 30
(i%) 2020 6 29
X 2020 6 18
Xi 2020 6 29
Xi 2020 3 24
Xiii
2 5
() 5
2021 2020 12 31 5
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
13 15
18 12
1 1
32 28
() 5
12 31
2021 2020
4,500,001 5,000,000 2 3
5,000,001 5,500,000
5,500,001 6,000,000
6,000,001 6,500,000 1
6,500,001 7,000,000 1
7,000,001 7,500,000
7,500,001 8,000,000 1 1
8,000,001 8,500,000 1
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 5
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
5
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( 622 )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
7
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
) 12 31
2021 2020
168,999 138,988
2,947 6,796
1,588
5,070
(15,393) 10,575
(15) 1,419
(442) 864
367 936
7,835 51
165,886 164,699
) 12 31
2021 2020
64,852 58,220
SAR 954 664
239 (26)
66,045 58,858
( 2 ) (12,102) (10,208)
53,944 48,650
25%

212/508



2021 2020 12 31
( )
(25%)
1
10
( )
( )
2020
2019
(1) 2020
2021 5 27
GAAP ) 2020
1 0.1851 64,782
2021 12 31
(2) 2019
2020 6 29 GAAP
2019
2020 12 31
(3) 2021
2021 1 27
1,936 2021 3 11
2021 8 30
2,128 2021 11 5

213/508

D

)
2

©)
(4)
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12 31
2021 2020
295,880 265,050
73,970 66,263
(42,983) (36,294)
23311 20,061
(2,434) (1,300)
(48) (80)
2,128
53,944 48,650
12 31
2021 2020
64,782
63,662
64,782 63,662
4,064 4,328
9,734 5,202
(
2020
2019
0.1819 63,662
2021 4.84%
2021 5.32%



2020

2020 1 10
2,200

2020 7 3
2,128

(4) 2021
7
5 12

2021 8 17
2021 8 20

2021 8 19
2021 8 24

2021 9 2
2021 9 6

2020
17
8 20

2020 9 2
2020 9 7

(5) 2021 12 31

11.

85
85
35
35
85
35

2020 11 5

2019 2020
2020 3 11
2019 2020
Tierl

3.48% 2,958

4.39% 3,731

4.50% 1,575

4.20% 1,470

Tierl

4.39% 3,732

4.20% 1,470

0.2068 72,376

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn

5.50%

5.32%

2021 5
2021

2020 8
2020

12 31

2021

2020

241,183
(13,798)

215,925
(9,530)

227,385

206,395

349,983

0.65

349,983

0.59




2015
V.33

2021

2021

4,064

2020

2014

2020

Tierl

12 31

2019
V.33

2020
5,202

2021
Tierl

215/508
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Tierl

9,734

4,328

2021
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12
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
74,610 76,281
@ 1,973,077 2,126,330
@ 101,010 40,494
©) 171,765 193,142
2,320,462 2,436,247
944 1,028
2,321,406 2,437,275
1 PBOC
2021 12 31 PBOC
PBOC
2
3 PBOC
13
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
184,968 391,366
10,345 13,511
22,507 27,826
217,820 432,703
2,140 3,387
(1,460) (1,905)
( 218,500 434,185
14
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
250,953 148,136
93,315 219,887
104,295 179,927
448563 547,950
1,080 1,750
(2,699) (2,752)
( 446,944 546,948

216/508
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
) 2021 12 31
/
2,145,080 18,983 (14,402)
51,631 1,133 (332
20,116 (14,734)
271,371 1,141 (2,366)
145,374 721 (2,237)
21,978 (19,337)
) 2020 12 31
/
2,411,639 54,466 (57,312)
70,259 3,721 (444)
58,187 (57,756)
352,044 1,009 (4,357)
155,555 2,741 (3,169)
61,937 (65,282)
CBRC ( )03 1 1 )

2019 1 1
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
( 12 31
2021 2020
49,277 74,562
6,943 11,905
56,220 86,467
@)
( ) 2021 12 31
/
48,716 33 (1,104)
( ) 2020 12 31
/
63,256 18 (2,860)
/
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
)
1,599 (1,996)
(1,566) 1,915
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
( )
1 3 1
1 3 1 5 5
2021 12 31 861 3,958 9,203 30,412 4,282 48,716
2020 12 31 757 1,747 9,914 39,239 11,599 63,256
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( ) 2021 12 31
51,356 - - -
2,551 - 52 -
53,907 - 52 -
( ) 2020 12 31
63,801 - - -
4,595 - 167 -
68,396 - 167 -
(2
2021 12 31 2020
24
16
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
780,571 761,081
59,378 56,801
839,949 817,882
597 866
(2,909) (2,542)
837,637 816,206

42 —

219/508
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17
171
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
) 15,951,755 13,974,384
2 502,748 577,997
?) - 52
16,454,503 14,552,433
(@]
9,496,436 8,339,235
7,136,568 6,218,837
16,633,004 14,558,072
39,321 34,321
(720,570) (618,009)
15,951,755 13,974,384
@]
78,419 188,522
424,329 389,475
502,748 577,997
(3)
52
17.2
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3(3)
12
16,157,097 269,446 245,782 16,672,325
(500,117) (57,494) (162,959) (720,570)
15,656,980 211,952 82,823 15,951,755
502,701 47 - 502,748
(16,108) )] - (16,117)

220/508



17.3

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2020 12 31
1 2 3(i)
12

13,995,576 325,383 237,113 14,558,072
(397,768) (60,700) (159,541) (618,009)

13,597,808 264,683 77,572 13,940,063

577,972 25 577,997
(13,195) ) (13,197)

3
441

12
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( 2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
® (i)
2021 1 1 282,549 53,699 135,634 471,882
1 2 (6,338) 6,338 - -
2 3 - (21,124) 21,124 -
2 1 2,448 (2,448) - -
3 2 - 1,151 (1,151) -
115,643 - - 115,643
19,839 29,179 50,760 99,778
(61,904) (16,535) (19,730) (98,169)
- - (45,753) (45,753)
2021 12 31 352,237 50,260 140,884 543,381
( 2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
(iii) (iv)
2021 1 1 128,414 7,003 23,907 159,324
1 2 (1,899) 1,899 - -
2 3 - (4,141) 4141 -
2 1 2,320 (2.320) - -
3 2 - 1,269 (1,269) -
69,082 - - 69,082
13,434 6,830 11,106 31,370
(48,263) (3,297) (2,311) (53,871)
- - (13,499) (13,499)
2021 12 31 163,988 7,243 22,075 193,306
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2020 1 1

w NN P

2020 12 31

2020 1 1

w NN P

2020 12 31
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2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
(v) (vi)
249,600 53,391 110,480 413471
(9,141) 9,141
(24,807) 24,807
3,555 (3,555)
2,875 (2,875)
98,077 98,077
(4,839) 23,299 63,387 81,847
(54,703) (6,645) (23,566) (84,914)
(36,599) (36,599)
282,549 53,699 135,634 471,882
2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
(vii) (viii)
114,445 4,329 20,870 139,644
(2,535) 2,535
(6,305) 6,305
755 (755)
523 (523)
55,463 55,463
644 11,846 18,501 30,991
(40,358) (5,170) (8,470) (53,998)
(12,776) (12,776)
128,414 7,003 23,907 159,324

223/508
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(i 2021 2021 1 1 13%
(iiy 2021 2 2021 1 1
21% 2021
2021 3 3
2021 1 1 5% 2 3
(iii) 2021 1 15%
(iv) 2021 2
8% 1 2
2021 3 5%
2 3
(v) 2020 1 1
13
(vi) 2020 2 2
2020 12 31 2 2020 1 1
2020 3 28%
2 3
(vii) 2020 1 1
15
(viii) 2020 2 24%
1 2
2020 3 21%
2 3
18
12 3
( ) 2021 2020
18.1 460,241 583,069
18.2 6,372,522 5,684,220
18.3 1,397,280 1,555,370
8,230,043 7,822,659
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18.1
12 3
( 2021 2020
&) 159,382 223,960
2 208,546 260,240
3 2,313 98,869
460,241 583,069
5,409 4,613
0] 306,454 390,444
148,378 188,012
460,241 583,069
@)
(@3] 12 31
2021 2020
8,925 7,904
25,144 49,764
68,800 79,243
25,268 45,614
128,137 182,525
21,389 21,959
5,279 4,944
4577 14,532
159,382 223,960
2 (ii) 12 31
2021 2020
22,636 25,372
131,578 106,820
645 1,816
154,859 134,008
104,676 97,401
39,011 28,831
298,546 260,240
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( )
(3 (iii) 12 31
2021 2020
- 9,440
- 18,071
1,009 32,456
1,304 3,899
2,313 63,866
27,935
7,068
2,313 98,869
(iii) 2021 12 31
18.2
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
4,117,564 3,545,856
1,506,965 1,311,556
145,826 204,310
100,576 129,738
5,870,931 5,191,460
(i) 290,891 290,891
(ii) 93,340 93,348
(iii) 13,463 14,413
6,268,625 5,590,112
122,924 110,212
(19,027 (16,104)
6,372,522 5,684,220
19,994 19,630
(iv) 5,882,053 5,304,920
470,475 359,670
6,372,522 5,684,220
0] 2020 1 MOF 2020 1 1 5
(i) 1998 MOF 93,300 2028
2008 12 1 2.25%
(iii) A41(2)

@iv)

226/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
D
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
6,389,720 548 1,281 6,391,549
(17.764) - (1,263) (19,027)
6,371,956 548 18 6,372,522
( ) 2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
5,697,187 2,064 1,073 5,700,324
(14,850) (190) (1,064) (16,104)
5,682,337 1,874 9 5,684,220
2 3
2 0}
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
2021 1 1 14,850 190 1,064 16,104
1 2 @D 1 - -
1 3 @D - 1 -
2 3 - ) 7 -
2 1 30 (30) - -
3,996 - - 3,996
586 @D 191 776
(1,69) (153) - (1,849)

2021 12 31 17,764 - 1,263 19,027

227/508
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2020 12 31

(i) 2021 12 31

18.3

@
@

@
@
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2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
8,409 32 1,047 9,488
(33) 33
4,321 4,321
3,295 126 144 3,565
(1,142 (1) (1,143)
(127) (127
14,850 190 1,064 16,104
2021 12 31
/
1,373,040 1,392,691 19,651 (10,761)
3,480 4,589 1,109
1,376,520 1,397,280 20,760 (10,761)
2020 12 31
/
1,537,987 1,551,439 13,452 (10,074)
2,784 3,931 1,147
1,540,771 1,555,370 14,509 (10,074)

228/508
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ooooooo
1)
(@
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
649,753 702,202
241,828 242,345
364,339 453,176
105,803 119,079
1,361,723 1,516,802
0) 16,861 18,902
1,378,584 1,535,704
14,107 15,735
1,392,691 1,551,439
131,184 102,413
1,186,801 1,399,150
74,706 49,876
1,392,691 1,551,439
(0] 41 2
(b)
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,390,789 1,870 32 1,392,691
(10,457) (189) (115) (10,761)
( ) 2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,545,343 6,030 66 1,551,439
(9,536) (432) (106) (10,074)

229/508



(©)

2021 1 1

2021 12 31

2020 1 1

2020 12 31

(i) 2021 12 31

2
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(ii)
2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
9,536 432 106 10,074
(188) 188 - -
307 (307) - -
4,809 - - 4,809
(50) 2 9 (39)
(3.957) (126) - (4,083)
10,457 189 115 10,761
2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
6,874 23 6,897
(211) 211
4,055 4,055
1,029 221 90 1,340
(2,211) ) (2,218)
9,536 432 106 10,074
12 31
2021 2020
4,448 3,811
141 120
4,589 3,931

230/508
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19
(1
2021 12 31
/ (%) (%)
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC 2009 11 11 4,113,392,450 100.00 100.00
2010 9 29 9,500,000,000 100.00 100.00
UK 2011 11 29 100,000,000 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 1,750,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
(i) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 40,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 5 24 150,000,000 51.00 51.00
(i) 2005 12 19 2,949,916,475 51.00 51.00
2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
2014 12 23 7,556,038,271 100.00 100.00
(i) 2017 8 1 20,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
2019 7 25 12,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(0] 3
(ii) 2012 12 31 51
1,381 2016 12 31
917 2,844 3,761
51

231/508
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

(iii)2021 1 25 10
100
(2
41
20
(1
/ (%) (%)
(i) 2015 53,342,800,000 50.00 50.00
CFA
( (i) 2015 is 1,110,854,000 9.00 20.00
)
(i) 2018 6,343,200,000 15.61 20.00
( )
(i) 2019 3,885,500,000 25.26 20.00
( )
) (i) 2020 6,000,000,000 15.67 14.29
( )
88,500,000,000
(iii) 2020 9.04 9.04
( 2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour | ~Afreque BSCA. BSCA.
50% BSCA.
(ii
(iii 2021 9.04%
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(2
/ (%) (%)
&g 2018 i 1,000 69.00 28,57
(

2018 i 500 74.00 33.33
( 2018 1,200 4171 40.00

)
2018 1,500 66.67 50.00
2018 k3 2,000 50.00 50.00

)
2018 Bl 2,000 50.00 50.00

(
2019 | 1,800 66.67 50.00
2019 k3 400 70.00 50.00

(
2019 ] 3,500 20.00 20.00

()

2019 1,000 50.00 50.00
2020 k3 5,000 80.00 50.00
2020 2,000 50.00 50.00
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21
( )
2021 1 1 185,794 66,118 14,721 7,349 273,982
4,820 6,161 1,864 7,443 20,288
4,482 592 194 (5,2689) -
(5,787) (6,965) (381) ® (13,141)
2021 12 31 189,309 65,906 16,398 9,516 281,129
2021 1 1 (72,476) (46,282) (3,718) - (122,476)
(6,801) (5.951) (771) - (13,523)
1,672 6,509 379 - 8,560
2021 12 31 (77,605) (45,724) (4,110) - (127,439)
2021 1 1 (262) ©) @n (34) (352)
® : (36) : (44)
- 3 2 - 5
2021 12 31 (270) (6) (81) (39 (391)
2021 1 1 113,056 19,827 10,956 7,315 151,154
2021 12 31 111,434 20,176 12,207 9,482 153,299
( )
2020 1 1 193,465 67,116 13,364 4321 278,266
4,918 7,060 1,519 5,484 18,981
933 1,289 223 (2,445)
(13,522) (9,347) (385) (11) (23,265)
2020 12 31 185,794 66,118 14,721 7,349 273,982
2020 1 1 (73,609) (48,465) (3,393) (125,467)
(6,762) (6,015) (634) (13,412)
7,895 8,198 300 16,402
2020 12 31 (72,476) (46,282) (3,719) (122,476)
2020 1 1 (265) (16) (34) (315)
(49) (49)
3 7 2 12
2020 12 31 (262) ) (a7 (34) (352)
2020 1 1 119,501 18,635 9,971 4,287 152,484
2020 12 31 113,056 19,827 10,956 7,315 151,154

2021 12 31
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22
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
143,027 133,355
(655) (334)
142,372 133,021
1
( )
2021 1 1 121944 10,426 388 10525 (10,718) 456 133,021
) 14,115 1,418 (116) (2073) (969) (274 12101
- - - - (2,750) - (2,750)
2021 12 31 136,050 11,844 272 8452 (14,437 182 142,372
( )
2020 1 1 114,140 9,175 533 7,640 (11,302 246 120,432
) 7,804 1,251 (145) 2,885 (1,797) 210 10,208
2,381 2,381
2020 12 31 121,944 10,426 388 10525  (10,718) 456 133,021
2 I(
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
/ / / /
( ) C ) «C ) « )
544,441 136,059 487,775 121,944
28,267 7,087 58,107 14,527
47,379 11,844 41,705 10,426
33,809 8,452 42,100 10,525
1,088 272 1,551 388
780 182 1,827 456
655,764 163,806 633,065 158,266
(86,404) (21,524) (100,981) (25,245)
(86,404) (21,524) (100,981) (25,245)

569,360 142,372 532,084 133,021
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@

(2 2021 12 31
3,952

24

2020 12 31

12

12 31
2021 2020
75,176 97,619
@) 20,384 19,340
) 10,191 10,196
6,188 4,154
2,718 2,233
2,018 2,529
1,836 3,070
899 716
659 655
15,567 10,780
135,636 151,292
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 12
3,993 8,903 2020 12 31
122 31
2021 2020
740,629 730,146
6,584 7,015
747,213 737,161
12 31
2021 2020
167,300 114,603
1,401,314 1,229,313
3,332 2,006
41,446 42,691
1,613,392 1,388,703
8,974 5,813
1,622,366 1,394,516
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26
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
129,317 222,377
161,119 167,291
290,436 389,668
669 992
291,105 390,660
27
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
15,646 13,725
15,646 13,725
Q) - 9,540
214 4,452
- 100
214 14,092
15,860 27,817
(1)
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
28
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
31,298 107,844
4,720 1,325
36,018 109,169
15 26
36,033 109,195

42
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29
12 31
( ) 2021 2020
5,383,210 5,236,566
5,942,411 5,872,736
2,761,506 2,477,710
7,000,805 6,062,167
(@) 339,588 299,962
167,933 158,231
21,595,453 20,107,372
311,674 265,529
21,907,127 20,372,901
1
12 31
( ) 2021 2020
127,012 100,822
75,099 73,606
66,418 48,718
32,948 39,309
38,111 37,507
339,588 299,962
2 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
2021 12 31
21,854,821 2020 12 31 20,031,232
52,306 (2020 12 31 341,669 )
30
12 31
( ) 2021 2020
@) 420,813 430,703
%)) 262,272 252,569
©) 816,321 679,261
1,499,406 1,362,533
8,251 9,312
1,507,657 1,371,845

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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1
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
5 0] 1,913
15 (ii) - 50,000
15 (iii) 50,000 50,000
10 Tier2 @iv) 40,000 40,000
10 Tier2 (v) 40,000 40,000
10 Tier2 (vi) 50,000 50,000
10 Tier2 (vii) 40,000 40,000
10 Tier2 (viii) 40,000 40,000
15 Tier2 (i) 10,000 10,000
15 Tier2 (x) 20,000 20,000
(xi) 56,305 42,643
3 (xii) 20,000 20,000
3 (xiii) 20,000
3 (xiv) 2,770 2,720
3 (xv) 2,000 1,650
3 (xvi) 2,500
3 (xvii) 3,870 3,870
3 (xviii) 4,000 4,000
3 (xix) 2,410
5 (xx) 2,000 2,000
5 (xxi) 6,000 6,000
5 (xxii) 500 500
3 (xxiii) 1,100
3 (xxiv) 3,000
10 (xxv) 3,500 3,500
10 (xxvi) 1,500 1,500
420,958 430,793
(145) (90)
420,813 430,703
2021 1 5 125% 2 5
2011 6 53% 1 15 2021 6 6
2012 12 499% 1 15 2022 12 19
2022 12 20 4.9%%
2017 10 Tier2 445% 1 10
2022 10 16
2022 10 17 4.45% Tier2 Tier2 CBIRC
Tier2
2018 4 Tier2 445% 1 10
CBIRC 2023 4 26
2023 4 27 4.45% Tier2 Tier2 CBIRC
Tier2
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2019 3
CBIRC
Tier2
vii 2019 4
CBIRC
Tier2
(viii) 2020 4
CBIRC
Tier2
ix 2019 3
CBIRC
Tier2
x 2019 4
CBIRC
Tier2
Xi)
(
(
Xii) 2020 4
Xiii) 2021 4
Xiv)
()
xvi)
xvii)
(xviii)

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Tier2 428% 1 10
2024 3 18
2024 19 4.28% Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 430% 1 10
2024 4 10
2024 11 4.30% Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 310% 1 10
2025 5 5
2025 6 3.10% Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 453% 1 15
2029 3 18
2029 19 4.53% Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 463% 1 15
2029 4 10
2029 11 4.63% Tier2 Tier2
2021 12 31
(%)
2023 5 2024 4 2.60-2.70 1,502
2022 10 2023 6 0.50-1.00 8,583
2023 7 2026 9 0.70-1.65 34,745
2022 7 2023 11 3 LIBOR+0.66 0.85 11,475
56,305
2020 12 31
(%)
2022 10 1.00 4,208
2021 6 2025 10 1.00-3.88 18,871
2021 9 2023 11 3 LIBOR+0.68 0.85 19,564
42,643
199% 1 3
338% 1 3
2019 6 368% 1 3
2020 11 3.90% 3
2021 8 306% 1 3
2019 9 3.30% 3
2020 3 2.68% 3
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(xix) ABC
2021 8 21
XX) 2019 9
(00di) 2020 3
(i) ( ) 2020 6
(i) ) 2021 4
(xxiv) ( ) 2021 6
)
2023 3 4
2023 3 5 6.55%
(oxvi)
2025 3 25
2025 3 26 4.60%
22021 12 31
1
3
0.45% 2020 12 31
1 1
1 1.58%
31
( )
MOF

3.35%

2018 8

2018 3

2020 3

-0.51%
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4.70% 1 3
3.40% 1 5
2.75% 1 5
3.80% 1 5
4.10% 1 5
3.80% 1 5
5.55% 1 10
3.60% 1 10
-0.02%  3.09% 2020 12 31
1 7 -0.02%  3.66%
2021 12 31
2 1 0.00%
3 1 0.00%  2.14%
2021 12 31
0.59% 2020 12 31 1
12 31
2021 2020
153,389 168,852
105,262 89,651
61,639 54,340
1) 59,736 56,811
2 33,809 42,100
10,571 10,235
10,067 9,824
1,286 711
64,684 92,066
500,443 524,590
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12 31
2021 2020
() 57,262 47,380
() 1,386 7,880
() 1,088 1,551
59,736 56,811
2021
11 12 31
@ 35,010 90,052 (82,277) 42,785
) 108 9,406 (9.377) 137
@ 385 5,895 (5.834) 446
367 5,514 (5.463) 418
9 223 (218) 14
9 158 (153) 14
8,039 4,001 (2,895) 9,145
3,838 10,982 (10,071) 4,749
47,380 120,336 (110,454) 57,262
2020
11 12 31
@ 31,289 81,087 (77,366) 35,010
@ 184 8,933 (9,009) 108
@ 332 4,713 (4,660) 385
311 4,398 (4,342) 367
13 205 (209) 9
8 110 (109) 9
7,049 3,613 (2,623) 8,039
4,276 10,612 (11,050) 3,838
43,130 108,958 (104,708) 47,380
2021
11 12 31
619 10,924 (10,849) 694
40 360 (360) 40
7.221 6,993 (13,562) 652

7,880 18,277 (24,771) 1,386
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2020
11 12 31
452 8,110 (7,943) 619
34 249 (243) 40
4,722 6,367 (3,868) 7,221
5,208 14,726 (12,054) 7,880
2021
11 12 31
1,551 15 (478) 1,088
2020
11 12 31
2,133 5 (587) 1,551
12 31
2021 2020
2.58% 2.90%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55
12 31
2021 2020
0 20,271 35,756
5,333 5,560
8,205 784
33,809 42,100
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( ) 2021 12 3
1 2 3
12

2021 1 1 33,356 1,661 739 35,756
1 2 (155) 155 - -
2 3 - (219) 219 -
2 1 51 (51) - -
3 2 - 31 (31 -
(@ 9,797 - - 9,797
(79) 616 539 1,076
(@ (24,637) (1,542) (279 (26,358)
2021 12 31 18,333 651 1,287 20,271

( ) 2020 12 31

1 2 3
12

2020 1 1 22,836 2,032 345 25,213

2 (682) 682

3 (348) 348

2 1 3 ©)
€) 18,613 18,613
720 6 401 1,127
(@ (8,134) (708) (355) (9,197)
2020 12 31 33,356 1,661 739 35,756

a 2021 2020 2021 2020
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(2) 2021 12 31

25,189

H
2020 12
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2021 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
2020 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
H
2018 6 19,960
31 A H 2018 6

245/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ooooooog
33
( ) ( ) ( )
5
0,
6.00% 100 400 40,000
(€]
5
5
0,
5.50% 100 400 40,000
(6]
5
2019
5
4.39% 100 850 85,000
5
2
2019
5
4.20% 100 350 35,000
5
(2
2020
5
3.48% 100 850 85,000
5
2
2020
5
4.50% 100 350 35,000
5
(2
2021
5
3.76% 100 400 40,000
5
2
) 800 1 100
2014 11 400 2021 12 31 ( ) 39,944
5 6.00% 1 5 5
2.29% 2019 11 1 5 2019 11 5
3.03% 2.29% 5.32% 1
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2015 3

2.24%

CBIRC

2021 12 31

@
120

2019 8 16

2019 9 3

2020

2020 5 8

2020 8 20

400
5
2020 3 6
2.60%

243

100

100

100

100
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ooooodd
2021 12 31 ( ) 39,955
5.50% 1 5 5
5 2020 3 11
2.24% 4.84% 1
Tier2
[2019]42 )
A 1 2
2018 6 25,189 A
1 243 2.46
CBIRC Tierl
79,899 (2020 12 31 :79,899 )
2019
85 1 2019 8 20
5 1 5 4.39%
35 2 2019 9 5
2 5 1 5 4.20%
120
85 1 2020 5 12
2 5 1 5 3.48%
35 2 2020 8 24
2 5 1 5 4.50%
2021 120 -
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2020 12 31

2021 12 31
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2021 11 12 40 - 2021 11 16
100
5 5 3.76%
5 CBIRC
CBIRC
Tierl
Tierl 2021 12 31
279,973 (2020 12 31 : 239,976 )
2010 2018
) 2021

34,773 (8,786) 25,987
13,049 (2,528) 10,521
(1,131) (283) (1,414
(282) 115 (167)
46,409 (11,482) 34,927
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( ) 2020
2019 12 31 39,875 (10,191) 29,684
(4,238) 1,188 (3,050)
(750) 188 (562)
(114) 29 (85)
2020 12 31 34,773 (8,786) 25,987
36
GAAP 10%
50%
2022 3 30 2020
10% 24,335 2020 21,040
25%
37
MOF

[2012) 20 2012 7 1

1.5%
2021 12 31 40,167
2020 34,433 2020 12 31 39,217
2020 34,211 2021 5 27
2022 3 30

32,221
2021
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3
12 31
2021 2020
74,610 76,281
101,010 51,802
12,163 76,904
103,110 207,568
833,869 762,598
1,124,762 1,175,153
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( )
2021 12 31
312,905 165902 116,342 o7,411 112,282 159,636 23,728 19,808 - 1,008,014
(62,136)  (93,360) (48988) (71,233) (59,171)  (66,727)  (20,385) (8,027) - (430,027)
(
) (271,993) 63,604 31,990 65,005 48,445 44,643 19,617 (1,401) - -
(21,224) 136,146 09,344 01,273 101,556 137,552 22,960 10,380 - 577,987
39,414 14,432 10,999 8,913 8,641 11,416 2,071 2,835 - 98,721
(3529) (3,568) (2,707) (2,149) (2,791) (2,921) (634) (93) - (18,392)
35,885 10,864 8,202 6,764 5,850 8,495 1437 2,742
- 80,329
14,241
7,621 613 54 86 33 46 24 5,764 -
/ 15,035
12,174 (4,065) (925) (380) (726) 6,416 (115) 2,656 -
9 - - - - - - 2 - 11
1,053 970 629 a48 483 1,693 107 28,760 - 34,143
35518 144528 107,394 98101 107,196 154,202 24,413 50,304 - 721,746
(18196)  (38,779) (27.919) (32533) (38428) (53152) (14431)  (36,837) - (260,275)
(10057)  (33444) (21895) (32.026) (30,379)  (33,349) (4,104) (632) - (165:886)
(20) - - €] 9 (45) (22) (17) - (114
7,245 72,305 57,580 33,631 38,380 67,656 5,856 12,818 - 295471
58 - - - - - - 351 - 409
7,303 72,305 57,580 33,631 38,380 67,656 5,856 13,169 - 295880
(53,9449
241,936
1,872 3,186 2,546 3,106 3,124 4,255 1,193 515 - 19,797
3,684 2,565 3,642 4141 4,014 5771 969 2,158 - 26,944
2021 12 31
5349436 6245511 3,777,921 5144974 4261718 5616038 1202922 1158228 (3920,620) 28,926,128
1,072 - - - - - - 7,225 - 8,207
143,027
29,069,155
) 15,399 30,401 20,108 30,150 28,146 42,446 10,731 27,004 - 204475

(2,878,758) (6,304,624) (3,787,707) (5,185277) (4,293,433) (5,647,159) (1,303,874) (1,105290) 3,920,620 (26,585,502)
(62,294)
(26,647,796)

12,035 537,337 366,666 389,817 308,368 320,502 75,593 77,987 - 2,088,305

@
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( )
2020 12 31
295037 146586 104,665 90,675 100,397 146,982 22,471 23,219 - 930,032
(62,901)  (81914)  (40592)  (61,183)  (50,040)  (57,814)  (17574)  (13,835) - (385853
(
) (236,844) 56,373 26,000 56,045 43,094 40,319 16,672 (1,659) - -
(3808) 121,045 90,073 85,537 93,451 129,487 21,569 7,725 - 545,079
32,182 14,579 11,403 9,492 8,660 12,101 2,148 601 - 91,166
(4,023) (2,620) (2,476) (1,975) (2,281) (2,529) (549) (168) - (16,621)
28,159 11,959 8,927 7,517 6,379 9,572 1,599 433 - 74,545
) 10,463 359 (151) (156) (110) 897 (76) 5,179 - 16,405
/
4,058 (5,648) (2,280) (2,462) (1,034) (1,550) (223) 1,827 - (7,312)
1 - - - - - - - - 1
(1,839) 721 492 485 307 1,356 59 29,033 - 30,614
37,034 128436 97,061 90,921 08,993 139,762 22,928 44,197 - 659,332
(15628)  (33097)  (24797) (28845  (33345)  (47,362)  (13395)  (33428) - (229,897)
(15181)  (26,704)  (17,796)  (26,626)  (31,237) (37,932 (6,398) (2,825) - (164,699
@) 1 - 12 3 (130) (38) (51) - (204)
6,224 68,636 54,468 35,462 34,414 54,338 3,097 7,893 - 264,532
4 - - - - - - 514 - 518
6,228 68,636 54,468 35,462 34,414 54,338 3,097 8,407 - 265,050
(48,650)
216,400
1,570 3,170 2572 3,360 3,075 4,150 1,202 452 - 19,551
2,438 2,942 2,937 2,537 3673 4,607 1,658 1,930 - 22,722
2020 12 31
5956432 5698994 3443268 4676597 3917,314 5231854 1175767 1,207,010 (4,235544) 27,071,692
210 - - - - - - 8,655 - 8,865
133,355
27,205,047
@) 12,523 31,128 18,944 28,896 27,810 42,014 11,127 27,410 - 199,852
(3,726,048) (5748,167) (3442.287) (4,710,246) (3,940522) (5,264,694) (1,186,993) (1,156,214) 4,235,544 (24,939,627)
(54,674)
(24,994,301)
32779 970556 558971 496243 422731 523658 77,342 87,024 - 3,169,304

@
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( )
2021 12 31
382,068 313,486 304,389 8,071 1,008,014
(129,812) (210,635) (86,184) (3,39) (430,027)
( i
(24,981) 186,829 (161,848)
227,275 289,680 56,357 4,675 577,987
59,722 34,090 1,058 3,851 98,721
(11,392) (6,634) (39) (327) (18,392)
48,330 27,456 1,019 3524 80,329
11,040 3,201 14,241
/ (7,182) (75) 17,158 5,133 15,035
1 11
1,475 1,341 357 30,970 34,143
269,899 318,402 85,942 47,503 721,746
(82,315) (112,663) (29,168) (36,129) (260,275)
(111,269) (49,672) (4,567) (379) (165,886)
(72 @ &3] (36) (114)
76,243 156,063 52,205 10,960 295,471
409 409
76,243 156,063 52,205 11,369 295,880
(53,944)
241,936
5,230 10,484 3,630 453 19,797
5,933 13,909 5,510 1,592 26,944
2021 12 31
9,539,860 7,110,002 11,884,433 391,833 28,926,128
8,297 8,297
143,027
29,069,155
(8,833,093) (13,357,389) (4,083,852) (311,168) (26,585,502)
(62,294)
(26,647,796)
1,213,942 874,363 2,088,305
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( )
2020 12 31
354,333 279,727 290,119 6,753 930,932
(120,316) (194,091) (68,422) (3,024) (385,853)
( i
(12,647) 168,042 (155,395)
221,370 253,678 66,302 3,729 545,079
55,436 33274 49 1,960 91,166
(10,044) (6,490) (5) (82) (16,621)
45392 26,784 491 1,878 74,545
8,920 7,485 16,405
/ (7,284) (4,180) 1,440 2,712 (7,312)
1 1
1,375 1,321 25 27,893 30,614
260,853 277,603 77,179 43,697 659,332
(71,055) (101,669) (24,700) (32,473) (229,897)
(112,122) (37,359) (13,706) (1,512) (164,699)
(156) 4 (52) (204)
77,520 138,579 38,773 9,660 264,532
518 518
77,520 138,579 38,773 10,178 265,050
(48,650)
216,400
4,397 11,209 3,544 401 19,551
4,076 12,708 4,491 1,447 22,722
2020 12 31
8,618,358 6,372,074 11,586,282 494,978 27,071,692
8,865 8,865
133,355
27,205,047
(8,590,691) (12,926,172) (3,129,836) (292,928) (24,939,627)
(54,674)
(24,994,301)
2,146,637 1,022,667 3,169,304
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(
2021 12 31
259,517 748,497 1,008,014
(140,954) (289,073) (430,027)
/( 136,984 (136,984) )
255,547 322,440 577,987
38,344 60,377 98,721
(7,389) (11,004) (18,392
30,956 49,373 80,329
6,497 7,744 14,241
« (2,476) 17511 15,035
1 1
4471 29,672 34,143
294,995 426,751 721,746
(104,046) (156,229) (260,275)
(64,790 (101,096) (165,886)
48 (66) (114)
126,111 169,360 295,471
409 409
126,111 169,769 295,880
(53,944)
241,936
7,758 12,039 19,797
6,521 20,423 26,944
2021 12 31
10,419,215 18,612,453 (105,540) 28,926,128
8,297 8,207
143,027
29,069,155
(9,631,167) (17,059,875) 105,540 (26,585,502)
(62,294)
(26,647,796)
703,422 1,384,883 2,088,305
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2020 12 31
230,691 700,241 930,932
(121,062) (264,791) (385,853)
I ) 122,135 (122,135)
231,764 313,315 545,079
35,742 55,424 91,166
(6,439) (10,182) (16,621)
29,303 45,242 74,545
221 16,184 16,405
(4,001) (3,312) (7,312)
1 1
4,507 26,107 30,614
261,794 397,538 659,332
(91,401) (138,496) (229,897)
(52,276) (112,423) (164,699)
@7 177) (204)
118,090 146,442 264,532
518 518
118,090 146,960 265,050
(48,650)
216,400
7,567 11,084 19,551
6,990 15,732 22,722
2020 12 31
9,638,372 17,570,020 (136,700) 27,071,692
8,865 8,865
133,355
27,205,047
(8942,453)  (16,133,874) 136,700  (24,939,627)
(54,674)
(24,994,301)
970,680 2,198,624 3,169,304
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40
1 MOF
2021 12 31 MOF 35.29% 2020 12 31 35.29%
MOF
MOF
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
797,193 9.69% 754,668 9.65%
MOF 324,619 3.94% 316,656 4.05%
4,018 0.02% 8,385 0.04%
(MOF ) 4 0.00% 4 0.00%
MOF 1,286 0.26% 711 0.14%
( ) 12 3
2021 2020
(%) (%)
28,513 2.83% 30,376 3.26%
(50) 0.01% (100) 0.03%
1,133 1.15% 1,294 1.42%
126 0.88% 95 0.58%
MOF
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
% %
MOF 0.00-9.00 0.00-9.00
0.01-0.80 0.00-2.81

42

259/508
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40.03% 2020 12 31 40.03%
12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
3,951 0.03%
52,357 0.64% 67,509 0.86%
38,090 0.17% 5,447 0.03%
12 31
2021 2020
(%0 (%)
1,787 0.18% 2,844 0.31%
(616) 0.14% (148) 0.04%
23 0.16% 29 0.18%
12 31
2021 2020
% %
3.55-3.92
2.154.38 2.15-5.15

0.45-2.10 1.73-2.25
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12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
88,842 40.66% 89,726 20.67%
123,271 27.58% 100,125 18.31%
4,003 18.21% 17,137 27.67%
21,577 3.29% 27,349 3.35%
20,935 0.13% 64,047 0.44%
736,027 8.94% 731,695 9.35%
79,144 4.88% 92,890 6.66%
68,168 23.42% 147,049 37.64%
2,747 14.21% 11,259 17.25%
9,909 27.50% 48,444 44.36%
4,159 0.02% 3,921 0.02%
2,000 0.56% 2,000 0.63%
1,800 0.59%

0.15%
3,000

261/508



3)
2021 12 31
12 31 6.95%
( )
( )
( )
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6.72% 2020
12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
43,755 5.22% 33,966 4.16%
65,415 0.30% 51,827 0.25%
1,250 0.35% 1,250 0.39%
12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
32 0.00% 158 0.02%
(2,226) 0.52% (2,026) 0.53%
12 31
2021 2020
% %
258-3.90 0.63-3.35
0.46 - 4.26 0.30-5.20
484 484
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12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
84,863 18.99% 87,643 16.02%
1,786 0.22%
365 0.00% 6,230 0.08%
102 0.08% 24 0.02%
14,079 0.87% 18,657 1.34%
1,857 0.01% 1,624 0.01%
986 0.20% 753 0.14%
2,034 0.67% 8,482 3.21%
16 0.00% 331 0.02%
12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
1,440 0.14% 1,568 0.17%
1 0.00% 107 0.65%
1,777 1.80% 1,807 1.98%
Y] 0.30% 9 0.03%
(368) 0.09% (373) 0.10%
(321) 1.75% (909) 5.47%
(242) 0.09% (197) 0.09%
12 31
2021 2020
% %
1.21-3.65 0.04-4.10
1.44-2.96
0.00-3.68 2.50-4.70
0.00-5.12 0.00-4.13

0.30-1.85 0.30-3.15
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12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
16 0.00%
4 0.00%
12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
1 0.00%
0 0.00%
12 31
2021 2020
% %
2.00-2.44
0.00-0.72
2021 12 31
10.40 2020 12 31 6.85
12 31
2021 2020
11.94 15.91

2021 12 31
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2020 12 31
2020

9.99 2021 8 30
2020

8

2021

2020 12 31 1287

2021 12 31 CBIRC
4,085

12 31

9
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2020
15.91
2021 12 31 11.97
2020 12 31 3,064 2020
12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
6,319 0.03% 4,326 0.02%
7,500 2.08% 7,750 2.42%
12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
(240) 0.06% (185) 0.05%
12 31
2021 2020
% %
0.00- 5.00 0.00 - 5.00
484-532 484-532

265/508
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12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
88,842 40.66 89,726 20.67
123,271 2758 100,125 1831
4,003 18.21 17,137 27.67
71,332 852 61,315 751
20,935 0.13 67,998 0.47
1,910,196 2321 1,870,528 2391
79,160 488 92,890 6.66
68,168 23.42 147,049 37.64
2,747 14.21 11,259 17.25
9,900 2750 48,444 44.36
118,001 0.54 73,906 0.36
1,290 0.26 715 0.14
10,750 2.99 11,000 3.44
1,800 0.59
4 0.00 3,000 0.15
12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
30,332 3.01 33,379 3.59
(3132) 0.73 (2,459) 0.64
149 1.05 124 0.76
1,133 115 1,294 1.42

266/508



41.
1)
2021 12 31
2
WMPs
WMPs WMPs
2021 12 31 WMPs
2,170,621
1,049,722 2021 12 31
6,129 2020 6,243
WMPs
WMPs
14,238
6.25 2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
WMPs
2021 12 31
) 2021
1,530 (2020 877 )

267/508
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WMPs

WMPs

2,210,935
WMPs

2020 12 31
2,072,533
WMPs

2020

426 2020 632

2021
642 2020 23,423
2020 12 31 143,545

WMPs

463,451 (2020 12 31 448,388
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2021 12 31
80,229 2020 12 31 92,193
42.
/ 2021 12
31 5,333 2020 12 31
5,560 31
2016 9 28 2016 11 4
2016 12 31 2016 12 31
2021 12 31
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
1,961 2,507
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
21,567 207,288
438,333 1,409,990
459,900 1,617,278
414,934 429,841
743,594 695,183
304,238 264,646
165,639 162,356

2,088,305 3,169,304
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CBIRC (2013 1 1 )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
1,178,909 1,240,078
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
33,407 114,573
4,749 1,327
38,156 115,900
28 2021 12 31
36,033 (2020 12 31
109,195 ) 12
43
2021 12 31 1,095,330 2020 12
31 1,026,931
16 2021 12 31 2020

12 31

269/508



MOF

2021 12 31
2020 12 31 67,622

2021 12 31
12 31

8.7 6

2021 12 31
(2020 12 31 69,291 )
14,130
95,682 2020 12 31 55,161
2021 12 31
9,691 (2020 12 31 6,564

2021 12 31
16,542 2020 27,837

31 42
(2020 12 31 4,050 )

270/508
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140
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63,405

2020

102,388
2020 12 31

8.7

2021 12
707



2020 12 31

17,150

2021 12 31

271/508
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PD

PD

LGD

12

LGD

12

IFRS 9
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12
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IFRS 9
90
GDP CPI
PD LGD
PD LGD
2021 12 31 2022
2022 5.30
6.36 2.68
2021 12 31
2020 12 31
12 1 2

10%
5%
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3 DCF
DCF
12 31

2021 2020
2,246,7% 2,360,094
218,500 434,185
446,944 546,948
21,978 61,937
837,637 816,206
0) 16454503 14,552,433
328,769 469,308
(ii) 6,372,522 5,684,220
(iii) 1,392,691 1,551,439
77,881 101,562
28398221 26,579,232
@iv) 2,068,034 3,133,548

30,466,255 29,712,780
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2021 12 31
2
1 3
12
9,588,174 16,422 9,604,596
203,289 203,289
209,519 209,519
9,588,174 429,230 10,017,404
(336,129) (191,135) (527,264)
9,252,045 238,095 9,490,140
2021 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,071,624 7,071,624
49,781 49,781
36,264 36,264
7,071,624 86,045 7,157,669
(163,988) (29,318) (193,306)
6,907,636 56,727 6,964,363
2020 12 31
2
1 3
12
8,439,076 21,073 8,460,149
258,283 258,283
198,795 198,795
8,439,076 478,156 8,017,232
(269,354) (189,331) (458,685)
8,169,722 288,825 8,458,547
2020 12 31
2
1 3
12
6,134,472 6,134,472
46,047 46,047
38,318 38,318
6,134,472 84,365 6,218,837
(128,414) (30,910) (159,324)

6,006,058 53,455 6,059,513
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(if)
( ) 2021 12 31
2
1 3
12
6,389,720 6,389,720
548 548
1,281 1,281
6,389,720 1,829 6,391,549
(17,764) (1,263) (19,027)
6,371,956 566 6,372,522
( ) 2020 12 31
2
1 3
12
5,697,187 5,697,187
2,064 2,064
1,073 1,073
5,697,187 3,137 5,700,324
(14,850) (1,254) (16,104)
5,682,337 1,883 5,684,220
(iii)
( ) 2021 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,390,789 399 1,391,188
1,471 1,471
32 32

1,390,789 1,902 1,392,691
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( ) 2020 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,545,343 1,545,343
6,030 6,030
66 66
1,545,343 6,096 1,551,439
(W)
1
(v) 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2 3

(Vi)
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12 31
2021 2020
(%) (%)
313,248 31 350,679 3.9
2,383,014 238 1,996,025 224
1,325,589 13.2 1,139,535 12.8
1,427,512 14.3 1,302,504 14.6
1,477,841 14.8 1,302,925 14.6
2,297,775 23.0 2,088,255 234
367,382 3.7 344,039 3.9
406,823 4.1 393,322 4.4
9,999,184 100.0 8,917,284 100.0
47 50

1,705,450 239 1,484,067 239
1,514,233 212 1,331,142 214
1,033,741 145 912,175 14.7
1,187,096 16.6 997,845 16.0
1,451,317 20.3 1,265,565 20.4
225,328 32 207,899 33
19,356 0.3 20,094 0.3
7,136,568 100.0 6,218,837 100.0

17,135,752 15,136,121
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12 3
2021 2020
(%) (%)
2,145,617 215 1,915,191 215
1,694,879 17.0 1,450,816 16.3
1,507,059 151 1,261,700 141
1,054,517 105 976,377 11.0
876,407 88 798,017 8.9
719,530 72 621,772 7.0
574,187 5.7 469,831 5.3
446,486 45 556,342 6.2
303,347 3.0 222,858 25
203,937 20 206,502 2.3
473,218 4.7 437,878 4.9
9,999,184 100.0 8,917,284 100.0
5,242,297 734 4,662,632 75.0
469,498 6.6 380,305 6.1
193,706 27 196,859 32
626,783 88 542,563 8.7
604,284 85 436,478 7.0
7,136,568 100.0 6,218,837 100.0
17,135,752 15,136,121
2021 12 31
1
1 5 5
2,307,472 860,788 1,824,122 4,992,382
667,336 466,119 777,262 1,910,717
1,279,772 587,215 6,096,590 7,963,577
386,734 118,536 1,763,806 2,269,076

4,641,314 2,032,658 10,461,780 17,135,752

2020 12 31
1
1 5 5
1,537,763 958,928 1,679,137 4,175,828
619,901 428,989 640,554 1,689,444
1,062,045 521,244 5,395,327 6,978,616
623,848 101,553 1,566,832 2,292,233

3,843,557 2,010,714 9,281,850 15,136,121
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4 (ii)
( ) 2021 12 31
31 o1 361
30 % 360 3 3
7,313 4,388 10,949 4,431 4318 31,399
5,017 2,953 7,569 9,031 1,876 26,446
30,388 21,419 29,563 22,740 7,734 111,844
1,922 959 4,766 4,684 2,901 15,232
44,640 29,719 52,847 40,886 16,829 184,921
( ) 2020 12 31
31 o1 361
30 90 360 3 3
5,678 4,645 12,114 2,675 3,526 28,638
10,136 2,890 11,336 9,287 2,020 35,669
32,138 20,145 33,540 26,513 6,636 118,972
2,042 554 3,803 5,274 481 12,154
49,994 28,234 60,793 43,749 12,663 195433
(ii) 1
5
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
141,243 141,492
104,539 95,621
245,782 237,113
6

12

281/508
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2021 12 30
18,307 2020 12 31 145546
2021 12 31 1,984
2020 1,649
1
182 183
2
0}
( ) 2021 12 31
4,807,834 4,807,834
1,787,588 1,787,588
511,253 1,218 512,471
(ii) 209,339 253 32 200,624
94,122 94,122
MOF 324,619 324,619
28,389 548 18 28,955
7,763,144 2,019 50 7,765,213
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( ) 2020 12 31
4,288,607 4,288,607
1,590,893 1,590,893
658,182 2,580 660,762
(i) 247,717 4,796 66 252,579
94,125 94,125
MOF 316,656 316,656
31,500 528 9 32,037
7,227,680 7,904 75 7,235,659
i 2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
i 2021 12 31 3,634 2020 12 31 341
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2021 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

175,620 944 2,144,842 2,321,406
78,385 20425 41,606 57,200 11,884 218,500
181,508 115,957 132,768 14975 1,736 446944
4284 4,770 9,233 3,688 3 21,978
3872 810,227 20,738 2,800 837,637
16,555 661,910 817,875 3243507 3371483 8,343,173 16,454,503
4721 19,554 11,609 81,376 38219 175,922 128,840 460,241
394 57,670 111,377 593,026 2740193 2,869,862 637252
2 36,490 72014 294,752 611,990 377,413 45589 1,397,280
1,836 67,612 309 3442 959 54 ) 3571 77,881
22,689 326,338 1,801,377 1,200,332 4,415,621 6792486 11,768,207 2,281,842 28,608,802
(32 (49,889) (31,806) (663,870) (1,616) (747,213)
(1,105,856) (28,658) (139,121) (139,143) (209,588) (1,622,366)
(106,957) (92.770) (80,218) (6:394) (a,766) (291,105)
(15,646) (214) (15,860)
(3,918) (4,255) (7,643) (3,305) (216) (19,337)
(18,841) (6877 (9.156) (1,159) (36,033)
(12,386,137) (603,855) (1,308,745) (3,209,263) (4,388,038) (16,089) (21,907,127)
(84,856) (277,220) (723814) (126768) (294,999 (1,507,657)
(187,376) (4,484) (7.810) (11,122) (42,500) (63212) (2.039) (318,543)
(13,695,047) (901,458) (1,863,604) (4,844,229) (4779.368)  (379,496) (2039) (26,465,241
22,689 (13,368,709) 899,919 (663,2272) (428,608) 2013118 11,388,711 2,279,803 2,143,651

284/508
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2020 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
116,773 11,869 4,322 12,653 2,291,658 2,437,275
86,976 17,494 57,867 258,811 13,037 434,185
17 200,386 155,901 151,016 29,328 1,300 546,048
9,931 14,614 34,987 2,375 30 61,937
3,689 755,438 33,315 23,764 816,206
20,062 543,994 812,515 3,000,584 2,858,842 7,307,436 14,552,433
5 11,416 40,928 61,053 138,374 107,775 100,896 122,622 583,069
5 48,499 100,327 471,210 2721956 2,342,223 5,684,220
39,377 44,870 352,924 723,392 390,876 3,931 1,555,370
3,070 91,657 1,220 798 1,821 125 87 2,784 101,562
26,848 306,822 1,678,136 1,285,582 4,455,144 6,456,830 10,142,848 2,420,995 26,773,205
(30) (57,653) (44,542) (634,135) (801) (737,161)
(930,759) (81,439) (126,179) (38,640) (217,499) (1,394,516)
(187,137) (104,911) (88,924) (2,391) (7.297) (390,660)
(13,725) (9,540) (100) (230) (4.222) (27,817)
(8,719) (11,101) (39,995) (4412 (1,056) (65.282)
(84,786) (6,920) (16,977) (512) (109,195)
(11,821,912) (554,505) (1,256,439) (2,955,410) (3,672,501) (12,134) (20,372,901
(113,725) (360,635) (456,191) (88,196)  (353,098) (1,371,845)
(241,413) (1,562) (2,318) (9.317) (27,304) (63,012) (5,540) (350,466)
(13,107,839) (1,099,066) (1,913,045) (4,239,689) (4013845) (436,597 (9762)  (24,819,843)
26,848 (12,801,017) 579,070 (627,463) 215,455 2442985 9706251 2411233 1,953,362
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2021 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

175,620 944 2,144,842 2,321,406
79,506 29,581 2282 57,883 12,424 221,676
183,457 118,102 134,679 16,303 1,840 454,381
3915 813,408 20,849 2,826 840,998
66,076 733,902 981,574 3,956,763 5475868 12,476,078 23,690,261
4721 19,856 12128 88,156 64,095 196,609 128,840 514,405
1,269 58,718 118,783 706,909 3315201 3548575 7,749,455
119 36,686 73474 316,861 691,188 435,749 4589 1,558,666
3821 70,332 362 3,456 902 55 ) 3617 82,733
75,200 330,179 1,875,970 1,371,592 5,265,069 0575134 166589490 2,281,888 37,433,981
(32 (49,991) (32,020) (678,145) (4,597) (761,785)
(1,105,856) (29,446) (140,548) (146,482) (229,627) (1,651,959)
(106,990) (93,027) (80,847) (7,283 (4,967) (293,114)
(15,646) (24 (15,860)
(18,848) (6,898) (9172 (1162) (36,080)
(12,386,137) (604,386) (1,308,635) (3,255,950) (4,683,792) (19,066) (22,257,966)
(84,971) (278.957) (740,163) (182.848)  (331,012) (1,617,951)
(187,376) (4553) (7.854) (11,313) (43,000) (63,288) (2.039) (319.423)
(13,695,047) (899,185) (1,867,939) (4,922,072) (5149,309)  (418547) (2039)  (26.954,138)
75200  (13,364,868) 976,785 (496,347) 342,997 4425825 16240402 2,279,849 10,479,843
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2020 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
116,773 11,869 4322 12,653 2,201,658 2,437,275
86,976 17,515 58,080 263,326 14,419 440,316
17 211,242 158,751 154,809 30,258 1,308 556,385
3,689 758,771 33,440 23,928 819,828
82,234 615,894 949,240 3,596,570 4660491 11,070,548 20,983,977
5 11,416 41,369 62,296 147,124 134,878 124,902 126,481 648,471
43 63,769 128,789 595,532 3187505 2,887,451 6,863,489
41,424 49,589 384,001 798,307 442,817 2,784 1,719,012
91,657 1,220 798 1,821 125 87 2,784 98,492
86,388 306,822 1,763,073 1,445,305 5,179,854 8834983 14,527,113 2423707 34,567,245
(30) (57,653) (44,848) (647,586) (790) (750,907)
(930,759) (81,706) (126,901) (42,212) (235,630) (1,417,207)
(187,271) (105,240) (89,826) (3,444) (7,850) (393,631)
(13,725) (9,543) (100) (230) (4,222) (27,820)
(87,891) (6,929) (17,032) (516) (112,368)
(11,922,145) (555,122) (1,261,386) (2,998,626) (3,939,672) (14,692) (20,691,643)
(113,895) (364,892) (478,222) (163,736)  (398,939) (1,519,684)
(241,177) (1,562) (2.321) (9,368) (27,800) (63.212) (5,540) (350,980)
(13,107,836) (1,094,643) (1,912,517) (4,282,971) (4371,818)  (484,693) (9762)  (25264,240)
86,388 (12,801,014) 668,430 (467,212) 896,883 4463165 14042420 2413945 9,303,005
2021 12 31
3
1 12 1
1 3 5 5
650 512 448 (101) 1,509
2020 12 31
3
12 1
1 5 5
(18) (120) (39) (2,203) (1,018) (3,398)
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2021 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
356,369 441,786 354,719 88,158 751 1,241,783
(352,649) (439,862) (353,358) (68,759) (1,000) (1,215,628)
3720 1,924 1,361 19,399 (249) 26,155
2020 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
529,178 530,154 1,540,225 51,085 2,650,642
(527,974) (526,854) (1,545,117) (50,938) (2,650,883)
1,204 3,300 (4,892) 147 (241)
2021 12 31
1
1 5 5
85,271 177,371 197,258 459,900
414,934 414,934
743594 743,594
153,029 135,151 16,058 304,238
162,515 2,738 386 165,639
1,559,343 315,260 213,702 2,088,305
2020 12 31
1
1 5 5
277,152 387,315 952,811 1,617,278
429,841 429,841
695,183 695,183
135,533 118,620 10,493 264,646
157,942 4,414 162,356
1,695,651 510,349 963,304 3,169,304

288/508



99%
VaR

289/508

VaR

250

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

VaR



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooOood
VaR
)
2021
53 67 99 36
) 149 190 289 35
a4 83 136 21
150 210 307 87
)
2020
59 88 164 52
(0] 28 165 213 28
62 75 120 9
87 232 362 87
VaR
VaR

LPR
LPR
LPR LPR
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2021 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,241,015 61,233 1,142 18,016 2,321,406
148,782 49,451 2,561 17,706 218,500
152,884 218,378 43,509 32,173 446,944
18,053 1,175 1,805 5 21,978
837,637 837,637

15,985,155 344,323 60,014 65011 16,454,503
446,980 10,933 677 1,651 460,241

6,307,943 49,929 9,991 4,659 6,372,522

1,151,033 197,730 2,756 45,761 1,397,280
69,258 5,315 2,528 780 77,881

27,358,740 938,467 124,983 186,702 28,608,892
(745,597) (1,616) (747,213)

(1,572,836) (17,571) (24,877) (7.082)  (1.622,366)
(67,315) (178,291) (26,842) (18,657) (291,105)
(15,860) (15,860)
(14,397) (2,290) (2,164) (486) (19,337)
(20,302) (9,950) (5,781) (36,033)

(21,373,264) (459,099) (32,650) (42114)  (21,907,127)

(1,175,836) (229,994) (36,114) (65713)  (1,507,657)

(294,746) (19,984) (1,508) (2,305) (318,543)
(25,280,153) (917,179) (124,155) (143,754)  (26,465,241)

2,078,587 21,288 828 42,948 2,143,651

154,772 8,789 23,045 (35,288) 151,318

1,799,496 245,491 10,216 33,102 2,088,305

292/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
( ) 2020 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,365,609 54,151 1,296 16,219 2,437,275
363,507 50,938 2,393 17,257 434,185
293,880 185,248 38,894 28,926 546,948

56,666 1,084 45 4,142 61,937
816,206 816,206

14,076,068 351,117 52,231 73017 14,552,433
552,067 11,165 6,856 12,981 583,069

5,617,868 58,301 4,271 3,780 5,684,220

1,309,570 206,292 2,518 36,990 1,555,370

84,200 10,622 3415 3,325 101,562

25,535,731 928,918 111,919 196,637 26,773,205
(735,900) (1,261) (737,161)

(1,336,474) (26,379) (20,775) (10,888)  (1,394,516)
(136,469) (200,492) (32,327) (21,372) (390,660)
(27,817) (27,817)

(4,367) (60,268) (257) (390) (65,282)
(83,009) (18,995) (7,191) (109,195)
(19,873,361) (430,007) (33,570) (35963)  (20,372,901)

(1,065,150) (216,330) (26,198) (64,167)  (1,371,845)

(310,910) (32,108) (2,399) (5,049) (350,466)
(23,573,457) (984,579) (115,526) (146,281)  (24,819,843)

1,962,274 (55,661) (3,607) 50,356 1,953,362
138,397 34,139 19,124 (30,639) 161,022

2,893,041 236,335 7,914 32,014 3,169,304

5%
( ) 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
5% (3317) 186 (2,433) (462)

5% 3317 (186) 2,433 462
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PBOC
2015 12 24 PBOC
2019 8 16 PBOC
LPR
LPR
) 2021 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,032,222 289,184 2,321,406
102,908 41,009 56,447 11,503 6,543 218,500
182,417 116,368 132,215 14,866 1,078 446,944
21,978 21,978
809,716 20,666 2786 4,469 837,637
4,316,155 2,451,794 8,483,615 709,928 453,690 39,321 16,454,503
18,736 16,130 84,068 32,078 156,612 152,617 460,241
57,004 104,328 543,312 2,676,021 2,869,265 122,502 6,372,522
64,522 96,496 277,788 566,997 372,204 19,183 1,397,280
77,881 77,881
7,583,680 2,846,881 9,580,231 4,011,393 3,851,861 734,846 28,608,892
(48,518) (31,000) (659,796) (1,263) (6:636) (747,213)
(1,127,742) (138,506) (138,393) (205,554) (12.171) (1,622,366)
(106,779) (99,692) (78,797) (3,046) (1,295) (1,496) (291,105)
(214) (15,646) (15,860)
(19,337) (19,337)
(18,838) (6.871) (9.147) (1,157) (20) (36.033)
(12,926,703) (1,254,524) (3,120,029 (4,240,028) (16,046) (349,797) (21,907,127)
(94,101) (294,188) (701,558) (114,560) (294,999) (8.251) (4,507.657)
(318,543) (318,543)
(14,322,681) (1,824,781) (4,707,720) (4,565,608) (312,554) (731,897) (26,465,241)
(6,739,001) 1,022,100 4,872,511 (554,215) 3,530,307 2,949 2,143,651
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( ) 2020 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,158,126 3,204 12,653 263,202 2,437,275
99,175 57,083 256,632 13,037 8,258 434,185
210,779 156,519 149,070 28,830 1,750 546,948
61,937 61,937
755,068 33,616 22,967 4555 816,206
4,117,253 2,171,094 7,121,297 619,431 489,037 34,321 14,552,433
40,569 68,013 142,140 100,054 93,128 139,165 583,069
63,386 119,236 463,453 2,617,463 2,310,470 110212 5,684,220
78,608 83,737 343,781 648,946 380,632 19,666 1,555,370
101,562 101,562
7,522,964 2,692,502 8,511,993 4,027,761 3,273,267 744,628 26,773,205
(55,900) (43,676) (629,737) (803) (7,045) (737,161)
(1,009,086) (123,822) (33,266) (213,122) (15,220) (1,394,516)
(187,801) (109,893) (90,775) (1,199) (992) (390,660)
(9532) (100) (230) (17,955) (27,817)
(65,282) (65.282)
(84,777) (6,914) (16,966) (512) (26) (109,195)
(12,399,566) (1,216,463) (2.875,560) (3,555,434) (12,129) (313,749) (20,372,901)
(137,270) (373,181) (444,048) (63,081) (344,953) (9.312) (1,371,845)
(350,466) (350,466)
(13,883,932) (1,873,949) (4,090,452) (3,833,182) (358,281) (780,047) (24,819,843)
(6,360,968) 818,643 4,421,541 194,579 2,914,986 (35,419) 1,953,362
100 12
( ) 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
+100 (37,792) (39,264) (37,556) (67,941)
-100 37,792 39,264 37,556 67,941
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45
2012 CBIRC ( )
( ) 2
Tierl Tierl 5% 6%
8%
Tierl 2.5%
Tierl 1%
2
2014 4 CBIRC
CBIRC
3
( )
2017 CBIRC
CBIRC
CBIRC
2021 12 31 CBIRC ( )
2021 2020
( ) 12 31 12 31
Tierl 1) 11.44% 11.04%
Tierl ) 13.46% 12.92%
) 17.13% 16.59%
Tierl @ 2,053,737 1,884,392
Tierl ©) (11,257) (9,020)
Tierl 2,042,480 1,875,372
Tierl ) 359,881 319,884
Tierl 2,402,361 2,195,256
Tier2 (5) 655,506 622,668
3,057,867 2,817,924

(6) 17,849,566 16,989,668
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)
1
Tierl Tierl Tierl Tierl
2 Tierl ( )
( Tierl )
@3 Tierl ( )
Tierl
4 Tierl ( Tierl )
5 Tier2 Tier2 ( )
( Tier2 )
6
46
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
46.1
« )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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46.2
1
2 1
3
46.3
(
MOF
)
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 5,953,781 6,107,442 32,976 5,961,771 112,695
428,856 435,680 47,865 387,815
( ) 2020 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 5,273,439 5,333,755 27,772 5,151,535 154,448

439,621 441,775 28,749 413,026
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46.4
( ) 2021 12 31

1 2 3
20,116 20,116
1,141 1,141
721 721
21,978 21,078
502,748 502,748
502,748 502,748
8,225 119,912 128,137
21,389 21,389
3,948 1,331 5,279
4,261 316 4577
154,585 274 154,859
13,501 12,063 79,112 104,676
251 19,305 19,455 39,011
2,273 40 2,313
32,459 328,941 98,841 460,241
162,072 1,213,723 1,375,795
16,896 16,89
1,165 3,424 4,589
163,237 1,230,619 3,424 1,397,280

195,696 2,084,286 102,265 2,382,247
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2021 12 31
1 2 3

(15,646) (15,646)

(214) (214)
(15,646) (214) (15,860)
(14,734) (14,739
(2,366) (2,366)
(2,237) (2,237)
(19,337) (19,337)
(52,306) (52,306)

(87,289) (214) (87,503)
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2020 12 31
1 2 3
58,187 58,187
1,009 1,009
2,741 2,741
61,937 61,937
577,997 577,997
52 52
578,049 578,049
1,257 181,268 182,525
21,959 21,959
3912 1,032 4,944
14,323 209 14,532
132,530 1,478 134,008
1,842 23,561 71,998 97,401
2,998 6,936 18,897 28,831
8,750 55,116 63,866
24,493 3,442 27,935
7,068 7,068
33,082 447,104 102,883 583,069
114,780 1,417,718 1,532,498
531 18,410 18,941
1,222 2,709 3931
116,002 1,418,249 21,119 1,555,370

149,084 2,505,339 124,002 2,778,425
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2020 12 31
1 2 3

(13,725) (13,725)
(9,540) (9,540)
(4,222) (230) (4,452)
(100) (100)
(4,222) (13,825) (9,770) (27,817)
(57,756) (57,756)
(4,357) (4,357)
(3,169) (3,169)
(65,282) (65,282)
(268,551) (73,118) (341,669)
(4,222) (347,658) (82,888) (434,768)
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2021 12 31

2020 1 1

2020 12 31

I

I
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2021
102,883 21,119 (9,770) (73,118)
32,827 1,792
(37,436) (19,277) 9,570 73,553
567 659 (14) (435)
(869)
98,841 3,424 (214)
/
783
2020
96,871 20,569 (6,681) (306,294)
62,943 6,875 (230)
(185,640) (1,155,477)
(57,086) (6,406) 183,361 1,395,128
155 108 (580) (6,475)
(27)
102,883 21,119 (9,770) (73,118)
/
)
899 (100)
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471.

47.1

12022 1 26

22022 3 30

24,335

32,221

2021 12 31
72,376

2021 12 31

47.2

2022 2 22

Tierl

2022 3 11

10)

2021 12 31

36)
37)

2021 12 31

2022
50
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12 31

2021 2020
2,320,907 2,436,779
198,745 413,567
96,504 87,357
531,065 634,055
21,978 61,937
832,216 812,797
16,377,896 14,489,992
320,106 396,298
6,337,768 5,651,053
1,337,218 1,439,296
51,523 41,544
1,073 210
119,862
140,675 139,588
142,180 132,489
127,195 143,978
28,837,049 27,000,802
747,101 737,048
1,636,419 1,413,174
233,468 344,907
15,646 23,365
19,337 65,254
30,456 104,440
21,906,047 20,371,534
1,461,094 1,326,408
388,958 427,892

26,438,526 24,814,022
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12 3
2021 2020
349,983 349,983
359,872 319,875
79,899 79,899
279,973 239,976
173,357 173,357
34,262 25,784
219,926 195,591
348,955 309,642
913,752 812,626
(L,584) (78)
2,398,523 2,186,780
28,837,049 27,000,802

2022 3 30
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50 « )
( )
2020 12 31 349983 319875 173357 25784 195501 309,642 812,626 (78) 2,186,780
243,354 243,354
8,478 (1,506) 6,972
8,478 243354  (1,506) 250,326
39,997 39,997
24,335 (24,335)
39313  (39,313)
(64,782) (64,782)
(13,798) (13,798)
2021 12 31 349983 350872 173357 34,262 219926 348955 013752  (1,584) 2,398523
( )
2019 12 31 349983 199,886 173357 29549 174551 275790 730,309 1,960 1,935385
210,401 210,401
(3,765) (2,038) (5,803)
(3,765) 210401  (2,038) 204,508
119,089 119,089
21,040 (21,040)
33852  (33852)
(63,662) (63,662)
(9,530) (9,530)

2020 12 31 349,983 319,875 173,357 25784 195591 309,642 812,626 (78) 2,186,780
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For thi year gmded 31 Decomber 2021
[Amounts in milbons of Benminbs, apless otheraie stated)]

Note Year ended 31 December

v 2021 2020
Interest incoma i 1,008,014 930,932
Interast expense 1 {430,027) [385,853)
Met interest ineame 1 SI¥T.987 545,079
Fee and commission income 2 98,721 91,166
Fee and commission expense 2 (18,392) [15,621)
MNet fee and commission income H 80,329 74,545
Mat trading gain 3 14,241 16,405
Met gainf{lass) on financial investments 4 15,035 [7.312)
Met gain on derccognition of financial astets measured at amortired cott 11 1
Other operating income 5 34,143 30,614
Operating income 721,746 659,332
Operating expenses B |260,275) [229,897)
Credit impairment losses ] {165, 886) [16&,699)
_Impairment losses on other assets (114) 204}
Operating profit 295,471 264,532
Share af results of associates and joint ventures ans 518
Profit before tax 205 8RO 265,050
Income tax expense q (53,944) [#8,650)
Prafit far the year 241,936 216,400
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 241,183 215,925
Non-contralling interests 753 AT5
241,936 216,400
Earnings per share attributabie 1o the ordinary equity holders
of the Bank jexpressed in RMB yuan per share]
— Basic and diluted 11 0.65 0.59

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

200 @rwsens

309/508



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive lncome

far thie year anded 31 Decermbar 2001
{Amownts in millions of Romminhi, ulees othorwioestaned|

Year 1 rmber
2021 2020
Predit for tho year 241,936 216,400
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
Fair value changes on other debt instrument investments at fair value
through other comprahensive incoma 8,504 {8,855)
Loss allowance on other debt instrument imvestments at fair value
through ather comprohensive incoma 3572 3,754
Income tax impact for fair value changes and koss allowance on
other debt instrument investments at fair value through other
comprehentive ineamie |2.865) 1,440
Farelgn currency translation differences {1,724} (2,591)
Subtotal 7,487 (6.252)
Items that will not be reclassified subsegquently to profit or lass:
Fair value changes an other equity investments designated at fair value
through ather comprehenshiee income {282} [114)
Incame tax impact for fair value changes on other equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income 115 23
Subtotal {167} [B5)
Other comprehensive incame, net of tax 7,320 {56,337)
Total comprehensive income for the year 249,156 210,063
Total comprehenshve income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 248,399 209,637
Mon-cantralling interests as7 426
245,256 210,063

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statomants.

femual Neport 3021 201
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as ag 31 Gecaenber 2021
[Amounts in milbpns of Benminbs, apless otheraie stated]

Mote _ As at 31 December
v 2021 2020
Cash and balances with central banks 12 2,321,406 2,437,275
Deposits with banks and other financial institutsans 13 218,500 434,185
Precious metals 96,504 87,157
Placemenis with and loans to banks and other financial institutions 14 446,944 546,948
Derivative financial assets 15 21,978 61,937
Financial assets hold undor resale agreemants 16 837,637 816,206
Loans and advancas to customaens 17 16,454,503 14,552,433
Financial inwestments 18
Financial assets at fair value through profit or boss AGH, 241 583,069
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 6,372,522 5,684,220
Other debt instrument and other equity imestments
at fair value through other comprehensive iIncome 1,397,280 1,555,370
Investment in asociabes and joant ventures a0 8,297 8,865
Property and equipmient 21 153,299 151,154
Goodhwill 1,381 1,381
Deferred tax assets 22 143,027 133,355
Other assets 23 135,636 151,292
Total assets 29,069,155 27,205,047
Limbilities
Barrowings from central banks 24 747,213 737,161
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions i 1,622,366 1,394,516
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 26 291,105 390,660
Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or boss 27 15,860 27,817
Darivative financial llabilities 15 19,337 65,282
Financial assets sobd under repurchase agresments 28 36,033 109,195
Due 1o customers 9 21,907,127 20,372,901
Debt securities ssued 30 1,507,657 1,371,845
Deferred tax liabdities 22 655 334
Dther labdities 31 500,443 524,590
Total liabilities 26,647,796 24,994,301

202 resenn
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

a3 a1 3 Decenber 2021
{Ampenty in millians af Reraminbl, usless otherwte stated)

Note _ As at 31Decernber

n 2021 2020
Equity i )

Ordinary shares 3z 349,983 349,983
Other equity instruments 33 359,872 319,875
Preference shares 75,899 79,899
Perpetual bonds 279,973 239,976
Capital reserve 34 173,556 173,556
Investment revaluation resene a5 34,927 25,887
surplus reserve E1] 220,792 196,071
General reseree a7 351,616 311,449
Retained earnings 525,955 828,240

__ Forclgn currency translation reserva (2,096) (372}
Equity attribatahle to equity holders of the Bank 2414605 2,206, TEG
MWon-contralling interasts 6,754 5,957
Total equity 2,421,359 2,210,746
Total equity and llabilities 19,069,155 27,205,047

Approved and autharized for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022,

Chalrman Vice Chairman

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 Decombe 2028
[Armounts i milligns of Renminbs, anless otheradse stated]
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated S5tatement of Cash Flows

For the year ented 31 Decembaer 2021
{Amownts in millions of Rosmishi, wnless othorwiestaned)

Note Year ended 31 December

v 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit betare tax 295,880 265,050
Adjustments far;
Amartization of intangible sssets and other assets 1,322 1,147
Depreciation of property, equipment and right-ol use assets 17,475 17,404
Credit impairment losses 165,886 164,699
Irmpairment lasies on other assets 114 204
Interest income anising from investment securites (252,804) [238,995)
Inerest expense on debl securities Bsued 39,188 35,746
Revaluation loss/(gain) on financial instruments at fair value
thraugh profit or loss 4,019 {2,968)
Met gain on investment Securities {1,285) {730}
Share of result of associates and |oint ventures (a09) {518)
Met gain on disposal of property, equipment and ather assets {321} {1,003)
Met forelgn exchange loss 16,877 26,972
I1B6,342 267988

Net change in operating assets and operating labilities:
Net decrease/(inereasi) in balances with eanteal banks, deposits with banks and

other financial institutions 313,337 {330,552|
Nat (increase]fdecrease in placermonts with and loans o banks and
ather financial institutions |a,.992) .30
Net decreasef{increase] in finandal assets held under resale agreements A8.919 {49,415)
Met increase in loans and advances to customers [2.026,482) {1.832,315)
Met increase in borrowings from central banks 10,483 128,514
Mot (decrease fincrease in placements fram banks and
other financial institutions 199.232) 65,941
Met increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and
ather fimancial institutions 1,712,770 1,375,364
Decrease in other operating assets 173,587 94,744
[Decrpase|fincrease in other operating Habilities [116,370) 253,209
Cash frem operations 298,362 2,859
Income tax pakd {58,747) (63,795)
MNET CASH FROM/[USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 239,615 {60,936)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decermbses 2021
[Amaunts in millicns of Renminkd, anless ctheraiis stabed]

MNote Year ended 31 December
w 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash recelved from disposal/redemption of investment securities 1,619,583 1,987,347
Cash received from investment income 247,470 228,563
Cash recelved from disposal of investment in assodates and jaint ventlures 2,793 -
Cash recelved from disposal of property, equipment and other assets 5,790 8,350
Cash paid for purchase of investment securitics (2,178,694) (2.,6659,040)
Ingrease i imvestmant in associatas and joint ventures [2,148) (1,676}
Cash paid for purchase of property, equipment and other assots (26,033) [22,844)
MET CASH USED IN INVESTING ALCTIVITIES 1'33 1,?_1-]'} E-iE!,.Zﬁﬂf
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Cantribution from isswes of other equity instrumants 40,000 120,000
Cash payments far transaction cost of other equity instruments issued (E] 111}
Cash received from debt securities ssued 1,635,127 1,731,396
Repayments of debt securities issued (1,497,003} {1,468,391)
Cash payments for interest on debt securities issued (a0,429) [35,050)
Cazh payments for transaction cost of debt securities issued l!!} 15’
Cash payments for principal portion and interest portion of lease liability [5.010) [4,968)
Capital contribution from non-contralling intorests a7 25
Dividends paid [78,677) [73,192)
MET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 54,003 269,803
MET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (27.619) (260,393
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 1 JANLIARY 1,175,153 1,454,581
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHAMNGES ON CASH AND
__CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,772 113,035)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A5 AT 31 DECEMBER EL 1,124,762 1,175,153
MET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:
Interest received T1T. 022 B55.726
Interest paid (342,465) (315,177}

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For ghae yeasr ended 31 Decambser 203 )
{Amounts in millions of Rerminbi, wiless atherwise ssated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™} is the successor entity to the Agricultural Bank of China
{the “Predecessor Entity”) which was a wholly state-owned commercial bank approved for setup by the People’s
Bank of China (the "PROCT) and founded on 23 February 1979 in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRCT)
On 15 January 200%, the Bank was established after the completion of the financial restructuring of the
Predecessar Entity, The Bank’s establishmeant was authorized by the PROC. The Bank was listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 2010 and 16 July 2010, respectively,

The Bank operates under financial services certificate Mo, BOOOZH111000001 issued by the China Banking
and Insurance Aegulatory Commission (the “CBIRC™), and business license No, 911100001000054748 issued
by Beijing Administration of Industry and Commaerce. The registered office of the Bank is located at No, &9
Jimpuomen Mei Avenue, Dongeheng District, Beijing, the PRC.

Thir principal activities of the Bank and s subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group™) include Renminbi ["RMBET) and
foreign currency deposits, loans, clearing and settlement services, aisels custodian  services, fund management,
finandial leasing services, insurance sefvices and other services as approved by rolovant regulators, and the
pravision of refated services by its overseas ostablishments as approved by the respective local regulators.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and it subsidiries operating in the Chiness mainland are
referred to as the “Domestic Operations”. Branches and subsidiaries registered and operating outside of  the
Chinese mainland are referred te as the “Overseas Operations®,
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation
Statement of complionce
The conselidated financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with Internatkional Financial
Reporting Stamdards (“IFRSS"), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ([“IASBT)
In addition, the consolidaved financial staterments |nclude applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companied Ordinance Tor this linancial year and the comparative period.
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cemain

financial instruments which are measured at fair value, as explained in the sccounting policies set out below,

Historical eost is generally based on the fair value of condideration given in exchange for assets and that is
received (o In some circumstances the amount expected to be paid] with respect o liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certaln  critical
accounting estimates. It also reguires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the

Group's accounting policles. The areas invalving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated finoncial statements are disclosed in Note 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yeas ended 31 Decermber 2021
[Amounts im millices of Renminks, unless of e raier stated]

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
i  Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Other amendments to the standards effective in 2021 relevant to and adopted by the
Group

The Group has adopted the following International Financial Reporting Standards [“IFRSs"] and
amendments issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ["IASB*}, that are mandatorily
effective far the current reparting period.

Mated
{1]  Amendments io IFRS 9, |AS 38, Interast Rate Benchmark Reform — ]
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 PFhase 2
{2] Amendment to lFAS 16 Cowid-19-Related Rent Concessions [ii]

1)  Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 30, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 1 6: Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2.

The 1ASE has issued amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 that address
Issues that arise during the reformm of an interest rate benchmark, including the replacement of
one benchmark with an alternative ane.

The Phase 2 amendments provide additional temporary reliefs from applying specific 1A5 39
and IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements to hedging relationships directly affected by 1BOR
reformn, inclueding: 1. For instruments to which the amortised cost measurement applies, the
amendments require entitles, as a practical expediant, to account for a change in the hask for
detarmining the contractual cash flows as a result of 1BOR reform by updating the effective
Interest rate using the guidance in paragraph B5.4.5 of IFRS 9. As a result. no immediate gain
or boss is recognided. 2. Require an enlity to prospectively cease to apply the Phase 1 reliefs to
a non contractually specified risk component at the earlier of when changes are made to the
non contractually specified risk component, or when the hedging relatbonship Is discontinued.

3. Additlonal temparary exceptions rom applying specific hedge accounting requirement.

4. Additonal IFRS 7 disclosure requirements related to 1BOR reform. The adoption of the
amendments does not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group,

(i}  Amendment to IFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
On 31 March 2021, the 1A5B issued amendments to IFRS 16: to provide a one-year extension to
one of the aligibility criteria for the use of the practical expedient (the "PE*). As & result, rent
concessions that reduce only lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 3022 would

become eligible [compared to 30 June 2021 as in PE 2020), The adoption of the amendments
does not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031

{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1  Basis of preparation {Continued)

1.2 Stendards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates in 2021

The Group has not adepted the following new or amended standards and interpretations Bssved by
thiz IASE and the International Financial Reporting  Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC®), that have

been issued but are not yet effective.

Edfective for

annial periods
beginning onor after  Motes

[
(2}
(31
4]
(s}

(&}
(7

(&}
(9

AmendmentstolFRS 1
Amendmentsta A5 37
Amendmentsto A 16
Amendments to IFR51,

IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1AG 41
Amendmentstolas 1
AmendmentstoiFRS 1T
Asenchmeents 1o 1AS 1 and IFRS

Practice Statement 2
AmendmentstolAS

Amendments to lAS 12

[ 18] Armenciménts faIFRS 10

and [AS 28

Referemeetothe Conceptual
Frimewoik

Oneéfous Cantracts — Costol
Fulfilling a Contract

Praperty, Plant and Equipment —
Protesds before | ntended Use

LASE Annual Improverents
2018-2020 eyele

Clrssifiestion af Liabiiies as Current
of Non-cufrent

Imsurance Contracs

Distlinre of Accounting Palicies

Definition of Azcounting
Estimates

Deferned Tax related tofssers
and Liabilities arising froma
Single Transaction

Saleor Contributaon of Asset
between an bavestorand its

Axsgoaty arloint Vonfurg

1 tanuary 2022 il
1 Asnuary 2022 iy
1 kanaiary 2022 |ids}
1anwary 2022 [
1 lanuary H23 1]

Lsnuarg 2023 |
sy 2023 |vi)

1lsnuary 3023 [uiii]

1lanuary 2023 (i)

The effective date has naw 4]

been delerred

{i)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The IASE issued omendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework. The
amendments have updated IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’, to refer to the 2018 Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting, in order to determing wihat constitules an asset or a liability
in a business combination. In addition, the Board added a new exception in IFRS 3 for liabilities
and contingent liabilities. The Board hai abo darified that the acquirer should not recognise
contingent assets, as defined in 1AS 37, at the acquisition date. The Group anticipates that the
adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consalidated

linancial statements,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeas ended 31 Decermber 2021
[Arnounts im millices of Renminks, anless of e radiss siated |

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
i  Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are nat yet effective and have
nat been odopted before their effective dotes in 2021 (Continued)

(i} Amendments to [AS 37: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling @ Centract

The A58 istued amendments to 145 37: Cest of Fulllling & Contract. The amendments clarify
the meaning of “costs to (ullil a contract’, they explain that the direct cost af fulfilling & contract
compeises: the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and; an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to lulrllﬁn,g conlracts. The amendments alio clarify that, before a separate
provision for an onerous contract is established, an ontity recognises ary impairment loss that
has oocurred on asiets used in 'f1.||li1llng the contract, rather than on assets dedicated to that
contract. The amendments could result in the recognition of more onerous contract provisions,
because previously some entities only included incremental costs in the costs to Tulfil a contract.
The Group anticipates that the adoption af the amendments will not have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

{1ii) Amendments to IAS 16: Property. Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

The 1ASE issued amendments to IAS 16; Proceeds before Intended Use. The amendments
prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an iem of property, plant and equipment
any procecds received from selling iterns produced while the entity s preparing the asset for
Its intended use. The amendment alse clarifies that an enlity 15 “testing whether the aseet ic
functioning properly’ when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The
financial performance of the asset B not relevant 1o this assessment. An asset might therefore
be capable of oporating as intended by management and subject to deprecistion before it hos
athlieved the level of eperating perfarmance expacted by management. The amendment requires
entities to separately disclose the amounts of proceeds and costs relating (o items produced
that are not an output of the entity's ordinary activities, An entity should also disclose the line
item in the statement of comprehensive income where the proceeds are intluded. The Group
anticipates that the adeption of the amendments will mot have a significant impact on  the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(v} Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFR5 16 and I1AS 41 [ASE Annual Improvements 201 8-2020
cycle

The LASB issued amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1AS 41: Annual improvemants 2018-
2020 cycle, which include optional relief fer the measurement of cumulative translation
differences to those first-time adopters, darifying fees induded when assessing the
derecognition of fimancial liabiity, the amendment to illustrative example accompanying HEFRS 16,
‘Leases’, and the removement of the requirement o exclude toxation cash flows when
measuring falr vakse. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendmants will not have a
significant impact on the Group's consclidated financial statements.

{vl  Anterndmients to [AS 1 Classification of Ligbilities ag Current or Nen-cuvrent
The FASE issued a narrow-scope amendment to 1AS 1 to clarify that liabilities are classified

as either current or non-current, depending on the rghts that exist at the end of the
regorting period.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021
[Arnoants im il lioes of Renminbs, unieas of b radss stated]

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1  Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Stendords and amendments relevant te the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2021 (Continued)

Wl Amendments to 1AS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Corrent or Non-current [Continued)

The amendment changes the guidance for the classification of liabilities a5 eurrent ar non-current.
It could affect the classification of labilities, particularly for entities that previously considered
management’s intentions 1o determine classification and for some liabilities that can be converted
inla equity. Al entities should reconsider their existing classification in the Bght al the amendment
and determine whether army changes arg required. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the
amendments will have no impact an the Group's consalidated financial statements.

(wii Amendments to IFRS 17; insurance Contracts

IFAS 17 was ssued In May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. IFRS 17 s lssued
to resolve the comparison probdems created by IFRS 4 by setting out a single principle-based
standand for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts in
the financial staterments of the issuers of those contracts.

The IASE issued the amendments to IFRS 17: Insurance contracts on 25 Jume 2020, together
with an amendment ta IFRS 4, so that eligible insurers can still apply IFRS 9 alongside IFRS 17.
This concluded the IASE's targeted amendments to IFAS 17 which aimed to ease implamentation
of the standard by reducing implementation costs and making i1 easier for entities 1o explain,
to investors and others, the results from applysng IFRS 17. IFRS 17 should be applied to annual
reporting periods beginning on of after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and
the amendments should be applied at the same time.

The Group has not completed its assessment of the impact on the Group's consolidated finandal
statements of adopting IFRS 17.

{wil) Amendments to IAS | and IFRS Practice Staterrent 2: Disclosure of Accounting Pelicies

The IASE issued the amendments to IAS I and IFRS Practice Statement 2@ Disclosure  of
Accounting Policies. The amendments include: An entity will be required to disclose its material
gccounting poficy information instead of its significant accounting policies; Additional guldance
has been provided om how an entity can Identify material accounting policy Information;
and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements has been amended by adding
guldance and examples to explain and llustrate the application of the “four-step materiality process”
1o accounting policy information. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will
not have o significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(will) Amendments ta IAS 8. Definition of Accounting Estimates

The 1458 issued the amendments to 1AS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates. The amendment
defined the “Accounting estimates” are now as “monetary amounts in finandal statements that
are subject o measurement uncertainty”. Entitles develop accounting estimates if accounting
policies require items in financial stataments to be measured in a way that imvohees measurameant
uncertainty. The definition of “a change In accounting estimate™ s removed, The amendment
also clarifies that the effects of a change in an input or a measurement technigue used to
develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates unless they result from the
correction of prior period errors, The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments
will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

212 mli_ﬂi.-ilh

320/508



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decermber 2031
|Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wips othensise dated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued}

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before thelr effective dotes in 2021 (Continued)

{ix} Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Thie LASE iwued targeted amendments to 1AS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction, The amendments specified how companies should account Tor
deferred 1ax on ransactions such a4 leases and decommissioning abligations. The amendmeants
narmow the scope of the initial recognition cxemption o that it does not apply to transactions
that give rise to equal and affsetting temporary differences. As a resull, companies will need to
recognise & delerred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differsnces arising on
Initial recegnition of a lease and a decommissioning provision, The Group anticipates that the
adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impaet an the Group's consolidated
financial statements,

(x) Amendments to IFRS 10 ond IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor
and its Associale or joimt Venlure

The amendments address an inconsistency between IFRS 10 and LAS 28 in the sale and
contribution of asiets between an investor and its associate of joint venture.

A Tl gain or koss is recognised when a transaction invalves a business. A partial gain or boss s
recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constilute a business, even if those
assets are in o subsidlary.

The Group antickpates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

2 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial staterments of the Bank and its subsidiaries
as well as structured entithes controdled by the Group, The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its Invalvement with the entity and has the ability to

affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the date of acquisition or up to the date on which contrel ceases, respectively.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, where appropriate, to consistently reflect
the accounting policles of the Group.

‘When merging. all intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gaims on transactions are eliminated
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset.

Non-controlling Interests of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the controlling party's
equity therain,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation (Continued})
Basis of consolldation [Continued)

The carrying amount af non-controfling interests 5 the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Further, total comprehensive income
af o subsidiary is attributed, based on the proportion of their respective holdings, to the equity holders of
the Bank znd to the non-contrelling interests, even If this results in the ron-contralling interests having a
deficit balance,

In the Bank's staterment of financial posithon, M8 investmentds in subsidiaries are stabed ot cost, Bess
impalrment losses, ifany.

Business combinations

Acquisitions af businesses are accounted for wsing the acquisition method, The consideration tramiferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is caleulated as the sum of the acquisition date
fair value of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred or asiumed by the Group, and any
equity mierests ssued by the Group. Acquisition related costs are recognized in the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

Al the sequisition date, wrespective of non-controlling interests, the identifiable  assels  sequired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values; escept that deferred tax
assets or lobilities, and assets or Babilities related 1o employes benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in acoordance with [AS 12 — Income Taxes and 1AS 19 — Employee Benefits, respectively.

Non-cantralling interests that represent ownership interests in the acguires, and entitbe their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liguidation are accounted for at either fair
value or the non-contralling interests’ proportionate share in the recogrized amounts of the acouiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basks is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis,

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition less the falr value of the Group's share of
the net Mentifiable assets of acquired subsidiaries and associates at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
aogulsitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the consalidated staterment of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing. goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU”) or groups of CGUs that is expecbed to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independem
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated Is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there Is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU, which s the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use, is less than lis carrying amount, the deficit, reflecting
an impalrment loss, s allocated first te reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU
and then to the other assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the CGLL Any goodwill impairment loss is recognized directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impalment loss recognized for goodwill Is not reversed in subsequent perkods.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation {Continued]
Investment in associate and joint veature

An agsociate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest In a joint venture. A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
contractually agree to share controd of the arrangement through a separate entity, and have rights Lo the
net assets of the arrangement based on legal form, contract terms, and other facts and circumstances.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
imvestes but does not constivute contred of joint control over those policy decisions, Joint controd is
the contractually agreed sharing al contral aver &n activity, and exiits only when the decisions rélating fo
the activity require the unanimous consent of the Group and other parties $harln5 the contral,

The post-acquisition profit or loss of an associate or & joint venture s incorporated in the consalidated
financial statements using the eguity methed of accounting. Under the equity methed, investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognized a1 cost and adjusted theresfier to recogrize the Group's
share of the profit or boss and other comprehensive income of the associate or jolnt venture, When the
Group's share of loss of an associate or a joint venlure equals or exceeds its interest in that associate or
joint wenture [which includes any long-term intercsts that, in substance, farm part of the Group's net
imeestment in the assoclate or jeint venture], the Group discontinues recognizing s share of further loss.
Additional loss is recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations.
or made payments on behall of that asseciate or joint venture,

At the end of each reperting period, the Group considers whether there are arcumstances that indicate
the possibility of Impairment of the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture; when that is
the case, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with 1A5
36 — Impairment of Assets, s o single asset by comparing s recoverable amount (the higher of fair value
fess costs to sell and valve in use) with its carrying amount, any Impairment loss recognized forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Ary reversal of an impairmeant loss is recognized in accordance with
1AS 36, 1o the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

‘When an antity in the Group transacts with the Group's assoclate or joint venture, profits and losses
resulting from the transaction are recognized In the Group®s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of the interest In the associate or joint wenture that are not related to the Group. Unrealized losses
are ellminated unless the wransaction provides evidence of an impalrment of the asset transferred.

3  Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses of financial instruments are calculated using the effective interest method
and included in the current profit and boss,

The Group uses the effective interest method to calowlate the nterest income and espenses of financial
assets and fabilities measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
presented as “interest imcome” and “interest expenses” respectively. For specific accounting policies, please
refer to the Note 11 8.4 subsequent measurement of financial instruments.

4  Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income s recogniced when the Group fulfills its performance obligation, either over
time or at a podnt in time when a customer obtains control of the service,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4  Fee and commission income |{Continued)

For the performance obligations satisfied at a point in time, the Group recognizes revenue when contral
it passed to the customer at a certain point in time, including insurance agency fee, merchant acquiring
sevice fee, settlement & clearing services and bond underwriting fee, etc. For the performance obligations
satisfied ower time, the Group recognizes revenue according to the progress toward satisfaction of the
obligation aver the time, including consultancy and advisary fee and custodial fee, otc.

5% Foreign currency translation

The functional CUmrency ol the Domestic Opeérations is RMB. The presentation currency ol the Group and
the Bank is RMB,

In preparing the linancial statements of each individual Group entity, tramsactions n currencies other
than the functional currency of thar entity {foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economit enviranment in which the entity operates] at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dotes of the transactions, At the end of the reporting period, menetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-moanetary iterns
carried at fair value that ane denominated in foreign currencies are metranslated ab the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair valug was determined, Non-monetary items that are messured at historical cost in 8
foreign currency ane nol retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary iterms,
are recognized in the conselidated ncome statemant in the period in which they arse, sxeept lor the
following:

]  exchange differences arising on 0 monetary item that forms part of the Bank's net investment in the
Overseas Operations;

(il changes in the falr value of monetary assets denominated in forelgn currency classifled as financial
investments at falr value through other comprehensive income are analyred between translation
differences resulting from changes In the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes in
the carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the amortized cost are recognized
in the consolidated income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in
other compsehensive income.

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carrled at fakr value are included
in the consolidated income statement for the period ewcept for escharge differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and bosses are recognized directly in other
comprehensive Income, in which cases, the exchange differences are aiso recognized directly in other
comprehensive income,

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated finamcial statements. the assets and liabdities of the
Group's Overseas Operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting pericd, and their income and expenses are translated at
exchange rates at the date of the transactions, or a rate that approximates the exchange rates of the date
of the transaction, Emchange differcnces arising, o any, are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated In equity under the forelgn currency translation reserve and non-contrelling interests, as
appropriate. The accumulated foreign currency transtation reserve refated to the Owverseas Operations will
be reclassified from equity to the consolidated Income statement on disposal of all or part of the Overseas
Operations.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
& Taxation
Income tan comprised current and deferred income tax,
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the coniolidated income dlatement betause it exclodes items of income or expense that ase
taxable or dedectibile in other years and lems that are never tasable or deductible, The Group's Eability far
current tax is cabculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enscted by the end of the
repotting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consalidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bade used in the camputation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax Habilities are generally recognized foe all takable temporary differences, Deferred tax
assets are geperally recegnired for all deductible temporary differences te the extent that it is prabable
that taxable profits will be available against which thode deductible temparary differences ean be utilized.
Deferred 1ax assets and Habllities are not recognized for temporary difference related 1o goodwill or the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in & transaction that
affects neither taxable profit ner accounting prafit.

Deferred tax liabllities are recognized for taxable temporary differences assocated with  investments  in
subsidiaries assoclates and jolnt ventures, ewcept where the Group is able to control the timing of reversal
of the temporary difference and it 18 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
forcsceable future. Deferred tax assels arising fram deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it 5 probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to wtilize the benefils of the temporary  differences and they are expecied to
reverse in the foresesable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax asseis b reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future or it s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that sre expected to apply n the period In
which the lability Is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rate {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilitles and assets reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, a1 the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carming
amount of its assets and habilities. Current amnd deferred tax is recognized in the consolidated income
statermnent. except when it relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respecthely.

Deferred tax assets and llabidlities are offset when there s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities, when they relate to income taxes kevied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and Babilities on a net basis.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
6 Taxation (Continued)
Value-added Taxes [“WATY)

The Group mainly provides Tinanciad services such as loan services, direct-charge Tinancial senvices, insurance
services and transfer of financial commodities, which are subject to the VAT rate of 826, For other services, VAT
is calculated and paid in accordance with the tax rotes stipulated in the tax low.

Pursuant to the "Circular of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on Further
Clarification of Relevant Podicics Applicable to the Financial Sector in the Comprehensive Implementation
al the VAT Pilat Programs” (Cai Shus [ZU-'I.E] No. 46}, the Bank elected to adopt a :fmp'llﬁed miethodology
to calculate WAT at 3% on interest income derived from loans granted to farming households, rural
enterprises. and ather rural institutions by vounty-level sub-branches included in the Bank™s pilat programs
af the County Area Banking Division, including those under the Bank's provincial branches in provinces,
autonomous regions, monicipalities directly under the central Eovernment and  municipalities with
independent budgetany status as well as those under the Xinjiang Production and Censtruction Carps Branch,

In accordance with the Minkstry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxathen's “Circular regarding
the Value-added Taxes Palicies for Financial, Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other
Services™ [Cal Shul [2016] Mo. 140), the “Supplementary Circular regarding |ssues concerning Value-added
Taxes Palicies for Assel Management Products® (Cai Shui [2017] No. 2) and the "Circular on the Relevant
lssues eancerning Value-added Taw Levied on Asset Management Preducts” [Cal Shul [2017] Na. 58], the
Group shall pay VAT at 3% for taxable asset management activities undertaken after 1 lanuary 2018.

7 Employee benefits

Employes benefits are all forms of consideration given and ather relevant exgenditure incurred by the Group
in exchange for services rendered by employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These
benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benafits and early retirement benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employes benefits include salaries, bonuses, allowance and subsidies, staff welfare, medical
insurance, employment inpury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor unkon fees and
staff education expenses. In the reporting peried in which an employee has rendered services, the Group
recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those services as a labllity with a corresponding
increase in the expenses in the consolidated Income statement or capitalization as cost of related assets.

Post-employment benefits

The Groups post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for basic pensions and wnemployment
insurance related to government mandated social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme established,
Al these post-employment benefits are defined contribution plans, under which, the Group makes fixed
contributhons into @ separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to make further
contributicns if the fund does not hold sufficlent assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee
services n the current and prior periods,

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are recognized in the consolidated
income statement for the period or capitalization as cost of related assets in which the related payment
obligation s Incurred,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7 Employee benefits (Cantinued)

Past-employment benefits (Continwed)

The employees of the Bank's head office and domestic branches ("Domestic Institutiens”] paricipate in
an annuity scheme established by the Bank (the "Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions
with reference to employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in the consalidoted income
statement or capitalized as eost of related asdets when incurred. The Bank has no further ebligation if the
Annuity Scheme does not have sufficient assets for the payment af any retirement benelits to employees
funded by the Anruity Scheme.

Early retirement benefits
Early retirement benefits have bean paid to those employees who accept voluntary retirement before the
normal retirement date, as approved by management. The related benefit payments are made from the
date of early retirement to the normal retirement date.
The sccounting treatment of the Group's early retirement benefits s in sccordance  with  termination
benefits as determined in LAS 19, The Hability is recognized for the early retirement benefit payments fram
thie date of early retirement to the normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition as termination
benefit is mel with a corresponding charge in the consolidated income statement. Differences arising
from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the labilities are recognized in the
conselidated income statement when incurred.

8  Financial instruments
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of financial Instruments

Financal assets or financial liabbities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to  the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

For purchases or sales of financial assets In a regulor way, the related assets and llabilities  are
recognized or sold assets are derecognized at the tade date, along with the recognition of gains or
losses on disposal and the receivabdes due from the buyer. The trade date is the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the financial asset.

At initial recognition, the Group messwres a financial asset or financial Nabilty st its fair value,
Transaction costs of financlal assets and financial labilities carrled at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed In profit or loss. For other classes of financial assets or financial liabilities. the relevant
transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amownt.

(1} Financial assels

Financial assets are classified in the following measurement categones based on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets:

1 Amortized cost{"ACT);
[4}  Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FYOC7); or

(i)  Fair value through profit or loss {*FVPL"L

218 reeann

327/508



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B.1 Initial recognition, elassification and measurement of financial instruments [Continued)

(1} Financial assets (Continued)

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash flows,
That is, whether the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash lows fram  the
asuets or i to collect both the contracteal cash flows and cash (lows arlsing from the sale af
assets, If neither of these is applicoble (e-g. financial asse1s are heid for irading purposes),  then
the financial adsels ane classified as part of “ather® butiness model snd messered at FWPL
Factors considered by the Group in determining the business model for a group of assets include
pait experience on how the cazh flows: for theto assets were collectod, how the assot’s
perfarmance I8 evaluated and reported to key management personne], how risks are assested
and managed and how managers are compensated,

Where the busines: model s to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cath
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI"). In making the assessment,
the Group considess whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement e, interest includes consideration for the time wvalue of money, credit sk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time, other basic
lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. The Group
alsn assesses whether the financinl assel contding a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition,

Financial assels with embedded derivatives are considered n thelr  entirety when  determining
whether their cash flows are SPPIL

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments in the Group are
described as below:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a finandal liability from
the issuer's perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds., Classification and
measurement of debt instruments depend on the Growp's business models for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the debt instruments of the Group are classified into three categories
bebonw:

[l  AC: Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets to collect contractual cash flows; and contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, and that are not designated as at FVPL, are measured at amortized cost.

[ii}  FVOLE: Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash fiows and sefiing financial assets; and contractual terms give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, and that are not designated as at FYPL, are measured at FYOCL,

(W) FvPL: Al financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOD as described
above are measured at Fyi'L
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments [Continued]
8.1 Initisl recoagnition, classification and mesivrement af financlal lnstruments (Continued)
{1} Financial assets {Continued)
Debit Instruments (Continued)

This Groug may also irrevocably designate financial assets at FYPL if doing 2o significantly reduces
or eliminates a mismarch created by assets and liabilivies being measured on different bases.

Equity inslruments

Equity nstruments are mslroments that meet the delinition of equity from the [Sswer's
perspective referring to Mote |l B9, examples of equity Instruments include basic endinary shares.
The Group subsequently mesiures all equity investments at FWPL,  except for  the  eguity
Imvestmaent not held for trading where the Group's management has elected, at initlal recognition, 1o
irrevocably designate an equity investment at FYOCL

{2  Financial lighilities

The Group®s financial liabilities are classified into financiol liabilities at PYPL and other financial
liabdlities carmed at amortized cost on Initial recognition. Financia llablkties at FYPL s applied to
derivatives, financial liabikties held for trading and financial liabdities designated as such at initial
recognition,

The Group may, at initinl recognition, irrevacably designate a finanmcial Fability as measured at
fair value through profit or loss when doing so results in more relevant information, because
either:

[ &t eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition Inconsistency  that
would otherwise arise; or

(W] agroup of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial labilities s managed and
Its performance s evaluated on a falr value bask, In accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group |s provided
internally on that basis to the entity's key management personnel,

Once the designation is made, it shall not be revoked.

Financial flabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not gualify for
derecognition, if the enterprise retains substantially all the risks and rewards of the cwnership of
the transferred financial asset and does not qualified for derecognition, the Group shall continue
to recognize the transferred financial asset in its entirety and recognize a financial liabitity for the
consideration recelved. In applying the continued Involverment approach of accounting, please
refer to the Note Il 8.7 Darecognition of financial assets for the measurement of the transferred
liabdlity.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B.2 Reclassification of financlal assets

When the Group changes the business model for managing its financial assets, it shall reclassity all
affected financial assets, and apply the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date, The
Group does not restate any previously recognized gaing, losses lincluding impairment gaing or losses)
orf interest. Reclawification date is the first day of the firit reporting period following the change in
business model that results in the Group reclassitying finaneial assets,

8.3 Determination af fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a labilty in an
orderly tramsaction between market participanis ot the measurement date. For linancial instruments
traded in active markets the determination of fair values of financial assets and financiad liabdlities
is based on gquoted market prices, Active market is a place in which transactions for the asiet or
lisbility take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. n an active market, the quoted prices of relevant assets or liabilities should be readily and
regularly available from exchanges, dealers, brokers, industry groups, pricing institutions ar regulatory
institutions by the enterprise. The current market may not be acthive when there s 2 significant
decline in the volume of transaction or level af activity, price quotations vary substantiglly either aver
time or among market-makers and current prices are not avallable, For  financial instruments not
wraded in active markets, fair value is determined wing appropriate valuation technigues. Valuation
technigues inelude the wse of recent transaction prices, Tair walue of other linancial instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and others commaonly
used by markel participants, When measuring the asset or liability at fair value, the Group shall
use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the chrcumstances and for which sufficient data
and ether information are available to measure fair value, select inputs that are consistent with the
characteristics of the aaet or lability that market participants would take into account in a trnsaction
for the asset or lability. These valuation vechnigues indude the use of etservable and/for unobservable
inputs, and observable inputs are preferred,

&4 Subsequent measurement of fimancial instruments
Subsaquent measurement of financlal instruments depends on the categories:
{1} Amaortized cost
The amartized cost |5 the amount at which the financial asset or fmancial liability is measured
at Initial recognition: (I) minus the principal repayments; (If) plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the matwrity ameunt; (ili] for financial assets, adjusted for any  loss allowance. Interest

Income and interest expanses from these financial assets and liabilities are included in “Intarest
income” and “Interest expenses” using the effective interest rate method,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Finandial instruments [Continued}
8.4 Subseqguent measurement of financlal instruments (Continued)

(1} Amartized cost {Continued)

The effective interest rate 1o the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cath payments
oF receipts thraough the expected life of the fGrancial asset or finoncial liabilty to the grods
carrying amount of a financial asset {ie. its amortized cost belore any Impairment allowance)
or 1o the amortized cost of o financial liability, The calculation does nol consider expected
credit losses ("ECL”) and includes transaction costs, premiums of digcounts and fees and paints
paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate. For purchased or originated credit.
impaied [“POCI] financdal assets, the Group caleutates the creditadjusted effective  intorost rate,
which is caleulated based on the amortited cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in estimated future cash fows.

Interest income 4 caleulated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of fimancial assets and is included in “Interest income”, except for:

[ POCI financial assets, whose interest income is calculated, since initisl recognition, by
applying the eredn-adjusted effective interest rate to their amaortized cost; and

[@] financial assets Uhat are not POCT bul have subsequently become credit-impaited, whose
imterest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost
{i.e_net af the expected eredit loss pravision). If, in a subtequent period, the financial assets
improve their qualities o that they are no lenger credit-impaired and the improvement In
credit guality is related objectively to 8 certain event accurring alter the application of the
above-mentioned rules, then the interest income B caleulated by apblying the effective
interest rate 1o their gross carrying amount.

(2)  Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instraments

Mavements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
Instrument’s amortized cost which are recognized In profit or loss. When the financial asset ks
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI Is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included In "nterest income®
using the effective interest rate method.

Equity mstraments
The equity Instrument nvestments that are not held for trading are designated as FYOCl, Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in profit  or loss s
Investment Incoma when the Growp's right o receive paymaents is established, Other  net gains or
losses are recognised In other comprehensive income, On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to retained eamings.

(3} Financial assets at foir value through profit or loss

The financial asset is measured at fair value and net gains or losses are recognized In profit or loss,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments [Continued)
B4 Subsequent meosurement of flnanelal instruments (Continued)
(d}  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FYPL are measured at fair value with all gaing or losses recognized in the
prafit or loss of the current period, except for financial liabilities designated as ot fair  value
through prafit or loss, where gains or losses an the linancial liabdities are treated as (ollows:

i changes in Fair value of swch financial labilities due to changes in the Growp's own credit
risk are recognized in other comprehensive income; and

il other changes in fair value of such linancial labilities are recognized in profit or loss af
the current period. If the accounting af changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities
in accordance with (i) will ereate or enlarge accounting mismatehes in profit or loss, the
Group recognizes all gains or losses on such financial habilities {including amounts arising
from changes in its own credit risk) in the profit or loss,

When the labilities designated as at falr value through profit o loss is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or lods previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
egquity to retained carnings.

8.5 Impairment of finarcial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with its debt instrument assets
carried at armortized east and FWOC! and exposures arising from same loan commitments and linaneal
guarantees contracts.

ECL Is the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default eccurring as the weights,
Credit loss s the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cach flows that the Group expects to recebve, which are all  cash shortfalls,
discounted at the original effective interest rate [or credit-adjusted effective interest  rate for POD
financial assets).

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

{li  an unbiased and probahility-weighted amount that Is determined by evaluating a range of
passible outcomes;

iy the time value of money; and
(i} reasonable and suppartable information that is available without undue cost or effort at

the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments [Continued}
8.5 Impairment af financial instruments (Continved)

For financial instruments whose impairment losses are measured using the ECL models, the Group
applies a three-stage impairment model to calculate their impairment allowance and recognie their  ECL
a3 Tollows:

—  Stage I I the eredit risk has not increased significantly since its initial recognition, the financial
asset 15 included in stage 1.

—  Stage I If the credit risk has increased significantly since its nitisl recognition but s not yet
desmed to be credit-impaired, the financial instrument is moved to Stage |l The description of
heww the Group determines when a wugnificant increase in eredit risk has oceurred is disclosed in
Mote IV 44,1,

—  Seage NE If the financial instrament is credit-impaired, the financial instrument s then moved 1o
Stage 1. The definition al eredit-impaired financial assets is disclosed in Note IV 44.1.

Financial instruments in Stage | have their ECL measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the
financial assel for the next 12 months ["12m ECL"). Fhancial instroments in Stage |1 or Stage Il have
their ECL measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments
("Lifetime ECL™). The description of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring
thi= ECL is disctoted in Noate IV 44.1.

For accounts recenable, lease receivables and contract assets, the Group slways recognise lifetime
ocupected eredit losses. The Group utes provision matrix based on s historical credit loss experience
for above-mentioned financial assets to estimate ECLs. The historical credit experience ks appropriatehy
adjusted to reflect the specific factors of borrowers, current events and forecast future conditions as
at reporting date.

The Group applics the impalrment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss
allowance for debt instruments that are measured at FWOCI. The loss allowance 1o recognized in
other comprehensive income and the impairment loss is recognized in profit or boss, and it should not
reduce the canrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of fimancial position.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial Instrument other than POCI at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in the previous reporting period, but determines at
the current reporting date that the credit risk on the financial instruments has Increased significantly
since Initial recognition ks no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month expected eredit losses at the current reporting date and the amount of expected
credit losses reversal is recognized in profit or loss. For POO financial assets, at the reporting date,
the Group only recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since Initial
recognition.

8.6 Modification of loans
The Group sometimes renegotistes or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to

customers. When this happens, the Group assesses whether the new terms are substantially different
to the original terms,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B.6 Madifieation af laans [Continued)

It the terms are substantially different, the Group derecogmires the original financial asser  and
recognizes a “new’ asset atl fair value and recaleulates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The
date of rencgotiotion is consequently comsidered to be the dote of initial recognition Tor impairment
caleulation purposes, including for the purpote of determining whether a significant inerease in eredit
risk has occurred. However, the Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognized is
deemed to be credit-impaiced at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation
was driven by the debtor beéing unable to make the originally agresd piyments. Differences in thie
carrying amount are also recogniped in pmﬂ'l. of lgss as a gain or loss on defecognition,

Il the terms are not substantislly different, the renegotiation or modification does not resull in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognizes & modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new
gross carrying amaunt is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective
interest rabe |or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POCI financial astets).

8.7 Derecognition of financial ossets
Financial asset ks derecognized when ane of the fellowing conditions is met:

(i) the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; (W) the financial
asset has been transferred and the Group transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset; or (iil) the financial asset has been transferred, althowgh the Group
neither trandsfers nor retams substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
It does not retain control over the transfered assel

The financlal asset has been wransferred, H the Group nelther transfers nor retains substantially ali
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset s recognized to the
extent of the Group's continuing invalvement in the asset, wherehy the related llabilities s recognized

accondinghy

On derecognition of a financial asset in s entirety, the difference between the sum of the
consideration recelved for the pan derecognized any cumulative amount of fair value recogniced in
other comprehensive income (if the transfer inwolves any debt investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income) and the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized on
the date of derecognition shall be included in profit and loss for the current period.

8.8 Derecognition of financlal Nabilities
A financial lahility [or a part of a financial liabdlity) is removed when the obligation specdied in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires in whaole or in part. An exchange between the group
and Pender of debt Instruments with substantially different terms shall be accounted for as an
extingukshment of the original financial llabllity and the recognition of a new financial lability.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability lor part of a financial liability]

extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, induding any non-cash assets
transferred or Nabilities assumed, shall be recognized In profit or loss.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments [Continued}
8.9 Eguity [astruments

An equity nstfument 1§ any confract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities, A finandal instrument s an equity instrument if, and only if, both
canditions (i] and (ii] below are met: (i) The financial instrument inchides no  contractual ebligation o
deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity. or te exchange finoncial astets or financial
labifities with another entity under conditions that  are  potentially  unfaverable ta  the Group;
andfii) I the financial instrument will or may be settled in the Group's own egquity instruments,
it i\ & non-derivative instroment that indudes no contractual  obligiations for the Group 1o delver &
variable pember of its own equity instruments; or a derivative that will be settled only by the Group
exchanging a ficed amount of cash ar another financial asset for a fived number of its own equity instruments.

Equity Instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of
direct issuance expenses,

8.10 Derivative financial instruments ond hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized ot fair value at the date o derivative contract B entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair wvalue at the end of the reporting perisd. The resulting gain or
lois i recognized in the consolidated income staterment,

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship between hedged items and
hedging instruments, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge tronsoctions. The Group also documents s assewsment, both ot hedge inception and on an
ongeing basks, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

fa) Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge is a hadge of the sxposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or
liabdity or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, lability
or firm commitment, that is antributable wo a particular risk and could affect profit or loss or
other comprebensive income.

The changes in falr value of hedging instruments that are designated and gualify as falr value
hedges are recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, together with the changes
In fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

For hedged items recorded at amortised cost, the difference between the carrying value of the
hedged iterm and the face value ks amortised over the remaining term of the erdginal hedge using
the effective interest rave method.

The Group discontinues fair value hedge accounting when the hedging relationship ceases
to meet the qualifying criteria after taking inte account any rebalancing of the hedging relationship,

including the hedging instrument has expired or has been sold, terminated or exercised, If the
hedged iterns are derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recorded in profit  or loss,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting |(Continued)

(b}  Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to o
particular ritk asiociated with a recognised aswet of liability {such ag all or seme future interest
payments an variable rate debt] or 3 highly probable forecast transaction that eould wltimately
affect the profit of loss.

The effective portion of changes in the net gains and losses aof hedging instruments that are
designated and qualify 2s cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity in the "other comprehensive income®. The ineflective portion is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the profit or loss in the
same periods when the hedged item affects the profit or loss.

When a hedging Instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
far hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time semains in
equity and is recognised in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or less. When o
forecast transaction is no longer expected to oceur (Tor exarmple, the recognised hedged ascet is
disposed af], the cumulative gain or loss previously recogrised in ather comprehensive income is
Immediately reclassified to the statement of profit or loss,

8.11 Embedded derlvative financial instruments

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the corversion oplion in a convertible
bond. W the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for classification and measurement
purposes, Otherwise, the embedded derivatives are treated as separate dervatives when:

(il Thewr economic characterstics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract;
(i} A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definithon of a derivative; and
{ily  The hybrid contract & not measured at falr value through profit or loss.

Where an embedded derivative is separated from a hybrid contract, the Group accounts for the
host contract of the hybrid contract in accordance with the provisions of the applicable accounting
standards. Where the fair value of the embedded derivative is unable to be reliably measured on
the basis of the terms and conditions, the fair valee of the embedded derivative is determined as
the difference between the fair value of the hybrid contract and the fair value of the host contract. if,
after using the abbove method, the fair value of the embedded derivative at the acquisition date or
at the end of a subsequent financial reporting period is still unable to separately measurable, the Group
designates the entire hybrid contract a5 a fair value through profit or loss,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments [Continued)
8.12 Offsetting financial assets and financial Nabilities

‘When the Group has a legal right 1o set off the recognired amounts and the legal right is currently
enlorceable, and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or 1o realize the financial asset and
settle the financial liability simultanecusly, financial assets and lishilities are offset and the net amount
presented In the consolidated statement of financial position. Besides, finaneial sstets and liabilites
shall be settled respectively but not offset sach other. The legally enforceable right af set-off must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Group or the counterparty.

8.13 Financial ossets purchased under resale agreements and financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Financial assets tramsferred as collateral in connection with repurchase agreements, involving fixed
repurchase dates and prices, are not derccognized. They continue to be recorded as investments
classified as financial assets before sale or loan. The corresponding lability is included in financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements. The items which are not derecognized are disclosed in
Mote IV 42 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

Consideration paid for financial assets held under agreements te resell are recorded as Financial
assets held under resale agreements, the related financial assets accepted i not recognired in the
cansalidated financial statements (Note IV 42 Contingent Liabilitees and Commitments — Callatesal).

The difference between the purchase and sale price is recognized as gain or loss in the current period
using the effective interest moethed.

9 Insurance contracis
Insurance controct classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has accepted significant [nsuramoe risk. The
Group lssues primarily life insurance contracts, which insure evenis assodiated with mortality over a long duration,
The Group also issues nondife insurance contracts, which cover casualty and health insurance risk. When
necessary, the Group enters imo reinsufance contracts to transfer insurance risks to the reinsurer. &
significant insurance risk test ts performed at inception of the insurance contracts,

Some insurance contracts contain both an Insurance component and a deposit component. The Group
unbundles those components, if the insurance component and the deposit component are separately
measurable. The unbundied insurance component B accounted for according to IFRS 4 —  Insurance
Contracts and the unbundled deposit component is accounted for as o financial lability.

Insurance income recognition

Insurance premium income is recognized when the following conditions are met: the insurance contract is

ssued and related insurance risk & undertaken by the Group, the related economic benefits are likely to
flow ta the Group, and the related income can be refiably measured.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
9 Insurance contracts (Continued)
Insurance contract Nabilities

Insurance contract liabilities are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amount ol payments that
the Group will be required to make to Tulfill its obligations under the insurance contracts, which represents
the difference between expected future cash outflows and inflows related to such contracts. A reasonakle
estimate of expected future net cash flows is determined based on information eurrently available as at the
end of the reporting period. The Group has considered the impact of time value in the liability caleulation
far lang-term life insurance,

The Group perferma liability adequacy tests based on information currently available, as at the reporting  date,
Additional insurance contract liabilities will be recorded il any deficiency exists.

10 Precious metals
Precious metals comgrise gold, silver and other precious metals,

Pracious metals that are not related 1o the Group's trading activities are initiglly measured at acouksition
cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Precious metals that are
related to the Group's trading activities are initially recognized at fair value, with changes in fair value
arising from re-measurement recognized directly in the consolidoted income staterment in  the period in
which they arise.

11 Property and equipment

Praperty and equipment including buddings held for use in the supply of services, or for administrative
purpose {other than constrection in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of inancial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, IF any. When the
costs attributable to the land use rights cannoat be reflably measured and separated from that of the bullding
at inception, the costs are intluded in the cost of buildings and recarded in property and eguipment.

Subsequent expenditure incurred for the property and equipment [other than constrection |n progress) is
inchuded im the cost of the property and eguipment [other than construction in progress] It it is probable
that economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditure can
be measured, and the carrying amount of the replaced part s derecognized. Other subsequent expenditure
is recognized in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation i recognized as a component of operating expenses in the consobidated Income statement so
as to recognize the corsumption of the economic value of property and equipment [other than construction
in progress), less thelr estimated residual values, over their estimated wseful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation rates are reviewed at the end of cach

reparting perisd.
The useful lives, estimated residual value rates and annual depreclation rates of each class of property and
equipment are as follows:
Estimated Annual
residual depreciation
Classes Useful lives value rates __rates
Buildings 5=50 years % 1.94%-19.90%
Electranic equipment, furnitureand fixtures 3-11 yars 3% 2.92%-32.33%
Motor vehicles 5-8 yEars 3% 12.13%—19.40%
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
11 Property and equipment {Continued)

Properties in the course of construction Tor supply of serdices ar administrative purposes are carmied atcost,
&5 construction in progress, less any Impalement loss. Construetion i progress s reciassified to the appropriate
category of property and equipment whaen complated and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assels, on the same basis as other property and equipment, commences when the asiets are ready for their
intended woe,

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from its continued use. Any gain or hoss arsing on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amaunt of the asset and is recognized in cther operating income or operating expenses in the consalidated
income staterment. The accounting policies of impairment of property and equipment are included in
Wote i1 17 impalirment of Non-financlal Assets ather than Goodwiil.

12 Land use rights

Land use rights are classified in other assets and amortized over a straightdine basis over their authorized
bl lives,

13 Foreclosed assets

The Group initially recognizes at fair value the foreclosed financlal assets. Non-financial foreclosed assels
are (nitlally recognized at the falr value of the rghts given up by creditors and other costs such as tases
directly attributable to the asset.

‘Whan the debtor pays off the debts with multiple assets or in form of restructuring arrangement, the group
firsthy recognizes and measures the foreclosed financial assets and restructured rights according to provision
illustrated in Mote 1| 8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of financial instruments. The pet
amount, of the fair value of the rights given up by creditor deducted the initial amount recognized for the
transferred financial assets and restructured rights, should be distributed in accordance with the proportion
of the fair value of each non-finandial asset. The distributed amount should be recopniced as the inital
ook value of each non-financial foreclosed assets.

The difference between the fair value and book value of the rights given up by creditor |s recorded in profit
and loss.

14 |Investment property
Investment property i property held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both,

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Deprediation and amortization s recognized the
same way as property and eguipment and land use rights, Subsequent espenditure incurred for the investrment
property ks included in the cost of the ivestment property if it i prebable that economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditure can be measured refiably, Other subsequent
expenditure is recognized in the consolidated income statement in the periad in which they are incurred,

The accaunting policies ol impairment af iInvestment property are included in Note | 17 Impairment of Nan-
financial Assers other than Goodwill.

Where an impairment loss  subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the investment property s
increased to the revised estimate of is recoverable amount, 1o the extent that the increased earrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount had no impairment loss been recognized. A reversal af  an
impairmient loss i recogniced in the consolidated income statement.

When an investment property i$ sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Group recognites the amount
ol any proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying amount and related taxes, in Lhe consolidated income
statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
15 Leasing

Lease {5 a contract or part of a coniract thal conveys the right to use an asset for a peried of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group recognized the right-of-use assets at the commencement date, and recognired the leaze
liabilities at the present value aof the owstanding lease payments. Lease payments imclude fived payments,
the amounts expected to be payable by the Group if the Group ks reasonably cerain to exercises a purchase
aption or & option 1o terminate the lease. Vanable base payments nat included in the meaiurement of the
loase liability are recognized as an exponse in |:m:|Fi|. or loss when incurned,

The right-of-use assets ol the Group are measured at costs, which include the amount of the initial
measurement of lease labilities, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any
initial direct eosts and less any lease incentives received. If the Group could restonably determine the
ownership of the leased asset when the lease term expires, the right-of-use assets are depreciated over the
asset’s remaining wseful life, Otherwise, the rght-ol-use asiets are deprecated over the shorter period of
the asser’s useful Tife and the kease term on a straght-line basis, When the recoverable costs of right-of-uie
assels are lower than the carrying amount, the value of right-of-use assets will be decreased down to the
recoverable costs,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value asiets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leasas are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Leases of low value assets
are the underlying assets are of low value when new.

The Group as lessor

When the Group is the lessor in a finanoe lease, a finance lease recefvable as an amount equal to the net
lease investment ks recognized and the finance lease asset is derecognized at the commencement date.
The finance lease receivables are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position as Loans and
advances to Customers.

When the Group is the lessor in an operating lease, rental income from operating leases is recognized as
operating ncome In the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the related
lease. The initial direct costs ane included in the carrying amount of the underlying assets and is recognized
03 expenses over the lease term on the same basis as the lease incame.

16 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite wseful lives are carrbed at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impakrment loss. Amortization for intengible assets with finlte wseful
lives is recognized on a straight-line basis over thelr estimated useful lives which generally range from 5 to
20 yaars,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are subject to annual impairment
RELTELY (T

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the canrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated
income statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
17 Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At the end of each repoarting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there i any indscation that those assets have sulffensd an impairment loss
It any swch indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
casts to sell and value in we,

If the recoverable amount of an asset i estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the canrying amaunt
of the asset i reduced to its recoverable pmount, An impairment loss B recognized in the consolidated
incoame statemssnt.

‘Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrging amount of the asset B increased to the
revised estimate of s recoverable amount, 1o the extent that the |ncreased carrying amount does not
excesd the carrying amaunt had no impairment lods been recognized. A reversal of an impairment loss s
recognized in the consaldated income statement.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term and highly liguid assets, which are readily convertible inte known
amounts af cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include
cash and assels with original maturity of three months or less under cash and balances with central banks,
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other financial
institutions and financial Assets held under resale agroemants,

19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Bank’s ordinary equity holders s recognized as a liability in the Group's and
the Bank's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the ordinary equity
holders in the annual general meeting of the Bank.

As authorized by the ordinary equity holders In the annual peneral meeting, the Board of Directors has
the sole discretion to declare and distdbute dividends on preference shares, Preference share dividend
distribution is recognized as a lability in the Groups and the Bank's financial statements in the period in
wihich the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

20 Prowvisions, contingent liabilities and commitments

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one of more uncertain future events not whally within
the control of the Growp, it can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognized
becouse i is not probable that an outflow of cconamic resources will be required or  the ameount  of
abligation cannot be measured reliably.

Frovisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation,

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting perlod, taking into account the risks and wncertainties surrounding the obligation,

‘where a provision |s measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
21 Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in ather fiduciary capacities to safeguard assets for customers
in accordance with custody agieements. bebwenn the Group and securities Investment funds, social security
funds, insurance companies, rust companies, qualified foreign institutionall investors, annuity schemes
and other Institutions and individuals. The Group receives lees in returm for its services provided under the
custody agreements and does not have any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets
under custody. Therefore, assets under custody are not recognized in the Group's consalidated ctatement
af lingncial position,

The Grouwp conducts entrusted lending arrangements foir it customers. Unded the terms of entrusted loan
arrangements, the Group grants loans to borrowers, as an intermediany, according to the instruction of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans, The Group is responsible for the
arrangement and callection of the entrusted loans and receives o commission for the services rendered. As
the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the entrusted loans and the funding for the
corresponding entrusted funds, they are net recognized as assets and liabilities of the Group,

22 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract s a contract that requires the tssuer to make specified payments o
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Fimancial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabifites under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortization of guarantee fees, and the espected credit loss provision required to settle
the guarantes. Any increase in the lability relating to guarantees is taken to the consolidated income
staterment.

The impairment allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group s measured using ECL models, The
Group has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be
setthed net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For boan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance |5 recognized as @ provison.
Howewver, for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Growp cannol
separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment companent from those on the
loan component, the expected credit losses on the wundrawn commitment are recognized together with
the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses exceed the gross
carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognized as a provision.

23 Related parties

The Group determinas the Group's related parties in accordance with IFRSs and other relevant provisions,
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMEMNTS IMN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the applicaion of the Group's accounting policies, which are described In MNote |1, management i required
ta make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities. The
judgrments, estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and other relevant factors
ineluding reasonable expeactations for future events,

The judgments, estimates #nd underlying sssumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as appropriate,

The following are the eritical judgments and key estimates management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amaunts
of assets and labitities within the next twelve months.

1 Classification of financial assets

The critical judgments the Group has made in determining the classification of linancial assets include
analysis of business models and characteristics of contractual cash fows.

The Group determines the business model for managing financial assets at the level of financial asset portfolio.
The factors considered include how the asset’s performance 5 evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

‘When assessing whether the contractwal cash flow of financial assets s consistent with the basic lending
arrangement, the Group has the following main judgments: Whether the principal may be subject to
change In the duration or amount of money due to prepayments during the duration; whether interests
only ncluded time value of money, credit risk, other basic borrowing risks, and considerations for costs
and profits. For example, whether the amount paid in advance reflect only the outstanding principal and
intenest on the outstanding principal, 85 well as reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract.

2  Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for finandal assets measured at amortized cost and
FWOC! and for exposures arlsing from some loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, Is an area
that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behavior {the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses), Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation technigues used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note Iv 44,1 Credit risk,

3  Fair value of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation techniques to estimate the fair value of financial Instruments which are not
quoted in an active market. These valuation techniques include the use of recent transactlon prices of the
same of simiar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis and generally accepted pricing models, To the
extent practical, market observable inputs and data, such as interest rate yield curves, foreign currency
rates and implied option volatilities, are used when estimating fair value through a waluation technigue.
Where market ahservahle inputs are not available, they are estimated using assumptions that are calibrated
as closely as possible to market observable data. Howewver, areas such as the credit risk of the Group and
the counterparty, liguidity, volatilities and caorrelations reguire management to make estimates, Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the estimated falr value of financial Instruments.

‘With respect to PRC government obligations related to large-scabe policy directed financing transactions,
fair value is determined using the stated terms of the related instrument and with reference to terms
determined by the PRC government in similar transactions engaged in or directed by the PRC gowernment.
in this regard, there are no other relevant market prices or yields reflecting arm's length transactions of a
comparable size and tenor,
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4 Deferred taxes

There are certain transactions and activities in the ordinary course of the Group's business for which the
ultimate tax effect is uncertain, The Group made certain estimation and judgerment far items of uncertainty
in the application of tax legisiations, toking inte account existing tax legislation and past practice of tax
autharities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters i different fram the amounts that were initially
eatimated, such differences will affect the current income tax, deferred income tax and VAT duoring the
period inowhich such o determination B made.

5 Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group aels as awiet manager of or invettar in structurad entities, the Group makes significant
judgement on whether the Group controls and should consolidate these structured entities,  When
pl:rl'l:lrming this assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contreciwal rights and obligations in light al
the transaction structures, and evaluates the Group's power aver the structured entities, performs analysis and
tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, meleding but not limited to commission Income
and asset managemaent fees earned as the asset manages, the retention of residual income, and, if any, the
liquidity and ather support provided to the structured entities, The Groug also assesses whether it acts as
a principal or an agent through analysis of the scope of its decision-making autharity ever the structured
entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for asset management services, the Group's exposure o
variability of returns fram (s ather imerests in the stroctured entities, and the rghts held by ather parties in
the structured entities.

6 Derecognition of financial assets transferred

In its normal course of business, the Group transfers Its financial assets through wvarious types of
transactions Including regular way sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements, securities lending. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether it has
transfemed these firancial assets which qualify for & full or partial derecognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers financial assets to structured entities,
the Group analyres whether the substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured
entities indicates thot it controls these structwed entities to determine whether the Group needs to
consolidate these structured entities. This will determine whether the fellowing derecognition analysis should
be conducted at the consolidated level ar at the entity level from which the financial assets are transfermed.,

The Group analyres the contractual rights and obligations in connaction with such transfers to determine
whether the derecognition criteria are met based on the following considerations:

. whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial assets or the
transfer qualifies for the “pass through™ of those cash flows to independent third parties.

. the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are
transferred. Significant judgment is applied in the Group's estimation with regard to the cash flows
before and after the transfers and other factors that affect the outcomes of Group's assessment on
the extent that risks and rewards are transfarred,

. where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
associated with their ownership, the Group analyzes whether it has relinguished its controls over
these financial assets by assessing whethar the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset In its
entirety to an unrefated third party and Is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing
to impose additional restrictions on the transfer, and if the Group has continuing invalvement in these
transferred financial assets. Whore the Group has not retained control, it dorecognizes these financial
assets and recognizes separately as assets or liabilities any rights and abligations created or ratained
im the transfer. Othervwise the Group continues to recognize these financial assets to the extent of its
continuing invelvement in the financial asset.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 METINTERESTINCOME
—Year ended 31 December
2021 2020
Interest incarme
Loans and advances Lo customers 694,009 631,753
Including: Corporate loans and advances 380,351 351,898
Persanal loans and advances 313,658 179,855
Financial investments
Debt instrument Investments at amortized cost 208,215 187,067
Other debt instrumant investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income 44,579 51,928
Balances with central banks 34,726 34,171
Placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions 5.8568 2424
Financial assets held under resabe agreements 11,989 9,984
Depodits with banks and other financial institutions 5,618 7,108
Subtotal 1,008,014 930,932
Interest expense
Dt Lo customars {329,593) (284,552)
Depaosits from banks and other financial institutions (3&,930) [37,588)
Debt securities issud [29,188) (35, 746)
Barrowings from central banks [20,519) [20.424)
Placements from anks and other financial institutions (3.474) [B,114}
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (318) [1,429)
Subtotal [430,027) {3854853)
Mot interest income 57T 987 545,079
2035 (ks
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2  MNET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

ear_ended 31 r

2021 2020

Fee and commission incame
Electronic banking services 30,475 25,169
Agency services 23,677 21,043
Bank cards 15,435 13,702
Consultancy and advisory services 11,544 11,174
Setthement and clearing servioes 11,094 11,129
Custadian and other fiduciary services 3,832 4,435
Credit commitment 1,580 1,875
Others 583 639
Subtatal ) 98,721 91,166

Fee and commission expense
Bank cards [11,942) (10,760}
Electronic banking services {3,509) (3,182)
Settlement and clearing services {1.598) (1.483)
Others {1,343} {1,195}
Subtatal [18,392) [16,621)
Het fee and commission incorme 80,329 74,545

3 NET TRADING GAIN

Year ended 31 December

Hote 2021 2020
Net gain on debt instruments held for trading 3,847 4,178
Net gain on precious metals 1} 3,650 4,784
Net gain on foreign exchange rate derivatives 6,672 3,211
Net gainf{boss) on nlerest rate derivatives a40 (3.103)
Others {368} 7,335
Tatal 14,241 16,405

il Met goin on preciows metals canwists of net goin on precfous metols ond precipus metol relofed derhative prodiscts
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4  MNET GAIN/{LOSS5) ON FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Year ended 31 Decomber
2021

2020
Net lois on debt instruments designated as at FUPL (237) 92}
Met gain on ather debt Instruments measured at FYPL 20,207 4,120
Het loss on financial liabilities designated as at PYPL (i) [7.445) (11,271}
Net gain on debt instruments measured at FVOLC) 1,235 750

Met gaingloss) on underlying assets and liabilitios related 1o
principal guaranteed wealth management products

designated as at FUPL 1,068 {748)
Others (493) (71}
Total 15,035 [7.312)

fil Mot fess on finenciad Bebifvties desigrated os of FYPL consésts of the amount poid wpon the sty of stnatured

deppidts desgroded o FUPL

5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Year ended 31 December

347/508

2021 2020

Insurance premium 29,188 26,151

Rental ncome 1,065 950

Gain an dispasal of property and equipment 1,032 1,172

Gowvernment grant Q48 TE4

Met gain/[loss) on forsign exchange 224 [25)
Others 1685 1ES2

Total 24.143 0614

& OPERATING EXPENSES

__Year ended 31 December

MNotes 2021 2020

Staff costs (1) 137,953 123,345

Genaeral operating and administrative expenses 123 61,558 49,452

Insurance benelits and claims 30,988 27,873

Daspreciation and amortization 19,797 19,551

Tax and surchargoes [EY] 6,606 5,813

Others 3373 3,863

Total 260,275 229,897
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
& OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)

(1) Staff costs

Year ended 31 Decembar

2021 2020

Shart-term employee benefits
Calaries, bonuses, allowance and subsidics 89,530 40,854
Housing funds 9,347 £,933
Social insurance 5,859 4,713
Ineluding: Medical insurance 5,480 4,348
Matemity insurance 222 205
Emplayment injury insurance 157 110
Laber union fees and staff education expenses 4,001 3,613
Others 10,963 10,595
Subtatal 119,750 108,708
Defined contribution bencfits 1B123 14,632
Early retirement benafits 15 5
Total 137,953 123,345

{2) included in gemeral operating and administrative expenses 15 awditor's  remuneration  of
AMBIOG millian for the year, consisting of RMB105 million for financial staterments audit service and
RMBI million for non-audit professional service [2030: RMEL46 milllien for the year, consisting of
AMBIIT milion for financial statements audit service and RMBS million for non-audit professional
servicel,

3} City construction and maintenance tax s calculated at 1%, 5% or 7% of VAT and sales taxes for the
Group's Demestic Operations.

Education surcharge is calculated at 3%, while local education surcharge is calculatved at 2% of VAT
and sabes taxes for the Group's Domestic Cperations.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(1) Details of the Dérectors’, Supervisors” and Senior Monagement’s emoluments are as folfows (in thousands

af RMIB):
Year ended 31 Decamber 2021
Basic  Contribution Other
salaries Mo retirement  benefits
and benefit  in kind

Item Notes Fees  allowance schames e} Tatal
Execulive Direciors

Gu Shu fif - (3T 120 81 820

Zhang Qlingsang - 619 120 81 820

Zhang Xuguang - 557 113 81 751

Lin Li (i - 465 o5 [} 626
Independent Mon-Executive Diréctors

Wang Ninsin 3EL - - - 381

Huang Zhenrhong 380 - - - 180

s LEUNG KO May Yo IED - — — 380

Line Shawying s0 - - - 360

Wu Liansheng (1) £ - - - 34
Non-Executive Directors

Liao Luming = - - - -

Li Wei - - - - -

Thoi Ji [iw] - = = - -

Liu Xiaupeng vl - - - 2 &

¥iao Kiang [wi] = - - = -
SUpEnesars

Wang lingdong = 519 120 Bl B20

Fan fiangiang - - - - o

Shao Lihong 50 - - - 50

Wu Gang 50 - - - 5

Huang Tao [wil] - - - - -

Liv Honpxia 00 - = - ELLi]

Xu Eiangln [wila) a6 - = - a6

Wang Xixin lix] L) - = - 3
Senior Managemant

Cuil Yong - 557 113 Bl 751

¥u Han - 557 117 B4 758

Zhang Yi ) - 186 13 27 251

L Zhicheng - 984 211 &o 1175

Han Guagiang - 981 183 El 1,245
Exacutive Derector resigned

Zhou Mubing [y - 354 120 Bl 555
Non-Expcutive Directors resigned

Wu liangTao {xli] - - - - -

Xiao Xing [widi} £ ] - - - 370

Ihis Hailin {uiw) - - - - -

Ui Qiyun [%v] - - = = -
Superssors resigned

Xia Taili {w) 50 - - - 50

Li Wang [uwii} 242 - - - 242

Zhang Ne [awiid) 268 - - - 268
Senior Management reskgned

Zhan Dungsheng {uia] = 232 48 34 315
Total 2,950 6,730 1,299 858 11,537
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
[Continued)

7

242 @rhseni

{1) Detaits af the Directors”, Supenisors’ and Senior Management's emaluments are as follaws {in thousands
of RMIB): [Continued)

fil

i
.
et
fel

feid
fil}
i)
fix}

fxl

{xf

foe}
i)
fas)
fav)
)

fil]

Gu Shu wos elected Executie Director effective 28 January 3021 ond elected Chairmaen of the Boord of
rectors effective & Febroary 2021,

tin U wos elected Executive Wice President effective 31 AMarch N2 ond Evecwhve Director effeciive
15 June 2021,

Wi Liarcheng war slected Independent Non-Feevirtive Directar sffective 19 Movember 2000
Zivou # wos clected Nor Executive Director effective 5 March 2021,

Lir Mipopeng was alected Non-Executive Director effective X0 lonuary 2022

Koo Xiang wal slected Non-Executive Dérectar effective 20 lonuary 2022,

Muong Toos waos elected Supervizor Representing Employees ffective 26 Jwly 2021

Xur Hianghn was clected Ecternal Supennsor offective 11 Novwember 2021

W Xialn wes elecled External Supevvisor effective 11 November 2021,

Thang ¥i wos elected Executive Vice President effective 4 November 2021,

Thol Mubing ceased to be Cheirmon of the Board of Directows and Executive Dérector effective
7 harumry 2021,

Wir Jiergeea censed to be Now-Frecitive Director effective 27 fuly 2021

Xigo Mag coased to be independent Non-Executive Dircctor effective 19 November 2021,
£ Hida cemsed fo be hon-Execntive Direcior effective 28 Seplembers 2020,

U Qiyun ceated 1o be Non-Executive Director effective 31 December 2021

Xig Taili cevsed o be Supervisor Representing Employees effective 70 August 3021,

Ui Wang ceased to be Calesnal Sipervises effective 1] November 2021,

(i} Erang Jie cemsed te be Exteemal Supenasar effective 11 MovemBer 20210,

faix]

]

Tha

han Dangsheng ceased to be Exerutive Vice President effective 11 June 2021,

Orfver beaefits i kind inclede the Bank's contributians to medical fund, rawsimg fund ond ather social insurances,
which are payedie o labour and security duiharnties bosed on the lower of cerfof perceniogse af the
salories pnd ollowance or the preserbed upper bmits ag requived by the relevant reguidations isswed by fhe
gaverament authorities,

total compensation packages for the above Ewecutive Directors, Supervisors and Senior

Management for the year ended 31 December 2021 have not yet been finaliped in accordance with
regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC at tho date of this consolidated financial statements.
The final compensation will be dischosed in a separate announceament when determined.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(1) Detailsof the Directars, Supervisars’ and Semioe Monagement's srmoluments are as foliows (in thoisands
af RAB): {Continued]

Year ended 31 Decermber 2000 |Aestated]

Conritaution Other
Basit  toretirement bersfits
salaries and bl i kind
Item RNotes Feed allowance schemed [} Tizal
Exetubive Ditecton
Thow Mubing 1 = 1475 ™ 5 1628
Thang Qirgsong {ii] - 1112 TS 75 1,266
Thang Xuguang [i&) ‘ 357 ™ 75 L7
Insdepeendent Non-Executinvee Direcion
Kian Xing 410 - 410
Wang Xinxin EEi - - - 380
Huang Ihenzhorg 10 - - - 380
M, LEUNG KO My Yee o - - - am
L Shasying 380 - - - 360
Nen-Evecutie Dinectors
Liaa Lumirg - - - -
Li Ciyun - - - - -
LW = - = = -
Wu liargtan = = = = =
I Hailkn ) - - - - -
Supervison
‘Wang Iingdong - 1340 ™ 5 1,404
Kia Talll 5 - - - 50
Shao Lihong 50 - - = 50
‘Wu Gang 50 - - - 50
Li'wang 1o - . 160
Thang i 1] - - - o
Lu Honguia W0 - - 300
Fan Rangiang ] = - = = -
Lenigr Macagement
Than Dongsheng - 1132 "% 104 131
Cul Yong - 1,068 T 75 1,248
Xu Han (L] - 550 i1 44 EBS1
Li Zhicheng - 1,546 a7 5 1158
Han Guogiang [} - 162 11 7 180

Aenuat heport 2031 241
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BEMNEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(1) Detaiks of the Directars’, Supervisors' and Serer Manogement's emoluments are as follaws fin thowusands
of RVB): fContinued]

__ Yearended 31 December 2020 (Restated]

Oooooooa

Centribution Ottt
Baiit 1o retirerment senifity
wilarie and benekt inn kind
Item Mates e slowante ALhiTey ] Tl
Executhee Directar ressgred
Zhang Kegiw [wiil) - 1,247 &8 62 1,383
NorExecuthve Directors resigned
Chen Fanba [ix] - - - & =
Xu liardong [} - - = e =
Supervsar resigred
Wangxingchun [=l} - - - - -
Senior Managemaent resigned
Zhou Wanlu [uis) =+ 1B6 31 18 336
Tatal 2,940 11522 TEl 69l 15,914

i Zhrow Mubing ceosed to be Chairmon of the Boond of Dvectors and Evecutive Director effective 7 fonuovy 2021

fd)  dhong Nogsong wos eleched Vice Chorman of the Board of Gvweclors ond Executive Director effective

14 Jgnwary 20X,

Zivang Xugrarg wos ciected Execwetive Divector effectve 12 October 2020,

Zheur Maitin wos slected MNon-Evecubve Director effective 29 lune 2020

Fon fiangiong wos eedcled Superwsor Representing Shorehalders effective 27 November 2000

Xu Man wos efected Executive Vice President effective 12 October 2020

Han Guogiong wos efected Seoretary of the Board of Divectany ffective 3 Movermber 20200

Zhong Kegis cessed to be Executive Director and Executive Vice President sffective 30 Novermber 2020,
Chen Kanbo cotied 1o be Nan-Executive Divector effective 29 June 2020,

Xu Mordong ceased to be Mowm-Executiee Director effective 18 Jae 2020

Wong dogohun cemsed (e be Supervisor Represemling Shorefolders effecive 29 jure 2020

Zivouw Wanfu censed to be Secretavy of the Board of [hreclors and the compaoay secretary effective 24 March
k]

fij
fed
fel
feil

fa)
i}

faiil)
which are paprble fo labour ond tecurity outhorities bated on the lower of certain percentage af the
selories and eiawance or the prescribed waper Kavls as required by the cefevant reguiotions [sued by the
gavernment authariies

Aernual Parpert, 3031
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
[Continued)

(2} Five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group

il O the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, none of them are Directors,
Supervisors or Senior Management whase emoluments are disclosed above. The emslurments
of the five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the vear ended
11 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 were a5 Tolbows;

—_Year ended 31 December
2021 2020
Basie salaries and allewanes 13 15
Discretionary bonuses 18 12
Contribution to retirement benefit schemes and othiers 1 1
Total iz 28

(i}  The number of these five individuals whose emoluments fell within the following bands are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020
RAARA 500,001 to RAARS, (00,000 yuan 2 3
RAES, 000,001 to RMEBS, 500,000 yuan = -
RMABS5,500,001 to RAMBE, 00,000 yuan = =
RAABE, 000,001 to RMBE, 500,000 yuan = 1
RAABE,500,001 to RMBT 000,000 yuan 1 -
REABT. 000,001 to RAABT, 500,000 yuan - -
RMEBT, 500,001 to RMBE,000,000 yyan 1 1
RIMBE,000,001 to RMBSE, 500,000 yuan 1 -

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the five highe:l paid individuals as an inducement 1o join or upon joining the Group or
as a compensation for loss of office. For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
none af the five highest paid individuals waived army emalumant,

{3) Other benefits and interests of Directors and Supervisors pursuant to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cop.622).

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no emolument was paid by
the Group to any of the Directors and Supervisors as an inducement to join or wpon joining the
Group oF as a compensation for ko of office. Except for the Annulty Scheme and Pendion Stheme
{Mote 1| 7 Employes Benefits), there were no other retitgment benefits for Directors or Supervisors,
or consideration provided to third parties for making available Directors’ or Supervisors’ serdices;
and mone of the Directors or Supervitors walved any emolument, or had material intorests, whether
directhy or indiroctly, in any material transactions, arrangoments or contracts in relation to the Group’s
business far the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 Decembaer 2020,

The Group enters into credit transactions with the Directors, Superdsors or certain controlled body
oorporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors at arm’s length in the ordinary course
of business, For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 and as a1t 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020, the respective balances of loans and advances from the Group to
Directars, Supervisors of certain cantralled body carporates and connected entities af the Directors ar
Supervisors were not significant. The Group did not provide any guaraniee or security to the Difectors,
Supervisors of certain controlied body corporates and connected entities of the Directors of Supervisors
in respect of their loans, quasl-ldans or credil trandactions,

244 @erreni

353/508



EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000000(Ee24593)

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foo the year ended 31 Decamber 2021
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8 CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSS5ES

Wear ended 31 December

2021 2020
Loans and advances to customerns 168,999 138,988
Finarcial Investmenis
Debt Instrument investments at amartized cost 7,947 6,796
Other debt instrumaents investmaents at fair value through
other comprehensive income 1,588 5,070
Prowision far guarantees and commitments [15,393) 10,575
Flacernents with and loans to banks and other financial institutions {15} 1,419
Deposits with banks and other fimancial institutions [EE 4] Bad
Finaneial assets held under resale agreaments 36T 936
Others 7,835 51
Total 165,886 164,699
9  INCOME TAX EXPEMSE
Year on m
2021 2020
Current income tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax B4,B52 58,220
— Hong Kong SAR Income Tax 954 GEd
— Other jurisdictions Incamie Tax 239 (26}
Subtotal 66,045 58,858
Deferred tax [Note IV 22) {12,101} {10, 208)
Total 53,944 48, 650

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% of the estimated taxable profit Tor both years, and ako
includes supplementary PRC tax on Overseas Operations as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC
income tax rules and regulations. Pre-tax deduction ltems of enterprise income tax are governed by the
relevant fax regulations in Chinese mainland. Taxation arising in other [urisdictions (incleding Hong Kong

5SAR) is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charges for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 can be reconclled to the

profit per the consolidated income statement as follows:

¥ear ended 31 December

Mote 2021 2070
Profit before tax 295880 265,050
Tax calewlated at applicable PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 73,970 66,263
Tax effect of income not taxable for tan purpose 1] {42,383) (26,294}
Tax effect of costs, expenses and lodses not
deductible Tor thx purposse 23,311 20,061
Tax effect of perpetual bond interest expense {2,434) {1,300)
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions {ag) (&)
Effect of others 2,128 -
Income tax cxpanse 53,944 48,650
] Bon-f Ip ncoume pri ty Includhes (nferest dncome from PRC tressury bands amd misnicipal goverament bonds
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021
[Amounts im milligers of Renminks, anloas of b radon stated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10 DIVIDENDS

Year ended 31 December
2021 2020

Motes
Dividends an ardinary shares deelared
Cash dividend related vo 2020 [} 64,782 =
Cash dividend related to 2019 (2} = 63,662
64,782 63,662
Diidends an preferance shares declared and paid (3 4,064 4,328
Interest on perpetual bonds declared and paid (4} 9,734 5,202

1) Distritantaon of final dividend for 2020
A cosh dividend of RMBQ.IES] per ordinary share reloted (o 2020, emownitng fo AMBGS 78T million da foral
was apgroved, ofter the required appropriations far the stotutory sweplus reserve ond the general reserve for
J020 . dedenmined in oocovdence with the relvvant occounting rules and flnencial regulations applicoble fo PARC
enterprises (the "PRC GAAPT), ot the onnua! general mesting held on 27 May 2021
The abowe divide nd was recopnibed od ditribution and distribuled duning the yeor ended 31 December 7021,

2] pistributian of fael dividend for 2019

A cash dividend of AMBD 18IS per ordinary share reieted to 2015, omounting to RMBE1 662 milion in totol was
approved, after the required approprations for the stolutory surplus resenee pad the general reserve for 20159 as
deterrmined in accavdonce with the PRC GAAP, of the anaval penerml meeting heid on 29 lune 20200

The abawe diade nd was recagnired as asiribution and distribuled dwing the peoy ended 31 December J0A0.

13)  Dvseribiibian of dividend on preference Shores fov 2021
A cosh dividend at the alvidend rare of 4 548 per amnum reloted to the second tramche of preference shares of
M0 te XX ornounting to RAMBIT 936 milon in lotel wos opproved of the Boord of Diedion” Mesting held on
27 dpawary J02] ond distribated on 11 March 2021,
A cosh dividend af the dividend rate of 532% per onaum refeted to the fist tranche of preference shares aof
MXD 1o X121 amointing bo RMBZ 1X8 milbon i fotal wds opproved of the Board of Dirediors” Mesting held an
30 Avgust 2021 ond distributed on 5 November 2021,
istribution of diwdend on preference shares for 2020
A cozh dividend at the dlvidend rate of 5.50% per annum reloted to the sevond tranche of preference shores of
MG to MR amoiating to RMB2 200 midlon i tatel woes approved of the Board of Directars” Mesting held an
10 denwary 220 pnd distributed on 11 March 2020,
A cosh ahwidend ot the dividend rofe of 5.32% per oo redoted (o the fist tanche of preference shares of 2009
o 000 amouwnting fo RAEZ, 126 milipn fa fotel was opproved ot the Beand of Directors’ Meeting heid on 3 July
220 ond distrbated o4 5 Nowember 20000

{d)  DNstribubion of nlevest on perpetwal bonds for 2021
Perpetoal bands ded i the stotement of firancal position refer to endoled tier 1 copitad bands. Aa inderest ot
the laterest rote of 3.48% per anaum related to the first tranche of perpetusl boads of AMBAS bitan amaunting
to RAMB2 958 milkan in total was deciored on T Moy 2021 and distribited an 13 Moy 2021

An ivierest of the mferest rate of 4.33% per annem revated bo the first tranche of perpetuel bonds of AMBES bilion
amounting fo AVBA, 711 mifion i totaf was declared on 17 August 2020 and distribeied or 20 August 2021,

245 @rhenn
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
i DIVIDENDS (Continued)

A faterest of the imterest rebe of 4.50% per oanem sefmted (o the second fronche of perpeteal bonds of AMERS bilion
emounting to FMBLEZS muilian in fobad werl deslared on 10 Augurt 2021 pad disteibuted on 24 Avgust 2021

An intereit at the interest role of 4.20% per oanum reloded to the decond fraache af perpelual bonds ﬂlr
PABEAS bilion omourting o AMBEL 4P mildorn in tofal wos dedored on 2 Seplember 2021 and distributed on
G Septemiber 2020,

Disteibiation of inferes! on peipeiual bonds for 2020
Perperwg bands hsted o the storement of financial pasivan refer 1o undaned ter 1 copited Bands, An inferest ar
the interest rate of 4.29% per annwm refated to the first tronche of perpetual bonds of AMESS Blllon cmounting
1o RMELTIT million in rotal was declored on 37 August 2020 and disfribured on 20 Asgust 2020,
An infereit af the interest role of £.20% per annnm feloted to the second tranche of perpetusl bonds of
RMEBIS biliow amednling o AMELSAD milvon in fobal wos dediored on 2 Seplember 2020 emd dbtribwiled an
7 Septemier 2020,

5 A final dividerd of MAB02068 per ovdlinary thode W redpect of the peor ended 31 December 2021  tatoling

AMBZ2 376 milion has been proposed by the directors ond is swbject to opproval by the ardinary equity holders in
the aanial gerenal mesking

erual fupert 7031 24T
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The ealeulation af basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:

— e 2000
Earnings:
Profit for the year attributabile to equity halders of the Bank 241,183 215,925
L4z profit for the year attributable (o other equity instruments holders
al the Bank (13,798) [9.530)
Prafit for the year antributable to ordinary eguity holders
af the Bank 227,385 206,395
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in ssue {in milllons) 349,983 349,983
Basic and diluted carnings per share (RMB yuan) 0.65 0.59

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Bank issued two non-cumulative
preference shares, respectively, and the specific terms are included in Note IV 33 Other eguity Instruments.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Bank Issued five non-
cumulative undated ther 1 capital bonds, respectively, and the specific terms are included in Note 1V 33 Other
equity mnstrements.

For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, cash dividends of RMB4,064 million
of non-cumulative preference shares dedared in respect of the year of 2021 and imterests of
RMES, 734 million of non-cumulative undated tier 1 capital bonds in respect of 2021 were deducted from
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank (2020 cash dividends of RMB4, 328 million
af non-cumulative preference shares and interests of RMB5,202 million of non-cumulative undated tler 1
capital konds).

EDINETOOOO
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The conversion feature of preference shares is considered to fall within contingently issuable ordinary shares.

The triggering events of conversion did not occur for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, and therefore the conversion feature of preference shares has no dilutive effect on earmings
per share calculation,

12 CASH AND BALANCES WIiTH CENTRAL BANKS

AL at &m

Hotes 2021 2020
Cash 74,610 6,281
Mandanory reserve deposits with central banks t1] 1,973,077 7,126,330
Surplus reserve depoiits with central banks [Zﬁ 101,010 40,404
Other deposits with central banks {3 171,765 193,142
Subtotal 2,320,462 2,436,247
Accried interest 944 1.028
Total 2,321 406 2437,275

248 m-_u:il:ln
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{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS (Continued]

(4 1]

The Grup plares mandotary reserve deposits with the PROC mnd owersemss repulatory Bodles These include

AMEB reserve deposits and fovelgn currency reserve deposits thof ove not ovaiolde for use in the Growp's dolly

operations,

As ot 31 December 202), the mondatory depasd reserve rolios of the domestic ranches of the Bonk in respect of

cuast deposits di

! } in BB ond foreign currencies were consistent with the requirement of the PEOC

The mandatory resense funds placed with the central bank of domestic swbsidiaries of the Group are determined by
the FAOC. The amounts of mondatory reserve deposits ploced with the centrol bonks of those countries or regions

cuddtige Chinese maindmad are defermmed by ool eeisdichiom,

{2)  Swplus reserve deposits with centro! banks indude funds for the purpose of cosh settiement ond other kinds of
urvestricted depoiits
{3 Other deposits with centrol bordks primovily represent fiscal deposits and' foreipn excharnge risk reserve ploced with

the PEOC that ove nol aweiloble for use dn the Group™s deily apeérofions.

13 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

_As at_31 Decomber

2021 2020

Deposits with:
Domestic banks 134,968 391,366
Other domestic financial Institutions 10,345 13,511
Overseas banks 22,507 27,826
Subtotal 217,820 A32,703
Accrued nterest 1,140 3,387
Allawance far impairment losses {1,480) {1,905}
Deposits with banks and other financial instituthons, net 218,500 434,185

14 PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2020
Placements with and loans to:
Domestic banks 250,953 148,136
Other domestic financial institutions 93,315 219,887
Onierseas banks and other financial institutions 104,295 179,927
Subtotal 448,563 547,950
Accrued interest 1,080 1,750
Allowance for impairment losses 12.595) (2,752
Placernents with and loans to banks and other
financial institutions, net 446,944 546,948
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For the yeas ended 31 Decermber 2021
[Amounts im millices of Renminks, unless of e raier stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group primarily enters into foreign exchange rate, interest rate and precious metal dedivative contracts
related to trading, asset and ahility management, and customaer initiated transactions,

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of the derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group are tot out in the following tables. The contractual / notional amounts of derivative Ffinancial
struments provide a4 basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognited in the consolidated
statement of linancial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash llows invalved or
the current Tair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Groug's exposure 1o credit Of
markel fisks, The fair walve of deridative indtruments become lavourable ﬂm:hf o unfwourable ||Luhi|il|'ﬂ}
as a result of fluctuations in market intcrest rates, foreign exchange rates or precious metal  prices
refative to their terms. The aggregated fair walues of dedvative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significanthy.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are subject to enforcesble master net
arrangements or similar agreements, The agreement between the Group and the counterparty gencrally
alows for net settlement af the relevant financial assets and financial liabilities when both elect to settle
on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, Gnancial dsdetd and finoncial labilities will be settled
on a gross basls. However, each party to the master netting arrangements or similar agreements will have
the option to settle all such amounts on 8 net basis in the event of default of the ather party. The Group
did not offset these finoncial assets and finoncial liabilities on a net basis, As at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020, the Group does not hold any other finoncial instruments, other than desivatives, that
ane subject Lo master netting Mrrangements o similar agreements,

250 | (I vk dul
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)
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— 31 December 2021
Contractual/
notiamal EMH
amount Assats Liabilities

Exchange rate defivatives

Currency farwards and swaps, and

Erods-Currency interest rate fwaps 2,145 0ED 1E 983 (14,402}

Currency options 51,631 1,133 [332)
Subtotal 20,116 (14,734}
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 171,371 1,141 [2.366)
Precious metal contracts 145,374 721 (2.237)
Tatal derivative financial assets and liabilities 21,978 {19,337}

31 December 2020
Contractual/
naotional Fair valug
BTNt ASTETE Ligvilities

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency foreards and swaps, and

Cross-CUIfEnCy iterest rate swaps 2,411,639 54,466 (57.312)

Currency options 70,259 3,711 (a4}
Subtotal 58,187 [57,756)
Interast rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 152,044 1,009 (4,357)
Precious motal contracts and others 155,555 4,741 (3,169)
Total derivative financial assets and liabilities 681,937 (65, 282)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)

Crodit risk weighted amount for derivative transaction counterpartios represents the counterparty cradit
risk associated with derivative transactions and i calculated in accosdance with the “Capital Rules far
Commercial Banks [Provisional]” issued by the CRIRC which was effective from 1 fanuary 2013 and
“Measurement Rule of Counterparty Default Risk ‘Weighted Assets on Derivatives” issued by the CBIRC
which was cffective from 1 January 2019.and is dependent on, among other factors, croditworthiness of
customers and maturity eharacteristics of sach type of contract. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020, the eredit risk weighted amount for derivative transaction counterparties was measured under the
Internal Ratings-Based approach.

: : . 2021 2020
" Countergarty credit default rsk-weighted assets 49,277 74,562
Cradit value adjustment risk-walghted assets (R 11,905
Total 56,220 86,467

(1} Fair value hedges

The fl;llll;rwing designated fair value hedging instruments are included in the derivative financial
instruments disclosed abawe.

31 December 2021

Contractualf Fair_walue
notional

amgunt Assets Liabilities

Interest Fate swaps 48,716 13 [1,104)

_31 Decamber 2020 __

"~ Conwractualf Fair_yalug
ot lonal
amaunt Assots Liabdlitles
Inteniest rate swaps 53,256 18 (2, BEO)

The Growp uses interest rate swaps o hedge against changes arising from changes in interest rates in
fair value of loans and advances to cuitomers, ather debt instrument investments at fair value through
other comprehensive incame,

The Group's net gains/{lessed) an fair value hedges are as follow:

= - 2031 2020
Met gains/[lossas) on
— hdging instrumenls 1,599 11,9'95]
— hedged ems {1,566) 1,915

The gains and losses arising from the inelfective portion of fair value hedges were immaterial in 2021
and 2020,

Aenual heport 2031 291
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Foo the year ended 31 Decamber 2021
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CuﬂtiﬂUEd}
i5 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)
(1) Fair value hedges (Continued)

The Tollowing table shows maturity details with notional amount of hedging instroments disclosed

abave:
Fair value hedges
Batween  Between Between
Less than 1and3 Jand12 1 and5 Over 5
: 1month  months  manths  years Jeor _Total
31 December 2021 86l 3,958 9,203 30412 4,282 48,7185
31 Decernber 2020 57 1,747 9,914 39,239 11,599 583,256

Tha following table sets out the details of the hedged items covered by the Group®s fair value hedging

strategios:
31 Decomber 2021
Accumulated

amount of {alr value
Carrying amount of adjustments on the Line items in the
hedged iterms hedged items statemont of
Assets  Liabilities  Assets Liabilities financial position
Other debt instrument
investments at fair
value through other
Bonds 51,356 - = = comprehensive income
Loans and advances to
Laans 2,551 - 52 - customers

Tatal 53,907 - 52 -

31 December 2020
Accumulated
amount of fair value

Carrying amount of adjustments an the Lime items in the
hedged tems hedged items statement of
Assets Liabilities Assers  Liabifities financial position
GOther debt instrument
Imvestments at fair
walug through other
Bonds 63,801 - - - comprehansive income
Loans and advances 1o
Lasire 4,595 e 167 - custamers

Total 63,356 - 167 -

{2) Caosh flow hedges
The Group uses Interest rate swaps to hedge against exposures to cash flow variability primarily from
Interest rate risks of debt securitics Bsued. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did nat have cash flow

hedge (In 2020, the Group's net gains from the cash flow hedge of AMB24 million was recognized in
other comprohensive income and thorg exists ne inpffective portion af cach flow hodga).

Aenual feport 3021 293
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
16 FINAMNCIAL ASSETS HELD UMDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As st 31 December

Anabyred by collateral typa:

Debt securities TBO,571 761,081

Biils 59,378 56,801
Subtotal E39,949 B17,882
Accrued interest 597 BBE
Allowance for impairment losses (2.909) [2.542)
Financial assets held under resale agreements, net B37,637 B16,206

The collateral received in connection with financial assets held under resale agreemaent is disclosed in

Mote IV 42 Contingent Liabilithes and Commitments — Collateral.
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS
17.1 Analyzed by measurement basiz

Motes 2021 2020
Measured at amortized cost [§1] 15,851,755 13,974,384
Mteasured at fair value through other
comprehansive income (2} 502,748 577,997
Measured at Fair valug through profit or Loss (3} - 52
Total 16,454,503 14,552,433
1) Maaswred ot amovtized cost;
As Dhecem
2o2e 200
Corparate foons and odvances
Lomas and pdvances 9,496,436 8,339 735
Frrsonal inors and odvances T.136 568 0.2 18537
Sushtndal 16,635,004 14,588,072
Apcrued intenest 3g 3 M3
Afowence flor impairment Iosses {720.570) a1 a0y
Earrying amount of fogns and edvances to customers
measied ot avmartied cost 15,951,755 13,974,384

{20 Meaiured of foir vaive through other comarehmiive ncome:

2021 L2
Carparate hons and odames
Lomns and pdvances TRAIG 185 532
__Discounted bifts 423,329 389475
Corrping omount af loans ond advences o
custovrers megsived ar fair value through
othed comprebensive incoas 507,748 577,597

254 @rhsenn
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMCES TO CUSTOMERS {Continued)

17.1 Analyred by measurement basis (Continuad)

{3)  Measwred ot fair value through profit or foss:

— Az ot 3 Degember
2021 2020
Carporote foons ond odwnces = 52

17.2 Analyzed by ECL assessment method

Year ended 31 December 2021

Stage | 1111
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Gross loans and advances measured

at amortized cost 16,157,097 269,446 245,78 16,672,325
Allowance for impairment losses (500.117)  [57.498)  (162,959)  (720570)
Lonns and advances to customers, net 15,656,980 211,952 82,823 15951755
Loans and advances measured ot

[air value through other

comprehensive income 502,701 a7 - 502,748
Allowance Tor impalrment bosses of

loans and advances to customers

maasured at fair value through

other comprehensive income {16,108) {9] - |16,117)

Year ended 31 December 2020
Stage | Stage 1| Stage Nl (i)
123m ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal

Gross loans and advances measured

al amaortized cost 13,995,576 325,383 237,113 14,558,072
Allowanee for impalrment losses [397,76E) {60, 700) {159 541) EElE_.JmﬂI
Loans and advances to custamers, net 13,597,808 264,683 77,572 13,940,063
Laans and advances measured at

Tair vinlu thraugh ether

comprehensive income 577972 25 - S¥7T.997
Allowance for impalrment kosses of

loans and advances to customers

measured at fair value through

oathes comprehensive incame [1%,195) (2} - [13,197)

Aeruad Mt 321 255
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 LOANS AND ADWAMCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.2 Analyzed by ECL assessment method (Continued)

The expected credit loss ("ECL”) for corporate loans and advances in stage | and stage 0, a5 well as
all personal loans and advances, wore measured in accordance with the risk parameters modelling
method. The ECL for corporate loans and advances in Stage 11l were calculated using the discounted
cash fow method. For details, see Nate IV 44.1 Credit Risk.

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance

256 @rhsenn

The movernents of loss allowance is mainly offected by:

Transfers between stages due to loans and advances to customers experiencing significant
Increases (or decreases) in credit risk or becoming credit-impaired, and the corresponding
tramafer of the measurement basis of the loss allowance between 12 months and the entire
lifetime ECL:

Allgwance for new lbans and advances 1o customers recognized;

Remeasurement includes the impact of changes in model assumptions, updates of model
parameters, chonges in probability of default and loss given default; changes in ECL due to
transfer of loans and advances to customers between stages; changes in ECL due to unwinding
of discount over time; changes in foreign exchange translations for  assets  denaminated R
foreign currencies and other movements;

Thi reversal of allowances coused by repayment, write-offs and loans and advances to customers
transferred out.
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Foo the year ended 31 Decamber 2021
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17 3 Analyred by movements in logs allawanece (Continued)

Tha following table shows the impact of above facbors on the allowance for impairment losses:

_Year ended 31 December 2021

Stage | Skage I i
Corporate boans and advances 12m ECL {§} Lifetirme ECL [I]) Total
Alanuary 2021 2E2549 53,699 135,634 471,882
Trarsler

Stage 1o stage 11 [B.33E) 6,338 - -

Stage 1l 1o stage 1l - {21,124) 21,124 -

Stage Il to stage | 2448 {2.,448) - -

Stage 0l ta stage |l - 1,151 {1,151) -
Originated or purchased financisl

ety 115,643 - - 115,643
Rameasurement 16,839 9,179 50,760 54,778
Repayment and transfer out (EL.204} {16,535) {19,730} {98,169)
W rite-offs = = [45,753) {45,753)
31 December 2021 352,237 50,250 140,884 543,381

Year ended 31 Decembaer 2021
Stage | atage 11 Stagg U

Personal loans and advanoes 12m ECL (i) Lifetime ECL [iw) Total
1 Janyary 2021 128,414 7003 3907 159,324
Tramsler:

Stage | to stage 11 [1,855) 1,833 - -

Stage 1l to stage 11 - [4,141) 4,141 -

Stage Il to stage | 2,320 {2320) = =

Stage Ul to stage Il - 1269 11,269] -
Crriginated of purchased financial

assets 65,981 - - B9 982
Remeassrement 13,434 6,830 11,106 31,370
Repayment and transfer aut (a8,263) {3,297) {2,311) {53,871)
Write-offs - - 113,489] 113,4558)
31 December 2021 163,988 7.243 12,075 193,306
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Cﬂ ntinued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyred by movements In loss allowance (Continued)

The Tollowing table shows the impact of abowe factors on the allowance for impairment losses:

{Continued]:
Year ended 31 December 2020
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il

Corporate loans and advances 12m ECL (v} Lifetime ECL [vi] Total
1 January 2020 249,600 53391 110,480 413471
Transfer:

Srape | to stage Il [3,141) 9,141 - -

Stage I Lo stage Il - [24.807) 24,807 -

Seage N o stage | 3,555 [3,555) = 2

Swage i to stage NI - 2875 (2,875} -
Originated or purchased financial

assefs Q8077 - - 92,077
Hemeasurement [4,839) 23,299 B83,387 B1,847
Repayment and transfer out (54, 703) [B.B45] [23,566) {84,914)
Write-offs - - (36,595} 136,595
31 Decernber 23020 282,540 53,699 135 634 471 882

Year ended 31 December 2020
Stage | Stage Il Stage

Personal lbans and advances 12rm ECL [wia} Lifetirme ECL {wlis} Total
1 Januwary 2020 114,445 4329 J0am 139,644
Transfer:

Stage | to stage Il [2,535) 2,535 - -

Srago I to stage 1 - |6,305) 6,305 -

Stage Il toestage | 755 |755) - -

Stage 1l to stage lI - 523 {523} -
Originated or purchased financial

assets 35,463 - - 55,463
Romgasurement 2] 11,844 1850 30,591
Repaymant and transfer out {40,3538) |5,370) {B.470} |53,998)
Write-offs = - 12,776} 112.776)
31 Decernber 2020 128,414 7003 3,907 159,324

258 | (I pmdnl

367/508



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance [Continued)

] In 2071, the chonges of the Growp's foss afowonce of corporoie lpans ond odwences W Sioge |, was
moinly driven by the et increase of obout 13K in the book Balance of the corparcte loans and odWonces
compored with 1 fanumry 2021, ond the intrease of the provision rotio.

) In H021, the chomges of the Group's foss oliowonoe of corparete loans ond odvances i Stoge [ were moindy
driven by the net decreate of about 21% in the baok balance of the conporote fsans and odvarces éa Stage
I compared with 1 fanuory 2021, i3 impact on the provision for fosses was partiplly affset by on increase in
the propartion of impeiements refated to fooas ond advances n XRXL

i 2021, the chonges of Group’s fosy afiowonce of corporote foons ond odvances in Stoge A were
mainly driven by bath the net irandfer between stoges wiich fed o o net increase of nearly 5% in the
covrespanding gross omownd oompoved with 1 Jonwvary 2021, and the increwse of proveion rotio coused by
ther Iremsfer af refewant loans and adhwroces fromm Stage N fo Stage IV, Thdis impact wod pectially affset By the
repryment, transfer out ond write-offs of corparate leans and advances,

il In 2021, the changes af the Group's fows ellowance of persanal loans and advaoaces in Stoge | were mainly
driven by Both o net increase of neardy 155 v the corespanding gross amouar, and the increase af
Brovision rablo,

faed  Im 2024, the changes in foss afowonce of the Group's personal foans ond odvonces i Stoge | weee
mimnly driven by both the net tronifer between Stageis which led o a met increase of mearly 5% in the
corespanding gross omgunt and increese in the gropartion of provision resuiting from tronsfer of relevont
lopas and odvances from Stoge | to Stoge K. Thiy impoct wos perfialy offiet by the repopment of relevant
foaas and odvances

In 2021, the chonges in foss oflowande of the Group's pevsonal loams ond advanees in Stoge W weee
minly driven dy both the net trangfer between Stages which led ta @ net decrease of neary 5% in the
covrespanidiag gross omownt gng increase in the propartion of provison reswiting from rronsfer of redevanr
lpgns erd odvences from Stage W o Stage WL This impect was offsel povbially by the repoymend, tranifer our
and write-pffs of relevont ioons and advences.

fed  dn 2030, the prowislon rode of the Group's corporate lomns and advances e Stoge | remurined stabde. The
changes of the Group's loss alawange of carporete foons end advances @ Soge | wene maindy driven by @
et increase of mearly 13% in the corresponding gross amount.

e} In 200, the charges of the Group's loss sliowonce of corparete loans and odvances in Stoge ) were moindy
drfven by @ small increose of the provishon rate of the Group’s covporate loans and advances in Stoge
il There was no sigrificant change in the gross amount of Stoge If corporote loans ond odvonces os af
3! December 2020 compared to 1 januory 2020

In 220, the chonges of Group's foss afiowence of corporode foons and odvonces in Stoge I were
moinly driven By both the net tronsfer between stopes which led to o net increase of neorly 28% in the
correiponding gross omoont, ond the net tronsfer in from Stoge ) and subsequent  remeosurement. This
impact wos partiolly offser by che repopment, tronsfer oul ond wrte-offs af Stoge IV corparnle loans aad
advinces.

feil  In 20M0, the prowsion role of the Group's persondl lomns ond cdvances fn Stoge | remained stobile. The
charges of the Group’s loss olowarce of personel loens end odvances in Stoge | were madnly dnven o net
increase of medanly 15% in the corrgdponding grods amount.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyred by movements In loss allowanece (Continued)
feld)  im 2020, the chonges i foss affowsace of the Growp's personal ipans ond odvonces o Stage # were
mainly driven by both the net froager between Stages which fed [0 o met increase of reorly 24% in the

correspanding gross omownt and the net trovisfer in from Stage | ond subsequent remecswrement. Fhis
impact was offset portioly by the repapment of Stoge I persanod feons and odvances.

im 2020, the chonges in foss offowonoe of the Group's penono! oens ond odvorces im Stoge @ were
muoiniy driven by both the net tronsfer behween Stoges which jed fo a net increase of reorly 218 in the

correspanding grass amownd ond the net transfer in from Stoge ¥ and  sub b FERRaEUTETER . This
impact wis offset portially by the repayment, tronsfer oul omd weibe-offs -:f.i'mpt H-l perional fooai and
mdvinces.

18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Notes 2021 2020
Financial assets at fair value theough prolit or loss 181 460,241 583,069
Debt instrument investments at amortized oost 152 B.372,522 5,684,220
Other debt instrument and other equity investments
__at fair value through other comprehensive income 183 1,397,280 1,555,370
Total £,230,043 7,822,650
18.1 Financial assets at folr value through profit or loss
ND_I:E! I_I?I]. ED:J.EI
Financial assets held for trading (1} 159,382 23,960
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (2h 298,546 260,240
Financial assets dosignated at fair value through
profit or loss 3 2,313 98,865
Total 460,241 583,065
Analyzed as:
Listed in Hong Kong 5,409 41,613
Listed autside Hong Kong 1k} 306,454 390,444
Unlisted 148,378 188,012
Total 460,241 583,068

(il Dwbt securithes troded on the Ching Domestic tnter-bank Bond Market are fncluded in “Usted owlside
Horg Kong®.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.1 Financial assets ot foir valve through profit or loss [Continued)
(1} Finarcial assets held for trading

— Az 3t 31 Dogembar

2021 2020

Debt securities issued by
Governments 8,925 7504
Public sectorand quasi-governments 25,144 40,764
Financial Institutions BB, 800 79,243
Corporates 25,268 45,614
Subtotal 128,137 1B2,525
Precsous metal conteacts 21,389 41,959
Equity 5,279 4,544
Fund and others 4,577 14 532
Total 159,382 223,960

(2} Other financial assers ar falr value through profit or loss (i)
Az 3t 3] December

2021 2030

Dbt securities issued by
Public sector and gquasi-governmisnts 12,636 25,372
Financial institiutang 131,578 106,820
Corporates B45 1,816
Subtotal 154,859 134,008
Equuity 104,676 97,401
Fund and others 19,011 28,831
Tatal 298,546 260,240

[l Other financiol assets of foir wvolie througph prafit or boss refer to finoncind oisets that do Aot gualify
Jor measurement at AC or FUOC! and are nob held for troding, incuding Band investments, equity
intenedds, funds, frust plans ood fesel management roducts of the Growp,

(3}  Finarcial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (i}

8] i
2021 2020
Debt securities issued by
Governmants - 9,440
Public sector and quasi-governments - 18,071
Fimancial institutéons. 1,009 32,456
Corporates 1,304 3,859
Subtotal 2,313 63,866
Placements with and loans to banks and
other finantial institutions - 27,835
Others - 7,068
Tatal 2,313 98,869

il Weolth monogement products with princiool guovanteed by the Group desigroted of  foir  valine
Imﬁ profir or lets hove Been setfied befare Dacember 31, 2021,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18 2 Debt instrument investments ot amortized cost

TR TV St i s 208
Debt secwrities issued by;
Governments 4,117,564 3,545,856
Public sector and quasi-gevernments 1,506,965 1,311,556
Financial institulions 145,826 204,310
Corparates 100,576 119,718
Subtotal of debt securities 5,870,931 5,191,460
Receivable from the MOF i} 280,891 180,891
Special gevernment bonds (1] 93,340 93,348
Others (i} 13,463 14,413
subtotal 6,268,625 5,590,112
Accrued interest 122,924 110,212
Allowance for impairment losses [19,027) [16,104)
Dbl instrument imestiments at amortided cost, net 6,372,522 5,684,220
Analbyred as:
Listed in Hong Kong 19,504 19,630
Listed outside Hang Kong {iw) 5,882,053 5,304,920
Unlisted 470,475 359,610
Total 6,372,522 5,684,220

il The Group received @ potice from the MOF in Jomary 2020, clolfving that from | Joowary 2020, the
interest rate of the uwnpaid peyments wil be verified pear by pear based an the rote of retuen of the five-yeor
frecsury bond of the aredous yeor,

il Speial gevermment bond refers 1o the nen-tronsfersbie bond isued by the MOF i 1998 in the oggregated
principal amount of AMBZAF Bilon to the Predecessor Entity for copitol replenishment, The bong  will
muture ¢ 2028 and beors faterest of a ficed rote of 2.25% per annam, starting fram 1 December 2008

i} Orher debi instruements clossified a5 receivebies are primarily refored foo investment o unconsodidared
structured eafities held by the Grovp (Note IV 22{2)).

Wl Dwebd securities roded on the Ching Domestic foter-bank Bord Market ore included (n “Listed  outside
Horg Kong®.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINAMNCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.2 Debt instrument Investments at amortized cost (Continued)

(1} Analyzed by assessment method of ECL

— Yeoar gnded 31 December 2021

Stage | age il
12m ECL Lifatime ECL Tatal
Grogs debt instrument
imvestments a1 amortized eost 5,389,720 548 1,281 5,391,549
_Allowance fof impairment losses (17.764) = 11,263} (19,027}
Debt instrument Investments
at_gmortized cost, net 5,371,956 548 18 6,372,522

Stage | Stage Il Stage 11l
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
Gross dabt Instrument
imdestments at amortized cost 5,697,187 2,064 1,073 5,700,324
Allowanee for impairment lasses (14 850§ {190) 11,064) (16,104}
Debt instrument investments
n 2,337 7.

Dbt inttrument investments at amortited cost in stage || and stage Nl mainly incheded
carparates band and ather debt instruments inwestments

(2} Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (i)

Yoar gnded 31 Decgmbgr 2021

Stage | Stage | Stagg W
’ e ihen ] e B i

1 January 2021 14 850 150 1,064 16,104
Transfer:

Stage | transfer to stage 1l (1) 1 - -

Stage | tranafer bo stage 11 [§1] - 1 -

Stage 1 transfer to stage W - 7 7 -

Stage I transfer to stage | an (EL] - -
Originated or purchased financial

assets 3,996 - - 3,996
Reméxiufement 586 (1] 191 76
Maturitios or transfer out [1,696) [153) - {1,843)
31 Decomber 2021 17,764 - 1,263 19,027
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Cﬂntinued]
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.2 Debt instrument investmonts ot amortized cost (Continued)

{2}  Analyzed by movements in loss allowarnce (i} {Continued)

rended 31 Decemberd020

Stage | Stage Il Stage il
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
1 Janwsary 2020 8,409 32 1,047 9,488
Transfer:
Stage | ransfer to stage Il [33) 33 - -
Driginated ar purchased financial
assels 4,321 = - 4,311
Remeasurement 3,295 126 144 3,565
Maturitiees or transder out {1.142) [N ] - [1,143})
Write-offs - - {127) (127}
11 Decamber 20720 14,850 190 1,064 16,104

[0 Asat 3] December 2021, the increases of the Groug's lass allowmace af debt instrument nvestments
at amorhized cost wele meinly due to the inerease of debt instrument investments and the
remeasurement of remained dedl instrement yvestments i the yeor. The deoreases of the Group's
loss plowance of debt instrument investments of omartited cost were moinly die to matriies  oF
transfer out of debd fstrument ineesfments.

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity investments ot foir value through other
comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 Decembear 2021

Cumulative
amount of
change im fair
Amortized walue that
cost of delbst is accrued
instrwmentsf to ather Cumulative
cost of equity comprehensive amaount of
Notes  instruments Falr value Income impairment
Debt instruments 1) 1,373,040 1,392,691 18,651 {10,761)
Equity instruments 12) 3,480 4,589 1,109 MiA
Total 1,376,520 1,397,280 20,760 {10,761}

Year ended 31 December 3020

Cumulative
amaunt af
change in fair
Amortized walue that
cost of debt is accrued
instruments/ to other Cumulative
cost of eguity comprehansive amount of
Maotes instrurnents Fair value Inceme imgairment
Duobt instrumants (1) 1,537,987 1,551,439 13,452 (10,074)
Equity instruments 17 2,784 1,931 1,147 M/
Total 1,540,771 1,555,370 14,599 (10,074}
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity investments at fair value through ather
comprehensive income (Continued)

{1} Debt instruments

fa) Anpiyred by measurement bazis

As at 31 December

MNote 2021 2020
Dbt securities ssued by:
Governments 649,753 702,202
Public sector and quasl-governments 241,628 242,345
Fimancial institutions 364,339 453,176
Corporates 105,803 119,079
Subtotal 1,361,723 1,516,202
Others. li} 16,861 18,902
Subtotal of debt instruments 1,378,584 1,535,704
Accrued interest 14,107 15,735
Total 1,392,691 1,551,438
Anabyzred as:
Listed in Hong Kong 131,184 102,413
Listed outsice Hong Kong 1,186,801 1,399,150
Unlisted 74,706 49,876
Taotal 1,392,691 1,551,439
fil Others peimarily imclucle ts i unconsoideied structured ennities held by the Group

(Ngbe IV 40201 swch as trust investment glens and debl imvestmenm plans,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity Investments ot fair value through ather
comprehensive incame (Continued)

{1} Debt instruments (Continued)

(B} Analyred by assesiment method of ECL

Year anded 31 Decembar 2021
Stage | Stage Il Stage 1l Total
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
Oibher ceb Instrumenits at
Tair value through other
comprehansiveingome 1,390,789 1,870 2z 1,352,651
Allcwance forimaairment kisses {10.957) {183) [115) [10,761)
_ Yearended 31 December 2000
Stage |  Sugell il Total
. 13m ECL Letime ECL
Oithes debt instruments at
fair vaiue theough other
omprehensive ingoms 1,545,343 6,030 [} 1,551,439
Allowanon forimpairment losses 19,536) 1432) 1106] {10,074)

Other debt instruments at fair value through other comprebensive income In stage I and
stage Il mainly included financial institutions bond and corporates bond

265 (DTwtan
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINAMNCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity investments at fair value through ather
comprehensive income (Continued)

{1} Debt instruments {Continued)]

e}  Analyzed by movements in loss allowonce (i)

Year ended 31 Decembser 2021

Stage | Stage il Stage i Tatal
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
1 lanuary 2021 9,536 432 106 10,074
Transfer:
Stage 1 iransfer to stage || [HE=1] 188 - -
Stage Il transter to stage | 7 [307] - -
Driginated or purchased
firancial xssets 4,E09 - - 4 509
R asirement [50) F] 9 139}
Maturties or transfer ou 13,957] (126] - (4,083)
31 Decermnber 2021 10,457 189 115 10,761
Year ended 11 December 2030
Stage | Stage || 1il Total
13m ECL Lifatime ECL
1lanuary 2020 B6ATA - 23 baaT
Transfir:
Stage | transfer to stage Il (2113 111 - -
Originated ar purchased
financial assots 4055 - . 4,055
Aemaas e ment 1029 1] po i) 1340
Maturities ar trarsher out §2,211) - (7} [321%)
31 Decernber 2020 9,536 a3z 106 10,074

fij Az of 31 December 2021, the increases af the Growp’s ioss allfowence of ather debt fnstrument
investments af foir velue through other comprebentive coeme were mainly due fo the increase
of debi fmstrument fevestaments in the peor. The decreases of e Group's doss alfoweice af
arfeer gl msfrument nvestmenls af fair welue through other compreheniive  income  wene
maindy due o modunlies oF andfer ow! of debf instrument invesiments and the remesivrdément
of remizingef dledal nsteument fwvesiments,

(&)  Eguity instrumenits

at mber

2021 2020
Financial institutions 4,448 3,811
Other enterprises 141 10
Total 4,589 3,931
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES

1)

268 @rrenn

Investment in subsidiaries

The Tollowing are the principal subsidiaries of the Bank a% at 31 December 2011:

Peresizge of Perrestags of
Dutedl Place of ety g

incorponationy  Incerperition) uthoszed) interet rights Prircigal
Name al estity Matss  slbisbrest  establdment  paidon cagital 1% % thitie
China Agreultural Fnanee INowimber 1988 Moog Kong PRC  HEDISEE TROO00 i) 10000 ieatmert hokding
Ca, isd.
ABC Mntematicnal Hokings INeimber 2000 Fog Kong. PRC PRDMLLILIHIAR ] 10000 st hoding
Limitsd
ABC FinancialiLeaiing B30 Panghel PR RMES000G000 g 10000 Frundal lening
Lo, ixd,
Agrioubural Bark ol Ching (UK} 19Navemeer 011 londee,  USDOX00.0CT fleclii] mm Eanitng
Limited Usked sgdom
ABC-CA Fusd Management IEMxch 008  Sanghal PRC  RMELT50,000001 SLET SLET  Fund munagemen
o, l1d.
ABC Hlesigten Raral Back 12 Aupusi 208 farer Wongoka P RMB1S,600000 nm L Baritng
Lirsted Liab ity Company
ABC Hobesi Hanchusnual Beoy ] 12 Ausgust 2008 febei, P80 RMER1000000 1M BT Barking
Limited Liabiby Company
ABC o Aural Bank Limated Libivy 15 Way 2010 Mokl PRC  RMAREAD0000 no s Earicng
Company
ABC Brsal Rural Bank Umited 30 Warch 3050 Pawl BT RMS0000000 5im 5L Eariung
Lty Company
ABC Ehefiang Yonghang Rural Sank Mipri 2312 D PRC  EMEIIC000000 £ 5L Bariing
Limited Liabkty ompany
ABC Xigmaen Tong anfieral Sani 14 Way 212 Fugon, PRC INS150,000000 il 5L00 Sanitng
Limitesd Liabity Company
ABC Life Inpemance Co., Lid 19 Deoomber 1005 Bepng PRC  RMEC, 55516475 S sum Liwinssancn
Agrititeral Bark of (hirg 16 Neymmmbee 0114 lumrboug, LR 260,500 leili] mm Barlong
[lanprriboong] Limiteg Lereribg
Apriuitural Bark of (hira Hilecember M4 Mosow, Rumia  AUBT 5560580 1000 1Mm Barlry
|Mascow] Limiced
ABC Financhil At ivesimest W LA 2007 Berg, RO RMMBN, 000000000 L0003 100,00} Dot -t2-eequity wwag
Lo, g, nd nelated penicel
Agrioshral Bask of Ohing Waath 251y 2018 Befing PRC  RAABED 000,000,000 1] 10000 Wealth
Mansgemet o, Lid. Managerrest

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, there were no changes i the
proportion of equity interest or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries.

] Two of the three directors on the boord of ARC Hwbe! Honchuan Rural Bonk Limited Limhility Company were

appainted by the Bank The Bank concluded that it hos effective cantral over and has included ths eatity in
Its consaticdalion scope.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CuﬂtiﬂUEd}
15 INVESTMENT IMN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES {Continued)
(1) lavestment in subsidiares (Continued)

(4} @n 31 December 2013, the Bank orquired 51% of the aeed shone copdnal of dake Life insuronoe Co., Lol
and renomed # os ABC Life inzrance Co, Ltd, (TABC Life inswrance™] The Group recognized goodund of
RMEL 5] mitlion ai @ result of this oogwisition, Duving the yeor ended 31 Decernber 2016, the Bonk and
other investors contributed odditrional copitod tofoling RA83, 761 miflon fo ABC Life fnseronce, compriging
rigistered capifof of RMBS1 7 million end capito! resene of AWEE 88 mitfan After the copitod injection, he
propoftion of equely intevest and woling rights the Bank held o ASC Life awsance remained af 1%

The Hank tests the impairment of goodwdl anaeally, When pedgforming the impoirment test, the  Bank
compares the coarmping omount of the oiiets (iicuding goodwil and the wale of the mergers  aad
acquisitions affer deduction of omortizotion) with the recoveroble omound. The excess of eovrping amaunt
over recoverable amovnt i3 fecogmized in profit o loss of the current period,

The recovermbie monnt of the ossets is bosed on odjusted net mssets, valwe of in-force business, valve of
one year of aew busineds, new busimess muiltiolier, oad other dato appvoved by ihe monogemend af ABC
Life Insivance, The actuans valvotion method i ooplied and the dik disoount fate, relirm an mvestment,
veluation difcownt role, and other prumphions odopted to forecost cosh  flows  respectively  reflect  the
speciflic risks gssociated with them,

As at 31 Decernber 2021 and 31 December 2020, there wos no abjective evidence nated for ony goodwl
impairement, and oo angeirmen D55 was recognlied,

(il The Bank increased the shive copital of ABC Finonciol Adsel feedbment Co. Lid by RMBI0 Dilion o of
25 Jonvary 2021, and the proportian of equily interest ond voling rights the Bonk held in this swbsidiony
revnained af 100X,

{2) Structured entitics

The Group also consolidated structurad entities as disclosed in Note IV 41 Structured Entities.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeas ended 31 December 2021
[Amnounts im mil lioes of Renminbi, unless ot heravien stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND IOINT VENTURES
(1} Investment in assoclates

Date of Flatenl Fergeige o Prreiage of

Name of ertity Netes  eitabllshmert  establichment aptal 1%l #tivees

SrodorgoleceBank of Mrics [ M1 frarlleCongo  AFS3 147 400,000 500 .00 Eark

Shenthén Yuaniedehal ho. 6 (7] MI5 Guaagiong PRC  AMELLIEES000 3 H00  Egultyisvsinet,

Ivetment Exteiprhe i)

|Lirrited Parinerskip) R

Eurtre T, advaony

e

Beijing Cuofa Aeso Engine 0] sl Befing FRC  AMBE 341,100,000 L3 0.0 Boe-sepurities

Industry Iwmibment Fund et b

Center |Limited Parinershap] i relaied adviisny

Lo

fin Henggekawing biw Eseigy  [3] Nin W PRC MRS RS 500000 BN puilii} R

Brterrtile Fund Invistraen Inartment actisitie

Wanagemin Cenier rened advitory

{Limited Parinerskip] e

Kenyian [Bejng) Debrtaz-foity 3] b Betjng PR AVER 000000000 1567 W1 Egeeylvemest

Sperial Eauly lirvestaent

Cerver |Limited Partnershig]

Rational Green Development (] XM Suasghs PRC  RMESE 500,000,000 S O Eody swsiner,

Fund Ca, Ltd ot imestmen

d inveumeni

[IACEEITETE,

fal On 28 Moy J015 the Sino-Congolese Bamk of Africo (Lo Bonque Sino-Congolaise pouwr  Afrigue,
harginafrer referred to g BECA Bankl, eifablabed by the Beak and other mvditon with auibosied copitel
oenomunated in Ceafrel Africon CF4 fronc [“KAFTE was gronted the required’ banking hicense by the foco!
reguishesy authoriry, The Bank hedfs SO squily infevres! and voting rights in BSCA, Benk, ong hes the fight
to participate in the finmocial and openations! deciiond of B5CA. Bank, but doed not conibitvte controd oF
Joirt control over thase deciions.

il The Bank's wholl-owned subsiclory, ABC Fimancrel Assel fvestment Co, [tdl and other fveitors invested
iy the obove menboned erterperices. The Grown has the sight fo porticpate in the foonckal ond opemtionm
decisions of these enferprines, but does mof Constilune oonliod oF joint fontrol ovev those decisions.

fatl  The Bonk wos moproved te porticipate (n the investment (0 Notional Green Development Fund Co., Lid, in 2021

The Beank holch 0,.04% equity imlerest eod has the dght fo pavticipate i the facaciol ead cperationr deciions,
bwt dors net constitute control or jJomt contral over those feosions

270 @hrunenn
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021
[Amounts im millions of Renminbs, anless of he revion statied |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

{2) Investment in joint ventures

Date of Placedl Pesertaga ol Parouriage of
reaporon|  inoarpanstion/ lottoried  pguity mheret  watingrighs Frintigal
Hame of entity cabihmert  etablivmeat apitdl [ gﬁj wtivtin
g lequansahe State-owned it} Tangs, PR g, 0Ox) o, 0061 1] 5 Ty mstment
Emerprise Mied Dwrershig Rzform debioequityind
Fund [Limited Partseshig| relbed fuppentag.
il
Rongjis Gaotou [Hubes) Debt-to-Eouty i Hbel BC  EMBSD0. 000,000 ] BB Monsenrties equly
vestment Fund el Khite
|Uimited Fartnenship| and elated advbory
AR
Suidy [lming) Fvesimmi s Thejang, PRC  AME 300,000,000 an 00 indstrisl nesment
|Lvitesd Pareresihi|
franmg ok N Sl Anad ivesiment ma Theiing PRC  AMEL 500,000,000 BRET SI00 it e
Fund | Lirited Partze-thip| and egaty
mimen
Thejiang New Power Fund it} Thefiang PRC AR 000,000,000 5000 S0 il et
|Linwted Pastagstthin)| sd oty
et
Insser Mogolis Mengringrub MIE It Mosgsls,  RMEZ.D00000,000 5000 S0 Eguy et
Deweinarrest Fund levestment M imemant
Letar (Limied Parnership] matagemert
et ik
ik
Shanghal Gunhua (N1& Gas Fquity e fhanghal, 282 RWAE] B0 000,000 BRET S0 Egutyimese,
Iewestmest Fund, Lid ekt ioequtyand
redsied spgering,
v
Nangrefean [laxng) bguy W Delnp Rl RMBSDNOE mx 51 Irvstrestand
| v Fartmesship| maETr
Rarminining hiiretnaciue Tquly fiiit] Tuegin, MO AMEL 500000000 no A0 Epelyregnes
vestmet (Tiarjie| furd # invesment
{Limted Partretihip| maigrTEst
Shaari Suibe eguity imitment fund k] Shaarmi, PR RS0, 0001, B0 5080 o Equtymersimen
partnesship {Lmited Farmaeeihi|
Shanghal Dianbousuihe Equity i Thanghal, 2L LMECE (000,000,000 L1l41] 5100 indgrtralimesimen,
imwesimeest Fune el Svenment
[Limited Fartaenihip| e
\oeuation senvces
Ningha Subheyergihasg Eguity i Thejang, BT RME 000,000,000 500 LT T o E
rasETenl it
[Limites Paftnershin]

272 (pinuany
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decermber 2031
|Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wips othensise dated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CEJ ntinued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES |Continued)
(2) Investment in joint ventures (Continued)

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, ABC Financial Assets Investment Co., Lwd. and other
investors  established the above-mentioned entities, According to the agreements, matters
considered at the Meeting of Partners or investment decision-making committee  shall  be
approved by the unanimous consent of all the partners o all the committee members. The
Group constitutes joint contral over the financial and sperational decisions of these limited
partnerships with the othes insestors.

21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Elmctronic
equipment,
furniture and Mator Construction
Bulldings fitures wehicles  In progress Total

Cogl:

1 January X021 185,794 66,118 14,721 7,349 273,982

Additons 4,820 6,161 1,864 7443 20,288

Transfers inflout) 4,482 592 194 (5.268) -
_ Dispasats (5787)  (5.955) (381) (8 (314

31 December 2021 185,300 B5,906 16,398 8516 281,139

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2021 [72,476) [46,282) {3,718) - [122.478)

Charge for the year (6,801} [5,951) [771) - (13,523)

Disposals 1,672 6,509 ar - 8,560

11 Decamber 2021 {77,605) (45, 724) {4,110} = {127.430)

Allowance for impabrmant kesses:

1 Janary 2021 (262) (2] (47} {34) [352)

Impairment loss 8} w [26) = [44)

Disposals - 3 F] - 5

31 December 2021 {270} (6] {81} {34} [391)

Canrying value:

1 January 2021 113,056 19,827 10,956 7,315 151,154

31 December 2021 111,434 20,176 12,207 5,483 153,299

Aerruad et 2031 12T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Electronic
equipment,
furniture and Maotar  Construction
Bulldings Tortures vehicles _In progress Tokal

Cost:

1 January 2020 193,465 67,116 13,364 4321 278,266

Additions #9186 7,060 1,519 5,484 18,961

Transfers inflaut] ekl 1,289 23 (2,445} -

Dispasaly {13,522) {9,347} |385) 11} [23,265)

31 December 2020 165,754 65,118 14721 7,345 273,982

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2030 173,609) [48 465} [3,393) - {135,467}

Charge for the year [B.762) {6,015} [634) - [13.411)

Disposals 7,885 3,198 s = 16402

31 December 2020 |72.476] (46,282} [3,718) = {122,476}

allowance for impairment bosses:

1 January 2020 [265] {18} £ ELTS 315§

Iimpalrment koss - - fa) = (43)
Disposals 3 7 2 - 12

31 December 2020 [262] {9 {47) {34) {352)

Carrying value;

1 January 2030 119,591 18,635 9971 4,287 152,484

31 December 2020 113,056 19827 10,956 7315 151,154

According to the relevant laws and regulations, subsequent o the Bank's transformation into a joint stock
company, the legal title of properties previously held by the Predecessor Entity are to be transferred to the
Bank. As at 31 December 2021, the registration transfer process of these transferred properties and ather
certain properties have not been completed. Management believes that the incomplete registration transfer
process does not affect the rights of the Bank as the legal successor 1o those assets or adversely alfect the
Bank®s aperation.

21 DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation In the consolidated statement of financial position, cemain deferred tax
assels and habilities have been offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
folkowing is the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

2021 2020
Delerred 1ax assets 143,027 133,355
Defisrred Lax liabilities {655} {334)
Net 142,372 133,021

Aenual feport 3021 273
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For the yeas ended 31 December 3021
[Arnounts im millices of Renminks, anless of e radiss siated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22 DEFERRED TAXATION {Continued}

[§4]

{2

274 @ewseni

The follewing are the movements and major deferred tax assots and labilities recognized:

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Fairsties
Alwranee for leosed Ealy shanges of
mpuirrert bt onpod fetTe Fnancial
lets  otalf cout bemefin  Fovsion  inirunests Othey Tetal
1 karvary 121 128548 HA% k) 10505 [[ENIE] L] 133,021
et fcharge) b2 the coesclclaled
inoome slatenient WlLs e {8 et il [Ty 101
Crecit 12 orher comprohens v Fcome - - - - [l - [2,58)
31 December 2021 155,053 1.3 m L {E.87 1R L&, 5
Faraig
Kirwarce for lomed Ewty anges of
epameen bt unpad TR franoa
L] slall e berefity Frosision FETUmT (hen Tetal
1 Bty 2020 114,143 R AT, 53 754 (11303 b a2
Credil[ieharge 82 the pongolbdated
intome slatement 104 L5 [145) LES 184 m 10,108
Credit 19 other comprobersove ncome - - - - L8 - 138
31 December 2020 1158 HAK ] 1055 (10718 455 133,01

Deferred income 1ax assets{liabdlities) and related wmporany differences, belfore offwetting qualifying
amounis, ame attributasble to the following ilems:

Beductible/ Deductible)
({taxahble] Deferred {taxable) Deferred
temparary tax assets/ lomparany tax assets)
differences {liabilities) dilferences (liabilitiesh
Deferred tax assets
Allawance for impairmant losses 544 441 136,058 487,775 121,944
Fair valus changes of financial
instrurments 18,267 T.0B7 58,107 14,527
Accrued but unpald stalf cost 47,379 11,844 41,705 10,426
Pravision 33,809 B,452 42,100 10,525
Early retiremant bonefits 1,088 272 1,551 388
Others T80 182 1,827 456
_Subtotal 655,764 163,896 633,065 158,266
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of financial
imstruments (B6,403) (21,524) (100,281} [25,245)
Subtotal 186,404} [21,524) (100,581} [25,245)
Met 560,360 142,372 532,084 133,021
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foo the year ended 31 Decamber 2021
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23 OTHER ASSETS

—As at 3} December

Motes 2021 2020
Accounts recehvable and temparary payments 75,176 97,619
Land use rights 1) 20,354 14,340
Right-of-use assets 12] 10,191 10,196
Intangibde assois 6,188 4,154
Long-term deferred expenses 1,718 2,233
Imvestmant properties 2,018 2,529
Interest receivable 1,836 3,070
Foreclosed assets 899 716
Fremiums receivable, reinsurance receivable and resenmes 659 655
Others 15,567 10,780
Tatal 135,636 151,292

(1) According fo redevonl fows end reguigbions, subieguent to the Sank's tronsformotion mbo @ joint sock. company,
famd use rights previously held by the Fredecessor Enbity ooe fo be tronsgferred (0 the Boak, As af 31 December 2021,
the segistrotion trondfer process of cerfam fand use rights hes nof been completed. Manogemient believes  that the
{acomplete registration fransfer process does not affect the rights of the Bank os the legol successor ho  those jond
use rights

{2 ds ot 31 December 2021, the right-of-vee assels recognided by the Group mainly include buiidings, ond ore
maindy used for dodly business, The gepreciation sxpense for the wear ended 31 December 2021 was amownting to
AMEZ 952 million [for the year ended 3] December 2020: RAMB3, 99T mithonl, ond the ecceminated depreciation
ompurhing fe BAAES, 803 milion (11 Decermber 2020: RMEZ 351 milkon)

24 BORROWINGS FROM CENTRAL BANKS

As al 31 December

= 2021 2020
Borrawings Tfrom central banks 140,629 730146
Accrued interest 6,584 7.015
Total Fa7,213 737,161
25 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

&

2021 2020
Deposits from:

Domestic bamks 167,300 114,693
Other domestic financial institutions 1,401,314 1,229,313
Onierseas banks 3,33z 2,006
Other overseas financial institutions 41,446 42,691
Subtatal 1,613,352 1,388,703
Accrued Interest 8,974 5,813
Total 1,622,366 1,394,516

Aenual feport 3021 279
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3021
[Ammoants im mdlliges of Renminks, anleas of heradon sated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As ot 31 December

2021 2020

Placements Irom:
Domastic banks and other financial institutions 129,317 212,377
Cwverseas banks and other financial institutions 161.119 167,291
Subtatal 290,436 189,668
Accruad interest BET q92
Total 291,105 390,660

27 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LO55

_ As at 31 December

- — - — —_——— Hm =m1 zn':n
Financial Nabilities held for trading

Preclous metal contracts 15,646 13,725

Subtotal 15,546 13,725
Financial liabifities designated at fair value

thraugh prafit or loss

Placements from banks and other Hinandal

institutions by principal guaranteed wealth management [1] - 9,540

Liakilities of the controlled structured entities 114 4,452

Othiars - 100

Subrotal 214 14,092
Total 15,860 27,817

(i) The Group designates placements frovm borrks and ather finamdal mattutions by principal graronteed wealth
munagement oi financlof Tebifities of fidr volve Ehrowgh profit or foss.

Far the current ond priar year, there were Ao significoat ehenges in the fole value of the Gredp's fingacis Nobvties
desigamted ot fair walie throwgh prafft or lods attrbutable to the changes in the Growp’s own credit risk.

28 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As st 31 December

2021 2020

Analyred by type of collateral:
el securities 31,288 107,844
Bills 4,720 1,325
Subtotal 36,018 109,165
Acerued interast 15 26
Total 36,033 109,195

The callateral pledged undér repurchase agreement it disclosed n Mote IV 42 Contingent Liabilities and
Commitments — Collateral.

276 @rsenn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
29 DUETO CUSTOMERS

As_at 31 December

Nate 2021 2020
Demand deposits
Corporale Customers 5.383.210 5,236,566
Individual customers 5,942,411 5.872,736
Time deposits
Corporate customers 1,761,506 2477710
Individual eustomars 7,000,805 6,062,167
Pledged deposits (311 339,588 299,962
Othiers 167,933 158,231
Subtatal 21,595,453 20,107,372
Accrued interest 311,674 265,529
Tolal 21,907,127 20,372,901

{11 Analyzed by activity 1o which pledged deposits are related to:

Az ot 31 December

2021 2020
Trade finance 127,012 100,822
Guarantee and letters of guarantee 75,099 73.606
Bank acorptance &6,418 48,718
Latters of crodit 32,548 39,309
Othars 38,111 37.507
Total 339,588 299,962

{21  As at 31 December 2011, the principal-guarantesd WhPs has fully settied at maturity, the difference
between the fair value of the structured deposits designated at fair value through profit or loss
issued by the Group and the contractual amount payable to the holders of these products  upoen
maturity was not material. As at 31 December 2020, the difference between the fair value of the
principal-guaranteed WMPs and the structured deposits designated at fair value through profit or
loss lssued by the Group and the contractual amount payable to the holders of these products upon
maturity was not material. As at 31 December 2021, due to customers measured at amortized cost
of the Group amounted to RMB21.854.821 million (31 December 2020: RMB20,031,232 million],
due to customers measured at fair value through profit or less of the Group amounted to
RMBS52,306 million |31 December 2020: AMA3I41,669 million).

30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Motes 2021 2020
Bonds issued iy 420,813 430,703
Certificates of deposit lssued i) 262,272 252,569
Other debt securities issved (3] Bl6,321 679,261
Subtotal 1,499,406 1,352,533
Accruad Interest 8,251 9,312
Taotal 1,507,657 1,371,845

Aeruad Nt 328 2FT
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[Ammoants im mdlliges of Renminks, anleas of heradon sated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

Asg at 31 Decembser 2021 and 31 December 2020, there was no default on the principal, interest ar
redemption related to any debt securities issued by the Group,

(&3]

278 @rhssnn

Bonds issued

Az at 31 Decembar
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Naotes 2021 2020

1.25% USD fived rate Green Bonds

maturing in January 2026 i} 1,913 -
5.30% subordinated fived rate bonds

maturing in lune 2026 (1] - 50,000
4 090% subordinated fived rate bonds

maturing in December 2027 [[51] 50,000 50,000
4.45% Tier-two capital fized rate bonds

maturing in October 2027 [1] 40,000 40,000
4.45% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in April 2028 (L] 40,000 40,000
4_2B% Tier-two capital fised rate bonds

maturing in March 2024 (1] 50,000 50,000
4.30%Tler-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing In April 2029 [E ] 40,000 40,000
3.10% Yier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing In April 2030 {wsll) 40,000 40,000
4.53% Tier-two capital fived rate bonds

maturing in March 2034 {ix} 10,000 10,000
4.63% Tier-two capita! fixed rate bonds

maturing in April 2034 (L] 20,000 20,000
Medium term notes issued (i} 56,305 42,643
1.99%, fixed rate financial bonds maturing in Apeil 2023 | i} 20,000 20,000
33E% fixed rate financial bonds maturing in Apsil 2024 {xili} 20,000 -
3.68% CNY fined rate Green Bonds

maturing in Jung 3022 (it} 2,770 2,720
3.90% fixed rate financial bonds

maturing in November 2023 {x) 2,000 1,650
3.06% fixed rate financial bonds

maturing in August 2024 (i} 2,500 -
3.30% fixed rate financial bonds

maturing in September 2022 [l 3,870 3,870
2.66% fixed rate linancial bonds

maturing in March 2023 (v} 4,000 4,000
4.70% fixed rate capital replenishment bonds

maturing in August 2021 {xix} - 2,410
3.00% fixed rate financial bonds

maturing in Saptember 2024 x| 2,000 2,000
2.75% fixed rate financial bonds

maturing in March 2025 {wxk} 6,000 5,000
3.B0% fixed rate financial bonds maturing in June 2025 [wlil} 500 00
4.10% fixed rate financial bonds maturing in April 2026 [wsli} 1,100 -
I.80% fixed rate linancial Bonds maturing in lune 2026 fmtlvf 3,040 -
5.55% fixed rate capital replenishment bonds

maturing in March 2028 [EE] 3,500 3,500
3.60% fixed rate capital replenishment bonds

maturing in Mareh 2030 (i} 1,500 1,500
Total nominal value 420,958 430,753
Less: Unamortized lssuance cost and discounts {145} {aa)
Total 420,813 430,703
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)
{1) Bonds issued [Continued)

Fursuant ta the approsal by relevant regulatory suthorities, the bonds issued by the Group are set oul
a4 below:

] The LE0 green bands issied in Jonoovy 20900 bowe o tenor of § pears, with o fied coipon rote 1L2SH
payibte semib-onnuaiy.

ffl  The srbordinated ficed rote bonds issued in fune 3011 hove a tenor of 15 years, with o fived covpon rate of
5.30%, poyabie onavally. The Bank hos redeemed of of the bonds of foce soive on 6 jJune 2021

i The subardineted fixed rofe bonds issued m December 2010 Rave o tenor of 15 years, with g fixed coupan
rote of 4.99%, payoble amnealy. The Bonk has an option o redeem af of tie bonds of foce wvalwe on
19 December 2022 if the Bk did mal esercite this oplion, the coupon fate of the hands would remaim ar
A.09% per aanur frovn 20 December 2002 onwards.

el The Tier-fwo cogdtal bonds fGewved n Octaber 2017 hove o fenor of I0 years, wilh o fixed cougon role
of d45% poyoble conually. The Bonk b on option 1o redeer poet oF o of the boods af foce walue on
16 Oetober 2022 §f specified redemplion conditions o stipuleted ia the affering dociments were mel,
subject to reguintory spproval, If the Bank did pot exercse Bhis option, the coupen role of the Bonds
wowld remain af 4,458 per anmum from 17 October 2022 enwards, These Tier-two capite) bonds have the write-
down feature of o Ties-two copitel instrament and they ore gualified os Tier-two Copital lnitrements in
accordance with the CBIRC requirements.

fel  The Tier-two capite! bands fowed in Apnil 2018 have @ fenor of 10 pears, with o fised coupon rate of 4.45%
payable apnuolly. The Bonk hos on aptian 1o redeem part ar ol of the bonds of foce value on J6 Apell 2023
If specified redemption condiflans o5 stipiated in the offeriag documents weve met subject fo regulmbory
approval. If the Bank éid not exercise this oplion, the coupoa refe of the boands would remoin or 4.45%
per annum fram 27 Apnil 2023 onwards, These Tier-two copitol bonds have the write-olown feofure of o Tier-
twio rapitol mstrument ond they ore qualified as Tier-two Copited instrisments in accordance with the  CEEC
Fequiremenrs,

fa]  Thee Trer-wo copited bonds ssued i March 2015 have o fenor of 10 peors, with o feed coupan rode of
4.28% poyable annunlly. The Bonk hes an optfon fo redeem porf or alf of the bonds at face value on
18 Morch 2024 if specified redemption conditions as stipulated w0 the offering documents were met
sublect o reguitory approval, if the Bank oid ot exerche this option, the cowpen rate of the bonds
witald remngin at 4.25% per amnum frem 19 Monch 2004 gnwards. These Ter-two caplial bords bave the wring-
down feature of o Tiershwo copitml instrvment and they ore guolified o5 Tierdwo Copital dnstrumonts i
occordance with the CEIRC requirements,

f)  The Tier-fwo copital bonds fsued in Aprll 2008 howe o tonor of 10 pears, with o fised coupon rofe of 4.20%
payabie apnuntly. The ook hos on option fo redeem part or ol of the bonds of foce vmiue on 10 Apnil 2004
if specified redemption conditions s stipwated in the offerieg docements were met, subiect fo reguintony
moprownl. if the Bank oid not exevcie this option, the coupon rote of the bands would femoin of 4.30%
per amnum from 11 Aped 2024 onwoends. These Tier-fwoe copitol bonds. funee Bhe write-down fealure of o Ter-
two capital imsirument ond they ore qualified as Tier-two Copited instroments in accordance with the  COMAC
Fefuifemen.

{wiil] The Tier-fwo copltal bonds fssued in Aol 2020 hove o tenor of 10 jears, with o feed coupon rate of 3.10%
payable aarually. The Bank hrs on option o redeem port or aff of the bonds ot face volue on 5 Moy 2025
if specified redemption conditioms o3 stfpwated in the offerimg documents were met. sulyect fo reguiatory
apprownl. if the Bonk did not exenciie this opbion, the coupon rate af the boads swould remain of 3 10% per
annum fram & Moy 2025 anwards. These Tier-hwo copine bonds hove the weite-gown feaiure of & Tier-fuo
capitad instrument and they ore guodfied o5 Tier-twe Copital intrwments i accardance with the CBAC
Fequrirements,
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
[Amounts im milligers of Renminks, anloas of b radon stated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

1

260 @t enn

Bands izsued [Continued)

fiz}

ful

=il

fd)

fu)

fute)

fuw)

The Tiertwo copited bonds iswved @ March 2019 fove o tenor af 15 yeors, with @ fised coupon nmie of
4.53% popoble annually. The Bank hos an cption fo sedeem part or oll of the boads ot fore welue on

18 March 2029 if specified redemption conditions s stipulated fa the offering documents were mel,
subject to reguiatory approval If the Bank oid nob ewercise [his option, the coupon rote of the bonds
wourd remann at #.53% per ennem from 19 March 2029 onwards. These Tiee-bwo copdtal bonds hawe the waile-
down feafvre of o Tertwo copilad nstrument ond they ome gualfied as Tev-two Copdol instruments in
accovdence with the CORE requirements

The Ther-two copital bondls ssued in Apell 2009 fove o tenor of 15 yeors, with o faed coupon rote of 4.65%
rayohie annvolly. The Bonk hos on option ta redeem part or o of the bords of fare vaive on 10 Apnil 2009
if specified redemption condilfons ot stipidated i the offering documents were mef, subiect to régulatony
oppvoviel If the Bonk did nol esecoe this option, the cobpon role of the bonds woukd remold of 463%
per anmem from 11 Aprit 2029 arwerdds. These Tier-two copite) bonds fave the weite-down feature of @ Tier-
two capdtad instrument and they ore qualified as Tier-lwo Capital siruments in accordance with the  CAINC
FEQLArEME s,

The medium ferm notes (TN were Bsued by the Overseas Opeeations of the Group and are mensured
ot amortived cast. The details of medium term poles Bseed were o3 felows;

As at 31 December 2021
Ourtstanding
e Wietwity e renpleg oy vapen extes () batance.
Fixed rate RME MTNs My 2023 to April 2024 2560, 1502
Finad rate HED MTNz October 2022 to June 2023 u,,m—:.m 8,583
Fixed rate USD MTNs luly 2023 to September 2026 0.70-1.65 34,745
Flaating rete USD MTNs  fuely 2022 to November 2023 3 months Libors 68 11,475
te @5hps
Totol 58,305
As ot 31 December 2020
Outstanding
o Malwrity dotes rtinging from Couponsotesfl)  bolonee
Fimed rate HED AMTNs Drrober 2027 100 4,208
Fixed rote USD BTN Hune 2021 to October 2025 1.00-3.88 18811
Flating rate S0 MTNs  September 2021 1o Nowsmber 3 months Libar+68 19,564
2023 to B5bps
Total 42,543

The fixed rote finoackol bonds issued by ABC in Apyil 2020 have @ tenor of 3 peors, with a fived cowpon rate
of 1.99%, poyoble annuply

The fioed rate fingackal bonds fsued by ASC [ Apeil 2021 have o bener of 3 peors, with a flued cospon rate
of 3.38%, poyobie annuoly.

The CRY green bonds ssued by ABC Finoncia! Leasing Co., Ledl i fune 2019 bove o tenor of 3 pears, witha
fixed coupan rote 3.69%, poyoble onnually.

The fixed rote finonckl bonds (sswed by ABC Financial Leosing Co., Ltd in November X028 nove o fenor af
3 years, with a fixed coupon rote of 3.90%, payobie annuolly.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3021
[Amcuints ir mdlliges of RBenminks, anless ofheradon stated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)
(1] Bonds issued [Continued)

fawi)  The fised rare fivoncial bonds fsred by ARC Fnencied Lecsing Co. Lid, in August 2021 howe a tenor of
3 wears, with o fived coupon refe of 300%, poyvable onnumlly.

{rwi] The fixed rote financiel bonds issued by ASC Financlal Assets fnvestment Co, Lid in September J019 howe o
tenor af 3 yewrs, with @ fived coupan rate of 3.30%, payobie annoally,

{wwiii] The ficed rate finamcial bangs issued by ABC Financial Assets nvestment Co. Lid # March 2020 hawe o
tenar of 3 peors, with o fived coupan rale of 2.68%, poyobie annumiy.

faix)  The fixed rate finonciol bords (ued by ABC fnternobianal Holdimgs Limited s Auguil 2018 have a ténor of
3 peovs with o fived coupon rate of 4.70%, payoble aanualy. The bonds hawe expived an 21 August 2021,

fam)  The fiecd rote financiel bonds issued by ABC Fimanciail Assets fnvestment Co, Lid n Seprember 2018 howe o
tenoy of 5 peors, with o fived coupan rale of 3408, payabie anmumily.

faxf]  The ficed rate finameial bonds issued by ARC Finandlal Asseds Inwestment Co. Leal 4o March 2020 how o
tenor of 5 peors, with o flved coupon rote of 2.78%, payoble annuoily.

faxk) The fived rofe finonciel bonds sswed by ABC! lvestment Surhor Covporation Umited én Jime 2000 have o
temay cf 5 peord, with o ficed coupon rate of 3.80%. poyolve anmually.

famii} The fixed rare fnenciol bonds issued by ABCT Inpestrment Suetiou Corporanion Lmiled i Aped 2021 Pawe o
tenar of § yeors, with o fised coupon rote of 4,100, payoble anmuoily.

{uwtej Fhe fived rote finoncial bords Bswed by ABCT fnvestment Befing Corporotion Limited fn jume 23021 hove o
tengr of 5 peors, with o fland coupan rate aff 3.80%, payobie anmumly.

fawe)  The fired rate copical replenishament cebt issued by ABC Life feswronce i Movch 2318 heve @ cenor af
1 years, with o fived coupon rode of 5.55%, pmyoble ooually, ABC Life inswance fas an oplion to redecm
ol of the pands ot foce vaiue on 4 March 2003, If ABC Lfe insumnce do nof exercise this optian, the
coupan rate of the bonds would imcrease to 6.55% per onnum from 5 Morch 3027 onwards.

(] The fored rate copitel replenishment deld Bioed by ABC Life fasurcnce in March 2020 heve o fenor af
10 years, with o fixed cowpon rote of 3,60%, poyable annually, ABC Life inswrance has on ophlon te redeem
oll of the bonds of foce vaiue on 25 Maveh 2025, If ABC Life Inswvante do molf exercie this aplion, [he coupan
rate of the honds woold ncrease ta L60% pev annum from 26 March 20245 amvordc

(2] As at 31 December 2021, the certificates of deposit were lssued by the overseas institution: of the
Group and were measured at amortized cost. The terms of the certificates of deposit ranged from
one manth to five years, with inlerest rates ranging from -0.02% 1o 1.059% per annum. [As ot
31 Decernber 2020, the terme of the certificates of deposit ranged from ome month o seven years,
with interest rates ranging from -0.02% to 3.66% per annum.)

{3] Other debt securities [ssued by the Group and Bank are commercial papers and Interbank certificates
of deposit,

1 As at 31 December 2021, the commercial popers were ssued by the oversens institutions of the
Group ond were meiured al omortited cost. The termi af the commercial papers ranged from
two months to ome pear, with mterest rotes ranging from 0.00% to 0.45% per annum [(As ot
31 December 2020, the terms of the commercial popers ranged from three months o ane year,
with interest rates ranging from 0.00% to 2 14% per annum.)

fil Az ot 31 December 2021, the intérbonk certificotes of deposit were fssued by the Bonk's Hesd
Office ond London Bronch. The terms of the interbonk certificotes of deposit ranged from
one manth fo one year, with interest rates ranging from -0.51% o 0.59% per annum (45 af
31 December 2020, the terms of the interbank certificate of deposit ranged from ane month o
ane year, with inferest rates ronging from 1.58% ro 3.35% per annum.)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decermber 2031
|Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wips othensise dated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December
MNaotes 2021 2020

Olearing and saktlement 153,30 168,852
Inpurance Rabilities 105,262 89,651
Income taxes payable 61,638 54,340
Seaff costs payable [y 59,736 56,811
Provision () EER-Di 42,100
VAT and athar taxes payabla 10,571 10,235
Lease liakilities 10,067 5,824
Amount payable 1o the MOF 1,286 711
Othors 54,684 92,066
Taotal 500,443 524,590
{1} Staff costs payable
— A3 ot 3] Docymber
Notes 2021 2020
Shart-term employes benelits lih 57,262 47,380
Defined contribution benefits (0] 1386 7,BED
Early retirement benelits (i} 1,088 1,551
Total 58,736 56,811
() Shortterm employee benefits
2021
Note 1 lanuary Increase Decrease 31 December
Salaries, boruges, : ;
allowanee and subsidies (a) 35,0140 01,052 (22,277} 42,785
Housing funds [a) 108 o046 [2.377) 137
Sacial msurance including: [a] 185 5.E05 [5.B34) 446
— Medical insurance 367 5,514 {5,463} 418
= Maternity insurande 9 fra] (218} 14
— Employrnert ingury irsurarce 9 158 {153} 14
Labor unian fees and staff
education expenies B,039 4,001 [2,885) 5,145
DOthers 3,838 10,982 {10,071} 4,749
Taotal 47,380 120,336 {110,454} 57,262
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31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

(1) Staff costs payable (Continued)

Foo the year ended 31 Decamber 2021
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

i} Short-term employee benefits (Continged)

030
Rote 1 January Increase Decrease 31 Decembser
Salaries, banuses,
allowance and subsidies () 31 284 BLOST |77.366) 35,010
Housing funds {a) 164 8,933 {9,009) 108
Social insurance Inchuding: {a) 332 4,113 (4.650) 385
= Muedical insurance E18 ] 4,358 (4,342} El
= Maternity insurance 13 205 [209) 49
=~ Empdayment injury insurance ] 110 [ 109} 9
Labor union fees and staff
educathon axpanses 7,049 1,613 (2,623} 8,039
Others 4206 10612 (11050) 3838
Total 43,130 108,958 (104,708) 47 3E0

(=) Safories. bonuses, otowance and subsidies, housing funds and sociol inswrance are fimely distnibuted
and pod in gccordance with refevant laws and reguiciions and the Group's policy,

fii}  Defined contribution benefits

021
1 January Increas: Decrease 31 Decemnber
Basic penshons 619 10,524 {10,845} 654
Unemplagyment insurance 40 L] (360) a0
Annuity Scheme 7221 6,993 113,562} 6512
Total 7,880 18,277 [2a,771) 1,386
2020
1 January Inerease Decrease 31 Doeamber
Basic pensions a5l 8110 [7.543) 619
Unemployment imurance 34 FE] [243} a0
Annuity Scheme 4,722 6,367 {3,858} 7221
Total 5,208 14,736 12,054} 7880

The defined contribution benefits are timely distributed and paid In accordance with relevant

laws and regulations and the Group's policy, There was no forfeiled contribution available to

reduce the cantribution payable by the Group under the above schemes.

Rernual Rport 1031
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[Ammoants im mdlliges of Renminks, anleas of heradon sated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 OTHER LIABILITIES [Continued)

(1) Staff costs payable [Continued)

i2

284 @rrsenn

{iif) Early retirement berefits
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2021

1 January Increass Decroase 31 Docomber

Early retisement benelits 1,551 15 (4TE) 1,088
2020

1 January Increase Decrease 31 Decemmber

Early retirement benefits 2,123 5 [587) 1,551

The principal assumptions used for the purpase of the actuarial valuations wene as follows:

As at 31 December

2021 2020

Discount rate 2.58% 2.90%

Annual average medical expense growth rate B.00% B.00%

Annual subsidies growth rate B.00% B8.00%,
Nermal retisement age

— Male &0 B0

— Female 55 25

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on the China Life Inswrance

Martality Table [published historical statistics in China).

Any difference arising from the actual result or changes in assumptions may affect the amount

of oxpense recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Provision
at 31 m
Mote 2071 2020
Loan commitments and financial
Ruarantee Ccontracis [ 20,271 35,756
Litigation provision 5,333 5.560
Htliers i o
Total 33,800 42,100
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foo the year ended 31 Decamber 2021
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
{2) Provizian (Conbinued)

i} Analyzed by movements in loss allowance for loan commitments and financial guarantee

contracls
‘Year ended 31 December 2021
Stage | Stage 11 Stage I
i Note 12m ECL Lifetime ECL __Total
1 lanuary 2021 33,356 1,661 739 35,756
Transfer:
Srage | transfer bo Stage Il {155} 155 - -
S1age Il ransfer to Stage N - [219) 219 -
Stage 0 transfer to Stage | 51 {51} - -
Stage N transfer to Stage 1 - 31 (31) -
Inerease {a] 9,797 - - 9,797
Remeasurement {79) 616 539 1,076
Decrease fa} {24,637) {1,542) {179) {26,358}
31 December 2021 18,333 651 1,287 20,271
Year ended 31 December 2020
Stage | Stage || Stage [l
Mote 12m ECL Lifotime ECL Total
1 fanuary 2020 22,836 2,032 345 25,213
Transfer:
Stage | transfer bo Stage 0| (BB2) GBE2 - -
Stage | transfer to Stage 10 - (348) 148 -
Stage N transfer ta Stage | 3 {3 - -
Increase fa) 18,613 o bas 18,613
Remeatinsment 720 =3 401 1,127
Decrease {a] (8,134) (708] {355) (9,197)
31 December 20200 33,356 1,661 736 35,756

o) The amepocl af foss afowence deiven by new oo comoniorents and  fogrenl  guargniee  conirmes
signed ia 2001 and J020 & disclored v “Increase”, The impoet af loss obowance driven by withdrowels,
advances or expirabion of loon commitments and financial guargntee comdracts én 3021 and 2020
are disclosed a5 “Decrease”, The changes of loss ellowsnce for loan commirments and finoncial
guomnier contracts n 2021 ond 2020 are monly driven by the pet decrease and et increase dn the
expasure of loen commitments ard finoncial guaroniee contracts,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yeas ended 31 December 3021
[Arnounts im millices of Renminks, anless of e radiss siated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32 ORDIMARY SHARES

31 December 2021

Mumber
of shares Mominal
{milllans) value
Domestic lsted A shares, par value
RMB1.00 per share 319,244 319,244
(reerseas listed H shares, par value
RMEB1.00 per share 30,739 0,738
Total 345,983 345,983
31 December 2020
Mumber
of shares Nominal
{milfkgrs} walug
Domaestic listed A shares, par value
RMB1.00 per share 319,244 319,244
Orverigas listed H shares, par value
RMB1.00 por share 30,739 30,739
Total 348,983 349,983

{1 A shares refer to the ordinory shares fisted in the Chinese mainfond. They ore gffered ond braded in BME, M shores
refer  to the ordinory  shares Ksted in Hong Kong S48, Their por volve is denominated in AME wiven they were
imitioly offered ond ore currently roded in HKD.

2] Az at 31 December 2021, the Boak’s A Shares ond M Shares were not subject bo fock-up restriction, except for
the 19,560 mition ondingy shares sived through the private plocement in fune 2008, A5 ar 31 December 2020,
the Bank’s A Shares and W Shoves were not subject to jock-wo réstriction, except for the 25 189 mian ordinmne
shores fsswed through the privobe plocement i June 2015,
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395/508



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Isued Erswed
mamber namaa
Financial lssued price  of shares valug
Instruments i issued Dividendite ________ [AMByuan) [millons]  [miliens) Mstwitydste Corwersion
Peefirpnde sharng B.00% pex areum for the first 5 pears 100 00 A0.000  Momaturiydate Mo comenion
= first branche™ sliefiviues, andne-priced every during e yrar
5 years as Hated below
Prelerence shares 5 50M% pe anvum lor the fist 5 pears 1080 &0 40,000  Mematuritydsle Mo comverion
= sacondiranche® alterisugnce, andre-pricedevery durng the yEa
5 years as spted below
Perpetual  Uindtod tier | 4,399 perannumfor the firs Syears 1 850 E5,000 Momateritydate N
baeds optlbonds  slienissuance, andresstevery S pean
In 3019 as sated below
~ first
tranche™
Undatedtier] &30 perannumion the firsst Syears 10 150 35000 MNomaturinydate N
capitalbond  aferiguante Jadressteery S vean
In201% a5 stated belaw
— sxord
tranche
Undutedtier] 3.48% perannumforthe fir Syeass 100 50 5,000 Momateritydate ey
aptalbongs  ahterissuance, andresetevery S pran
2020 a1 sl ed belaw
= fitst
trncie®
Undatedtier] 2 50% perannumior the first Syeans 10 150 35,000  Momateritydate s
apalbonss  sherdiuance andritel svery i pan
in 2020 a5 wated befow
= et
tranche™
Undatedtier]  3.76% perannumlof the first Syeats 100 A00 40,000 M maturitydate Nfa
captalbons  afierissuance andreet everySyrans
In 2021 s siated below
_f““
L

{1} The Bank was authorized to issue no more than 800 million preference shares of AMETOD
¢ach, pursuant to the approval by its erdinary equity holders and relevant regquiatery
autharities,

Ther first tranche of 400 million preference shares was issued at par in Novemnber 2014, The carnying
armount, net of direct [ssuance expenses, was RMB3I9. %44 million as at 31 December 2021. The first
wranche of preference shares bears a dividend rate of 65.00% per annum; dividends are non-cumulative
and where payable, are paid annually, for the first five years from lssuance, The dividend rate will be re-
priced ewery live years thereafter with reference 1o the five-year PRC treasury bonds yield plus a fived
premium of 2.29%. The first five-year dividend period expired on 1 November 2019, During the second
dividend peried beginning from & November 2019, the base rate and fioed premium 15 3,03% and 2,29%,
respectively, and the coupon rate is 5.32%. The dividend is pald annually.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yeas ended 31 Decermber 2021
[Arnounts im millices of Renminks, anless of b racss sated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

{1} The Bank was authorized to issue no more than 800 million preference shares of RMBIOO
each, pursuant to the approval by its ordinary eguity holders and refevant regulatory
authorities. (Continued)

The second tranche of 400 million preference shares was issued ot par in March 2015. The carrying
amount, net of direct Bsusnes oxpenies, wid RMB3IDG9SS million a4 ar 31 December 2021,
The second tranche of prEference shares bears a dividend rate of 5.50% pEr annum; dividends are non-
cumulative and where payable, are paid annually, for the first five years from issuance, The dividend
rate will be re-priced every five years thereafter with reference Lo the five-year PRC treasury bandi wield
plus a fiwed premium of 2.24%. The first five-year dividend period expired on & March 2020, During the
second dividend period beginning from 11 March 2020, the base rate and fiked premium is 2.60% and
2.24%, respectively, and the coupon rate is 4. Bd%. The dividend it paid annually.

There were no changes in the carrying amounts of the preference shares since iluance.

As authorized by the ordinary equity holders in the annweal general meeting, the Board of Directors
has the sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. The Bank shall not
distribute any dividends to its ordinary equity holders before it declares such dividends to preference
shareholders for the relevant period. The distribution of preference shares dividend is at the Bank's
diseretion and is non-cumulative. Preference sharchelders are not entitled te participate in the
distribution of retained earnings except for the dividends stated above,

The Bank has @ redemption option when specified condithons as stipulated in the offering documents
are meel, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no right to request the
Bank o redeem the preference shares.

Upon lquidation, the claims of preference shareholders have priority over ordinary egquity holders
on the residual assets of the Bank. but are subordinated to those of depositors, general areditors, Tier-
two Capital Instruments holders or any other subordmated debt helders with equivalent rights.

Upon ocourrence of the triggering events as stipulated in paragraph (1) of the Guidance of the
CBIRC on Amendments to Commercial Banks' Innovation on Capltal Instruments (CBIRC MNo. 42
[2019]) and subject to regulatory approval, the fiest tranche of preference shares and the second
tranche of preference shares shall be mandatorily converted into ordinary A shares of the Bank at
the conversion price agreed, partially or entirely, The initial corversion price of the preference shares
Issued by the Bank was RMB2.43 per share. In June 1018, the Bank has lssued 25.19 billlon ordinary
A shares to specific imvestors. The conversion price of the preference shares will be adjusted where
certaln events ocour including bonus kssues, rights issue, capitalization of reserves and new |ssuances
of ordinary shares, subject to terms and formulas provided in the offering documents, to maintain
the relative interests between preference sharcholders and erdinary equity holders. Upon completion of
the private placement of ardinary shares by the Bank, the mandatory conversion price of the first tranche
of preference shares and the second tranche of preference shares issued by the Bank will be adjusted
from AMBZ.43 per share to RMBZ.46 per share.

Thase preference shares are classified as eguity instruments, and presented as equity In the
consolidated statement of financial position, and are qualified as Additional Tier-one Capital
Instruments in accordance with the CBIRC requirements,

The carrying amount, net of direct issuance expenses, was RMB79,899 milion as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: RMBTS, 899 million),
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS |(Continued)

{2) With the authorization of the annual gemeral meeting and the approval from regulatary
authorities, the Bamk was permitted to issue undated additional tier | capital bonds
{"Perpetual bords” ar the “Bonds”) of an amount no more than RMBI20 billion in 20718,

The Bank [ssved undated asdditional tier 1 capital bonds (first tranche) with the amount  of
AMBES billien im the national interbank bond market on 16 August 2019, ond the issuance was
completed on 20 August 2019. The denomination of the Bonds is AMBI00 each. The Bonds don't
have any step-up mechanism of any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds
will be adjusted at defined Intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a
distribution rate adjustment peried every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years
Is 4.39%.

The Bank issucd undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (second tranche} with the amount of
RME35 billion in the national interbank bond market on 3 September 2019, and the istuance was
completed on 5 September 2019, The denomination of the Bonds is AMB10D each, The Bonds don't
have any step-up mechanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Gonds
will be adjusted at defined intervals and datermined by a bonchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with &
distribution rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years
Is 4. 20%.,

With the autharization of the annual general meeting and the appraval from regulatory authorities,
the Bank was granted to Issue undated additienal tier 1 capital bonds (“Perpetual bonds® or the
“Bands™) of an amount no more than AMB120 billion in 2020,

The Bank [ssved undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (first tranche) with the amount of
AMBES billion in the national interbank bond market on B May 2020, and the issuance was
completed on 12 May 2020, The denomination of the Bonds is AMB10D each, The Bonds don't
have any step-up mechanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds
will be adjusted at defined Intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a
distribution rate adjustrment peried every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first live years
Is 3.48%,

The Bank issucd undated additional tier 1 copital bonds (second tranche) with the amount of
RMB35 bllion im the national interbank bond market on 20 August 2020, and the issuance was
comploted on 24 August 2020. The denomination of the Bonds is AMBLOD each. The Bonds don't
have any step-up mechanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds
will be adjusted at defined intervals and determined by a banchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a
distnibution rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years
Is 4.50%,

With the autharization of the annual general meeting and the approval fram regulatory authorities,
the Bank was granted to issue undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (“Perpetual bonds® or the
“Bands™) of an amount no more than RMBL20 billion in 2021,

The Bank isswed undated additional tier 1 capital bonds [first tranche) with the amount of
AMBA0 billion in the national interbank bond market on 12 November 2021, and the ssuancoe was
completed on 16 November 2021, The denomination of the Bonds is RMBLOO each. The Bonds don't
have any step-up mechanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds
will be adjusted atr defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fied spread, with a
distribution rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years
s 3.76%.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

{2k With the authorization of the annual general meeting and the approval from requiatory

authorities, the Bank was permitted fo lssue undated additional tier | capital bonds
{"Perpetual bonds™ or the "Bonds’) of an amount no more than RMEI20 billion in 2019,
{Continued)

The duration of the Perpetual bonds is the same as the continuing operation of the Bank, Subject to the
satisfaction of the redemption conditions and having obtained the prior approval of the CBIRC, the Bank
may redeem the Bonds in whale or in part on each distribution payment date from the fifth anniversary
since the issuance date of the Bonds. Upon the occurrence of a trigger event for write-downs, with the
approval of the CBIRC and without the need for the consent of the holders of the Bonds, the Bank has
the right to write down all ar part of the aggregate amount of the Bonds then Bssued and outstanding,
Tha claims of the holders of the Bonds will be subordinated to the claims of depositors, general oreditors
and subordinated indebtedness that ranks senior to the Bonds; and shall rank in priarity to all classes of
shares held by shareholders and will rank pari passu with the claims in respect of any other additional
tier 1 capital Instruments of the Bank that rank pari passu with the Bonds.

Tha distributions on the Perpetual bonds are non-cumulative, The Bank shall have the right to cancel
distributions on the Bonds in whole or in part and any such cancellation shall not constitute an event of
default. The Bank may at ity discretion use the proceeds from the cancelled distribution to meet other
ohbligatiens as they fall due. But the Bank shall not make any distribution to ordinary shareholders untll
its dixcision to resume the distribution payments in whale to the holders af the Boncs

The net proceeds from the [ssuance of the Perpetual bonds after deducting offering related expenses
were used to replenish the Bank's additional tier 1 capital.

The carrying amount, net of direct Bsuvance sxpenses, wos RMB279,973 million as at 31 December
2021 |31 December 2020: RMB239,976 million).

34 CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital reserve mainly represents the premiom related to ordinary shares ssued by the Bank in 2000
and private placomeont of erdinary sharos to the specific sharehalders In 2018, Share premium was recorded
in the capital reserve after deducting direct issue expenses, which consisted primarily of underwriting fees
and professional fees

35 INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

303
Gross camying
e —— amount  Tax effect  Wet effact
31 December 2020 34,773 [8,786) 25,987
Fair value changes on other debt Instruments
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive Income:
= Amount of gains recognized directly in other
comprehensive Income 13,049 [2.528) 10,521
— Amount removed from other compriehengive
income and recognized in profit or hoss {1,131) (283) {1.414)
Fair value changes on other equity Investrments
at fair value through other comprehensive income:
— Amount of gains recognized directly in other
comprehensive income (282) 115 [167]
31 December 2021 46,403 {11,482} 34,927
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeas ended 31 Decermber 2021
[Armounts im millices od Renminks, anless of e redss sated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35 INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE (Continued)

2020
Gross carrying
armaunt Tay aftect Nt eftect
31 December 20019 39,875 {10,191] 29,684
Fair value changes on other debt instruments.
Investments at fair vahue through other
comprehenshve incomea;
= Amount of gains recognized directly in ather
comprehensive income 14,238) 1,188 [3,050)
— Amount removed from other cormprehensive
income and recognized in profit of loss [750) 158 {562}
Fakr value change on other equity imvestmeants at fair
value through other comprehensive income:
= Amount of gains recognized directly in other
comprahensive income [114) i} (B5)
31 Decembeer 2020 34,773 8, TEE]} 15,987

36 SURPLUS RESERVE

Under PRC Law, the Bank i required to transfer 10% of its net profit determined under the PRC GAAP to & non-
distributable statutory surplus reserve. Appropeiation (o the statutary surplus reserve may cease when the
balance of this reserve has rezched 50% of shore capital. Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors’
Meeting held on 30 March 2022, an appropristion of 10% of the profit for the current year, determined
under the generally accepted accounting principles of the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve, in the amount
of RMB24,335 milion (2020: RMB21,040 million) was approved. In addition, certain subsidiaries and averseas
branches alse appropriated surplus reserves in accordance with local requirements,

Subject to the approval of the ordinary equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be used for
replenishing accumulated losses or Increasing the Bank's ordinary share capital. The statutory surplus
reserves amount used to ncrease the ordinary share capital is limited to a level where the balance of the
statutory surplus reserves after such capitalization ks not less than 25% of the ordinary share capital.

37 GEMERAL RESERVE

Pursuant to Caljin |2002] Mo, 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financal Institutions®
(the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF, effective on 1 July 2012, in addition to impairment allowance, the
Bank establishes a general reserve within ordinary equity halders' equity through the appropriation of profit
to address unidentified potential impairment risks. The general reserde should not be less than 1.5% of the
agpregate amount of risk assets as defined by the Requirement. The general reserve includes regulatory
reserve appropriated by the Bank's overseas branches pursuant to local regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulatory requirements, some domests subsidiaries of the Bank are required to
appropriate certaln amounts of their net profit as general reserves,

During the wear ended 31 ODecember 2021, the Group wransferred RMBA0,167 million (2020:
RMIB3I4 433 million) to the General Reserve pursuant to the regulatory requirements In the PRC and
overseas jurisdictions. Of this amount, AMB39,217 milien (20200 AMB34,211 million) related to the
appropriation progosed for the year ended 31 December 2020 which was approved In the annual general
maeeting held on 27 May 2021,

On 30 March 2022, the Board of Directors’ meeting approved a proposal of appropriation of
RMEB32,221 million to general reserve. Such appropriation will be recognized In the Group's consolidated
financial statements after approval by erdimary equity holders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decermber 2031
|Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wips othensise dated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
38 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Far the purpose of the consolidated staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the
following balances with an original maturity of three months o less:

As at 31 December

2021 2020
Cash 74,610 76,281
Balance with central banks 101,010 51,802
Depodits with banks and ather financial institutions 12,163 76,904
Placements with and loans to banks and
ather financial institutions 103,110 207,568
Financial assets held under resale agreements 833,868 752,598
Takal 1,124,762 1,175,153

3% OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating tegments are identified on the bazid of internal management reports with redpect ta the
components of the Group that are regularly reviewsd by the Board and relevant management committees,
which constitute the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of allocating resources to segments
and assessing their performance. The Group's chiel operating decision makers review three different sets
al financial information based on (i) geographical locations, (ii] business activities and (iii] County Area and
Urban Area banking business.

The measurement of segment assets and liabilitles, as well as segment revenue, expense and results are
based on the Group's accounting policies. There s no difference between the accounting policies used
in the preparation of the consolidated financial staterments and those used In preparing the operating
segrment information.

Transactions between segments are conducted under normal commercial terms and conditions. Intermal
charges and transler pricing are determined with reference to markel rates and have been reflected in the
performance of each segment.

Segment revenie, results, assets and liabilities Include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocared on a reasonable basis,

Geographical operating segments

The detalk of the geographical operating segments are as follows:

Head Oifice

Yangtze River Delta: Shanghal, Jlangsu, Dhejlang. Ningbo

Pearl River Delta; Guangdong, Shanghen, Fujian, Xiaman

Bohal Rim: Beijing. Tianjin, Hebei, Shandong, Gingdao

Central China; Shanxl, Hubel, Henan, Hunan, llangxl. Halnan, Anhul

Western China: Chongging. Slchuan, Guizhow, Yunnan, Shaanx, Gansu, Qinghai,
Mingxia, Xinjlang (including Xinjlang Production and Construction Corps
Branch), Tibet, inner Mongolla, Guangxl

Northeastern China: Liagning, Heillongiiang, lilin, Dalian

Cwerseas and Others: Subsidiaries and overseas branches

Aenual heport 2031 291
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031

{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OPERATING SEGMENTS {Continued)
Geagraphical aperating segments (Continued)
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3021
[Arncunts im millicrs of Renminbs, unbes of he racse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3% OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical sperating segments [Cantinued)
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 OPERATING SEGMENTS {Continued)

Business aperating segments
The details of the business operating segments are a5 follows:
Corparate banking
The corporate banking segment provides financial products and serdees o corporations,  gowvermment
agencies and financial institutions. The range of products and services includes corporate lsans and advances,
trade finonce, deposit products, corporale wealth management services and other types of corporate
intermediary servicos.
Personal banking
The personal banking segment provides financial products and serdices to individual customers, The
range of products and sevices includes personal loans, depesit products, card business, persenal wealth
management services and other types of personal intermediany services.
Treasury operations
The Group’s treasury operations conduct money market and repurchase transactions, debil instruments
imvestments, precious metal transactions and derivative transactions for its own accounts o on behall of
CUSEOMETs,
Others
Others comprise components af the Group that are not attributable to any of the above segments, along

with certain assets, hahilities, income or expenses of the Head Office that could not be allocated on o
reasonable basis.

Aerual Nt 321 295
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For the year ended 31 December 3021
[Ammoants im mdlliges of Renminks, anleas of heradon sated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business operating segments (Continued)

Conparate Persanal Treatiary Coniolidated
bankimg banking oporations Others total
Far the year ended 31 Decomber 2031
Extermal inferest intome 381068 FRERE ] 304,389 8,07 1,008,014
Extarnal interest expanse {129,812) [210,635) [AE,184) (3.396) {a30,027)
Ifler-Lagmart net intirel [Sapendalfincome {24,081} 186,829 |161.848] - =
Bt interest income 127,175 289,630 56,357 4,675 577987
Fiow il ComiTesshon ingomi 53,712 3408 1058 3,858 28,721
Fa and commission espanie 111,392) [6.634) (3% |327) [18,393)
M fee and commission income a8, 350 2T AL 1,019 354 BO%2S
Mot trading gain - - 11,040 e 1a.z41
et {loss figain onfimancial inves tmenti {7181} {75} 17,158 5133 15,035
Met gain on derecagretian of financial aitets
measured at amortized cost - - 1 - 1
Other pperating income 1,475 1,341 357 30,970 34,143
Dperating income 169,899 18402 85,542 7,503 Tl TE
Qperaling expenses {B2.315} (112,663} [2D,168] [36,129) (260,275)
Crodit impairment lnsses [130,255) {49,672) 14,567] (ET:T] [165,80E]
IMpAIrmEnt 0sses onmher as5es 72 (4} [} 136) [114]
Operating praf 76,241 156,063 SE105 10,966 5471
_S_!_l.lrl.--nfrnl.du nfimﬂilﬂaﬂﬂ}gullgrmum = - = 09 a8
Profit befoes tax 76,243 156,043 52,1005 11355 5280
Inpome LK experie [53.544]
Prodit Tor the year 241,936
Dapewdiation and amortization indleded
if apevatling Experes 5,230 104k 3630 a53 19,797
Capits expendiurne 5,933 13,5909 5,510 1582 26,944
As a1 31 December 20021
Segment assets 5,533 860 ¥,110,0032 11,825,413 391,833 28,925,128
Including: Invesiment in @ssodaies and
|mint wenunes - - - a.2197 B.297
Unadiocated avsets 143,027
Total asspts 10,060,155
Segrment liabilities [8.833,083)  {13.357.380) |%,083,852) (311,16R) |26,585,502)
Unaliocated llabilgles = [ﬂ_!.gﬁ]_
Tatnl lakilities |26, B647,796)
Lean commitments ard Fnancial
HUAraNIge coniracin 1,213 53 B74 361 - - 2,088 305

296 (@rresnn

405/508

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa
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For Ehe s ended 31 Decernbes 30F1
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS [Continued)

Buginess aperating segmenis (Continued)

Cetparate Personal Trediury Consalidaed
banking barking aperations Others total
For the year ended 31 Decomber 2020
Exteemal intenest income 354,333 79,07 290,119 6753 F3, 932
Dxternalintenest expenie 1120,316) (104,051 (68,4221 (n024) |385,553)
Intes-Lpgmant nel interest (sepense|incnme 132, 647) 168,042 (155,395] = =
Metinterest income 231,370 253,678 502 3,729 545,079
Feap and commiksion income 55,436 33274 495 1,960 #L166
Pt @ned comimsion e rde |10, 044) [6.420 151 Bap [1E621)
et fed and cammitislon income 45,3492 16, TR 481 1878 1,545
Het trading gain - - 8,920 TAR5 16,405
et [lozs)fgainan fnancial investments [?,284) |4, 150} 1,440 2,112 [F31))
Het gain on derecognition of financal aasets
measured atamartized cost - = 1 = i
Other operating incmme 13715 1,331 2% 27,853 .61
Dperating income 260853 277,603 i 43,657 550,332
Dperaling expenies |71,055) {100, 569) (24,7001 3473} 229,597
Cradit impairmant lesses {132,332 (37,359 113,706) (L512) |14, 659
Impairment lsses om pTher J35ets L156) 4 = (52} |34
Dperating prafit .50 138,570 ® 17 8,660 164,537
Share of resu'ts of associates and joant venturnes - - - 518 418
Predit bafore tax ¥7.520 138,570 33,773 10,178 265,050
INCOME L eXpefse [#8,6500
Prodit for the year 716,400
Depreciaticn and amostization indluded
in apsraling Svpanies £357 11209 3544 anl 18,551
Lapral pxpendiure .07 12,708 4491 1,447 pr Ny
As ot 31 December 2030
Segment assels BBLE 158 6,372,074 11,586,282 494,978 27,071,652
including: investment in associates and
paint vertures - - - B RES 8865
Unaitocated assets 133,355
Total assets 27 H05 047
——ee
Segment linkelities (8, 590.691) 112,926,172 (3,129,838] (F2.028) (24,930.627)
Unallocated liabdities |S674)
Total lishdinies (2a,994.301)
Loan commitments and financial
guarantes contracts 2,146,637 1,023,667 - - 3065304
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decemnbeer 2021
[Ammoants im mdlliges of Renminks, anleas of heradon sated|

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3% OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments

The Group's operating segments crganized by County Area and Urban Anea banking business are set out as
follows;

County Area banking business

The Group's County fArea banking business provides a beoad range of financial products and services to
Custdemeds in d:;ignnlud County Area, through ity operating branches i the counties or county-level cities
throughout the PRC. The products and services mainly comprise loans, deposits, bank cards, and other
types of intermediary services,

Urban Area banking business

The Group's Lrban Area banking business comprises all banking activities outside of the County Arca
banking business, owerseas branches and subsidiaries.

298 mli_ﬂ:ﬁ-l:lh

407/508



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 OPERATING SEGMENTS {Continued)

Caunty Area and Urban Area segments (Continued)

County Area  Urban Area

banking banking Consolidated
s ge-2s i L busingss  Elminations  totsl
For the year ended 31 December 2021
External inerest income 158,517 Ta8 457 - 1,008,014
External intorest exparse [140,954) (288,0673) - (430,027)
_Inter-segrent net interest incomey[expense] 136,588 (136,384) = L
Net interest income 155,547 312440 = 577,987
Fee and Cormmsss o inoome 38,394 60,377 = 98,711
Fiee and OMPMission Sxpense (7,388] (11,004} - (18,392)
et fee and commission Income 30,956 43,373 - 80,329
Het trading gain E.4a7 7,704 = 14,241
HNet [lossl/gain on fnancial investments [2.476) 5l - 15,035
Het gain on derecagmtion of financisl assets
measured at amartized cont - 1 - 11
Other aperating incorme 4,471 29,672 = 34,143
Operating income 294,595 425,751 - 721,746
Dperating expenses [104,046) {156,129) - {260,275)
Credit impairment losses (&4, 790 {10,096} = {165 B06)
Impairmant lossos on other assets (48} [65) - 114}
Operating profit 126,111 169,360 - 155,471
Share of results of associates ard joint ventures - 08 - 409
Prafis before tax 126,111 169,763 = 255 BB
Irca s [ax sxpenie [53,344)
Profit for the year 291,936
Deprecistion and amortization Included
In operating expenses T.758 1039 - 19,797
Capital gxpenditure 5,521 20,413 - 26,544
As at 31 December 2021
Segment assets 10,415,215 18,612.453 [105,540) 28,926,128
Including: Invesiment in associates and joint wventures - 8,257 - 8,297
Unallacated asseds 143,027
Total assets KL S
Segment liabilites (9,631, 167) {17.,059,875) 105,540  (26.585,502)
UnaBocoted labilities [62,204)
Total liabilgips 26 6aT 7O6)
Loan cammitments and financialguarantoes contracts 703,422 1,384,203 - 2,088,305
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Caunty Area and Urban Area segments (Continved)

County Avea Wrban Area
banking baniking Consolidated
businass business Eliminations totad
For the year ended 31 December 2020
Externalinterestincome 230,691 700,241 - 930,932
External interest expense {121,062) |364,701) - |385,853)
Inter-segpment net interest incomeTecpense) 122,135 122,135) - -
Met interest Income 231,764 313,315 545,079
Fee andcommission income 35,742 55,424 - 91,166
Fee andcommission expense |6,438) [10,182] - [16,621)
Net foe and commission incoma 29,303 45,247 - 74,545
Het trading gain 221 16,184 - 16,405
Net lass on financlal imvostments. {4.001] 13,311) - {7313
Met gain on derecognition of financial assets
mieasured atamortized cost - 1 - 1
Cither operating incoma 4,507 26,107 - 30,614
Operating income 261,794 397,538 - 659,312
Operating expenses {91,401) |138,496) - (229,B97)
Creditimpairment losses {52,276) [112.423) - {164,695}
Ampsishideniesiioth stherasets B 1/ - _{204)
Oporating profit 118,080 145,442 . 264,532
Share of results of associates and joint ventures - 518 - 512
Profit before tax 118,090 146,960 - 265,050
Income tax expense [48.650])
Prafit for the year —di 200
Depreciation and amortization included
in nperating rxpenses 7,567 11,984 - 15,551
Capital gxpenditure 5,950 15,732 - 13713
As at 31 December 2020
Segment assets 9638372 17,570,000 (136,700§ 27,071,652
Including: Investment in assodiates and pBint ventures + 8,65 ~ B.BES
Unallocated aisets 133,335
Total assets 27,205,047
_Segmn‘tllabillties (8,042,453} [16,133,874] 136,700  (24.939.627)
Unalipzated Eabiities [54,674)
Total liabilithes —123.093.303)
Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts GT0.680 2158,624 - 3,169,304
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 33 Decamber 2021
{Amaunts in millions of Apmminbi, ke otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬂﬂuntinued}
40 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIOMNS
(1) The Group and the MOF

As at 31 December 2021, the MOF directly owned 35.2%% (31 December 2020: 35.29%] of the
ordinary shares of the Bank,

The MOF is a Chinede government ministry, primarly respondible for managing state fiseal revenve
and expenditure, and establishing and enforcing taxation policies, It reparts to the Chinese State Couwneil,

The Group had the !'ullw'in,g balances and transactions with the MOF in ik ordinary  course of
business under normal commercial terms:

As at 31 December 2021 As 3t 31 December 2020

Ratlo to Ratlo to
similar simillar
Balance transactions Balanee transactions
Ascils
Treasury bonds and special government
bond 797,193 9.69% 754,668 9.65%
Receivable from the MOF 324,619 3.04% 316,656 4.05%
Lahilities
D 1o customaeTs 4,018 0.02% B.385 0.04%
Othes liabilivies
— redemption of treasuny bonds on
behalf of the MOF 4 0.00% 4 0.00%
— amount payahle ta the MOF 1,286 0.26% 711 0.14%
Year ended 31 December
2021 2020
Ratio to Ratio to
similar similar
Amaunt transactions Amount transactions
Interest income 28,513 2.83% 3037 3.26%
Interest gxpense {50} 0.01% {104a) 0.03%
Fee and commission income 1,133 1.15% 1,294 1.42%
Net rading gain 126 D.B8% a5 0.58%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with the MOF during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

% k.

Treasury bonds and receivable fram the MOF 0.00-9.00 0.00-9.00
e 10 CUSTOMETs 0.01-0.80 0.00-2.81

The Group's redemption commitment for treasury bonds undenasriting is disclosed in Kote v 42
Contingent Liabilities and Commitmants.

femua! Neport 3021 0
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {Continued)

EDINETOOOO
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(1) The Group and Huijin

302 @emsenn

Central Huiiin Investment Lid, [“Huijin®] is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China  Investment
Corporation Limited, which Is incorporated in Beijing, PRC, Huijin was establshed to hold certain
equity interests in state-owned Gnancial institutions as authorited by the Chinese State Council
and does not eéngage in other commercial activities. Huijin exercises its legal rights and assumes
obligation: related to the Bank an behalf of the PRC Gavernment.

As ot 31 December 2021, Huijin directly owned 40.03% (31 December 2020: 40.03%] of the
ordinary shares of the Bank,

Transactions with Huijin
The Group had the following balances and transactions with Huijin in its ordinary course of butiness.

These balances and transactions are priced based on market prices and conducted wnder normal
commercial terms.

As @t 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Ratio to Ratim to
sirnillar similar
Balance transactions Balnmes transactions
Asspts

Loans and advances to custormers - - 3,951 0.03%
Financial investments 52,357 0.64% 67,509 0.86%

Liabilities
Due to customers 38,000 0.17% 5447 0.03%

Year ended 31 December
2021 2 20

Ratlo to Ratio to
similar similar
Amount transactions Amount  transactions
Intetes] intame 1,787 0.18% 2.B4a 0.31%
Interest expense [61E] 0.14% 148 0.0d%
Het trading gain 23 0.16% 9 0.18%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with Huifin during the year are 35 follows:

— ¥ear ended 31 December

2021 2020

% %

Loans and advances bo customers nNfa 3.55-3.92
Financial investments 2.15-4.38 2.15-5,15
Due to customers 0.45-2.10 1,73-2.25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

f2)

The Graup and Huifin (Continued)

Transactions with companies under Hulfin

Huijin has equity interests in certain other banks snd financial institutions wnder the direction af the
Central Gevernment. The Group enters into transactions with these bankd and financial institutions
im the ardinary course of business. These balances and tramsactions are priced based on market
prices and conducted under normal commercial terms. The Group had the following balances with
cormpanies undier Huijin:

As at 31 Decemnber 2021

As at 31 Decembar 2020

Hatlo to Ratio to
simiiar simétar
— Balance transactions Balance  transactions
Asspts
Depasits with banks and other financial
institubons B3B8 Eaz 40.66% 89,726 2067%
Flacements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 123371 27.58% 100,125 18.31%
Darivative financial assats 4,003 18.21% 17,137 27.6TH
Financial assets held under resale agreements 27,577 3.29% 27,349 3.35%
Loans and advances to customers 20,935 0.13% Ba,0ar 0.aa%,
Financial investments 36,027 8.94% 731,695 9.35%
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial
institutions 5,144 a.58% 592,390 6.66%
Placements from banks and other financial
Institutions 68,168 232.41% 147,049 a7.64%
Derivative financial labilities 2,747 14.21% 11,253 17.25%
Fimancial assets sold under repurchase
Bgresments 9,909 27.50% 4E,444 44,.36%
Dupe b0 CustOMBTS 4,159 0.02%. 3,921 0.02%
Equity
Other equity instruments 2,000 0.56% 2,000 0.63%
Off-balance sheet items
Letters of guarantes Ssued and gusrantees 1,800 0.59% - -
Non-principal guaranteed wealth
managament products Bswed by the Group - - 3,000 0.15%
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {Continued)
{3) Neational Council for Social Seeurity Fund of the Peaple's Republic of China
Ag at 31 December 2021, the Bank's shares held by 55F accounted for 6.72% of the Bank’s total
share capital (31 December 2020; 6,95%], The daily business transactions between the Group and the

S5F are priced based on market prices and conducted on normal commercial terms, The Group had
the fallowing balances and transactions with the S5F:

As at 31 December 2021 A« at 31 December 7020

Ratio to Hatio to
similar similar
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
Assots
Firancial assats held under resale agreements 43,755 5.22% 33,966 4.16%
Uabilities
Due to customers 65,415 0.30% 51,827 0.25%
Equity
Other equity instruments 1,250 0.35% 1.250 0.39%
Year ended 31 December
‘2021 = 20
Ratko to Ratio to
similar wmilar
Armount transactions Arrount  [ransactions
Interest income 32 0.00% 158 0.02%
Interest expense {2,226] 0.52% [2,026) 0.53%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with S5F during the year are &5 Follows:

Wear ended 31 December

2021 2020

%5 9%

Firancial assets held under resabe agrecments 2.58-3.50 0.63-3.35
D to customirs 0.46—4,26 0.30-5,20
Other equity instruments 4,64 4,84
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

f4)

15

The Group and ather government related entities

Other than disclosed above, a significant portion af the Group™s banking transactions are entered into
with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other State controlled entities. These transactions
are entered inte under normal commercial terms and  conditions and  mainly include provision of
eredit and guarantoe, deposits, foreign  exchange trancactions, derivative transactions, agency
services, underwriting and distribution of bonds Bsued by government agencies, purchase, sales and
redemplion of investment securities issued by government agencies,

Managomont condiders that these transactions are activities conducted in the ordinary course of business,
and that the dealings of the Group have nat been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the
Group and those entilies are government related. The Group has also established pricing policies for
products and services and such pricing policies do not depend on whether or not the customers are
govErnment authorities, sgencies, affiliates and other State controlled entities,

The Bank and its subsidiaries
The Bank had the following balances and transactions with s subsidiarfes in its ordinary course of

butingess, These balances and Iransactions are priced based on market prices and conducted under
normal commercial terms,

As at 31 Decernber 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Ratlo 1o Ratio o
simitar similar
Balamee transactions Balanee  transaclions
Assets
Placemeents with and loans to hanks and
other financial institutions B4 863 18.9%% 87,643 16.02%
Financial assets held under resale agreements - - 1,786 0.22%
Financial investments 365 0.00% 6,230 0.08%
Other assets lo2 0.08% 24 0.02%
Liabiliies
Deposits from banks and other
financial mititutions 14,079 DLETHY 18,657 1.34%
D By ELisbOMG 1.B57 0.01% 1,624 0.01%
Other liabilities G 0.20% 753 0.14%
Off-balance sheet items
Letters of guarantes issued and guarantees 1,034 0.67% B.482 3.21%
Non-principal guarantead wealth
management products sswed by the Group 16 0.00% 331 U002 %,

Rernual Mporl 1031
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For the yeas ended 31 Decermber 2021
[Amounts im millices of Renminks, unless of e raier stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS (Continued)

(5} The Bank and its subsidiaries {Continued)

___Year ended 31 December
!ﬂ! 1. .. - ? M — e a———
Ratio to Ratio to
similar similar
R 14 Amount _transactions Amgunt  transactians
Interest income 1,440 0.14% 1568 0.17%
ket gain on financial investments 1 0.00% 107 0.65%
Fee ond commission incorme 1,777 1.B0% 1,807 1.98%
Other operating income 94 0.30% 9 0.03%
Interest expense (368} 0.09% |373) 0.10%
Fee and commission expense {321) 1.75% {903} 5.47%
Operating eipenie (242} 0.09% (197} 0.09%
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“Placements with and laans to banks and
ather financial institutions

Financial assets held under resale agreements

Financial investments

Depaosits fram banks and other inancial institutions

D 1o ELSIamMeTs

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

% %
1.21-3.65 0.04-4,10
N 1.44=2.986
0.00-3.68 2.50-4.70
0.00-5.12 000413
0.30-1.B5 0.30-3.15

(6} The Group and lts associates and joint venture

The Group had the lollowing balances and transactions with its associates and joint venture in  ils
ordinary course of business. These balances and transactions are priced based on market prices and

conducted under normal commercial tenms.

As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
Ratlo to Ratio to
similar similar
" Balance transactions Balance  fransactions
Ligsilities
Deposits from banks and other
linancial institutions 16 0.00% - -
Off-balance sheet items
Non-principal guaranteed wealth
management preducts issued by the Group 4 0.00% - -
___Year ended 31 December
2021 2020
Ratio to Ratio to
similar sirilar
Amount transactions Amount  ransactions
Intadesl istome = - 1 0.00%
Interest expense ] 0.00% - -
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) The Group and its associates and Jaint venture [Continuad)

k) Fa

Placements with and loans to banks and
ather financial institutiong Hf.ﬂ. 2.00-2.44
Depaosits from banks and other financial institutions 0.00-0.72 YA

{7) Key monagement personnel

Koy moragement personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility te plan,
direct and contral the activities of the Group. Key management perionnel of the Group, their close
relatives, and enftitles that are controlled, jointly contralled, or significantly influenced by either the
key management persaonnel of the Group o their close relatives, are considered as related parties
of the Group. The Group enters into banking tronsactions with above related parties in the normal
course of business. As at 31 Decermnber 2021, the balance of loans and advances to the above related
parties is RMBEL0.40 million (31 December 2020: RMBE.BS millian).

The remuneratien of Directors and other membsers of key management during the years was as
followes:

LLLl
........ = —= 2021 2020
Salaries, bonuses and staff welfare 11.94 15.91

According Lo the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC, the key management personnel®s
firal emaluments for the year ended 31 December 2021 have not been finalized. Management of the
Group balieves that the difference batween the final emoluments and that disclosed above will not
have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements af the Group. The final compensation
will be dischosed In a separate announcemeant when determined.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2020 was  not
decided at the time when the Group's 2020 consolidated finanelal statements were released and
the amount of remuneration of Directors and other members of key management recognized in
the consolidated income statement for the year of 2020 was RME9.99 million. Supplementary
announcement on final compensation of AMBL15.91 million was released by the Bank on
30 August 2021. The comparathe figures for the year of 2020 have been restated accordingly.

8) Related natural persons transactions

The Group tssued loan and credit card business to related natural persons (as defined in the
Administrative Moasures on Information Disclosure by Listed Companies issued by the CSAC), As at 31
December 2021, the balance of such loan amounted to RMB11.97 milllon (31 December 2020: RMB12.87
millien).

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank's balance of credit related transactions 1o the related natural persons,
and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by cither the kay
management personnel of the Group or thelr dose relatives as defined in the Administration of
Connected Transactions between Commercial Banks and Their insiders totaled RMB&0ES million
{31 December 2020: AMB3,064 million). and did not have any non credit transaction balance (31
December 2020: nil).

St Repoet 2031 0T
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Cﬂ ntinued)
40 RELATEDPARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{9} The Group and the Annulty Scheme

The Group had the fallowing balances and transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank
apart from the obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme:

Az at 31 December 2021 As ok 31 December 2020

Ratio to Ratio to
similar slrmilas
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
Liabilivies
Deposits from Annulty Scheme 6,319 0.03% 4.326 0.02%
Equity
Orther equity instruments 7,500 2.08%, 7.750 2.42%
Year ended 31 Decembar
2021 2020 .
Ratics Lo Ratia ta
similar sirmilar
Amount transactions Amount  transactions
Interest expense |240) 0.06% {185) 0.05%

Interest rate range for transactions with the Annuity Scheme during the year is as follows:

__Year ended 31 Decamber

2021 2020

B — % -

Deposits from Annuity Scheme 0.00-5.00 0.00-5.00
Other equity instruments 4.B3-5.32 A4.B4-5.32
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(10} Proportion of tronsactions with major related porties
Related party transactions with subsidiaries have been offset in the process of preparing consolidated
financial statements. When calculating the proportion of related party transactions, related party

transactions do not include related party transactions with subsidiaries.

Transaction Balance

A3 at 31December 2021 As at 31 December 2020

Related Related
party party
transactions  Proportion  transactions Proportion

Deposits from banks and other

financial nstitutions B8,B42 &0.66% B9, 726 20.67%
Placements with and |oans to banks

and other financlal institutions 123,271 I7.58% 100,125 18.31%
Derivatwve financial assers 4,003 18.21% 17,137 27T.67%
Financial assets held under

resale agreements 71,332 8.52% 61,315 7.51%
Loans and advances to customers 20,935 0.13% 67,998 0.47%
Financial investmeants 1,910,196 23.21% 1,870,528 23.91%
Deposits from banks and other

financlal institutions 79,160 4.88% 82,890 G666
Placements from banks and other

financial institutions 68,168 23.42% 147,049 I7.64%
Derivatwve financial liabilities 1,747 14.21% 11,259 17.25%
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreemaents 9,909 27,500 48,444 44,36%
Dua to customars 118,001 0.54% 73,906 0.36%
Crther liabilities 1,290 0.26% Tis 0.14%
Orther equity instruments 10,750 1.99% 11,000 3.44%
Letters of guarantee issued

and guarantees 1,800 0.59% - -

Mon-principal guarantesd wealth
management products issued by
thix Graup 4 0. (W 3,000 0.15%

Transaction amount

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020
Related Aelated
party party
transactions Proportion  transactions Frogartion
Enterest income 30,332 3.01% 33,372 3.59%
Inberes] expanse [3.132) 0.73% |2.459) 0.64%
Het trading gain 148 1.05% 124 0.76%
Fee and commissien income 1,133 1.15% 1,294 1.42%
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
41 STRULCTURED ENTITIES
(1) Conzolidated structured entities
Principal guaranteed WMPs sponsored and managed by the Group

Principal guaranteed \WMPs sponsored and monoged by the Group represent preducts to which the
Group has guaranteed the imestor's principal investrment, regardless af their actual perfermance.
Investments made by these products and the earresponding liabilities are measured a1 fair  value
throwgh pralit or loss, respectively, As a1 31 December 2021, the principal-guarantecd WMPs has fully
sietled at matwrity.

Other consolidated structured entities

Other structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset management plans, funds
and securitization products issued, managed and/or invested by the Group, The Group controf these
entities because the Group has power ower, is exposed 1o, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with these entities and has the ability 1o use its power ower these entities 1o affect the
amount of the Group's retunns.

{2} Urnconsolidoted structured entlties
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly Include non-
principal guaranteed WMPs, which are not subject to any guarentee by the Group of the princigal
invested or interest to be pakd. The WMPs invest in o range of assets, most typleally maney market
nstruments, debt securities and non-standardized debt assets. A the manager of these WMPs, the
Group, on behalf of the investors In these WMPs, imvests the funds raised from investors to the assets
as described in the investment plan related to each WMP and distributes profit (o investors based on
product performance,

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets invested by these WMPs amounted to RMB2,210,935
millizn (31 Decermnber 2020: RMB2,170,621 million) and the corresponding outstanding WMPs bssued
by the Group amounted to AMB2,072,533 million (31 December 20200 AMB1,949,722 milllon).
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's interest in these WMPs included net fee
and commission income of AMBE,129 millien (2020: RMBG, 243 million) and net interest income of
RMBAZE million (2020: RMBS3I2 million], which related to placements and repo transactions entered
into by the Group with these WP Vehicles,

The Group enters into placements and repo transactions at market interest rates with these WiFs.
The average balance and the weighted average maturity during 2021 were RMEB14,238 million and
642 days (2020: RMB23,423 million and 6.25 days), respectively. And there was no outstanding balance
for the above-mentioned transactions at 31 December 2021 [31 December 2020: KMB143 545
milliagn). The Group was under no obligation to enter into these transactions. The outstanding balance of
these transactions was presented In placements with and locans to banks and ather financial Institutions
and financial assets held under resale agreements, which represented the Group's manimum exposure
to the WikiPs.
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For the yeas ended 31 Decermber 2021
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
41 STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
{2) Unconsolidated structured entities [Continued)
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group (Continued)

Thete were na contractual liguidity arrangements, guarantees or other commitments between  the
Group and any third parties that could increase the level of the Group's risk from WMPs disclosed
abowve during the period ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 The Group was  not
requited 1o absorb any losses incurred by WP,

In addition, other unconsolidated structured entities sponsered and managed by the Group included
funds, asset management plans and asset-backed securities. As at 31 Decermnmber 2021, the total assels
ol these products amounted to RMBA63,451 milion (31 December 2020: RMB44E IER million).
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's interest in these products mainly included net
fae and commisdion incame of RMB1,530 millian (2020: RMBETT millian),

Mher unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group irvests i other unconsolidated structured entities which are sponsored and managed
by other entities for investment return, and records trading gains of losses and interest incomme
therefrom. These unconsolidated structured entities primarily  nclude asset  moanogement  plons,
wealth management, funds, trust plans, asset-backed securities and debt imvestment plans, ete. As
at 31 December 2021, the related carrying amount of investments and the maximum exposure by
the Group 1o these other enconsolidated structured entites was RMBED,229 million {31 December
2020; RMBS2,193 million), included under the financial assets at fair wvolue through profit or loss,
debt mstrument investments at amaortized eost and other debt (nstrument imvestments ot fair value
through other comprehensive income categories in the consolidated statement of financlal positon.
The information on the size of total assets of these unconsolidated structured entities was not readily
available in the public domain,

42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Legal proceedings end others

The Bank and its subsidiaries are Involved as demandants/defendants in certain lawsulits arising from thelr
normal business operations. As at 31 December 2021, provisions of RMB5,333 million were made by the
Group |31 December 2020: RMB5,560 million] based on court judgments or advice of legal counsel, and
included in Mote v 31 Other Uabilities. Management of the Group believes that the final result of these
lawsults will not have a material impact on the financial position or operations of the Group.

On 18 September 2016, the Bank and its New York Branch entered into a Cease and Desist Order with
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United 5States. On & November 2016, the
Bank and its New York Branch entered mto a Consent Order with New York State Department of Financial
Services (the “Department”) and paid a civil monetary penalty to the Department accordingly, As at 31
December 2016, the abowe-mentioned civil monetary penalty was pald and reflected In the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 Deocember 2016,

F2 | revany
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CEJ ntinued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Legal proceedings and athers [Continued)

A5 a1 31 Decembaer 202 1, the Bank and its New York Branch have basically completed the main part of the
rectification, and it is expected that this event is unlikely 1o krad to the outflow of economic benelits.

Capital commitments
—As at 31 December ____
2021 2020
Contracted but not provided for 1,981 2,507

Loan commitments ond financlal guarantes contracts

Az at 31 ember

2021 2020

Loan commitments
— With an ariginal maturity of less than 1 year 21,567 207,288
— With an original matusity of 1 year or above 438,333 1,409,990
Subtotal 459,900 1.617,278
Bank scceplances 414,934 429,841
Credit card commitments 743,594 695,183
Guarantee and letters of guarantee 304,238 264,646
Letters of credit 165,639 162,356
Total 2,088,305 3,169,304

Loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts represent credit cards and general credit facility imits
granted to customers. These general credit facilities may be drawn in the form of loans or through the
issuance of letters of credit, guarantee and letters of guarantee or bank acceptances,

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments represents the counterparty credit risk  associated
with credit commitments and Is calculated In accordance with the “Capital Rules for Commerdial Banks
{Prowisional)” sued by the CBIRC which was effective 1 lamuary 2013 and s dependent on, among
other factors, creditworthiness of counterparties and maturity characteristics of each type of contract. As
at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2000, credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments was
measured under the Internal Ratings-Based approach.

As at 31 December
2021 2020
Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments 1,174,309 1,220,078
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Collateral
Assets pledged

AL the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of assets pledged os colloteral under repurchase
agreements are a5 lellows:

As at 31 December

2021 2020
Debt securities 33,407 114,573
Bills. 4,749 1,327
Total 36,156 115,900

As at 31 December 2021, the Mnancial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group (disclosed
in Mote v 2B) amounted to RMEB36,033 millien (31 December 2020: AMB109,195 milllon). Repurchase
agreemants are primarily due within 1 years from the effective dates of these agreements.

Fimancial assets sodd under repurchase agreaments included certain transactions under which, title of the
pledged securities has been transferred to counterparties. These transactions have been disclosed In Note 1V
43 Transferred Financial Assets

In addition, debt securities and deposits with banks and other financial institutions pledged in accordance
with regulatory requirements or as collateral for derivative transactions and borrowings from central banks etc.
by the Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted 1o RMB1,095,330 million in wial (31 December 2020
RMB1,026.931 million),

Collateral accepted

The Group received debt securities and bills as collateral in connection with the secwrities lending
transactions and the purchase of assets wnder resale agreements (Note W 16 Financial Assets Held
Under Resale Agreements). The Group did not hold any collateral that can be resold or m-pledged as at
11 December 2021 and 31 December 2020

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

The Growp is entrusted by the MOF to underwrite certain treasury bonds, The investors of theso treasury
honds hawe a right to redeem the bonds 3t par at any time prior to maturity and the Group B committed
to hanor such redemption requests. The redemption price |5 caloulated as the par value of the bond plus
payable interest in accordance with the terms of the related early redemption arrangement.

As at 31 Decernber 2021, the nominal value of treasury bonds the Group was cbligated to redeem prios to
maturity was AMBGEI 405 million {31 December 2020: RMBGT.622 million]. The arginal maturities of these
bonds vary from 3 to 5 years, Management of the Group expects the amount of redemption before the
maturity dates of these bonds will not be material,

Commitment on security underwriting

A3 a1 31 December 2021, the unexpired securities underwriting obligations of the Group amounted 1o AMB140
million {31 Decermnber 2020; Nene).

Aerruad Nt 321 J13
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yead ended 31 Decermber 2021
[Amounts in millicns of Renminks, anless othe raisn stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
43 TRAMNSFERRED FINAMCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of busineis whereby it trandlers recognized
financial assets to third parties of to structured entitios, In some cases these transfers may give rise to full
ar partial derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred assets do
not gualify for derecognition as the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the
Group continued to recognize the transferred assets.

Securitization transactions

The Group éntérs into securitization transactlions by which it transferd loand o struclured entities which
issuc assct-backed securitics to investors, The Group asscsscd, among other factors, whether or not 1o
derecognice the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retasins the risks and rewards of
the assets and whether it has relinquished its cantrol over thewe aceeis based on the eriteria as detailed in
Mate I8 E.7 and Mote 1 6,

As at 31 December 2021, the total amount of unexpired ssset-backed securities included accumulative
loans transferred by the Group before impalrment allowance was RMB102.3BE million (31 December 2020:
RMBED, 291 million]. AMBEG, 706 milion of this balance (31 December 2020: RMBL14.130 milldon] was in
respect of non-performing loans and the Group concluded that these loans transferred were qualified for
full derecognition. The remaining balance of RMB95,682 million (31 December 2020: RMBS55,161 millian)
was in rospect of performing loans and the Group concuded that it had continuing imvalvement in
these assets. As at 31 December 2021, the Group continued 1o recognire assets of RMED691 million
{31 December 20200 RMBE 561 million) under |oans and advanees 1o custamers. The Group alss
recognized other assets and other labidities of the same amount arising from swuch continuing involvement.

Transfer of non-performing loans

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group transferred non-performing loans through disposal
to third partes or lssulng asset-back securites, with gross loan balance of RMB16,542 million (2020:
RMEB 27,837 million). The Group carried out an assessment based on the criteria as detailed in Note Il B.7
and Note Il & and concluded that these transferred assets gualified for full derecognition.

Financial assets sold under repurchose agreements

The Group did not derecognize financial assets transferred as collateral In connection with repurchase
agreements, As at 31 December 2021, book value of these collateral pledged disclosed in Mote W 42
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral, RM3707 million {31 December 32020: RME4050
millicn) represented debt securities whereby legal title has been transferred to counterparties,

Securities lending transactions

For debt securities lent to counterparties under securities lending agreemaents, the counterparties
are zllowed to sell or repledge these securities in the absence of default by the Group, but have an
obligation to return the securities at the maturity of the contract The Group has determined that it
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized them.
As at 31 December 2021, there was no debt securities lent to cownterparties {31 December 2020: RMB17,150
million).

J4 | @IHnany
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Ouerview

The Group™s primary risk management objective is to maintain risk within accoptable parameters to mee
the requirements of regulators, depositors and other stakeholders, as well as to maximize returm for
investars within an acceptable level of risk.

The Group has designed risk management pelicies, which address, amaong ather things, the establishment
of risk limits and controls o identify, analyze, monitor and report risks. Relesant and timely information
wied to conduet thess sk management aclivities is provided through information spstems  maintained
by the Group and is intended to address the Group's information needs in this area, The Group regularly
reviews it risk management policies and systems 1o address changes in markets, products and emerging
beit practions.

The most significant types of risk to which the Group is exposed are eredit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.
Market risk includes fareign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risk,

Risk management fromewark

The Board af Directors is respansible for establiching the overall rick appetite of the Group and reviewing
and spproving Its risk management objectives ond strategies.

Within this framework, the Group's senior management has overall responsibility for managing all aspects
of risk, including implementing risk management strategies, Indtiatives and credit policies and approving
internal rules, measures and procedures related to risk management. The Risk Management Department of
the Group implerments pracedures for monoging the significant risks to which the Group B expadsod.

44.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from & custormer or counterparty’s fallure to
meel Its oblgations when due. Credit risk can also arise from operational fallures that result in an
unauthorized of Inappropriate advance, commitment of investment. The Group’s major credit  risks
artse from lpans and advances, treasury operations and off-balance sheet related credit risk exposures.

The Growp's credit risk management and governance structure comprise the Board of Direclors and
its Risk Management Committee, Senlor Management and its Risk Management Committee, Credit
Approval Commities and Asset Disposal Commities, as well as the Rsk Management Department,
Credit Mansgement Department, Credit Approval Department and related front-office customer
departments, The Group's credit risk management function eperates under a centralized management
and authorizatson under a range of specified Hmits.

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures, Iincluding credit due diligence
and propesal submission, credit underwriting review, loan disbursement, post-lending monitoring
and non-performing loan management, The Group enhances s credit risk management by strictly
complying with its credit management procedures; strengthening customer investigation, credit rating,
lending approval and post-lending monitoring measures; enhancing risk mitigation effect of loans
through collateral; accelerating disposal process of non-performing loans and continuously upgrading its
credit management system.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021
[Amnoants im il oo of Renminks, anleas of b raisn stated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Cradit risk [Continwved)
Credit risk management {Continued]

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery
afforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include ceasing enforcement activity and where the Group's
recovery method is foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonahle expectation of recovering In full.

During the reporting period, the Group continued 1o improve (he comprehénsing risk mandgement
system to ensure effective risk management. The Group strengthened credit risk management in key
areas and addet quality contral. The Group sccalerated the disposal of non-perfarming loans to ensure
the stability of assets guality.

Apart Trom the eredit risk exposures on eredit-related assets, the eredit risk arising frorm treasury
operation business (s managed by selecting counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing
credit risk and return, referencing to both internal and external credit rating  information  where
available and applying appropriate limits subject to different level of management awthority, and
timely reviewing and adjusting those limits in eredit system. In addition, the Group also provide
loan commitments and financial guarantee services to customers which may reguire the Group to
make payments on behall of custorners upon their failure to perform under the terme of the related
contract. Risks arising from loan commitments and financial guarantees are similar to those assoclaved
with loans and advances, These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same risk  management
policies and procedures.

Measwrement of ECL

The Group applies the ECL model to calculate loss allowances for its debt financial instruments
measured at amortized cost and FYOCL, as well as loan commitments and finoncial guarantee contracts.

Methods applied by the Group in assessing the expected oredit loases af its financial atsens include
risk parameters model and the discounted cash flow ["DCF®] model. Retall credit assets and Stage |
and Stage || wholesale credit assets are ausessed using rink parameters, while Stage Nl wholesale credit
assets are subject to the discounted cash flow mathod.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and wies models and assumptions in
caleulating the expected credit losses. These models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditiond and the borrowers’ ereditworthiness {e.g., the likelihood of default by customers and the
corresponding lossas). In assessing the expected credit risks in accordance with accounting standards, the
Group wses the judgments, assumptions and estimates where appropriate, including:

= Segmentation of portfolio sharing similar credit risk characteristics for the purposes of measuring
ECL

= Parametors for measuring ECL

= Critera for significant ircrease In credit risk and default definition
= Definition of credit-impaired financial asset

= Forward-looking information

—  Estimation of future cash flows for Stage 11l wholesale credit assets

3g Drevany
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48,1 Credit risk (Cantinued)
Measurement of ECL Continued]
Segmentation of portfolio sharing similar credit risk chavoeteristics for the purposes of measuring ECL

For measurement of ECL, segmentation of partfolio is based on smilar credt risk characteristics, The
Group classfied clients into wholesale clients and retail dients based on the nojure of debtors. In
perlonming the portfolic segmentation of wholesale credil assets, the Gioup considers the type of borrowe,
industry, loan usage, and security type. When performing the portfolio segmentation for retail credit
susots, thir Group condiders kaan product type and security type o ensure the reliability of its credit risk
segrneniatinn,

Parameters for measuring ECL

According to whether there Is @ significant increase in credit risk and whether a financial asset has
become credit-impaired, the Group recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credit
loss for the next 12 months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The relevant parameters of
ECL measurement inclede probability of default [PD), loss given default [LGD) and exposure at default
{EAD]. The Group establishes its PD models, LGD models and EAD models based on the internal rating
based system as currently used for its risk management purpose, in aceordance with the reguirements
of IFRS 9, in light of quantitative analyss of historieal statisties [sueh 88 eounterparty  ratings,
guarantes methods and collateral types, repayment methods, ete.) and forward-looking infarmation,

The patameters are defined as follows:

— PO represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over the
naxt 12 months (*12m PD"], or over the remaining lifetima (“Ufatime PD") of the obligation;

=  EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time of default, over the
naxt 12 manths (“12m EAD"] or over the remalining lifetime |“Lifetime EAD"];

—  LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted exposure. it varies
depending on the type of counterparty, method of recourse and priority, and the availability of
collateral or other credit support. LGD ks expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default.

Criveria for significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") and defawlt definition

The Group assessos whether or not the credit nsk of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since the initial recognition at each balance sheet date. For the purpose of staging
assessment of its financial assets, the Group thoroughly considers various reasonable and supportable
information that may reflect whether or not there has been a significant change in their credit risk,
including forward-looking Information. Key factors considered Include regulatory and operating
environments, internal and external credit ratings, solvency, viability as a going concern, torms of
loan contracts, repayment behaviors, among others. Basad on the single financial Instrumant or the
combination of financial instruments with similar characteristics of credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of default of financial instruments on the balance sheet date with that on the initial recognition
date in order to figure out the changes of default risk in the expected lifetime of financial instruments.
The definition of default refers to the fallure to pay the debt as agreed In the contract, or other
violations of the debt contract and have a significant impact on the normal debt repayment,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

44.1 tradit sk (Continved)

Fig| @rHnany

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Criteria for significant increase in eredit risk {“SICR™] and defoult definition [Continued)

The Group wets qguantitative and qualitative criteria to determine whether or not the eredit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly since its initiad recognition. The criteria include changes
in the barrower's PO, l;h.ang:!. in its credit sk casdification and ather Tactors. In particular, when
the credit risk classification changes from Marmal upon initial recognition to Special Mention, there
hay been SICR. When the borrower's PD rises 10 a cortain level, there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. Criteria o determine significant increase in credit risk varied bated on the adiginal PD
ugan fnitial recognition, If the borrower's original PO s relatively fow (for exarmple, lower than 3%).
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when the eredit grade falls at least 6 notches. If the
criteria to determine significant increase in eredit risk moves up or down by one notch, the impact on
the allowance of expected credit loss on 31 December 2021 is less than 5%. According to IFRS 9, a
Backstop is applied and the financial instrument considersd 1o have experenced o significant increase
Iy eredit risk If the borrower i more than 30 days past due on its cantractual payments.

The Group assurnes that the eredit risk an a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
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imitial recognition if the financial instrument is determined te have low credit risk at the reporting  date.

The Group recagnires a financial instrument a5 having low credit risk if s internal rating s consistent
with the globally accepted definition for low credit risk {e.g. external “investment grade” ratings].

Definition of credit-impaired financial asset

The criteria adopted by the Group te determine whether a credit impabrment cccurs under IFRS % s
cangistent with the internal credit risk managemont objectives for refevant finandgal instruments, in
addition toe consideration of quantitative and qualitative indicators. In assessing whether a barrower
has become credit-impaired, the Group mainly considers the following factors:

—  Significant financlal difficulty of the issuar ar the bormower;

= A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event In refation to Interest or principal
payment;

—  The lender of the borrower, lor economic or contraciual reasons relating 1o the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise condider;

— It is becoming probable that the borrower will  enter  bankeupiey of  other  financial
rearganisation;

= The dsappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties;

_ The purchase ar origination of a financial asset at a deop discount that reflects the incurred
cradit bosses,

= The borrower & overdue for more than 90 days in any principal, advances, interest or investment
in Bands due to the Group.,

The credit impairment of a financial asset may be caused by the combined effect of multiple evenis
rather than any single diserete cvent.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
44.1 Credit risk [Continued]
Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Forward-looking infarmation

The assessment of whether or not there has been a significant increase in  credit risk and  the
caleulation of ECL both invelve forward-looking information. Through the amalysis of historical data,
the Group identifies the macroeconomic Indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL of various portfolio.
Facreeconamic indicators include Gross Domestic Product |GI'.'IP], Consumeer Price Index {CPI} and
Industrial Added Value, etc.

The impact of these economic indicators on the PDs and the LGDs varies from one porifolio to another,
The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert forecasts and statistical analysis
to determine the correlation between these economic indicators and the PDs and LGDs. The Group
sssesigs and forecasts these economic indicators &t least on an annusl basis, calculates the best
estimates for the future, and regularly reviews and assasses results,

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has assessed and forecosted the  relevant  macroeconomic
Indicators for 2022, of which the forecast value of 2022 GDP growth rate under cach scenaro is
at follows: 5.30% under base tcenario, B.36% under upside scenario, and 2 6E% under downside
scenario.

Basad on statistical analysis and expert judgements, the Group determines the weightings of multiple
scenarios and the corresponding macroeconamic forecast under each scenario. The weighting of base
scemario is greater than the aggregated welghtings of the rest scenarios. At 31 December 2021, the
weightings of the Group®s base, upside and downside scenarios have not changed from 31 December
2020, The Group uses the weighted 12-month ECL [Stage 1) or weighted lifetime ECL ([Stage Il and
Stage W) to measure relevant impalement allowances, These weighted credit losses are calculated by
multiplying the expected credit loss under each scenano by the assigned scenario welghting.

A sensitivity analysis s performed en Indicators used in forward-looking measurement, When the
assigned weightings of wpside scenario and downside scenario change by 10% and the forecast of
ecaonamic indicators change accordingly, the impact on the allowanoe of expected credit loss is less
Uhan 5%,

Estimation of future cash flows for Stage IV wholesele credit ossets

The Group measures the ECL for stage 1l wholetale eredit assets using DCF method. Under DCF methad,
the loss aliowance is calculated based on the estimation of future cash flows. At each measwrement date,
the Group projects the future cash inflows of relevam assets under different scenarios to estimate the
probability weighted cash flow of each future period. The cash flows are dscounted and aggregated to
gat the present value of the assets’ future cash flows,

Maximum exposure lo credit risk before teking inte account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements

The maximum exposure o credit risk represents the worst case of credit risk exposure at the ond af
each reporting perled, without considering any avallable collateral held or other aredit enhancements.
The credit risk exposure to the Group primarily arises from credit . treasury and operations. In addition,
off-balance shest tems such as loan commitments, credit card commitments, bank acceptances,
gEuarantes and letters of guarantee and letters of credit abo include credit risks,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

441 Credit risk (Continued)

220 | (@ ruhbny

Maximum cxposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements {Continved)

A summary of the maximum exposure to credit risk s as follows:

As al 31 December
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Motes 2021 2020
Balances with central banks 2,246,756 1,360,994
Deposits with banks and other financeal institutions 218,500 434,185
Placements with and loans to banks and
othier financial institutions Ad6, 944 546,948
Derivatiee financial assets 21,978 61,937
Financial assets held under resale agréeaments B3T,637 E16,206
Loans and advances bo cusiomers ik 156,454 503 14,552,433
Financial invastmants
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 328,769 463,308
Debt instrumeant Investrments sl amortized cost {i} 5,372,522 5,684,220
Other debt instrument investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income [{}] 1.352,691 1,551,439
Gther financlal assets 77,881 101,562
Subtotal 2B.398,221 26,579,232
Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts (L] 2,068,034 3,133,548
Total 30,466,255 20,712,780

(]

Mazimum expasure to credit risk for loans and adwances disclosed in credit risk levels

The Group classified the credit risk levels of financial assets measwed by ECL into “Low™
[credit risk in good condition], “Medium®™ (increased credit risk), and “High™ {credit risk in

sevane condition], based on the quality of assets, The credit risk lovel is wsed for the purpose of

the group's internal credit risk management. "Low” rofers to assots with good crodit  quality.
There s no sufficient reason to doubt that the assets are not expected to Tulfill its contractual
obligation to repay or il there is any othar behaviors breaching the debt contracts that would
significantly mpact the repayment of debt according to contract terms, “Mediom®™ refers
to assets facing obviows negative factors impacting its repayment capacity, but not yet have non-

repayment behaviors, *High" rafars to nonorepaymaent according to the debt contract terms, or
other behaviors breaching the debt contracts or having significant impact on the repayment of

debt according to contract terms.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CﬂntinUEd}
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or ather
credit enhancements (Continued)

{f  Maximurm exposure to eredit fisk for loans and advances disclosed in eredit risk levels

[Continued)
Corporate loans and advances As at 31 Decermnber 2021
Stage || &
Stage | Stage 11 Tatal

12m ECL  Lifetime ECL

Credit risk grade

Lo 9,588,174 16,422 9,604,596
Medium = 203,289 203,289
High £ 209,519 209,519
Gross arnying amount 9,588,174 429,230 10,017,404
Allowance for mpairment loss [336,129) (191,135} (527,264)
Mot amount 9,252,045 238,095 9,490,140
Personal Loans and advances 3 er 1
Stage || &
Stage | Stage 1 Total
12m ECL  Lifetime ECL
Credit risk grade
Low 7,071,624 - 7,071,624
Medium - 49,781 43,781
__High = 36,264 36254
Gross carrying amount 7,071,624 86,045 7,157,669
Allowance for mpairment loss [163,988) {29,318} {193,305)
Net amaunt 5,907 636 55,727 6,964,363
Corporate boans and advances As at 31 December2020
Stage 1l &
Stage | Stage N Tatal

12m ECL Lifetime ECL

Credit risk grade

Low 8,439,076 21,073 B.460,149
Medium - 256,288 258,288
High - 196,795 198,795
Gross carnying amount 8,439,076 478,156 8,917,232
Allgwance lor impasrment loss [269,354) (189,331 [#58, 685)
Met amount 8,169,722 28B,825 8,458,547
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continued)

[} Maximum exposure to eredit risk for leans and advances disclosed in eredit risk levels

[Continued)
Personal Loans and advances As at 31 December 2000
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage 1N Tatal
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
Credit risk grade
Low 6,134,472 - 6,134,472
Medium ] 46,047 A6,047
High - 38,318 38,318
Gross carnying amount 6,134,472 84,365 6,218,837
Allowance for impairment loss (128,414) (30,910} [159,324)
Mot amount &,006,058 53,455 6,059,513

The abowve information on the maximum exposure to credit nsk of loans and advances to

customers does ot include loans and advances o customears measured a1 fair value through
profit or less,

(i} Masimum exposure ta credit risk for debt Instrument investments at amartized cost disclozed in
credit risk levels

As at 31 Decomber 2021
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage NI Total
12m ECL  Lifetime ECL
Credit risk grade
Liow 5,389,720 - 6,389,720
Medium - S48 548
High = 1,181 1,281
Gross carmying amount 6,389,720 1829 6,391,549
Allpwance for impairment loss [17,764] [1,263) {19,027)
Wet amount 6,371,956 SE6 6,372,522
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Credit rizsk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any coilateral held or other
eredit enhancerments (Continued)

(i}  Maximum expesure ta credit risk far debt instrument investrmenis at amartized cost disclosed in
eredit risk levels [Cantinued)

As at 31 December 2020
Stoge Il &
Stage | Stage 1 Taral
13m ECL Lifiatirme ECL
Credit risk grade
Low 5,697,187 = 5,697,187
Medium - 2,064 2,064
High - 1073 1073
Gross carnying amount 5,697,187 3,137 5,700,324
Allpwance lor impairment lass 114,B50) 11,254) (16,104}
Met amount 5,687,337 1,883 5,684,220

(i} Macimwm exposure to credit rsk for other debt instrument investments at fair value through
ather comprehensive income disclosed in credit risk lovels

As at 31 December 2021
Stage || &
Stage | Stage 11 Total
R - 12m ECL  Ufatime ECL
Credit risk grade
Low 1,390,7E9 399 1,391,188
Medium - 1,471 1,471
High = iz 3z
Gross carrying amount 1,390,789 1,902 h_!ﬂ!,ﬁ'!l
&% a1 31 December 2020
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage Il Total
1ImEct  UfetimeECL
Credit risk grade
Linw 1,545,343 = 1,545,343
Medium = 6,030 6,030
High = GG GG
Gross carmying amount 1,545,343 6,096 1,551,439
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk [Continued)

Maximum exposure (o credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continued)

(vl Maximum expoture bo eredit risk for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
is balance after estimated contingent liabilities. Majority of loan commitments and financial
Ruarantes contracts i in Stage | with credin risk grade as “Low”,

(vp  As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, in its deposits with banks and ather financial
institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions, and financial
assets held under resale agreements, the Group had insignificant balances with “Meadium™ or "High™
credit risk grade and classified as Stage 1l or Stage 11 assets, and no default had occurred,

(vl The Group has implemented specific policies and credit enhancement practices to mitigate credit
risk exposure to an acceptable level. The most typical practioe |s obtaining guarantee deposits,
collateral and guarantess. The amount and type of acceptable collateral are determined through
the assessment of credit risk of borrowers or counterparties. The Group implements guidelines
on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral and evaluation parameters.

The rain types of collateral abtained are as follows:

= Maortgage loans o retail customers are generally collateralized by mortgages over
residential properties;

—  Other personal lending and corporate loans and advances are prirmarily collateralized by
charges over land and properties or other assets of the borrowers: and

=  Financial assets held under resale agreements transactions are primarily collateralized by
debt securities andbills,

Thie Group monitors the market value of collateral periodically and requests for additional
collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement when necessary.

324 @rheseny
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48,1 Credit risk (Cantinued)
Leans and advances to customers (1}

The following tables set out the concentration of risk for loans and advances to customers by
geographical area and industry,

{1} The composition af loans and advances to customers by geographical area s analyzed as
Tollaws:

Az at 31 December
2021 2020
Amount % of total Amount % of total

Corparate kpans and advances.

Hesd Office 313,248 31 350,679 ia
Yangue River Delta 2,383,014 3.8 1,996,025 22.4
Pearl River Delta 1,325,589 13.2 1,138,535 128
Bohal Rim 1,427,511 14.3 1,302,504 14.6
Central China 1,477,841 14.8 1,302,925 14.6
‘Western China 2,297,775 23.0 2,088,255 234
Northeastern China 367,382 3.7 344,039 3.9
Owerseas and Others 406,823 4.1 393,322 a.4
Subtotal 9,990,184 100.0 8,917,284 100.0
Personal loans and advances
Head Office a7 - 50 -
Yangtae River Delta 1,705,450 2349 1484067 138
Pearl River Delta 1,514,233 21.2 1,331,142 1.4
Bohai Rim 1,033,741 14.5 912,175 14.7
Central China 1,187,096 1.8 947,845 16.0
‘Western China 1,451,317 20.3 1,265,565 0.4
Northeastarn China 225,328 3.2 207 899 13
Owerzeas and Others 159,356 0.3 20,084 0.3
Subtotal 7,136,568 1000 6,218,837 1000
Gross loans and advances
to customears 17,135,752 15,136,121

{# The below information does nod aclude occrued interests of foons and aovances 1o Cusfomers

Aerual Nt 321 | J2S
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk [Continwved)
Loans and advances to customers (i) [Continued)

(2} The composition of loans and advances to customers by industry is analyzed as follows:

As at 31 December

2021 2020
Amgunt % of total Amount % of total
Corparate loans and advances
Transportation, lagistics and
postal sarvices 2,145,617 21.5 1,915,191 2.5
Manufacturing 1,694 E79 17.0 1,450, 816 16.3
Leasing and commercial services 1,507,059 15.1 1,261,700 14.1
Production and supply of power,
heat, gas and water 1,054,517 10.5 are a7 11.0
Real estate 876,407 A THE017 a8
Water, emvironment and
public utilities management 719,530 7.2 621,772 T.0
Retail and wholesale 574,187 5.7 460,831 5.3
Finance 446,486 4.5 556,342 5.2
Canstruction 303,387 3.0 212,858 25
Mining 203,937 .0 206,502 2.3
Cuhers 473,218 a.7 437,878 4.8
Subtotal 9,999,184 1000 8,917,284 100.0
Personal loans and advances
Residential mortgage 5,242,297 734 4,862,632 75.0
Parsonal business 459,498 E.6 380,305 61
Personal consumption 193,706 2.7 196,859 3.2
Crodit cards 626,783 B8 547,563 BY
DOthers 504, 284 8.5 436,478 7.0
Subrtotal 7,136,568 100.0 8,218,837 100.0
Gross loans and adwances
to customars 17,135,752 15,136,121

N LU
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Credit rizsk (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers (i} (Continued)

(2

(4]

The eompasition of lans and advances 1o customers by contractual maturty and SECurity type i

amalyred o follows:

31 December 2021

Less than 1teb Ower 5

: . 1 year VTS yoars _Totsl

Unsecured loans 2,307 472 860,788 1,824,123 4992382

Guaranteed loans 667,336 466,119 777,262 1910,717

Loans secured by colateral 1,279,772 EA7.215 6006530 7963577

Pledged loans 386,734 118,536 1,763,806 2 269,075

Total 4,641,314 2,032,658 10,461,780 17,135,752

31 December 2020
Less than 15 Over 5

S — 1 year _ years  years  Toml

Unsecured loans 1,537,763 958928 1,679,137 4,175,828

Guaranteed inans 719,901 428,989 AA0,554 1,680 444

Loans secured by collateral 1,062,045 521,244 5,305,327 5,97, 616

Pledged loans 623,848 101,553 1,566,832 2,292,233

Tatal 3,843,557 2,010,714 9,2B1,850 15,136,121

Past due loans (i}
] 31 December 2021
Upto 31-50 51-360 351 days Ovar

30 days dlays days to 3 yesrs 3 years Total

Unsecured loans 7,311 4388 10,549 4,431 4,318 31,390

Guaranteed loans 5,017 1,953 7,569 5,031 1,876 16,446

Loans secured by

callateral 30,388 1,418 29,563 22,740 7,734 111,824

Pledged loans 1,922 959 4,766 4,684 2,901 15,231

Tatal 44, 640 29.719 52,E47 a0, BRE 16,829 1E4,921

31 December 2020
Up to 31=90 91=360 361 days Owver

30days divys doys o 3years 3 yiars Taotal

Urniecured loans 5,678 4,645 12,114 2,675 3,526 23,638

Guaranteed loans 10,136 2.B90 11,336 9,287 2,020 35,669
Loans secured by

collateral 32138 10,145 33,540 26,513 6636 118572

_Pledged loans 2042 554 3,803 5,274 481 12,154

Total 49,994 256,234 b0, 1493 A3,749 12,663 195,433

] Wiven either loen privcipal or interest s post due by one doy in any perivd, the wiole loes s olassified

@i ol fon
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[Amounts im millices of Renminks, unless of e raier stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Eredit risk [Continved)
Loans and advances to customers (i) [Continued)
(3} Credit quality of loans and advances to customers

Within the r_fedltr!mp.:lred lnant and advances, the pnrtlnm cavered and Aol coversd b‘.l
collaterals held are as follows:

2021 2020
Porthon covered 141,243 141,492
Portion not covered 104,539 95,621
Total 245,782 237,113

(B} Maodification of contractual cash flows

A maodilication or re-negotiation af a contract between the Group and a counterparty may result
in @ change to the contractual cash flows without resulting in the derecognition of the financial
assots. Such restructuring activities include extended payment term arrangoments, ropayment
whadule modifications and changes to the interest settlement mathod. The risk of default of
such assets after modification s assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under
thae original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substential and 30 does
not result in derecognition of the original asset. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset
Is recalculated and the related gain or loss Is recognized in profit and loss. The gross carrying
amaount of the financial asset i determined based on the present value of the renegotiated or
modified contractual cash Mows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interesy rate,

The Group monitors the subsequent performance of modified assets. The Group may determine
that the credit risk has significantly improved after modified, so that the assets are moved fram
Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1, and the impairment allowance is measered a1 an amount equal o
the 12-month ECL instead of the Iifetime ECL.

Rescheduled loan is a loan which the contractual termd wese renegotiated between the Group
and borrowers because of deterioration in borrewers' financial position, or the inability te meet
borrawers’ ariginal repayment schedube. Rescheduled loans and advances of the Growp as at
31 December 2021 amounted to AMB1E, 307 millkon (31 December 2020: RMEB14,546 millian),

During the period ended 31 December 2021, a3 a result of bankruptey reorganization and
equity fer debt, the Group recognited ordinary shares upon renegotiation of RMB1,984

millian (31 December 2020: RMB1,649 million), The loss auociated with theie bankruptey
rearganization and equity for debt was not significant.

328 | (Drunny
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
441 Credit rigk (Continued)
Debt instruments
Credit quality af debt instruments

‘1, A.I'Iﬂhr!‘l!. al the El:pll'.“.‘ﬂ eredit loss !.IB,BE!. ol debt inttroment  investments at amortied cost
and other debt instruments at fair value through other comprebensive income were disclosed in
Mates IV18.2 and 183, reipectively.

(2] Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating

The Group adopts a credit rating approach to manage the credit risk of the debt securities
portialio held, The Group classified the eredit risk levels of financial assets measured by ECL into
“Low™ (credit risk in good condition), “Medium® (increased eredit risk], and “High® (credit risk
in severe condition), based on the quality of assets. The credit risk level is used for the purpose
of the Group's internal credit risk management. “Low” refers to assets with good credit quality.
There is no sutficient reason ©o doulbt that the assets are nol expected to fulfill its contraciual
obligation to repay or il there i any other behaviors breaching the debt contracts that would
significantly impact the repayment of debt sccording to contract terms, “Medium® refers te
awsets facing obvious negative factors impacting its repayment capacity, but not yet have non-
repayment behaviors. “High” refers 1o non-repayment sccarding to the debit contract terms, of
other behaviars breaching the debt contracts and having significant impact on the repayment of
debt according Lo contract terms.

The carrging smounts of debt instrurnents imcestments at amorticed cost and other debt
Instrumant investments at fair value through other comprehensive income analyred by their
credit rating as at the end of the reporting period are as follows (i}

As at 31 December 2021 -
Credit grade Motes Low Medium High Tatal
Dbt securities issued by
— Gowermmarnts 4,807 834 - - 4,8B07.834
= Pubdlic sector and
quasi-governmeants 1,787,588 - = 1,787,588
— Financial institutions 511,253 1,218 = 512,471
— Corporates {ii] 209,339 253 iz 209,624
Special government bond 894,122 - - 94,122
Recehrable from the MOF 324,619 = = 24,618
Others 18,389 548 18 28,955
Total 7,763,194 2,018 50 7,765,213

Bl Rpporl 3031 329
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Dekbr instruments [Continped)

Credit quality of debt instruments [Continued)

330 @rwsenn

12}

Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating [Continued)

_Asat 31 Decamber 2020

Credit grade Notes Low  Medium High Total
Dbt secwritied isswed by

— Govemmenis 4,788,607 = - 4,788,607

— Public sector and

quasi-governments 1,590,893 - - 1,590,893

= Fimancial institutions 658,182 2,580 = 660,762

= Corporatas {i 47,717 4,796 66 252,579
Special government bond 94,125 - = 94,125
Recelvable from the MOF 316,656 - - 316,656
Others 31,500 528 9 32037
Tatal 7.227,6E0 7,904 75 7,235,659

[l The ratings as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 were internal ratings obtained
from the Group, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss was not induded in the

credit grade table as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

1]  As at 31 December 2021, the ratings of super short-term commercial papers of the
Group amounted to AMBE3 634 million [31 December 2020: AMA3IAT milllon) included in
corporate bonds above are based on issuer rating for this credit risk analysis.

44.2 Liquidity risk

Linuidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset,

The Growp's Assets and Liabilities Management Department manages its lkquidity risk through:

Optimiring asset and lability structure;

Maintaining stability of deposit base;

Making projections of future cash flows, and evaluating the appropriate lguid asset position;

Maintaining an efficient internal funds transfer mechanism within the Group; and

Performing stress tosting on a regular basis.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued]
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44,2 | lquidity risk [Cantinued)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financigl assets and financial lfabilities

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities based on the carnying amount at the end of each reporting period:

11 Becenber 2011
On s thas 1] 1 -5 Coer
Faidee  derrond 1 moath ol gy (L] Spran ) Tesl
Ciir 303300 Wi craral By - Irs e - M - - = LMD 23R A
Degotits with Bands and
b firarcinl mtitetions - 78385 Ban o0,5% 2,00 1188 - - 8550
Paqerrants wi v b i bashy
and other finindal imbtubon = - 151 50 11895 Eek "] Har LTR = (210
Dertative naacil afuets - - Lk ] i LhEL] ] 1 - s
Finarcil ansets held unde
e agreemeah 1M - g0 k| 10 - - - HARERD
Lo aad advarde 1 customen L - [ H] HRLEN LAt Lyalm Bin - bl RE
Frarcul msets 21 Liir vl
roiagh prolit or kg + a4 19554 1,6 & ] LLFIL IR i B E 1L
Dot mutrarer] Fovestreents.
al irmartibid cost ] = in 1Lam AN LWL LaRER - IS
ehes dei st i b iy
EEiFeh o e v o
ther (omanthefve indome b+ § - an T b1 Ly man S8 LK
Defer francial aneh LEE 7612 ] 14 4 o ] 15m TEN
Tortal fingnrial puirty LS 1M eI LeNn  duSEN O RTSLAM  ILMAMT LML) TLAGRLES]
Bartowings 'om cestil S - 3y WedE (LK (LA 116181 - = [na
Degoiits kom Bunky and
wthet frarziad rotftation = [1105856)  (HREH| (MIN] PMAD [R5 - = |LEkL3EE]
Pabmeaty froem Busks wed
Sihat Rrdeutial A Raliann * = (GSs] e (R L] s = s
Firangiy! atslies ot Qi vaiis
thraogh prele or s = 15844 . . * ] (T = L]
Gttt sl Batebtigy - - [ELL] 25 ] 3351 (g = A
Fraare il sty wld ender
WA r— e = jmbal mET) g (L) - - )
Dur o cawoman, = LIBEET  [(0ESES| (L33ME)  RMGMD  iA3E0E) 1] = ||
Dl serurities sced - - aasE TN UA |LEMNY (B - |asanesy
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial labilities
(Continued)

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by
remaining cantractual maturities based on the earrying amount at the end of each reporting period:

[Continued)
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On  lenihas 14 Fu 1=5 e
Pudee  demand  1merih ] ity an Sy Unsiated e
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows

Assets available te meet obligations related to the Group's liabilities and outstanding  eredit
commitments primarily include cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and ather
financial institutions, placements with and loans ta banks and ather financial institutions, financial
assets at fair value theough profit or loss, and financial assets held under resale agreements. in the
nonmal eourse of business, the majority of customeér depoiits repayable on demand of on maturity
are expected to be retained, In addition, the Group is able to sell the ather debt instrument and other
equity inwestrments at fair value through other comprehensive income to repay matured liabilities, §f
AECELsany.

The tables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial assets and linancial
liatbilities by remaining contraciual maturities 3t the end of each reporting period:

11 Degembe: 2021
Oe  lewithin 11 o -4 Ower
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.2 Liguidity rsk {Continued)

334 (Phunsen

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows [Continued)

The tables below present the undiscounted cash lows of non-derivative linoncial assets and financial
liaksilities by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period: (Cantinued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMCIAL RISKE MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Lguldity risk {Continuad)
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on o net bosis

The tables befow present the undiscounted cantractual cash llows of the Groug's net dervative
pasitions based on their remsining contractual maturities:

31 December 2021

Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Cwar
1 manth months  months yenrs 5 years Total
Derivataes on a net hasis 650 512 448 (101} - 1,508

31 December 2020

Lessthan 1-3 312 1-5 Over
1 manth manths miarths yeare 5 ypiare Total
Derivatives on a net basis [18] (120} (39} (2,203} {1,018} {3,398}

Derivatives scttled on a gross bosis

The tables befow present the undiscounted contractual cash flovws of the Group's gross dervative
pasitions based on their remaining contractual maturities:

31 Decomber 2021
Less than 1-1 3-12 1-5 (="
1 month manths maonths years & years Tolal
Deriwatives settled on a gross basis
— Cmik inflow 356,369 A4 786 354,719 BB 158 751 1,141,783
— Cash outflaw {352,649} [439.861) (353.358] (68,759) {1,000} {1,215,628)
Tatal 3,730 1,924 1,361 18,359 (244 26,155

11 Dacember 2020

Lessthan -1 312 1-5 Dver
1manth months manths woan Spaars Tatal
Derivatives settled on a gross basls
= Cash Inflow 539,178 530,154 1,540,235 51085 = 25650642
— Cash outfllaw {527.974) (526.854) [1,545,117) (50,938 - [2650,881)
Tetal 1204 3300 {4,892} 147 — 241}
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FIMNAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

442 Liguldity risk (Continued)

Off-balance sheet items
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The off-balance sheet items primarly include loan commitments, bank oacceptonces, credit card
commitments, guarantees and letters of guarantes and letters of eredit. The tables below summarize
the amounts al credit commitments by remaining maturity, Financial guarantees are  alio  included
below at notional amouns and baied on the carliest contractual maturity date,

31 December 2021

Less than 1tas Ower
1 year years 5 years Total
Loan commitments A5,271 177,371 197,258 455,500
Bank acceptances 414,934 = = 414,934
Credit card commitments Ta3,594 - - 743,594
Guarantoo and letters of guarantee 153,029 135,151 15,058 304,238
Lettars of credit 162,515 2,738 ABE 165,638
Tatal 1,559,343 315,260 213,702 2,088 305

31 Decernber 2020

Leis than 1tas Dwer
1 year yEars 5 years Total
Lean eommitments 277,152 387,315 952 811 1,617,278
Bank acceplances 439,841 - - 439, 841
Credit card commilments B95,183 - = 695,183
Guarantee and letters of guarantes 135,533 118,620 10,493 264,646
Letters of eredit 157,942 4,414 - 162,356
Tatal 1,605,661 510,345 963,304 3,169,304

44,3 Market rizk

336 @rwsenn

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from changes in market rates of interest and
foreign exchange, as well as commodity and equity prices. Market risk arises from both the Group's
propristary positions and customer driven tramsactions, In both cases related to en-and off-balance

sheet acthvities.

The Group is primarily exposed to Interest rate risk through corporate, persanal banking and treasury
operations. Interest rate risk i imherent in many of the Groups businesses and this  situation s
comman among large banks. It fundamentally arises through mismatches between the maturity and re-

pricing dates of interest-earning assets and Interest-bearing Habilities.

Forelgn exchange rate risk ks the potential loss related to changes in forelgn exchange rabes affecting
the translation of foreign curmency denominated monetary assets and llabilities, The risk of loss results

from movemaents in foreign currency exchange rates,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk [Continuad)

The Group i also exposed 1o commodity risk, primarily related o gald and other precious metals, The
risk of loss results from movements in commodity price, The Group manages the risk related 1o gold
price together with foreign exchange rate risk,

The Group hat determined that the levels of market risk related 1o changes in equity prices and
commodity prices other than godd, with respect 1o the related exposures in 15 trading and investment
pﬂrlfvulim., are immateral.

Segregation of Trading Book and Banking Book

To enhance the effectiveness of market risk management, as well as the accuracy of determining the
levels of regulatory capital required related to market risk, the Group segregates assets and liabilities,
both on-and off-balance sheet, into either the trading book or banking bock. The trading book is
camprised of financial instruments and commaodity positions held for trading or risk hedging. Any
other pazitiond are induded in the banking boak.

Market Risk Management for Tradimg Book

The Group manages market risk in the trading book through methodelogies that include Value at
Risk (vaR), monitosing and management of established limits, sensitivity analysis, duration analysis,
exposure analysis and stress testing.

Based on changes |n the external market and business aperations, the Group formulates  annual
treasury trading, Investment business and rarket risk management policies, and further elarifies
the basic policies to be followed for bond tradimg and derwvatives trading, as well as risk control
requirements such as exposure and duration. The limit indicator system with VaR as the core, and the
market risk management system (4 used to realize the measurement and monitoring of market risk in
the trading book.

The Bank has adopted an historical simulation method, with a confidence level of 99% based on
holding period of 1 day and historical data for 250 days to calculate the VaR of the trading bock,
which includes the Head Office, domestic branches and overseas bramches, Based on the differences
between domestic and overseas markets, the Bank selected applicoble parameters for model and risk
factors in order to reflect the actual market risk levels. The Bank verified the accuracy and reliability
of market risk measurements through data analysis, parallel modeling and back-testing of the market
risk measurements.

Aerruad Nt 321 | JAT
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FIMNAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk (Continuved)

338 @rrsenn

Market Risk Management for Trading Book [Continwed)

Valt Analysis for the Trading Book

Bank
2021
AL the end
Note of the year Average Manimum Minimum
Intarast rate risk 53 &7 ] L]
Exchange rate risk (411 145 150 a9 L
Commadity rsk a4 83 136 21
Crverall Vak 150 210 307 87
Bank
202C
At the end
of theyear Average Maximum Minimum
Interest rate rigk 59 BE 164 52
Exchange rate risk 4] B 165 213 8
Commaodity risk 7] 15 120 L]
Crverall Vak &7 232 362 ar

The Bank calculates VaRk for its irading book (encluding AMB foreign curreney settiement contracts
with customers under relevant regulations), The Bank conducts stress testing for its rading book

quarterly. The specific areas subject to this testing include the major areas of exposure, such as bonds,
interast rate derivatives, foreign oxchange derivatives and procious metal. The stress teiting uies a
rangn of soenarios, to assess the patential impact on prafit and loss.

(1) VaR related to gold is recognized as a component of foreign exchange rate risk

Market Risk Management for Banking Book

The Group manages market risk refated to the banking book by consistantly applying techniques
across the Group that include exposune limil management, stress testing, scenario analysis and gap

analysis,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Market Risk Management for Banking Book [Continued)
Intevest Aote Risk Management

Interes] rate risk reders to the risk that the adverse ﬂ'l-\l'%!!. i interest  orate leviels  and I'I'I-I1|J|"i|."l
structures will cause the Bank's book vakse to suffer fosses. The Bank's book interest rate risk mainly
comes fram the mismatch of maturily of repricing periods al intéfest-engitive odsets and Habilities
in the Bank's book and the inconsistent changes in the benchmark interest rate on which asssts  and
liabilities are based,

Since the People’s Bank of Chinas LPR reform, the Bank has implemented relevant policies in
asccordance with regulatory requirements, pramoted business system transformation, modified system
loan contracts, improved internal and extermal interest rate pricing mechanisms, strengthened staff
training for branches, comprehensively promoted LPR applcations, and basically realized the entire
system. The entifre process of loan pricing applies LPR pricing.  After the People’s Bank of China
reforms LPR, the connection between the benchmark interest rate on loans and the market interest
rate will be closer, and the lrequency and amplitude of volatility will increase relatively. To this end,
the Bank strengthened the monitoring and prejudgment of the external interest rate environment,
adjusted internal and external pricing strategies in a timely manner, oplimized the asset and lisbility
product strocture and matwrity structure, and proactively adjusted the risk structure to reduce the
economic value and overall impact of interest rate changes. The adverse impact of earnings. During
thie reperting period, the Bank's interest rate risk level was generally stable, and all quota indicators
were controlled within the scope of regulatory reguirements and management abjectives.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Monogement

Forelgn exchange rate risk relates to the mismatch of foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and labilities, and the potential loss related to changes in foreign exchange rates, which largely arses
through operational activities.

The Group performs monitoring and sensitivity analysis of forelgn ewchange rate risk  exposure,
manages the mismatch of foreign currency derominated assets and liabilites to effectively manage
farelgn exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable Nmits.

Market Risk Exposure Limit Managerent

Market risk exposure limits are classified as either directive limits or Indicative limits, based on the type
of effectveness, Including position limits, stop-loss limits, VaR liméts, and stress testing Bmits,

The Group ks committed to continuows improvement of its market risk exposure limit management.
The Group establishes exposure fimits reflecting its risk appetite and continvously refines the
categorization of market risk exposure limits. Further, it regularly monitors, reports, refines, and
implernents improvements to the market sk exposure limit process.

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group primarily conducts its business activities in RMB, with certain transactions denominated in
UsD, HED and, to a lesser extent, othar currencies,

Aerrual Nt 321 34D
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk (Continued)

40 m-_ul.l:ln

Foreign exchanage rate risk (Continued)

The composition of all finandal assets and liabilities ot the end of each reporting period analyzed by

currenty is as follows:

31 December 2021
Other
uso HED curnendtles
|RMB {RMAE (Fohvi
RME  equivalent}  cquivalent]  equivalent) Total
Cash and bakances with cantral banks 1,241,005 61,233 1,142 18,016 1311406
Depodits with barks and
other linancial institutions 148,782 43,451 1,561 17,706 218500
Placements with and koans to banks
and other financial institutions 152,834 118,37 43,509 i A4 944
Derrvative financial assets 18,053 L17% 1.80% 845 1,918
Firanceal assats hizld
urder resale agresments 837,637 = - = B37.637
Loans and advances to customers 15,985,155 g 0,014 E5011 16454501
Financial atiets at fair value through
profit or loss 845,580 10,933 LT 1,651 A50,241
Debl instrument Investments al
amortized cost 6,307,943 49,929 5,591 4,659  B3T2512
Oaher debt instrument and other equety
investments at fair value through
other comprehemsive income 1,151,032 147,730 L7156 45,761 13971280
Orther financial asets 60,258 5,315 1528 Ta0 e
Tetad financial ssots 27,358,740 038 467 134,083 185,702 28 EaEE0D
Berrewings hrom central banks (745,597] - - [1,616) (747213}
Deposits from baks and
ather finpncial institutions 11,572,538 {17,571) [24,877) [7.082)  {1,622.366)
Placements from banks and
ather finangial instibutions {67,315 [178,291] [Th.B42) (18,657} [290.105)
Financial kabilities at fair value thiowgh
prafit or lass {15,864] - - - 15,860}
Desivative financial Fabilities {14,357) {2,290 [2,164) [4BE) {12,337)
Financial assets sodd
urder repurchase agreements (20,302) (9,950 - [5.781) {36,035}
Due to customers (21,373,264 {459,093 [32,650) [42,114)  |21,907,127)
Dbt securities lssued i1,175,538) [129,994] [36,114) [65,713)  {1,507.657)
_Dther finanial fabilities (294, 74) 119.384) f1.508) [L305) (318543
Totad financial llabilities [15,280,153] (917,179] [124,155) [143,754) (26,465,241}
Mot on-balance sheet positon 1,078,587 11,288 il 41,948 2,143,651
MNet notional amaount of derivatives 154,773 8,78% 13,045 [35.288) 151,318
Loan commitments and financial
fuaranies contracts 1,799,456 145,491 10,216 33,102 1,088,305
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For the yeas ended 31 Decamber 2021
[Arnounts im il liges od Renmink, unless of e races sated|

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk [Continued)
Forelgn exchange rate risk {Continued]

The eamposition of all financial assets and Rabilities at the end of cach reporting period analyzed by
currency is as follows: (Continued)

31 Decenber 2020

Other
usD HED CurTEnCies
(AME ({RMB (B
VB cquwent] cquivalent] _equhaless) Toal
Cash andl balarces with central banks 1,35\5,5[5 51,151 1,106 16,219 237,275
Depaosits with banks and
ether financlal inst tutions 363,557 50538 1.353 17257 434,185
Placements with and loans to banks and
ether financial instiutions 291,880 185,248 38 894 28,926 546,048
Derivative financial assets 56566 1.084 45 4142 61937
Firancial assets heid
under resale agreements 816,206 - - - 216,206
Loans and advances to customers 14,076,068 ELI R F) 52,231 M7 14552413
Firancial assets at fabr walue through
prafit or loss 551067 1185 6,856 12,381 583,064
Dedit insirument investments at
mmortized cout 5,617,368 58,301 42371 3,780 5,684,230
Crther debt instrument and ather equity
inwestments a1 fair value through
other comprehenibe inoame 1309570 16,202 1518 36,990 1,555,370
_Other financial aspets B4.100 LTk 3415 3325 101,562
Tatal financial assets 15,535,731 52918 111.91% 196,637 16,773,305
Barrowngs from central banks {735,59000 - - (L.261) [¥37.161)
Duepoiits from banks and
other linancial institutions (1,336474] (26,379 [30,775) [10588) (1394516}
Placements from banks and
oiner financial institutions (136,46%| {200, 432] (32327 21,372} | 390,660}
Firancial labillties a1 fair value through
prafit or loss (37857 - - - 781
Derivatioe financial lisbilities {1367] |0, 268) [257) (380 165282}
Firancial assels sold
unier repurchase agreements 183,005] {18,945) - (7181} [10%.185)
Diee o custemers {19.873.361) {430,007) {33,570 [35.263) (20372901
Dbt sscurities issued (1,065,150 {216,330) [¥6.198) (64,167} [1371,845)
Other financial Rabilities {310,390 (32,108} [2,399) (5,049 (350 466)
Tatal financial labdtie (23,573 457] (384 579) [115,526) [145,281)  {24,B19 343
HNet on-balance sheet position 1062274 (55,651) [3,607) 50,355 1,053,362
Met national amount ol derivatives 138,357 14038 19,124 (20,638} 181,032

Loan commitments and financial
Ruarantes contragts 2,893,041 235,335 14914 12,004 3,169,304

342 | @ rseany
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in milkons of Aerminbi, ke otherwise stated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
443 Market risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)
The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax and ather comprehensive income
arising from a 5% appreciation or depreciation of RMB spot and forward foreign exchange rates

against a basket ol all ather currencies on the net positions of fareign currency menetary assets and
liabilities and derivative instruments in the consolidated statement of financial position.

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Other iher
Profit  compreheniive Profit comprehensine
RKAD before tax income befors tax income
5% appreciation [3,317] 186 (2433} [462)
5% dopreciation 3,317 {18E) 2433 62

The effect on profit before taw and other comprehensive income 15 calculated based on  the
assumption that the Group's foreign currency sensitive esposures and foreign currency derivative
Instruments net position at the end of each reporting perliod remain unchanged. The Group mitigates
its foreign exchange rate risk through active management of |ts foreign currency exposures and
the approprigte use of derivative Instruments, based on management expectation of future foreign
currency exchange rate movements. Such analysis does not take into account the correlation effect of
changes in different foreign currencies, nor any further actions that could b taken by management to
mitigate the effect of foredgn exchange differences. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis above may differ
from actual results occurting through changes in forelgn exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group™s Interest rate risk arises from the mismatches between contracteal maturities or  re-
pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing liabdlities, as well as the inconsistent
variations in the benchmark interest rate on which the assets and liabilities are based, The Growp's
Interost-generating assets and interest-bearing liabilities are primarily denominated in AMEB, The PBOC
stipulated the benchmark interest rate for RMB deposits. The deposit interest rate floating ceiling was
removed by the PBOC with effect from 24 December 2015 for commercial banks. Since 16 August 2015,
the PBOC established RMB Loan Prime Rate to replace AME benchmark interest rates for loan a5 a
pricing benchmark of new loan whercby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans basod
on crodit risk, commarcial and market factors,

The Group manages its Interest rate risk by

—  Strongthen the pre judgment of the situation and analyze the macrocconamic factors that may
affect the LPR interest rate, the benchmark deposit interest rate and the market interest rate;

—  Swrengthen strategy transmission and eptimize the repricing term structure of interest-carning
assets and interest-bearing Gabilities;

—  Implement mit management to control the impact of interest rate changes on the economic
value and averall income of bank books within the limits.

Aemual Mgt 2021 341
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMCIAL RISKE MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate Fisk [Continued)

The tables below summarize the contractual maturity or re-pricing date, whichewer is earlier, of the
Graup's linancial assets and Habilities at the end of each reparting period.

31 Becomber 2021
Hos-
Legs Esan 1wl Ia 12 Ims Dwes et
1 mosith manth noeE years §yean bearing Tetal

Cash ard batances with cenral banks pman = - - - L ETEFIE
e pansits with banks and

iother financial ingtiutions 102 508 41,058 SEAY 11,503 - B543 114,500
Flacemertywith and loans to banks

and other finsnoal ime tutiond 182417 106 568 L FRALY 14, 866 - 1078 A4 884
Desivathee finarcial isets = = — = = 11978 LT
Financial assets hed

wnde reLile sgresmants Mals HLEaE LT85 = = 445 LEFET
Loans and advanirs 1o osboment 4316358  rASI T BAA1E1S E,528 453 5% 1931 1545450
Finaneisl 3soets 11 U5if value theough

ol e hass 117% 16,130 F06] 1,078 155,812 152637 424
Debd nsirument imesiments ot

amartired cost 57,004 104,328 543,317 2,676,011 1E€9,265 113592 6371512
Cther debt instrumant and obser pguity

ifivesimenls 3 lir e o ough

other Corr plebeniase ncome M52 $A96 birR) - 566,997 T 19153 13918
Other fianga assets : - . - - mm na
Tetal firarcaf assetc 758 £ T 46 B LK REY] A0 ¥ 1450 28 TILRAE e MY
Berrermings from central banks [L2.518} (30000 (A5 7%6| |1L263] A |EB3E]  {7E&7.110)
Deporsits from banks and

cther financlal Institutions fLae) (a5 (A3 (eSS - AN s a6
Pacermrents froe banks and other

Fnzncialingtitution |108,775) |94, 50T (TR 13,04£) 11,295} ILA5E)  [291,108)
Financial Labities at baif walue throogh

prodi or o - - - - WA sese (158
Derreilive Erarclal hatities = < £ ES = jlammn (L)
Financial assets sold

ender repurchase agresments |18,238) [BETT) {3,047 [1,157) - [ (s}
Dum i customeny NI 0154524 (L0039 |e2e0008) [16.048] |50 (nserLT
Dbt sevuntos isswed [RB0L) (PR (JURSH| [QB4SEN (1949 (RIS 507,657
Ciher fisanca’ liabilities - = - - - [3iB54Y) 314548
Teadl Francal iasdites (IF226EL (LEMIRY)  [ATORTI0) MG} (FILSME)  (TLEST) (AR
Inlerest rie gap [6735.000  102%,100  AETL5U [554 205 358300 1988 2143450
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk (Continued)

344 @eusesn

Interest rate risk jCantinued)

The tables below summarize the contractua maturity of re-pricing date, whichever is earlier, of the
Group's financial assets and [abilities at the end of each reporting period. (Cantinued)

11 Becember 00
Hen-
Lt than 1tal 1l 12 Ims i intered
1 momhk manh vt (] 5 yean beiing el

Cah and batances with central barks FRLT AT L 1igs - - M\ AN
Depaits with banks and

iothar financial intitutions |ane 57083 JSEET 13,007 - Lt ) A3 185
Placermsenss with and laans 1o banks

and other Tinandal imsiitations. 210,774 156518 bLRen 28,830 - 1750 5 S
Derivative financia! axsets = = N - = .97 BLsaT
Firancial apets held

under reial agresminty 755,066 T TL6T = - 1555 16,208
Lo and advant ey 1o customen, LR I R A - T T 619,431 AEG0%7 HI 14552473
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Other debt imdrament nd other eqaity
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inancial Kb ies 68 Dt wakes Lhicugh

prafit o st 19,530 - {10m ria] - [IT355) (2B
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk [Continuad)
Interest rate Fisk (Comtinued)

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact, of o parallel vpward or downward shifi
of 100 basis points In relevant intercdt rabe curves on the Group's net Interest Income and ather
eomprehenshee income for the nest twelve manths from the reporting date, based on the Group's
positans of nterest-eaming assets and interest-bearing labilivies at the end of each reporting period.
This analyind assumes that interest rates af all maturities move by the same amaunt, and does not
reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

The sensitivity analysis on net interest income is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates
with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial labilities held at the period end
remains unchanged, and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis rick or any prepsyment
options on debt securities into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in fair value
of those fimancial instruments classified as other debt instrument and other eguity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive held, whose fair value changes are recorded as an element of
other comprehensive incame,

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Met Qaher ket Other
Inevest  comprehensive interest tomprehansyve
E Income _ income Income ingome_
+100 beasis poinis [37,792) [39.264) [37.556) [E7.5941)
- 100 basis paints 37,702 39 264 37,556 67,941

The assumptions do not reflect actions that might be taken under the Group's capital and interest
rate risk management policy to mitigate changes 1o the Group's Interest rate risk. Therefore the above
analysis may differ from the actual situation.

In addition, the presentation of interest rate sensitivity above is Tor illustration purposes only, showing
the potentinl impact on Aet interest income and other comprehensive income of the Group under
different parallel yield eurve movements, relathe to their position at period-end, excluding the
derivative positions.

44.4 Country Risk

Country risk represents the risk due to changes and inckdents occurred in the economy, polities and
society of a specific country or region, which results in the borrowers or debtors in that country or
region Incapable of or unwilling to pay thelr debts owed to the Bank or otherwise lzads to business
losses or other losses to the Bank in that country or region

According to the regulatory requirements of CBIREC, the Group managed country risk through tools
and aparoaches such as country risk rating, limit approval, exposure analysis and stress testing, In
the meamwhile, we fully considered the impact of country risk on asset quality, accurately identified,
reasonably assessed and prudently estimated the asset loss that may be caused by country risk.
Corresponding provislons were also made for country risk impalrment,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Co ntinued}
44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.5 lnsurance risk

The Group engages in s insurance business primarily in Chinese mainland. Infurance risk refers
to the financial impact resulting from the wnexpected occurrence of insured events, These risks
are actively managed by the Group through effective sales management, underwriting cantrol,
reinsurance management and elaim management. Through effective sales management, the risk of mis-
selling could be reduced and the accuracy of information wsed for underwriting is improved.  Through
underwriting contral, risk of adverse selection eould be reduced and moreaver differential pricing policy
based an the level gl =ach kind of risk could be wtilized. 'I'hmugh reimsurance, the Growp's imsorance
capacity could be enhanced and targeted risks could be mitigated. Effective claims management is
designed to ensure that insurance payments are controlled according to established eriteria.

Uncerainty in the estimation of future bemefit payments and premium receipts for long-term life
insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in averall levels of mortality.
The Group comducts experience analysis of maortality rate and surrender rate, in order to improve (ts
risk assessment and as a basis for reasonable estimates.
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Greup's capital manogement objectives are as follows:

= maintain an adequate capital base to support the development of its business;

= support the Group's financial stability and profnable growth;

—  allecate capital through an efficlent and risk based approach to optimize risk-adjusted returmn to
shareholders; and

= safeguard the long-term sustalnability of the Group's franchise so that it can continue to provide
sufficient shareholder returns and benefits for other stakeholders.

The “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisionall® issued by the CBIRC in 2012 indudes, among other
things, requirements for minlmum capital, capital conservation buffer, additional capital surcharge for
systemically important banks, eountereyclical bulfer and Pillar Il capital as follows:

= minimum regulatory requirements for Common Equity Tier-one Capltal Adequacy Ratio, Tier-one
Capital Adequacy Ratio and Capital Adequacy Ratio are 5%, 6% and B%, respectively;

= capital conservation buffer requires additional 2.5% of Common Equity Tier-one Capiial  Adeguacy
Ratig;

= additional capital surcharge for systemically important banks reguires additional 1% of Common
Equity Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio;

= should the regulators reguiee countercpcical buffer under particular circumstances or  regulators
Impose additicnal Pillar 1l capital requirements for specific banks, these reguirements shall be maet
within the specified time limits,

346 @rreenn

455/508



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2031
{Amaunts in millions of Remminbi, wnless otherwise stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT [Cantinued)

In April 2014, the CBIRC officially approved the Group 1o adopt advanced capital management approach.
Within the scope of the approval, the Internal Ratings-Based approach is adepted to Credit Risk-weighted
Assets for both retail and non-retall risk exposures, and the Standardized approach for both Operational Risk-
weighted Adsets and Market Risk-welghted Assets, The CBIRC will determine the parallel run period for the
Group, which should last for at least throe years, During the parallel run peried, the Group should calculate its
Capital Adequacy Ratios under the advanced approach and the nan-advanced approach, and should conform
ta the eapital flaor requirements as stipulated in the “Capital Rules far Commercial Banks [Prenisianall”.

In lanuary 2017, the CBIRC has ¢"'|:Iall|r approved the Group to adopt the lnternal Models approach 1o
measure its Market Risk-weighted Assets fer qualified risk exposures.

Capltal adequacy and the utilization al regulatory capital are closely monitored by the Group's
management in accordance with the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and relevant regulations
pramulgated by the CBIRC. Reguired information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly
with the CBIRC.

The Group's capdtal adequacy ratio ealculated in accordance with the "Capital Rules for Commercial Banks
(Provisional]” ssued by the CBIRC as at the end of the reparting period is as follows:

31 December 31 December

Noles 2021 2020
Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio (1] 11.44% 11.04%
Tier-enc Capital Adequacy Ratio [1) 13.468% 12.92%
Capital Adequacy Ratio [1] 17.13% 16.59%
Commuon Equity Tier-one Capétal (21 2,053,737 1,884,392
Beductible Items from Common Equity
Ther-ane Caplual (3] {11,257} {3,020)
Net Common Eguity Tier-one Caplital 2,041,480 1,875,372
Ackditional Tier-one Capital {4 350,881 310,884
Het Tier-ane Capital 2,402,361 2,195,356
Tier-two Capital (5] 655,506 b22,668
Met Capital 3,057,867 2,617,924
Risk-weighted Assets (&1 17,849,566 16,989,668

Pursuant to the "Capital Rules for Cormmercial Banks (Provisional)”:

{11  The scope of consolidation related to the calculation of the Group's Capital Adequacy Ratios includes
Damestic Institutions, Choarseas Institutions and affiliated financial subsidiaries specified in the Regulatioen.

Ther Commen Equity Tier-gne Capital Adeguacy Ratio i colculated as Net Common Equity  Tier-gne
Capital divided by Risk-weighted Asscts. The Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio is caloulated as Net Tior-

ong Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets, The Capital Adequacy Ratio is calculated as Mot Capital
divided by Risk-weighted Assets,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MAMAGEMENT (Continued)

(2} The Group's Common Equity Tier-one Capital includes: ordinary share capital, capital reserve (subject
to regulatory limitations), investment revaluation reserve, surplus reserve, general resarve, retained
earnings, non-controlling interests (to the extent parmitted In the Common Equity Tier-one Capital
unger the Regulation), and the foseign currency transiation reserve,

{3) The Group's Deductible Iems fram Common Equity Tier-one Capital include: other intangible assets
{eucluding land-use rights), and Commaon Eguity Tier-one Capital investments made in financial
Institutions over which the Group has contfol but are sutiide the regulstory consolidation scope for
the Capital Adequacy Ratlos calculation,

(4) The Group's Additional Tier-one Capital includes: preference  shares  issued and  non-controlling
Interests (to the extent permitted in the Additional Tier-ene Capital definiton under the Regulation).

(3) The Group's Tier-two Capital includes: Tier-two capital instruments and  related premium (to the
extent allowed under the Regulation], excesshee allowance for loan |sses, and minarity mteréits (1o
the extent parmitted in the Tier-two Capital definition under the Regulation).

(6) Risk-weighted Assets include Credit Risk-weighted Assets, Market Hisk-weighted Assets  and
Cperational Risk-weighted Assets,

46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The majority of the Growp's assets and liabllities in the consolidated statement of financlal position are
financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair value measurement of ronsfinancial assets and nponsfinancial
Habilsties do not have a material impact on the Group®s financial position and operations, taken as a whole.

The Group does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities subject to non-recurring fair value
maasurements for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

46.1 Valuation technigue, input and process
The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows;

= If traded in active markots, fair values of financial ascets and Ffinancial liabilities with standard
terms and conditions are determined with reference to guoted market bid prices and ask prices,
respectively;

— If mot traded in active markets, fair values of fnancial assets and financial  Habilitios  are
determined by using valuation technigues. These valuation technigues Include the use of recent
transaction prices of the same or similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis and generally
accepted pricing models,

The Growp has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial labilithes.
The Financial Accounting Department of head office establishes the valuation madels for finangial assets
and financlal liahilities of head office and its branches in China and Independently implements the
valuation an a regular basis; and the Risk Management Depariment i responsible for validating the
valuation model, the Operations Departments records the accounting for these items. Overseas branches
and sub-branche: designate departments or personnel that are independent from  the front trading
office to perform wvaluation In accordance with the local regulatory reguirements and their own
department settings,

The board of directors shall be respansible for establishing and improving the internal contral system
related to the valuation of financial Instruments and approving valuation policies.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, there was no significant changes in
the valuation technigues or inputs used to determing fair value measurements.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.2 Fair value hierarchy

The level in which fair value measurement is categorized 1 determined by the level of the flair  value
higrarchy of the lowest kel input that is significant to the entire Tair value measurement:

Level 10 fair value measurements are those derived fram quoted prices (unadjusted] in an active
market for identical assets ar Habilities;

Level 20 fair value memurements are those dérived rom inpuls other than guotéd prices induded
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabiity, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: fair value measurements are not based on observable market data.

46.3 Financial assets and financial labilities not measured at falr value on the consolidated
statement of financial position

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values af thoss financial assets and
financial llabiliies nat measured in the consolidated staternent of financial positton at their fair value.
Financial assets and financial liabilities for which the carrying amounts approzimate fair value, such as
balances with eentral banks, deposits with banks and ather linoncial institutions, placements with and
loans to banks and other finandal nstitutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans
and advances to customers, receivable Trom the MOF, special government band, borrewings from
central banks, deposits and placements from banks and other financial insttutions, due (o customers,
firancial assets sold under repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit issuved, interbank
cortificate of deposits issued and commercial papers issued are not included in the tables below.

______ 11 December 2021
Carrylng
amount  Fair valug Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3
Financial assets
Debt Instrument investments at
amortired cost (excluding necehable
fram the MOF and special
governimsent bond) 5,953,141 6,107 242 32,976 5,961,171 117,695
Financlal Habllities.
Bioidd wsuied 428 B3E 435,680 47 BB5 367,815 —
31 Decembar 2020
Carrying
Wbt Gcie: el w2 tendd
Financial assets
DDt instrument imsesiments at
amortieed cast (excluding neceivable
fram the J0F and special
government bond) 5,373,435 5,333,755 21372 5,151,535 154,448
Financial labilities
Bonds issued 435,621 441,775 28,7149 413,026 -
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at foir value on the consolidated
statement of finoncial pesition

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities measured in
thir consolidated statement of financial position at their fale value.

11 December 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative financial assets
— Exchange rate derivatives - 0,116 - 0116
— Interest rate derivatives - 1,141 - 1,141
= Precious metal contracts - 721 - 7
Subtotal - 21,578 - 1,578
Loans and advances o customers
= Discounted bills and forfeiting - 502,748 - 502,748
Subtotal - 502, TAE - 502,748
Financial investment.
Financial assets ot fair value through
prafit or o
— Heid for trading
Bonds B225 115912 = 128,137
Precious metal contracts = 11,389 - 11,389
Equity 3,548 1311 - 5179
Fund and others 4,261 316 = 4577
— Other financial assets at fair value
thraugh profit ar lass
Bonds = 154,585 7 154 359
Equity 13,501 12,063 8112 104,676
Fund ard others 251 13,30% 18,455 15,011
— Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Dbt securties 2,273 40 - 2313
Subtotal 32,459 328,341 98,841 460,241
Other debt instruments and other equity
Investments at fair value through
other comprehentive income
Debt instruments
= Hoads 162,072 1,213,723 - 1,375,795
— Ohers * 16,896 - 16,896
Exquiity instrumants 1,165 = 3424 4,589
Subtotal 163,237 1,230,519 3424 1,397,280
Total assets 195,696 2,084,286 102,165 2,382,247
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

464 Financial assets and financial Nabilities measured ot fair value on the consolidated
statement of finaoncial pasition (Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial a2sets and financial liabilities measured in
thie consalidated statement of financial position at their fair value, [Comtinucd)

JlDecember2021 0
Leval 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Tatal

Financial lkabilitles at fair value through

profit or loss
Held for trading

— Financial Kabilitics related to precious

metals - (15,646 - [15.696)

Fimancial liabilities designated at fair

value through profit or bess

— Liabilities af the controlled structured

entities - - {214} [214)
__Subtotal = [1s.696) _fand)  (A5.Ae04
Derivative financial liabilities
— Emchange rate derivatives - {14,734) - (14,734)
— Interest rate derivatives - {2,366) - {2,366)
= Precious metal contracts - (2,237) - 12,237}
Subtotal = (19.337) = {15331
Diue ta custamers
__ Due to custemars measured at fair value - 152,306) - 152,306)
Total Rabifities - (A7.289] {214} [A7.503)

252 | (P vk duly
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial ossets and financial liobilities measured ot fair volue on the consolidated
statement of finoncial pesitien (Continued)

The tables balow summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities measured in
the consolidated statement ol financial position at their fair valee, [Continued)

21 Depember Sl

Level 1 level2  Lovel 3 Total
Derivative financial assets
— Exchange rate derlvathwes - 58,187 - 58,187
= Interest rate derivatives - 1,008 - 1,008
= Preciows metal contracts - 1,741 - 1,741
Subtotal = 51,937 = 61,937
Loans and advances 1o customers
= Discounted bills and forfeiting - 577,957 - 577997
- Wegotiation L/C - 52 - 52
Subtotal - 578,049 - 578,59
Financial iInvestment
Fimanckal assets at fair value through
prafit or loss
— Held lor trading
Bonds 1257 181,268 - 182,525
Pregious metal cantracts - 21,959 - 21,959
Equity 3912 1,032 - 4,944
Fumd and others 14323 M9 = 14,532
= Other financlal assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Bonds - 132,530 1478 134,008
Equity 1.E42 13,561 71998 57,401
Fumd and others 1,998 6,936 18897 18,831
= Financial assets designated at falrvalue
theough profit or loss
Debt securities 8,750 55,116 63,866
Placements with and loans to banks
and ather financial institutions - FLELES 3442 27935
Oihers = = 7068 7,068
 Sulitotal 33,082 447,104 102,883 583,060
Other debt instruments and ather equity
Investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Debt instruments
= Bonds 114,780 1,417,718 - 1532458
= Qthers - 531 18,410 18,541
Equity Instruments 1,221 - 2.7 3931
Subtotal 116,002 1418249 11,119 1,555,370
Total assels 143,084 2,505,339 124,007 2,778,425
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

464 Financial assets and financial Nabilities measured at fair value on the consalidated
statement of finoncial pasition (Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial azsets and financial liabilities measured in
thie consalidated statement of financial position at their fair value, [Comtinued)

31 December 2020

Level 1 Lewel Level 3 Total
Financial lkabiltles at fair value through
profit or loss
Held for trading
= Financial liabilitses related to
precious metals - [13,725) - {13,725)
Financial liabllities designated at falr value
through profit or loss.
= Placemants from banks and other financlal
nstitutions by principal puaranteedwealth
managoment - = 19,540) (9,540}
— Liabilities of the controlled
structured entities (4222 = (&30} {243d)
— Others = {100} = {100}
Subtotal {4.222) [13.825] 19,770} (27.817)
Dierivative financial liabilities
= Exchange rate derivatives - {57.756] - [57.758)
= Interest rate derivatives - |4,357) - 14,357)
— Precious metal contracts and others = {3,169} = {3,169}
Subtogal - [65,287) - (65,282}

Duse 1o customars
[rue to customers messurcd at fair vilue

{268,551] {73,118) (341,569}

Total Kabifities 4,222} (347,658 {82,888) {434,768}

Substantially all financial nstruments clissified within Lewel 2 of the fair value hierarchy are debt
investments, currency Torwards, curmency swaps, intercst rate swaps, currency aptions, precious metal
contracts and structured deposit measored at Fair value, Fair value of debt investments denominated
in RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co.,
Ltd. Fair vabup of debt imvestments denominated in foroign currencies is determined based wpon  the
waluation retults published by Bloomberg. The fair value of currency forwards, currency swaps, interest
rate swapd, currency options and structured deposit medsured at fair value are colculated by applying
discounted cash flow anmalysis or the Black Schaoles Pricing Model, The fair valie of precious matal
contracts that are related to the Group's trading activities is determined with reference 1o the relevam
observable market parameters. All significant inputs are observable in the market.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial labilities measured at falr value on the consalidated
statement of financial position ([Continued)

Level 3 financial assets of the Group mainly represented underlying assets invested by principal-
guaranteed WhPs Bsued by the Group induding placements with and loans to banks and  other
financial institutions and eredit ascets. The counterparties of these placements are primarily non-
bank fnancial institutions in Chinese mainland, The credit assets are loans and advances W corporate
custamers in Chinese mainland, Level 3 finoncial labilities largely  represented  liabilities 1o the
irvestors of these products. A not all af the Inputs niseded to estimate the air value of theie dstets and
liabilities are observable, the Group classified these investment products within Level 3 of the fair value
meaturemont hieranchy, The -!.Igl'llli:.‘ll'l: unohserdable inputs rolated to these atsets and liabilities are
thowe parameter relating to ofedit risk, liquidity and discaunt rate. Management hat made assumptiont
an unobservable inpuls based on observed indicators of impairment, significant changes im yheld,
external eredit ratings and comparable eredit spreads, but the fair value of these underlying asets and
liabilities could be different from those disclosed.

The reconcillation of Level 3 classified financial assets and financial kabilities presented at fair value on
the consolidated staterment of financial position is as Tollows:

2021
Other debt instrument Flnancial
Finartisl aisets and ather equity lizhilities (L TER]
at falr value Investments at fair at falr value custamens
through  wvalue through other thraugh measured
prefit of lass  eomprehensive incame peredit o loss at fair value
1 Tanuary 2071 R [ X HIRICY {8,770] [EERTT]
Purchases ET 113 = =t
Issues - . - -
Setilements/duspesalsfiransier
outof level 3 [37,436) f18.21m 5,570 73553
Total gain/{los) recognized in
— Profit or loss 567 659 11aj [435]
— (Othes comprebersive income - [RE5] - -
11 December 2021 08841 1424 {214) E

Change in unrealized profit
ar ety for the periad
included in profit or loss
lo# assessflishilties. held at
the end ol the year 783 - - -
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Finoncial ossets ond financial Nobilities measured at foir value on the consolidated
statement of financial pasition (Continued)

2020
(Gther debt instrument Fimancial
Financial assets ard oiher equity Iihilities Dee o
at falrvalue Frvestmients 3 fair at falrvalue usbormars.
thraugh walue through other through mgasued
profitor boss  comprehensive incame profit or loss at fairvalue
1 Jamuary 2020 96,871 20,559 (6,681) (306, 294)
Purchases 53,943 BATS (230} =
Issuas - - [185,640) (1155477}
Settlements/disposals |57 085) {6, 408] 183,361 1,395,178
Tatal lpssfIgain] recognized in
= Profit or loss 155 108 {580 [6.475)
— Ordwer comprehensive ingome: - 7] - :
31 Decembaer 2020 102,883 FIRIL] {8,770) [73.118]
Change in unnead ned hoss/Igain)
for the period included in
profit or logs for assotsf
liabiitias held at the end ol
the vear B9 - {1009 -

In level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, total gains or losses ineluded in profit of loss for the period are
presented in net gain/{loss) on financial investments (Note 1V 4) of the consolidated income statement,

47 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

47.1 Profit appropriation

{1} On 26 lanuary 2022, pursuant to the resolutions of the Board of Directors' meeting, a cash
dividend at the dividend rate of 4.84% por annum  related to the socond tranche of proforence
thares amounting to RMB1936 milken in total was approved and the dividend was distributed
on 11 Manch 2022,

{2} Pursuant ta the meeting of the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022, the proposal for profit
appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set forth as follows:

il  An apprepriotion of RMB24,335 million to the statutory surplus reserve (Note IV 36);

[}  An appropriation of RMB32,221 million to the general reserve (Note IV 37);

[} A cash dividend of RMBO.206E per ordinary share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021 based on the number of ordinary shares issued as at 31 December
2021 retaling RMBYT2,376 milllon {Mote 1Y 10).

As at 31 December 2021, the stabutory surplus reserve had been  recognired  as

appropriation. The ather two tems will be recognized In the Group®s financial statements
after approval by ordinary equity holders in the forthcoming Annul General Meeting,

Aerual Neport 321 IS5
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3021
[Ammoants im mdlliges of Renminks, anleas of heradon sated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Cﬂ ntinued]
47 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD |(Continued)
461 Undated capital bonds (ssued

On 22 February 2022, the Bank bsued “2022 Undated Capital Bonds (First Tranche) of Agricultural
Bark of China Limited” (the *Bonds®} in China's national inter-bank bond market, The issue size of
the Bonds i RMBSO billion. The proceeds from this issue of the Bonds will be used to replenish the Bank's
additional tier 1 capital,

43 COMPARATIVES

Certabn comparative amounts have been reclassified to canform with the curnent year's presentation,

49 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK

— Az at J1 Decembar_____
Z0Z1 2020
Aszets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,320,907 2,436,779
Depasits with banks and other financial institutions 198,745 413,567
Pracious metals 96,504 87,3579
Placements with and loans to Banks and other financial
institutions 531,065 634,055
Derivative financial assets 11,978 651,937
Financial assets held under resale agreements B32,216 R12,797
Loans and advances o customers 16,377,896 14,489,992
Financial investments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 320,106 396,298
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 6,337,768 5651053
Dther debt instrument and other equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,337,218 1,439,296
Investment in subsidiaries 51,523 41,544
Investments in associates and joint ventures 1,073 110
Controlled structured entities investments — 115,862
Property and equipment 140,675 139,588
Deferred tax assets 142,180 132,485
Othar assets 127,195 143,978
Total assets 28,B37,049 27,000,802
Liabilities
Barrawings fram central banks 747,101 737,048
Depesits from Banks and ather fingncial institutions 1,636,419 1,413,174
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 233,468 344,907
Financial Rabifities at fair value through pn:ﬂ'! or loss 15,645 23,365
Derivative financial Rabilities 19,337 65,254
Financial ausers iodd under repurchase agreements 30,456 104,440
Dt 1o Customers 21,906,047 20,371,534
Dekt securities issued 1,451,004 1,326,408
Dther liabilitied 388 958 427,892
Total liabilities 216,438,526 24,814,022

356 (Drwsens
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foor the year ended 31 Decambes 2021
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 STATEMENT OF FINAMNCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK [Continued)

As n";L I::-e_g- smber

2021 2030
Equity
Crrdinary shares 349,983 349,983
Orthier equity insbrumants 359,872 319,875
Preference shares 79,899 79,899
Perpistual bonds 279,973 239,976
Capital reserve 173,357 173,357
Investment revaluation reserve 34,262 25,784
Surplus resens 219 936 195 591
General reservi 238,955 209,642
Retained carnings 913,752 B12,626
Foreign currency translation resereg {1,584} (78]
Total equity 1,398,523 2,186,780
Total equity and liabilities 28,837,049 27,000,802
Approved and authorized for ssue by the Board of Déirectors on 30 March 2022.
Chairmian Vice Chalrman
St Repoet 3031 ST
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021
[Amounits im mil lioes of Renminbs, unless othe ravien stated)|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Toege
hmesime vy
Dediensy  Ouhier ity Gptal  remdenton Seraba Tl leined  panilation
AR el “Hie PRENE il T AR trisng Total
A a1 3t Decemsber 300 3 nym masy B 188 et [IiTE [T
Profi forth e = = o & - = s % 143,354
cher Comp PR D - - - BATE . . - el Bin
Tocal comprshwnghen income
ot the year = i  : LA " * FLLEL (L5 mox
Capinal pormibution from
equity holders 53 naEt = 5 5 - = EE o
Agaenprarior (e srpa T = = = = . - P13 = =
Aggrepration {o prmeral rrern = = = 5 = Bil [33.313) = -
Dvbnds pasd b0 ordirary eguty
hokdeny = = - - . - [.TE2) )
Dividends pand bo pEher dquty
Ftrmest bl - - - . . . ek (IR
A5 3t 31 December 221 Hisn HE L7357 W TIRNN M pLER (L5H) L3asn
ferg
Faslmer attey
Dubiary  Othes pgalty Cogitl  sncalustion furphs, Eenwal Relind  frmseditien
tae i e [ 1EanE ] g TR ol
A 3L Do ermber 2010 Hiwn 159 BB 35T B InasL b TR L8l 19535
Profit for thet ygar - = = 3 4 11400 £ o
COrher compnibeniive income - - - LTE5 - - - ] [5.505)
Torual comarehenshes isgome
lor tha year = = - 78 - . 153400 AR s
Capital contribution from
gty bedders - Ings = = - . - - i
AR2ATPRate IL SR THET - - - . I - lLoag .
hEapraton | pEteri FEER - - - - - ne LT L] - -
Dividends g to-orfinary equity
oiers - = * & . - s 1
Drvidands sad ba ctver aquity
iTumest holder - - = = - = LEL ] L
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47
2021 12 31
3.5
42
2021 12 31
1
3
2021 2021 2021 2021
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
129.8% 127.3% 127.9% 121.1%
3
2020 2020 2020 2020
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
145.2% 141.7% 109.6% 116.3%
CBIRC

GAAP
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2021 12 31
948,956 125,183 186,204 1,260,343
(914,889) (121,991) (143268)  (1,180,148)
( ) 1,169,736 46,303 85,630 1,301,669
( ) (1,165,736) (24,260) (121,580)  (1,311,576)
15,263 49 15,312
53,330 25,235 7,035 85,600
4,766 7,664 5,515 17,945
2020 12 31
945,515 115,422 198,148 1,259,085
(924,311) (115,269) (145891)  (1,185,471)
() 1,172,479 43,880 68,332 1,284,691
() (1,115,324) (24,756) (96,172) (1,236,252
(23,016) (2,798) (25,814)
55,343 19,277 21,619 96,239
6,212 6,125 3,103 15,440
3.
1
( ) 12 31
2021 2020
3 74,359 78,228
3 6 29,079 27,106
6 12 23,768 33,687
12 57,715 56,412
184,921 195,433
3 0.43% 0.52%
3 6 0.17% 0.18%
6 12 0.14% 0.22%
12 0.34% 0.37%

1.08% 1.29%
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2021 2020
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1
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
17.32 17.48 16.75 16.06 18.06
15.75 16.01 14.86 13.66 15.78
16.60 16.70 15.79 15.46 17.03
17.28 16.16 15.60 15.81 18.05
100
2021 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022
12 1 2 3 4 5
18.06 18.22 18.29 19.44 20.22 19.67
17.72 17.93 18.04 18.10 19.19 18.85
17.88 18.06 18.17 18.67 19.67 19.18
100
19.19 2022 5 31
100
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2014 1 1 2037 12 31 15.315 15.315 5
2038 1 1 15 15 5
« )
2013 1 1 2037 12 31
2.1
2014 1 1 2037 12 31
20.315 15.315 5 2038 1 1
20 15 5
2009
(b)
D
2009
20
2013 1 1 2037 12 31 20.315
2016 1 1 2016
2)

©
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 1 to 208, which comprise: the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021; the consolidated statement of profit or loss; the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income; the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the IASB. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“the Code"), together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2 Measurement of the
expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to
customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group uses an expected credit loss (‘ECL") model
to measure the loss allowance for loans and advances
to customers in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standard 9, Financial instruments.

The determination of loss allowance for loans and
advances to customers using the expected credit loss
model is subject to the application of a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the credit risk
staging, probability of default, loss given default,
exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments for
forward-looking information and other adjustment
factors. Extensive management judgment is involved in
the selection of those parameters and the application of
the assumptions.

Our audit procedures to assess ECL for loans and
advances to customers included the following:

with the assistance of KPMG’s IT specialists,
understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls of financial reporting over the
approval, recording and monitoring of loans and
advances to customers, the credit risk staging
process and the measurement of ECL for loans and
advances to customers.

with the assistance of KPMG's financial risk
specialists, assessing the appropriateness of the
ECL model in determining loss allowances and the
appropriateness of the key parameters and
assumptions in the model, which included credit risk
staging, probability of default, loss given default,
exposure at default, adjustments for forward-
looking information and other adjustments, and
assessing the appropriateness of related key
management judgment.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2 Measurement of the
expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to
customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance is
heavily dependent on the external macro environment
and the Group’s internal credit risk management
strategy. The ECL for corporate loans and advances
are derived from estimates including the historical
losses, internal and external credit grading and other
adjustment factors. The ECL for personal loans and
advances are derived from estimates whereby
management takes into consideration historical overdue
data, the historical loss experience for personal loans
and other adjustment factors.

for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence
from external sources and comparing to the Group’
s internal records including historical loss
experience and type of collateral. As part of these
procedures, we challenged management’s
revisions to estimates and input parameters by
comparing with prior period and considered the
consistency of judgement.

comparing the macroeconomic forward-looking
information used in the model with market
information to assess whether they were aligned
with market and economic development.

assessing the completeness and accuracy of data
used in the ECL model. For key internal data, we
compared the total balance of the loans and
advances’ list used by management to assess the
ECL with the general ledger to check the
completeness of the data. We also selected
samples to compare individual loan and advance
information with the underlying agreements and
other related documentation, to check the accuracy
of the data and samples to check the accuracy of
external data by comparing them with public
resources.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2 Measurement of the
expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to
customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include the financial situation of the
borrower, the security type, the seniority of the claim,
the recoverable amount of collateral, and other
repayment sources of the borrower. Management refers
to valuation reports of collateral issued by qualified third
party valuers and considers the influence of various
factors including the market price, status and use when
assessing the value of collaterals. The enforceability,
timing and means of realisation of collateral can also
have an impact on the recoverable amount of collateral.

for key parameters used in the ECL model which
were derived from system-generated internal data,
assessing the accuracy of input data by comparing
the input data with original documents on a sample
basis. In addition, we involved KPMG's IT
specialists to assess the logics and compilation of
the loans and advances’ overdue information on a
sample basis.

evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assessment on whether the credit risk of the loan
and advance has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition and whether the loan and
advance is credit-impaired by selecting risk-based
samples. We analysed the portfolio by industry
sector to select samples in industries more
vulnerable to the current economic situation with
reference to other borrowers with potential credit
risk. We checked loan overdue information, making
enquiries of the credit managers about the
borrowers’ business operations, checking
borrowers’ financial information and researching
market information about borrowers’ businesses, to
check the credit risk status of the borrower, and the
reasonableness of the loans’ credit risk stage.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2 Measurement of the
expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to
customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified the measurement of ECL of loans and evaluating the reasonableness of loss given default
advances to customers as a key audit matter because for selected samples of corporate loans and

of the inherent uncertainty and management judgment advances to customers that are credit-impaired, by
involved and because of its significance to the financial checking the financial situation of the borrower, the
results and capital of the Group. security type, the seniority of the claim, the

recoverable amount of collateral, and other
repayment sources of the borrower. Evaluating
management’s assessment of the value of any
collateral, by comparison with evaluation result
based on the category, status, use of the collateral
and market prices. For valuation reports of
collateral issued by qualified third party, we
evaluated the competence, professional quality and
objectivity of the external appraiser. We also
evaluated the timing and means of realisation of
collateral, evaluated the forecast cash flows,
challenged the viability of the Group’s recovery
plans; based on the above work, we selected
samples and assessed the accuracy of calculation
for loans and advances’ credit losses by using the
ECL model.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2 Measurement of the
expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to
customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

performing retrospective review of expected credit
loss model components and significant
assumptions, to back-test past estimates element
against actual outcomes, and assess whether the
results indicate possible management bias on loss
estimation.

assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in
the financial statements in relation to expected
credit losses for loans and advances against
prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of interests in and consolidation of structured entities

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 2 Consolidation, Note 111 5 Consolidation of structured entities”, and “Note
IV 41 Structured entities” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Structured entities are generally created to achieve a
narrow and well defined objective with restrictions
around their ongoing activities.

The Group may acquire an ownership interest in a
structured entity, through initiating, investing or retaining
shares in a Wealth Management Products (“WMPs"),
securitization products, funds, trust investment plans,
debt investment plans and asset management plans.
The Group may also retain partial interests in
derecognised assets due to guarantees or securitisation
structures.

Our audit procedures to assess the measurement of
interests in and consolidation of structured entities
included the following:

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls of
financial reporting over measurement of interests in
and consolidation of structured entities.

selecting significant structured entities of each key
product type and performing the following
procedures:

inspecting the related contracts, internal
establishment documents and information
disclosed to the investors to understand the
purpose of the establishment of the structured
entity and the involvement the Group has with
the structured entity and to assess management
s judgment over whether the Group has the
ability to exercise power over the structured
entity;

inspecting the risk and reward structure of the
structured entity, including any capital or return
guarantee, provision of liquidity support,
commission paid and distribution of the returns,
to assess management’s judgment as to the
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
Group’s involvement in such an entity;
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of interests in and consolidation of structured entities (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 2 Consolidation, Note 111 5 Consolidation of structured entities”, and “Note
IV 41 Structured entities” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

In determining whether the Group retain any partial inspecting management’s analysis of the

interests in a structured entity or should consolidate a structured entity, including qualitative analysis

structured entity, management is required to consider and the calculation of the magnitude and

the power it possesses, its exposure to variable returns, variability associated with the Group’s economic

and its ability to use its power to affect returns. These interests in the structured entity, to assess

factors are not purely quantitative and need to be management’s judgment over the Group’s

considered collectively in the overall substance of the ability to affect its own returns from the

transactions. structured entity;

We identified the recognition of interests in and assessing management’s judgment over

consolidation of structured entities as a key audit matter whether the structured entity should be

because of the complex nature of certain of these consolidated or not.

structured entities and because of the judgment . ) .

exercised by management in the qualitative assessment asse.ssmg the reasonablgness ,Of the disclosures in

of the terms and the nature of each entity. the financial statgments |n'relat|on to thg .
measurement of interests in and consolidation of
structured entities against prevailing accounting
standards.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of financial instruments’ fair value

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.3 Determination of fair value, Note 11l 3 Fair value of financial
instruments”, and “Note IV 46 Fair value of financial instruments” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Financial instruments carried at fair value account for a | Our audit procedures to assess measurement of
significant part of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The | financial instruments’ fair value included the following:
effect of fair value adjustments of financial instruments
may impact either the profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls of
financial reporting over the model building, model

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments, held validation, independent valuation and front office
at fair value, is based on a combination of market data and back office reconciliations for financial
and valuation models which often require a considerable instruments.

number of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained
from readily available data, in particular for level 1 and
level 2 financial instruments in the fair value hierarchy,
the valuation models for which use quoted market prices
and observable inputs, respectively. Where one or more
significant unobservable inputs, such as credit risk,
liquidity and discount rate, are involved in the valuation
techniques, as in the case of level 3 financial
instruments, then estimates need to be developed which
can involve extensive management judgments.

assessing the level 1 fair value of financial
instruments, on a sample basis, by comparing the
fair value applied by the Group with publicly
available market data.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of financial instruments’ fair value (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.3 Determination of fair value, Note 11l 3 Fair value of financial
instruments”, and “Note IV 46 Fair value of financial instruments” to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified measurement of financial instruments’ fair for level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, on a
value as a key audit matter because of the assets and sample basis, involving KPMG'’s valuation
liabilities measured at fair value are material to the specialists to assess whether the valuation method
group and the degree of complexity involved in the selected is appropriate with reference to the
valuation techniques and the degree of judgment prevailing accounting standards. Our procedures
exercised by management in determining the inputs included: developing parallel models, obtaining
used in the valuation models. inputs independently and verifying the inputs;

assessing the appropriate application of fair value
adjustment that form an integral part of fair value,
by inquiring of management about any changes in
the fair value adjustment methodologies and
assessing the appropriateness of the inputs
applied; and comparing our valuation results with
that of the Group.

assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements in relation to
fair value of financial instruments against prevailing
accounting standards, including fair value hierarchy
information and sensitivity to key inputs.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of

China Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Wong Yuen Shan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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